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2018 highlights

£1,907m
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Up 20bps é’
14.0%
2
g
» Results ahead of market expectations %
» Good growth across all Precision Engineering verticals %
» Critical Engineering sales growth despite continued g
New Construction Power weakness

» Hydronic Engineering margin recovery delivered —
» Bimba integration progressing well §
» Adjusted Basic EPS increased 12% 2
» Further reduction of global pension liabilities %

» 3% increase in the full year dividend recommended
» Roy Twite to succeed Mark Selway as Chief Executive

All igures are stated on an adjusted basis excluding the effect of adjusting lems in the meeme statement For other
statutory measures sae Consolidated Income Statement on page 84

" On an organic basis, after adjusting for the impact of disposals and acquisitions and mavements In exchange rates
see Section 2.1 1 on page 93

- Operating Cash Flow before adjusting items as desenbed in the commentary to the cash flow statement on page 91
* Adjusted measures are defined in Section 2 11 on page 93
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Turn to page OL
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Chairman’s statement

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

2018 - another year of
Important progress

We delivered resulis ahead of market expectations

and continued to execute our strategy effectively.

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

Continuous improvement now
firmly established

As we enter the final year of cur five year plan it 1s
an appropriate time to reflect Upon the signiicant
progress that has been made 1o date and the work
that remains 1o be done,

Qur culture has been transformed. IMI1s now &
huginess that, as a matter of course strives for
continuous improvement and recognises the
significant opportunries that flow from ever
ncreasing operatonal efficiency and productiaty.
This mindset 1s fundamentally important and,

now embedded throughout the Group, it will support
the delivery of our averall strategic goal — the
creation of long-term, sustainable value for our
snareholders, employees and other stakeholders.

Dunng the year we mproved our health and safety
performance 1n & number of areas, The total number
of LTAs (lost time accidents) reduced more than 20%
and following the launch of a targeted campa:gn,
the Group delvered a reduction in hand injunes

in the year of over 40%

The Chief Executive’s review on page 12 and the
operational reviews on pages 28 to 33 provide more
details an the recent progress made in each of the
Group's three divisions Whilst some of the markets

we serve did offer some support to our performance
during the year, elsewhers we did face a number of
economic and trading challenges Strengthening our
busingss, and n particular our market competitiveness,
1o make the Group more resient regardiess of market
conditions, continues to be a key prionity.

In relation to geopolitical uncertainty, we have
developed a number of Brexit related contingency
plans, including bulding long lead-time inventories
to mutigate supply chain interruptions in the event
of increased horder controls, or delays in obtaining
clearance to and from the UK.

Our people and culture

Cur people around the world remain key to our
success and they have contnbuted significantly
1o the progress we have made during the year
On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
of cur employees for their continued hard work
and commitment.

Throughout the year the Board has had the
opportunity to spend time with our employees on
a number of occasions In Apri | participated in our
senigr management conference This 1s an annual
event over 2-3 days involving 300 of our business
leaders from across the Group and is a valuatie
opportunity 1o discuss all aspects of the business
with them. Later in the year we also held our October
Board meeting at Bimba's University Park faciiity
near Chicago Although Bimba joined the Group only
In January, the team there has embraced our
Coninuous Improvement cutture with great
enthusiasm and our Lean processes are already
becoming apparent throughout the business.

The Board also took the opporturity 1o wsit I CC
RSM in Calfornia During our visit we toured the site
and learned about the continuous improvements
beng matie zcross the busmess as well as its plans
to expand the proguct offering fo gain market share
We were alse shown remcete inspecticn technologies
provided by I and increasingly accepied by
cuslomers as a means by which the product
approval process can be made even more efficient
by reduting unngcessany sie visis by engineers

Board and Governance

During the year two new non-executive directors
joined, bringing considerable and relevant
experience as well as fresh perspectives to the

M Board. Thomas Thune Andersen joined the
Board on 1 July 2018 and also became a member
of the Norminations and Remuneration Committees.
Thomas has exiensive knowledge and expenence
in some of the key sectors we cperate in, ncluding
o1l, energy and critical Infrastructure Katie Jackson
also joined the Board on 1 July 2018 and became
a member of the Nominations and Remuneration
Committees. Kalie has deep knowledge of the
mternationat Oil & Gas market, and significant
corporate finance and business development
expenence. Further information about Thomas

and Kabie, and the other mempers of the Board,

18 set out on page 52 to 53.

We acknowledge the introduction of the 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code and during the
year we 100k appropriate steps to prepare for
compliance with the new requiréments which
came inte effect from 1 January 2019.
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In November 2018, we announced the
appointment of Birgit Nargaard as non-gxecutive
director with responsillity for workferce
engagement This important role, which 1s in

Iing with the revised Code’s recommendations,
will build on the various mechanisms we
already operate to ensure we continug to
engage effectively with our people.

We have alsa revised our corporate governance
framework and the business cycles for the Board
and its commutiees 1o reflect the 2018 Code and
appropriate traming has been provided to the Board

Chief Executive succession

Mark Sefway will be stepping down as Chief
Executive at the Annual General Mseting in May
and retinng from the Board on 31 July 2019,
He will be succeeded by Roy Twite currently
Diwisional Managing Drector of IMI Cntical
Engineering

Under Mark’s leadership IMI's markel position
has been significantly enhanced. The Group'’s
infrastructure has been modernised, Its
operational performance radically improved
and its customer offering refreshed As a result,
IMi 1s now a much more robust and sustainable
busingss. On hehalf of the Board | would ke

to thank Mark for fus leadership, drive and
commitment, He has made a significant
contribution to the Group, and whilg fully
respecting his decisien te retern home to retire,
we are very sorry to see him go. We wish him
well in his retirement back in Australia

Roy was appointed following a comprehensive
glohal search process that included bath internal
and external candidates Roy joined IMI in 1988
and has been a member of the Board since
2007 He has held serior management roles

in all parts of the Group in¢luding President

of IMI Hydronic Engingenng, President of IMI

Precision Engingering and, since 2011, Divisional
Managing Director of IMI Critica!l Engineering
The Board is delighted to appoint Roy as [MI's
next Chief Executive. He 1s a strong and
experienced successor who has been pivotal

to the Group's continued success He has
gxtensive operational experience, deep
knowledge of our core markets and

putstanding leadership qualities.

Dividend

Reflecting the continued confidence in the
Group’s prospects, the Board 1s recommending
an increase in the final dividend of 3% to 26 Op
(2017 25 2p) making a total dividend for the
year of 40.6p, an increase of 3% over last
year's 39.4p.
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IMI eco-system

inside \—b
Group overview

IMI plc is a specialised engineering company that
designs, manufactures and services highly engineered
products that control the precise movement of fluids.

IMI

Revenue by geography

Western

B Eurcpe
Critical Engineering o
. £88.3m gy
IMi Critical Engineering 1s a world-leading Pl
Markels

provider of critical flow centrol solutions
that enable viat energy and process
industries to operate safely, cleanly,
reliably and more efficiently.

Q IMI Critical Engineering operational review 3 y 200

Turn to page 28

IMI sotom  [PS

" e . . 4%
Precision Engineering

£153.2m g

Emerging
Mearkets
19%

4%

IMI Precision Engineering specialises
in developing motion and fluid contro}
technologies for applications where
precision, speed and reliability

are essential.

l> l IMI Precisi i ing I review
Tum 10 pags 30

IMI

Hydronic Engineering

Revenue by geography

Row
UK
% gw

o £52.0m e
IMI Hydronic Engineering 1s a leading 19%

global supplier of products for hydronic
distribution systems which deliver optirnal and
energy efficient heating and cooling systems to

the residental and commercial buiiding sectors,

G IMI Hydronic Engineering operational review 1 ) 800

Tum o page 32




Group revenue by geography

Revenue by division

Roww __ ' i
4 rL-JK e besrmy Eu{mr M Crfieal
oy b Frigihest g I Proor imic
tial Erw gunnerinng
487
Ennwreing North
Markets g IMI Hydronie
'!;ﬁe AIHZ:;CL‘I Encnir rvqr(\)nq
/@ IMI's global footpnnt
Fttp Swwav imiple com about-imy our-onigions mi-at-a-olance,aspx
Key brands £
IMI Bapp & Reuther, IMI CGl,
Al Flund Kinetics, IMI InterAtiva Power Qil & Gas Petrochemical Actuation

I NH, IMIE Orton, IMI Remosa,
IMIESTIL IMETH Jansen, IMI Truflo
Marmz, IMi Truflo Rena, IM) Trufle
ltaly, IV} 28, IM! Zikesch

Main markets

01l & Gas, Fossil Power Nuciear
Pawer, Petrochencal, fron & Steel,
Desalination and Precess Industres

Major operational locations
Brazil, China Czech Republic,
Germany, India, ltaly, Japan, South
Korea Sweden, Swizerland, UK

and USA

Key brands
IMI Norgren, IMI Buschjost, IMI FAS,
IMI Herion, IMI Maxseal, Bimba

Main markets

Commercial Vehucle, Energy, Food
and Beverage, Industrial Automation,
Life Sciences and Rail

Major operational locations
Braz, China, Czech Republic,
Germany, India, Mexico, Swizerland,
U and USA

Key brands
IMI T low Deskgn, IMI Heimeer,
IMI Preumatex, IMI TA

Main markets

Water based heating and cooling
systems for cemmercial bulldings,
and temperature control for
residential buildings

Major operational locations
Germany, Poland, Slovenia, Sweden,
Switzerland and USA

We are the world leading
supplier of engineered to
arder turbine bypass valves
for cntical applications in
conveniional and nuclear
power plants — helping to
provide the safest, most
reliable and efficient power
generation

2018 revenue: £266m

Industrial Automation

We supply anti-surge vatve
ang actuator systems 1o
the world's fargest LNG
compression faciibies.

Our systems are capable
of ultra-fast response to
maximise LNG produchan
whilg protecting the
COMPressor.

2018 revenue: £224m

e

Commercial Vehicle

We design and manufacture
integrated flow control systems
for critical applications in Fluid
Calalytic Cracking, We also
supply bespoke valves Into the
ethylene, palyprapylene and
delayed coking production
Processes.

2018 revenue: £117m

O

Oil & Gas

We focus on the desrgn

ang production of complete
acluahion systems to operate
industnal vakves tor the most
demanding applicatians and
processes in terms of forces,
speed and accuracy and
harsh environments

2018 revenue: £25m

)

Life Sciences

We supply high performance
products including valves,
valve islands, propertional ang
pressure monitenng controls
ang air preparation products,
as welt as a comprehensive
range of pneumatic actuators

2018 revenue: £525m

e

Balancing & Control

We design and manufacture
arange of cab chassis

and powertran solutions
which deliver fuel efficiency,
emissions reduclion and
faster assemily times for the
workd's leading commercial
vehicle mardacturers.

2018 revenue: £196m

Thermostatic Control

We offer a comprehensive
range of products which debver
precision control in ever

the harshest envirenmeants,
including stanless steel

vatves and regulators, nuclear
tlass valves and emergency
shutdown centrols

2(18 revenue: E77m

@

Pressurisation

We supply precision flow
control solubions used
medical devices, diagnoslic
eguipmant and biptach and
analylical instruments. Our
products help to reduce

the size of equipment,
whilz enhancing accuracy,
thraughput and fluid control
performance.

2018 revenue: £77m

0

Water Quality

Qur Pydronic halancng and
control solutions enable
buildings to keep comfart at
the night fevel while improving
HVAC efficiency by up 1o 30%
Our expertise covers constant
angd vanable flow and both
static and dynarmic balancing

2018 revenue: £151m

We design and manutacture
thermostatic contro! systems
which guarantee direct or
automatic control of radiators
angd underfloor heating
systems to perfectly confrol
indiiclual room temperatures,

2018 revenue: £98m

Rahable pressurisation is a basic

requirement for a trouble-free
aperation of heating, cooting
and solar systems Qur robust
range of pressure maintenance
syslems with comprassors or
pUMPS and exXpansion vessels
mamtans the right pressure in
the system at all bmes

2018 revenue: £32m

The single most important
component in any hydronic
system is the water riself. When
compromised, the effects can
be tell throughout the system.
Our cirt and ar separators
and pressure step degassers
protect the installation

by keeping water free of
microbubbles and sludge

2018 revenue: £10m

U0 113NPOAILY
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T00BMT choke valve

Offshore platform
We design and provide valves
for the most crtical applications
including offshare.

Control
valves

Spcciaiist
bail valves

foqgle
vares

Refinery

We keep the world moving
from petrol to diesel and et
fuel, our specialist valves
refine crude olf to provide
a wide range of products.

Conyentional
control valves

Specialhst
triple eccentric
butterfy valves

B
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Industrial SOLIne™ actuator

Automation

We develop solutions for our
customers in the machinery;

food and beverage, printing, and
factory automation industries,

Excelon® |

preparat,

Bunba
Intelhisente




Data centres

We ensure stable pressure and

clean water for high cooling intensity
applications, preventing premature
equipment falure and costly downtme.

Dirt separation

IT

==

Yus awr

Pressurisation

=

Hospitals

Cur products help to

patient comfort.

Drfferentral
pressure
controls

deliver
qualty, energy-efficient HVAC
systems, which ensure optimal

Balancing valyes

Therunpsatic
controls

Medical
devices and
instrumentation

We help OEMs increase
performance of their
systemns, enabling cutting
edge devices thal improve
health and the environment

MICROSOL MS-E

Cadent 3 pump

Brinba Versagrip™
Solenoid pincH valve
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We provide a comprehensive Cor

range of thermostatic control I Qurra
products, ensuring optimat solutic
temperature control and Cllh e reducl

energy efficiency. nderfl
Underfipor

; heating
T . wanrfolds
& != l-
\_-
Radiator valves s
TH dutomanc H
THerwOStatic  fiw contral Multipurpose

controls commercial building

Our balancing and control sclutions
combine highly precise mechanical valves

- . Pressure
and digital actuation allowing complete idependent
electronic integration and greater efficiency ., dulating

Man
tray.
cont

-~

Triple cccentric
butrerfly valves

LNG

We provide the control and
safety systems to ensure
safe delivery of iquefied
natural gas to power cities

in complex heating and cooling systems. control
across the world.

Combived L.

control &
isolation balancing S
gryogentc s Antt-surge vaives :
bail vaives ke Digital

actuation

—
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Engineering
GREAT the
1Ml Way

Combined cycle
power plant

Products designed te cope with high
pressure and lemperature differences
in the most critical applications ensures
power 15 avallable when needed

nmercial Vehicle

nge of cab, chassis and powertrain .
ns delver fuel efficiency, emissions g
1on and faster assembly times. -

3 b4

ual E trol

LS SIon hgtne Contro Turbuwe bypass
wols wultr-valve block valves

e . .
N — . AN
¢ Valve arrays 1 Z l Desuperheatert
—n= — )
Rail AMT compressed

We offer customised solutions for a dryer

all types of rail applications.

g
%z\ % . b

Pantograph
control systems  Dopr control
valve systems
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12 IMI plc

Chief Executive’s review

An increasingly
robust portfolio

in 2018 IMI delivered a solid operating performance with growth in
sales, earnings and margins when compared to 2017. We enter 2019
with an even more robust portfolio of businesses, a healthy balance
sheet and significant opportunities for future growth.

Mark Selway
Chief Executive

Overview

It 15 pleasing to report the continuation of the
progress achieved in the first half of 2018

Our strategic plan to drive sustainable long-term
growth continues to make a real difference across
all parts of the Group. Our new product pipeline

15 developing well, cur manufactuning operations
have further improved ang the new systems

and processes being embedded throughout

the business are delivering gans In efficiency

and compebitiveness.

Integration of Bimba Manufacturing
Company (‘Bimba’}

The acquisition of Bimba for a total consideration
of £138m (US$198m} was completed on

31 January 2018. The transaction has increased
our US revenues while extending IMI Precision
Engineering’s presence in 1ts core Industral
Automation segment. Good progress has been
made with the integration of Bimba into Precision
Engmeenng's North American cperations We have
also acceierated some of our plans for Bimba

to improve its operations and IT infrastructure

in readiness for the opportunities for growth

and margin improvement.

Trading environment

Trading condrtions across our three divisions
continued to be mixed throughout 2018 with
growth in IME Precision Engineenng’s end
markets offsetting declings in New Construction
Fossil Power and Energy markets in [MI
Criticat Engineening.

For IMI Critical Engineering, the Petrochemical
market again produced $ome encouraging
opportunities which reflect the dwision’s success
at extending its reach into a broader range of
applications. The improving outlook in some
parts of the Qil & Gas sector again contrasted
with the challenging cutlock for coal-fired

power generation,

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

In IMI Precision Engineering, all of the dwision’s
verticals and regions showed turther good
progress in the year. This was achieved despite
tougher comparators ang increased market
volatility, particularly in Industnal Autemation,
through the latter part of 2018.

Within IM} Hydronic Engineering where European
construction represents over 79% of the dwvision,
markets were marginally stronger than the

. previous year Athough less significant for the
- division overall, the North America and China
' gonstruction markets alsc confinued to grow.

While we have a broad nternational manufacturing
footprint and less than 5% of sales in the UK,

1t would be remiss not 1o menticn the potential
impact of Brexit on the Group’s operating
performance Despite prevailing uncertanty,

the Group has deveioped a number of Brexit
related contingency plans, including a programme
of bullding long lead-time nventories to support
customers in the event of increased border
controls or delays in getting clearance te and
from the UK. While we hope that these increased
inventories will not be required, it 1s essential that
we do as much as we can to minimise potential
supply chain disruption and ensure our customer
delivery commitments are met.

Results overview

2018 was another yaar of important progress for
IMI. A now well-established culture of continuous
improvement, both within our operations and In our
product offering, further enhances our competitive
position, irrespective of the market environment.

Adjusted Group revenues were 9% higher at
£1,907m (2017 £1,751m). Excluding adverse
foreign exchange and the acquisition of Bimba,
Group revenues on an organic basis were 5%
higher when compared to the prior year. Adjusted
segmental operating profit was 11% higher at
£266m (2017 £241m). Excluding the impact of
adverse foreign exchange and Bimba, segmental




Strategic timeline

201y

operating profits were 9% higher on an organic
basis. The Group's operating margin was
14.0% against 13.8% n 2017 and adjusted
garnings per share were 12% higher at 73.2p
(201765 3p.

Adjusted operating cash flow of £222m (2017
£218m} followed a strong performance last year
and reflected mgher working capital to support
growth n Precisicn Engineering and
comparatively tugher advanced payments
recewved by Critical Engmeering in 2017,

Both debtor and inventory days showed modest
improvement while creditors reflected the impact
of lower pre-payments in Critical Engineering.
Net Debt of £405m (2017, £265m; reflected

B o o, d et AR Y

payment of the consideration for Bimba and

| resulted i a Net Debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio

of 1 3x agamst 0 9x at the end of 2017,

We continue to be proactive in our efforts to
manage the Group's pension liabilibes and in
2018 successfully completed the transfer of a

further £409m of liabilities to insurance partners.

This brings the total value of pension schemes
removed from our balance sheet over the last
two years to £838m. The UK schemes remain
in surplus and the overseas deficit remained
constant at £80m in the year

Year 5:

13

Ambition:

Cauble
cperating profits

Good strategic progress

Our strategic plan to drive long-term sustainable
growth 1s making a real ditference across all
parts of the Group Signuficantly improved
operational performance, new systems and
processes that are helping us cperate more
efficiently and a new preduct pipeling all
continue to enhance our competitive positicn
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1IM1's Board wvisits thi ianba Univei sty Fark
site n Hhnos,.

2 Lamp lighting at the Pregsion Looaueeerma’™
new India manufacturing sile op- i

3 The EMI Board recewve a safety bricting
aheud of a tour of IMI CCLRSI 1 Califonin.

4 Mark Selway greets employee: at tha India
site opening.
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Executive Committee

Mark Selway Darvel Shook Raoy Twite Massimo Grassi Phil CEfton Paul Roberts Geoff Tranfiekd John O'Shea
e recue France Drecier Dracn WA Gt B sy D Wi S v e beectr o
Engineenng Enginee’ing Ergrisenng Secretary
F o - a
2 A 75; ‘{;’ -:;o ‘g}
7Yy Y7 [ 7
Improving our operational | New product pipeline I am very proud of what the team at IMI has
performance | For each division targeted New Product delivered and | would like to thank our employees
During 2018 each of our dmsicns further Development intiatives remain a key focus for their hard work commitment and passion
enhanced their operational performance We launched a significant number of new They have contributed significantly to the
At the year-end the Group's average Lean score products dunng 2018 covering a range of progress we have made in recent years,
increased to 75% compared to 71% at the same ‘ apphcations. All three divisions have ambitious I am confident that the sohd foundaticns put
point n 2017, Scrap rates, on-time-dglivery and | plans to continug their focused product . In place In recent years position the Group

well for the future and | would like to wish all

Inventory managemertt ali improved and the * development strategies in 2019 and beyond.
' our employees around the world much success.

benefits were evident in the Group's results

in the year. Most importantly. this improved
performance provides an important foundation
for our increased competiiveness and

By increasingly combring New Product

Development inihatives with Value Engineering
processes, we have continued to expand cur i
addressable markets and are competing in

Outlook
In the first half of 2019 we expect organic

FESPONSIVENESS 10 CUstomers. segments that were not previousty accessible revenues to be lower than the same period

Positioning our businesses in 2018 due to the phasing of Criticat

for growth | Business development Engineenng’s order book and slowing market

In the past four years much has been done + Alongside our organic growth intiatives, targeted demand i the Industrial Automation sector in

to simplify the way our businesses ogerate ' acquisttions that meet our clearly defined and Precision Engineenng. Margins are expected

and make them more efficient . disciplined criteria continue 1o represent a core to be broadly similar, supported by our operational
- part of our strategy. We seek opportunities that initiatives and an iImproved performance from

We have invested heavily in new systems i are culturally ahgned and have the potentiat to Fydronic Engneering Results for the full year

and processcs which arg essential f the Gioup - deliver sustainable long-term profitable growth. |yl aiso reflect the benefis of restructunng

Is to dellver long-term sustainable growth. As was the case with the acquision of Bimba and aur normai second-half bias

An ncreasing rumber of our bUsINesses In January 2018, we aim to engage early with
are upgrading their core [T systems to modern polential partners with the amixtion of securing
divisional platforms that automatically manage * preferred buyer status ahaad of any formal
business processes to deliver consistent, ' process being slarted.

accurate data As aresult, we have better visibilty -
across the production process and we are able

te manage our day-to-day operations more cost
and time effectively and make our product and
service offering mere competitive.

Qur people

This 1s my final IMI Chief Exgcutive's review.
Choosing to leave IMI has been a tough
decision. but the time 1s now right to hand
over 10 a successor 1o continue the Group's

Across all of our operations we have embedded

tisciplined and efficient processes, including . develepment Roy will do a great job leading
New Product Development and Valug Enginegring the business through its next phase of
These consistent processes support our development and growth.

continuous improvement culture and help
ensure that our investments ulimately deliver
an earlier and greater return
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Our strategic model

Qur business model is built around our core strategic priorities

of capitalising on growth opportunities, operational excellence,
investment in product development and targeted acquisitions.
Continuous investment in these areas is delivering, more innovative
products and services to our customers and has helped us increase
our competitive advantage. By meeting our customers’ needs and
investing in our leading market positions, we are well placed to grow
profitably to the benefit of all stakeholders including our shareholders.
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1 Callaboration between divisions

res best practice shared
ross all functions.

~class shginecring in M1
osa, italy relies on the best
1ools and processes.

1+ I igineering experhise through
Vilue Engincertng has
helped transform M) Cotical
Engineering’s competitiveness.

Strategic growth
enablers

To deliver our strategic
growth objectives while
capitahsing on the geographic
and operational capabiliies
of the Group we continue to
focus on the following key
strategic enablers.

Maintaining financial discipline
As we execute our strategy to deliver accelerated
growth, we continue to maintain financial
disciphing Capital 1s allocated 1o drive organic
growth, maintain a progressive dividend policy
in ling with earnings and to fund acquistions.
Whilst retaining flexibility to develop IMI's full
potential, we centinug to focus on maintaining
an efficient balance sheet and, in the event of
us having cash in excess of the Group's current
needs, we will return this excess capital to
shareholders. Through the Iife of our five year
plan we will work to mantain net debt to EBITDA
of no more than two tmes through the cycle.

Net debt to adjusted EBITDA
2017 09x 2018 1.3x

Working together as one
simplified IMI

To harness the Group's full potential we remain
determined to maximise the opportunity that
our scale provides us by acting as ong IMI
Estabhshing core processes has provided

a strong platform that underpins a framework
for creating consistent Group-wide standards
and hehaviours. The mpact goes far beyond

i manufacturing with industry best practice

. now consistently adopted across back-office

functions, The Group intranet is a catalyst for

* knowledge and best practice transfer and the

conferences and Leadership Programmes help
build a strong and collaborative environment
across the whole of IMI

" Investing in Group-wide IT and

infrastructure

Since 2014 we have significantly enhanced

our IT enabled business capabilities. We are
standardising the ERF systems, business
processes and reporting in our Divisions 1o
provide us with access 1o accurate and congistent
data. As a result we have better visibility across
the preduction environment, can manage our
day-to-day operations more efficiently and

make our product and service offerings

more competitive,

IMI Hydronic Engineering rolled out new systems
across its sales and service offices in Span, italy,
Switzerland, Austria, Czech Republic, Australia
and the Netherlands and also installed a new
systermn at its piant in Fullingdorf in Swatzerland.
Today 50% of the division’s plants and over
40% of its sales and service offices share

a common [T system

Over the past three years, the Group has also
established a sohd foundation of IT securify
capabihties and controls across the busingss
This investment will continue to dentify and
remediaie new and emerging threats through
a 24/7 Securtty Operations Centre, The Group

j policies include a requirement that all businesses

maintain a robust backup of all cntical operating
data s0 business continuity can be maintained
even in the evenl of a system failure,

The delivery of standardised ERP solutions in each
of our divisions continues e be a high prionty in
terms of major systems investment In IMI Critical
Engineenng, implementations have taken place in
China, Germany. Switzerland and Italy, IMI Hydronic
Engineenng has rolled out new systems in its

. Swiss factory and its sales offices in Switzerland,

Austria, Netherlands, Czech Repubhc, Spain and
ltaly IMI Precision Engineenng has finalised ERP
selutions at its core US sites and wilf commence
ERP implemeniations in Asia duning 2018,

IT infrastrugture investment extends far beyond
manufacturing, In Engineening and New Product
Development, IMI Precision Engingenng's

new AutoDesk capability allows engineers to
collaborate en preduct design and specification
regardless of where they are located, enhancing
our service through driving cut complexty,

This globahsation of the dwsicn's design cagability
generates several henefils including making the
design process more efficient and cost-effective
Most importantly, it also makes 1t easier to develop
the optimal product for a specific market and
localise the manufacturing process accordingly

Inngvative marketing campaigns and digital

- communication tools in both IMI Precision
" Engineening and IMI Hydronic Engineenng are

improving the quality of contact we have with
our customers and allowing them better access to
our products and services, much more efficiently.
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Strategic growth
priorities

Our strategic plan to
accelerate growth is focused.
on four key growth prigs h

Capitalising on
significant organic

growth opportunities

Our priority is to capitalise on
end-markets where we already
are, or have the potential to be,
in a leading position.

tJ
Turn to page 20

Improving
operational
performance

Our self-help Lean journey

is underpinned by the
engagement of management
and employees at all levels.

tJ
Turn to page 22




Increasing investment
in New Product
Development

All three divisions are
increasingly delivering on

our promise to introduce great
new products and solutions for
our cusiomers, more quickly
and more effectively than

ever before.

O
Turn ta page 24

Expanding our

addressable markets

through targeted
acquisitions

Beyond our existing business
portfolio, we have the potential
to expand through the careful
execution of value enhancing
acquisitions.

tJ
Turn o page 26
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Strategic g;fowth biriitr)rrities

Capitalising on
significant growth
opportunities

A

The Group currently operates in a number of attractive end-markets
and to achieve our ambitions we must focus on those that offer the
greatest potential in terms of delivering top and bottom line growth.
Qur priority is to capitalise on those end-markets where we already

are, or have the potential to be, in a leading position - markets
where we can grow and where there are significant higher margin

New facility — Japan

Qver the last four years IMI Critical Engineenng has
succassfully repositioned its business. n particular,
1 global footprint has heen realigned and today

the dwision has worid-class manufacturing faciities
in the heart of the industry’s fastest growing
markets. Bullding on the success of its new facilties
in China, India and Scuth Korea, n 2018 the division
committed te relocating its existing factory in West
Kobe, Japan to a new purpose-built facility near
Kobe Airport. Aside from offering a much more
efficient layout the new plant will focus on the
design and manufacture of large valves and
hydraulic actuating systems — products that the
existing facility 15 not equipped to manufacture.
This investment will enhance IMI Critical
Engineering's offenng In the attractive
Petrochemical market in Japan

aftermarket opportunities.

Strengthening our position in
growing markets

IMI Precision Engingenng 1s continuing to
strengthen its presence in growth markets around
the world Dunng 2018 the dwision completed
the relocation of tts plant in Noida near New Delh
1o a new purpose-built facility, nearby The new
facility, which 1s three times the size of the cld
plant provides a core low cost manufacturing

and engineering capability to Precision
Engineering's, already competitive Asian
operations Cur New Delhi operations include sales
and customer service, production, distribution and
a technical centre, and provides increased

i progduction capacity 1o meet the growing demand

for IMI Precision products in the Indian market.

. Capitalising on growing
1 market demand

The global undertloor heating market 1s expected
to grow at a compound annual growth rate of
nearly 5% over the next five years, driven by
a number of factors including increasing legislation
aimed at reducing carben emissions. IMI Hydronic
Engineering’s product portfolio includes a range
of products that control underfloor heating
gystems, incluging manifolds which incorporate
the division's Automatic Flow Control {'AFC')
technology. This unigue AFC technology ensures
that the correct flow rates of water are delivered
to gach ropm thereby ensuring precise
temperature centrol. In the last 12 months the
dmsicn has won & number of signficant contracts
to supply 1ts underfloor heating products and

. technology 1o both new bulld and refurbishment

. projects across Europe. In particuiar a number
of munictpal and social housing authorities across
central Europe, including Austria & Germany,
have installed IMI Hydronic Engingering’s AFC

i technology solution to help save energy across

 their bullding stock.




F Precisian Engmeenng’ s vy Indian
nennfoc during facility in Nowlka, India.

2100 e al Eveprinernmg ™ ruaw Loan factory
m Joprn vl suppor regional growdh,

tHydrens Enamcsrng’s bading underfloer
feating manifold, Dynacoen Echpse, not only
Lielps 12 ver crerny in lumes, bat s also
camy 1o mstall,

4 Garcdbymard engmeering waclh-on, wailh o
sl cophoa of Precision Enogineering’s
nese Inedeen manatacturineg Groility.

S Hydrone Enameenng’s undasilioor hoating
sulutizmes ane proveedineg comtort 1o home
ownet ikl benant s o e Gonteal Burape.

UONSNPoAY|

mainay mbajens

x O
<
=
g
1=
y T
g
=
@
=
=)
3
o
[ul

SeLIRIRIS [BIoUeuly




22 IMI plc 7 o Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Strategic growth priorities

Improving operational
performance

As we improve how our businesses operate we are better utilising
capacity, enhancing our competitiveness, reducing working capital
and generating cost savings by operating more efficiently. By doing
this, we are improving our service to customers. We are well on our
way in the self-help Lean journey, underpinned by the engagement
of management and employees at all levels and we remain absolutely
confident that by embedding Lean across the whole of IMl we will
improve our competitiveness and sustain our achievements.

I

Better operational Enhancing Bimba’s Embedding the voice of the
performance enhances . operational performance customer in our operational
customer offering : processes
Across the Group we have continued to optimise the | We completed the acquisition of Bimba in IMI Hydronic Engineering's facilities in Olkusz
use of Obeya, the visual tool which faciitates project | January and shortly thereafter launched a Lean Poland, and Brezice. Slovenia were two of the
management by bringing together multiple work implementation programme to begin he pracess first plants in the Group to achieve world-class
streams and encouraging collaborative weriing of transforming the operational performance onerational benchmark perfermance The dwsion's
practices. The IMI Remosa team in Haly 1s now using | acrss Bimba’s eight sites, The first assessment | effective appiication of Lean within its preduction
Obeya to manage Its aftermarket business more process started in March where Bimba'’s facilities is now being extended across its sales
effectively. In particular, current and future field operations achieved a 19% Lean score. At the offices and distribution fiubs te ensure that
service workload, together with field engineering end of 2018, this score had moroved significantly customer requirements are consistently delivered.
capability and availabilily, is now clearly mapped to to 27%. In particutar the business' accident " Additicnally, the IMI Hydronic Engineering senior
ensure that the appropriate engingerng service is rates have fallen by 86% and more generally a operations team now meet reguiarly with sales
available when required As a resull, the time taken continuous improvement culture is now becoming teams and customers out in the field to better
1o 1dentify and match the appropriale service embedded across the Bimba business. Bimba's understand their needs and collaborate on projects
engineer to each job has reduced by 62% ang i University Park site underwent an accelerated to address any customer 1ISSUes or opportunities
seryice engineers. spares and tools are more . transformation and improved therr assessment which might anse. One such project focussed
effectively utilised. score from 20% to 44% in under 10 months on improving our quality processes to drive

down average response times and has reduced

. unresolved complaints by 85% in the final
quarter of 2018,

74% 75% 78%

Lean score up 50% ] Lean score up 42% Lean score up 41%
from first assessment from first assessment i from first assessment




1 Indmidual valve quality eheck al Hydrome
Enameenng's plant in Ljung, Sweden.

2 IMi Remasa's world-chiss Hydrauhc Power
Control Units cnable 1omale mntornmsg
10 ensure oplomsed plant perfaormanee
for our customers.

3 Bimba’s IntelliSense is an industry
4.0 product that ntearaies dircclly into
preumalic systems, enabling predictive
intelligence.

4 Five Hydronic Enginecring sites naw have:
a Lean score above 70

5 IMI Remesa has preduced leaner designs
enabhng their pradusts 13 doelver sinificant
reliability and operation slhimprovemaents,

malnay b3 ensg

(@]
=]
°
=4
=
o
o
g
-
@
<
g
)
@

SIUEWIBIEIS RISVRUL




24 IMI plc

Strategic growth priorities

Increasing investment
in New Product
Development

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Over the course of the past five years, we have successfully embedded
New Product Development systems and disciplines across the Group.
These systems and disciplines include a Group-wide advanced product
quality ptanning process (APQP), continuous competitor product tear-
downs, Value Engineering and an increased focus on transformational
technologies. All three divisions now have strong new product
pipelines and are bringing new products and solutions to market
quicker and more effectively than ever before.

Value Engineering delivering Industry 4.0 at the centre of Maintaining our position at
competitive advantage New Product Development the forefront of innovation
Valug Engineering 1s a core component of the Digiisation 1s at the centre of IMI Precision In the last five years IMI Hydronic Enginesring
dwision’s New Product Development actvilies and, ‘ Engineenng's New Product Development has launched numergus new progucts, many
over the last two years, our enhanced skills and ! process where investment 1s being focused of which incorporate software that allows them
capability in this area have significantly improved on produgt control and data monitoring to be digitalty enabled and connected to other
our competitiveness. Despite challenging market This 1n essence, allows our products to be " gomponents and systems. This software 1s
conditions, since 2016 IMi Critical Engineening has used as integrated components in a customers’ developed by the division's dedicated in-house
won nearly half a tilhon pounds of new contracts connected application. Electronic Research & Development team which

through the application of Value Engineering tools
and processes On average, a 15% cost reduction
for our customers has been delivered. Included in
the division's 2018 contract wins was an order for
IMI Remosa t6 provide a package of products for
installation in a Spanish il refinery which was
being refurbished. The product package included
control systems, actuators and slide valves, which

focuses on creating solutions to satisfy customer
demand and maintain IMI Hydronic Engineering's
leading position at the forefront of inngvation,
During the year the division continued to expand
its digrtal product pertfolic. In December we
extended our existing market leading TA-Slider
actuator range to include a number of new
nroducts suitable for smaller applications such

Duning the year the division expanded its pertfclio
of high performance, platform and bespoke
products which offer enhanced digital capatlity
and connectivity. New connected products include
a range of electric actuators which are expected
to launch in Spring 2019 at Hannover Messe,

the world leading technoiogy trade fair.

operate togsther in extrems temperatures of up to | Digital technology 1s providing a compstitive as celling cooling. These new actuators, which
980°C. These products control and shut down the | dynamic n IMI Precision’s commercial activities, open and close valves to control the flow of
flow of liquids and gases during the critical "crude | The division’s IMI Norgren Express™ App, which water In HVAC systems, connect 1g building

oil to liquid fuels” conversion process. Using Value | enables customers to find and buy products management systems and gather large amounis
Engineering, IMI Remosa was able to re-develop quickly and easily using ther smartphone, of data ultimately used to drve energy and

its products which significantly reduced welding is now avarlable worldwide. This efficient and cost efficiencies.

and other manufacturing costs and craated effective digitised customer service, which

a competling solution for the customer at a prowides access to over half a million parts,

competitive price. is enhancing our customer support offermg.




@)
1 Discipline in design with eperator input
ensures successtul competilive products.

2 IMI FAS launched the new Microsol M5-E
at the Medhica 2018 fair in Dusseldorf.

3 1M Critical's st: ong ropulation means
customers work with our businesses
to develop products that improve
¥neir processes.
4 The extended TA-Slider digital actuator
* ' range was developed across four different
- - sites by Hydronic Engineering R&D teams.
5 IMI Norgren's new electric actuatar will be
.. Janched in 2019,

'8 Since launch, TA-Sliders have been installed
n hundreds of buiidings world-wide.
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Strategic gi'owth priorities

Expanding our
addressable markets
through targeted acquisitions
Our ambition remains to supplement our organic growth with targeted

acquisitions that enhance our business and market reach and leverage
the process and integration capabilities developed in the last few years.

As a result, each division maintains an active but relatively short list of

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

©]

potential acquisition partners. We engage with these companies very
early to ensure relationships are established well before any potential
deal. Financial discipline is maintained throughout any process to
ensure a deal has a clear integration plan that will deliver acceptable
returns, including a financial return in excess of the Group’s weighted
average cost of capital within three years.

Qur acquisition strategies for the divisions are:

5

iMI Critical Engineering

Within IMI Critical Engineering, focus remains on
extending the division’s reach into new, adjacent
markets and applications to capture a greater share
of customer spend. Such an expansion might
include severe and semi-severe applications and
could aisc nvolve extending our geographical
tootprint. IMI Critical Engineering's capabilities m
Value Engineenng and New Product Development
would support valug creation in any completet
acquisition. Many of the potential acquisitions in
this segment are small and mid-sized businesses
with a specific market niche and would fit well into
the IMI global netwerk and culture.

T

' IMI Precision Engineering

‘ As [Mi's largest dwision, IM Precision Engineening is

| also the division that offers the greatest potential for

‘ a more significant acquisition. A number of potential
partners in the market are of a larger size and

‘ match our criteria of cultural fit and combination
logic. Grven the size of the market and IMI's strength

\‘ of process and market expertise, we are confident
1n our ability to successfully deliver vaiue from an

\ acguisttion n s industry. The advancement of

[ the Bimba integration in 2018 provides further

| confidence of the significant potential achievable
through consolidation in this market.

This feedback frem one of our customers atests
1o the success of the acquisition and integration
of Bimba:

“The acquisition of Bimba by IMI ple brings
together two of the most recognised brands
in the industry. Bimba is very well known as
a leader in actuators with extensive product
options and a wilhngness to create unigue
seluttons for even one custemer. Combining
the Bunba and IMI brands solidifies IMI as

a market leader in the pneumatics industry
as well as in electrie and hydrautic. This
acquisition has put the industry on notice that
IMT is sertous about being a solution provider
for pneumatic and overall inotion products
on a global level”

'

Brendon Connelly
Air Ing, US industnal distrbutor

7

1 IMI Hydronic Engineering

For IMI Hydronic Engineering, we befieve that

an effective way to expand the business in
new geographies 1s te acquire businesses In

\ our desired Jocations that have similar strengths
to those we enjoy In our own, COre regions.

| Those targst businesses tend to be smaller,

’ often privately-owned enterprises. The most likely
value to be generated from such a combination

‘ would be derved from the synergies avalabie
by sharing complementary routes to market

and product ranges




q1

1 The Birmba Brand hold s Ltronn promimenace
among the North Armrecan niarkeetfos
Industal Avtanniton.

2Parls are checked 1o quility oo they s
through producton at Bimbysos Universaty
Park. [Hre Lacility i tha USA.

3Manntactined congsonenty und cng Tt
quality costral e sues ot Birnbia

4 Bimba ™ PoeuMaorment ™ pocumatic
Actudtsr es desigiied 1o move heasy loads,

SAmarhmohe WU Tt tor
rod guides far d mensonat contorin s
at Burbia
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IMI

Critical Engineering

IMI Critical Engineering is a world-leading provider of flow control

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Operational review

solutions that enable vital energy and process industries to operate
safely, cleanly, reliably and more efficiently. Our products control the
flow of steam, gas and liquids in harsh environments and are designed
to withstand temperature and pressure extremes as well as intensely
abrasive or corrosive cyclical operations.

Key achievements

» Value Engineering secured £180m of
new orders and underpinned excellent
order win-rates

» Further success in securing new
business in adjacent markets

» Profit growth supported by successful
rastructuring programme

» On-time and on-budget ERP
irplementation across fourteen sites

» Increased average Lean score to 74%

@ Find out more wwwslmi-critical.com

Performance

In 2018 the division contnued lo expenence a
mixed trading envircnment in some of s most
important markets. Value Engineering and New
Praduct Development programmes continued
to provide competitive levers which have enabled
us 10 outpace the market. Qur continuing high
order win-rate indicates that we have been
capturing more of the availabie projects than
our competitors.

Full year order intake at £652m {2017 £658m)
was flat on an organic basis and, as expected,
nchidet! a strong second nalf recovery The
Value Engineering process, which is now fully
embedded within the division and used on all
New Construction quotes of scale, supported the
dehvery of £180m or 60% of New Construction
orders in the year.

Strong order growth from Water contrasted with
softer market conditions elsewhere HIPPS orders
wore also ahead of 2017, partially offsetting lower
Upstream and Migstream ordars. Aftermarket
orders were 11% higher and reflected a 22%
increase in upgrades and a 6% increase In parts,

when compared to the prior year, At the vear-end,

the order book was £474m {2017 £510m) with
margins slightly higher, compared with 2017.

Revenues of £682m {2017. £648m) were 5%
fugher on an adjusted basis and, after excluding
£6m of adverse foreign exchange and £3m from
disposals, were 7% higher on an organic bas’s.
Segmental operating profit of £88.3m (2017.
£84.0m) was 5% higher on an adjusted basis and
8% higher on an organic basis. Margins wers flat
versus 2017, reflecting the division's ongoing werk
o counter softer markets with the benefits from
restructuning and Value Engineering.

Lean scores improved significantly in the year
from 70% te 74% and our core customer
satisfaction metrics also showed continued
progress. The division progressed its long-term

footprint reorgantsation which has resulted
I the closure or transfer of thirleen lower growth
operations These intiatives defivered £12m

of benefit in 2018 and have strengthened the
division's competitive position by realigning its
manufacturing footprint with customers in higher
| growth markets.

} In addition 1o the product and operational
investments, the division continued its programme
of ERP roll-out This system 1s now fully embedded
in fourteen of IM| Critical Engineerng’s sites.

l Outlock

Based on current arder bock phasing and the
comparatively farge Petrochemical delvenes in
aarly 2018, we expect first half organic revenues
and profits to be lower when compared fo 2018
Results for the full year are expected to reflect
a more favourabte second half phasing and

the benefits from restructuring




World-class engineering expertise,
innovative technologies and reliable
cost effective solutions are at the heart
of IMI Critical Engineering’s customer
offering. During the year these key
attributes were key enablers to the
division’s success at winning a diverse
range of significant centracts.

In September, IMI Truflo Italy and IMI Critical
China won a new order 1o supply pneumatic
actuated hall valves for a petrochemical plant
in Dalian. China. The plant. which is owned
by Hengli Petrochemical. processes purifier
terephonle acd c PEA S, which 1s wsied

ool rmlenals daludng
tewtles and fuuid g de sk prachaniry

Previously Hengli Petructem ol had avenrded
contracts to other businesses waithin ihe

IMI Critical Engincering divsion including

IMI Z&J and IMI Remosa. Prior knowledge

ang experience of tMI's technical engingering
capabilities, our products and cuslomer service.

helped IMI Truflo ltaly secure the Dalian contracl.

Working clos=ly xith InvisTa, the company that
licenses the PTA rechnalogy 1o the Dalian plant.
IMI Trufle ttaly developed custonvsed ball valves
capable of operat iy wath extremety viscous and
corrosive fluids. The lechnical specification and
know-how associated with the product's design
were originated at IMI Truflo Rona's plant in
Belgium. and then transterred 1o IM1 Truflo Haly.

Henglts plant i Dalian, China,

foeie af the wortd’s Taviest
Fetrochemical operations,

products at lower costs

has increased our success
rates which protect produict
margins,” C e

Roy Twite
Dmisional Maraging Ditecto
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IMI

Precision Engineering

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Operational review

IMI Precision Engineering specialises in the design and
manufacture of motion and fluid control technologies
where precision, speed and reliability are essential to
the processes in which they are involved.

Up 16%

A

£916m

£153.2m

Key achievements

» On-time and on-budget completion
of world-class faciiity in India

» Gommercial Vehicle contract wins
support growth

» Improved underlying margin despite
cost pressures

» Increased average Lean score
to 75%

» Bimba integration progressing to plan

@ Find out more www.iml-precision.com

Performance

ME Precision Engineening had another year ¢f good
progress and delivered solid growth across alf
verticals and regions, Revenues of £916m (2017
£791m) were 16% higher on an adjusted basis and,
after excluding £10m of adverse foreign exchange
and £88m from the Bimba acquisition, were 6%
higher on an organic basis.

Strong Industrial Automation sales n the first half

of 2018 slowed i the third quarter and declined
slightly n the fourth, leaving the full year up 2%
when compared to 2017. Commercial Vehicle related
sales of £196m reflected stronger than anticipated
markets and were 8% higher in the year, despite
£8m of contract completions. European Commercial
Vehicle revenues were shightly higher whilst North
America grew by 15% Energy sales were 16%
higher than 2017 while Life Sciences and Rail
were 12% and 14% higher, respectively.

Segmental operating profit of £153 2m (2017
£133.5m) was 15% higher on an adjusted basis and,
after excluding £2m of adverse foreign exchange and
£7m from the Bimba acquisition, was 11% higher on
an organic basis. Operating margins of 16.7% (2017.
16.9%) reflect the mpact of the Bimba acquisition

In the year Excluding Bimba, undertying margins
compared favourably to last year at 17.7%.

Goed progress has been made with the integration
of Bimba into Precision Engineering’s North American
operations. We have also accelerated some of our
plans for Bimba to improve its operations and IT
inrastructure, in readiness for the opportunities

for growth and margin improvement.

Operaticnally, the dnision continued to make solid
progress and the combination of Lean, New Product
Development and cost-reduction initiatives all
contriputed to a good performance n the year.

We also completed the relocation of our Indian
operation to a new and larger facility in New Delhi
which was officially opened in October This new
plant expands Precision Engingering's low-cost,

world-class manufacturing and engineering

© capabilities and enhances the division's ability

10 serve our rapidly expanding market pesitions

. across Asia.

The mplementation of Lean throughout the division
has continued 1o make excellent progress, At the
end ¢f 2018 Precision Engineenng’s Lean score
increased to 75% compared to 70% at the end

of 2017,

Our focus on New Product Development to enhance
our market competitiveness gathered momentum

' The addition of integrated intelligence and

connectivity across our product range remaing
an important element of that strategy In 2018
new products were Introduced across the entire
range and represented an increase in the witality
mdex (sales from new products introduced i the
last three vears) to 12%.

In-sourcing actions already completed combined

| with improved market conditions have helped

increase utilisation in the year. Localisation and
low-cost manufacturing transfers continue to
reduce lead times and improve customer service
and competitiveness.

In addition to product and operational investments,
the dision continues to implement its new ERP
system and now has a world-class, fully integrated
[T system which 1 now planned ta be rolied-out

In our Asian ogerations

Outlook

The industrial outlock has become more volatile
with leading indicators painting to continued but
slower growth n the Industrial Autemation and
the Commercial Vehicle markets in 2019

Based on current market conditions, we expect
first half organic revenues to be slightly higher,
with broadly flat margins, when compared to

the first half of 2018. The benefits of new product
launches and operational improvements are
expected to suppert improved results for the full year.




The Rail industry is highly compelllive,
Reliability, safety and cost control are vital -
and the need to maximise operational
efficiency is a key priority. IMI Precision
Engineering, with more than 30 years’
experience in the rail sector, provides a
range of products and technologies which
enable rolling stock 1o operate effectively.

I particukar the division's innovalive and
putented AMT air dryer systemn remoeves
muoisture and impurities from compressed air
unsuring that pneumatically operated systems,
such as dows. suspension and brakes operale
reliably and safety. The AMT system offers
market-lnading levels of performance

and relwinlity

During 2018 demand for the AMT system
continued 1o grow and IM! Precision Engimeeiing
wun a numhber of new orders including
contiant ta supply Metro Trains Methourne Pty
Ltd in Australiawith 270 AMT air dry systems

and a major DEM crder covering app-oximately

ol new WVetro trains fram Biaoding in China.

A canslantly improveng produchon process
has been requires 1o help the division meet
increasing demand cfiiciently, At the Leeds
fagility where tor ABT system is manyfactored,
a fully enagea team and their passion for
continuous improvement and Lean have
delivered the required improvements,

Lead times have been reduced. inventory
management improved and standarudisation
of the build process has reduced the
production cycle time,

Vietra Traims Methowne Pty Tid i

Awstralvgwidt he supplicdawith 270
AM T airdrvy sysicms.

“oo18 weas a year of further
suceess for TN Precision
Lngineering., Greal new
produets, improved
operational performance and
the addition of Bimiba were
all highlights in the year.”

Massimo Grassi
[T ional W agines T
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IMI

Hydronic Engineering

Key achievements

» Second half margins improved to
18.4% (2017: 15.9%}

» Successfully re-established
foundations for sustainable and
profitable growth

» New product launches continue
to build sustainable competitive
advantage

» Maintained excellent Lean score
of 78%

» On-time on-budget implementation
of divisional ERP

ﬂ: Find out more www.iml-hydronic.com

Performance

IMI Hydronic Engineenng's 2018 performance
was a tale of two halves with the first half
being focused on the actions necessary to
dehver significant improvements in the second
half of the year, The actions taken successully
recovered margins and consolidated the
dwision’s posiion as a market leader in

our core geagraphies and sectors

Recovenng substanbally from the dechine
experienced in the first haif of the year, reverues
on an adjusted basis of £309m (2017 £312m)
were 1% lower than 2017 and. after excluding
£3m of adverse foreign exchange, were fiat on
an organic basis The resuit was affected by

| the actions taken to raturn to satisfactory

marging, including the closure of a loss-making
service business and the decision te avoid
product and project sales that generated
unacceptable margins.

Segmental operating profit of £52.0m (2017:
£48 7m) was 5% higher on an adjusted basis and,
after excluding £1m of adverse foreign exchange,
6% higher on an crganic basis. Margins improved
o 16.8% (2017, 15.9%) for the fult year. wath

a significant improvement in the second half

1o 18.4% (2017 15.9%}.

In our core territories market shares have remaned
strong Our key distributors, installers and specifiers
have responded positively to our refreshed product
offering, constantly improving customer service
and ¢ngoing commitment te customer support.

New product investment continued and contributed
£69m, or 22% of sales, in the year. The division also
maintained its excellent Lean score of 78%. with the
Polish plant once again achieving the highest Lean
score in the Group.

The roll-out of the new JD Edwards ERP system
continued throughout 2018 with the system now live
in three manufacturing businesses and thirteen of the
dwision’s sales offices.

|

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Operational review

Qutlook

Based on current market conditions organic revenue
13 expected to grow m the frst half of 2019 with
margins shghtly improved when compared to the
first half of last year. Results for the full year are
expected to reflect the benefits of our 2018
restructuring and our normal second half bias.,



iMI Hydronic Engineering has a long and
successful track record of warking closely
with designers and consultants to create
some of the most energy efficient and highly
successiul commercial and residential
developments in the world.

These credentials. including the division's wo'k
oni the Maracana Stadum in Brazil. which
hosted the 2014 World Cup final helnecd 1M1
Hydromis Engmeenng wie contracts o design
and install temperature control systenis m
tour of the World Cup 2018 stadia. The systems
nstalled at each stadium. including the

St. Petersburg Stadium which has a seating
capacity of 67.000, incorporated products from
IMI Pneurratex. IMI TA and 1M Heimeier, three
nf tre division's markel leading hranrds_in
addition, through effective cross-divisional
coltaboration with tMI Precision Engmeeriry
Norgen solenoid valves were also ncorporated
intg each temperature control syste

Four Russian 2085 World Cap
staefims woere fitfed with Hyedvenie
Joenpnceringt produets to pronide
greal temperatioe control

“Our in depth hydronic
experience in many varied
projects around the world
and our ability to share the

knowledge across thedoegl

market and engineel
teams, givesgo
to our custome

uoNINPONY|
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IMI plc

Corporate
responsibility

Our ambition is for IMI to become a world-class
business - a truly great company that leads its
marketplace, that thinks long-term, that delivers
sustainable value to all stakeholders and operates

all aspects of its business in a responsible way.

To help ensure we achieve this ambition we focus on:

090

th
Creating a positive Attracting the best
and collaborative people and developing
place to work and engaging with

our employees

We are committed to creating Our performance is dependent
a positive and collaborative on developing, retaining and
workplace where our culture is recruiting the best people with
underpinned by core values and the most relevant skills and
behaviours which promote fair experience who are aligned
and ethical working practices. with our values and behaviours

and who can contribute to
delivering our strategic ambitions.

U LJ
Turn 10 page 36 Turn to page 38




Prioritising health
and safety

The health and safety of cur
employees, contractors and
visitors is a primary ptiority for
the Group. Our combined Lean
and Health and Safety audits
underpin Group-wide rigour
and continuous improvement
throughout our operations.

&
Turn 19 page 40

* Members of IMT Renvosa s tooin,
where IMIs inveshn Hrer
wilh talented eny
created aworfd-elus

= o

Ensuring that
we minimise our
environmental impact

We have a responsibility to
minimise the environmental
impact of our day-to-day
operations. Our products help
our customers operate their
systems and processes safely,
cleanly and cost effectively.

a
Turn 1o page 42
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Corporate responsibility

Creating a positive and
collaborative workplace

We are committed to creating a positive and collaborative workplace
where the culture is underpinned by core values and behaviours which
promote fair and ethical working practices. Not only are we convinced
that creating this culture is the right thing to do, but it also enables us
to operate more effectively, while attracting and retaining great people.

Culture

We have a clear purpose and a weli-established
set of values and behaviours that help shape

our culture and outline the standards and conduct
expected of everyone across the Group Our values
and hehaviours are embedded n all our internal
processes and procedures, including our

Code of Conduct, and they are integral to the

“The IMI Way”, which defines how we do busingss,

\

“We deliver GREAT solutions for our
custowers tackiing the world’s most
dewmanding engincering chalienges.”

Our mindsct \g

Qur purposc

We employ around 11,000 people around the world

Breakdown of employees by geography Breakdown of employees by divisicn

Row S
2% 3 Wastern Europe Py - N »
b 51% M Gl Engineering GREAT togetiter.
S
Emerging Ii\é‘l Precision
5 N3Mecr
I;c‘;agalq . 553?, Om" Vd’ﬂc_ﬁ
IMI Hydromic
Enginesring

16%

I

Integrity Excelience Innovation Collaboration

UK Gender Pay Gap Summary for the year ending 5 April 2018*
Human rights, equality, diversity
and inclusion

We are committed to creating a diverse and

inclusive working environment where everyone
is treated fairly and with respect.

UK Gender Pay Gap 2018 2017
Mean Gap 326% 36.5%
Median Gap 21.7% 251%

* As tughhghted in the graphic above, we are a global business employing around 11,000

people around the world. The above summary only covers our 1,046 UK employees.
Further information about our UK gender pay gap, together with an explanation of
how these figures were calculated, is proviged on our website; www.imiplc.com.

We are a signatory to the UN Global Compact
which establishes standards for human rights,
labour practices and anti-corruption We also
deploy our own policies and progedures, which
set out how people should be treated and how
we should conguct our business.




We believe 1115 essential that across all parts

of our business we employ people from different
backgrounds and cultures to serve cur global
footprint and our diverse customer base.

To ensure that our workplace 1s mclusive and
that all employees and workers are treated faily
In an environment which 1s free from any form
of discrimination, we operate a Group-wids
Diversity and Inclusion Policy, We impement this
policy using a numher of mechanisms incluging.

» the principles that underpin our Diversity and
Inclusien Policy are embedded in all our human
resource processes and proceduras which
are regularly reviewed for both appropnateness
anc competitiveness,

» WE fun dIVErsity awareness training
programmes, including an E-learning module
(translated nte core languages) which
employees can access via our global intranet

» when creating shorthsts for inlernal and extgrnal
vacancies, we insist that external recruiters
provide diverse shortlists,

» a5 part of our internal management
performance process each Diwsional Managing
Direclor 1s set and further cascades objeclives
and local metrics aimed &t improving diversity
and incluston n ther division,

» we are committed to employing and developing
local employees In our geographies to align with
our customers and the communities in which
we work. As a result, we have a very small
and fecused expatriate population. and

» we have piloted workshops to promote diversity
of thought across key areas of our business
incluging in relation te proguct development
and innovation.

Gender mix across the Group*

Female Female % Male Male %
Al 3,281 28% 8817 0%
employees
Managers 237 20% 921 80%
Senior 124 19% 518 B81¢,
managers
Board 3 33 [}

67

* Including agency and contracturg

The WISE Campaign

Having a diverse workforce is essential
to delivering our business goals. During
the year the Group joined the WISE
Campalgn, a UK initiative that is focused
on increasing the parlicipation, contribution
and success of women in science,
technology, engineering and mathematics
{'STEM’}. Being part of WISE helps

to demonstrate our commitment to
encouraging gender diversity and we
aim to be a preferred employer for anyone
looking to build a career in engineering.

Ethical behaviour

It 15 essential that we run our business in an ethical
way with the highest standards of integrity

As part of their induction, every employee who
jons the Group receives traiming In relation to
the iM{ Way and our Code of Conduct which
covers, amongst cther things, anti-bribery and
anti-corruption, Refresher training on our Code
of Cenduct is provided regularly. and 15 reinforced
through our annual M3 Way Day, as well as
face-to-face and on-line traming sessions

Duning the year 7.000 employees undertook an
onling training medule in anti-bribery and around
4,000 participated in a similar programme
covering competiton law. In addition, we have

a series of pelicies and procedures including
reqular on-site legal and compliance reviews.
which are designed to help mstil the highest ethical
standards and regulatory comphance These are

embeddad I our nsk assessment processes,
further detas of which are provided on page 46

We encourage all employees to report to ther
manager any mcident that 1s not in keeping with our
values and behaviours. We operate a confidential
independent hotline In 12 languages, which allows
anonymous reporting Hetline actnity 18 reviewed
each month by the Group’s Ethics and Compliance
Committee. An overview was gresented to the Audit
Committee 1n 2018 and will go *o the full Board in
2019 All reports are mvestigated thoroughly and
where required, appropnate action s taken to

! resolve 1ssues fully and quickly During 2018, 49
cases were reported via the hotiine which compared
to 52 in 2017 and 48 n 2016.

We conduct advanced due dilgence on our
husiness partners including our agents and
distributors. We do this using a software toc!
that covers a range of areas including nitial
and ongeing background checks, screening
against sanctions lists, a compliance certification
process and the signing of a formal agreement.
In addition, all our businesses carry out checks
(including sanctions screening) to understand
potential customers and 1o igentify risks that
may be involved in supplying to them.

Managing cur supply chain
¢ Our commitment to human rights extends across
! our suppty chain. We conduet regular audits to
make sure that child or forced labour is not used
in cur supply chain and that suppliers’ workplaces
are safe. If suppliers are unable to comply with
our strict responsible business requirements
we terminate our refationship with them

We use a combination of general corporate
responsibility policies and specific supply chain
complhance actions to avoid any potential for
modern slavery in our supply chain Our full
statement on the Modern Slavery Act and detal
about the steps we take to ensure that slavery
and human trafficking do not take place within
our supply chain or any part of our business

is avallable on our website at wwaw imiplc.com

37

Community activities

We recognise our responsigility 1o the communiies
around the world in which we operate We support
arange of local chanties and contribute funding

to organisations who provide emergency support
In ensis situations, During our annual ‘IMI Way Day'
our employees across the Group spend time
supporting a local community charity or project
These initiatives contribute to the local community,
hetp build trust and reinforce our team bullding
and collaborative approach.

Some of our IMI Way Day
2018 activities

» Planting trees in SriCity, India to
coincide with World Environment day.

» Donating blood in India / raising
funds for medical equipment for a
care home for the elderly.

= Donating hicycles to a charity which
supports neglected and disadvantaged
children, (Farmington, USA).

» Developing an outdoor space to
be used by school children and their

families {Birmingham, UK).

Promoting science,
technology and engineering
excellence

During 2018 we entered into partnerships
with three museums located near our
| headquarters in the Midlands, They all
' have links to our engineering heritage
and they are also actively promoting
Science, Technology, Engineering and
Manufacturing. In the year we supported:

The Derby
Museum

The Derby Museum of Making’s new
Midland Maker Challenge Prize which will
be launched in 2019. Schools and higher
education providers will compete to design
solutions to address environmental and
societal challenges;

The redevelopment of the Ironbridge Gorge
Museum Trust’s Enginuity centre which is
a national design and technology centre
and interactive museum; and

ThinkTank jn Birmingham's restoration of
The Smethwick Engine, the world’s oldest
working steam engine.

Smethwick
Engme in aclion

Crachi Binmingham Muse s Tral
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Corporate responsibility

Attracting, developing and
engaging the best people

The Group’s continued success is dependent upon our people. We
recognise the need to attract and retain great people, provide them
with opportunities to make a difference in a positive work environment
while supporting their personal and professional development.

Recruitment

Our performance and ability to execute our Each year around 30 graduates predominantly
strategy relies upon recruiting the best people with engingering backgrounds, join our business.
with the most relevant skills and experience who Recruited from around the world, our graduates
share a passion for cur values ang behaviours and participate in a two-year structured programme
are aligned with our strategic ambition. We operate which includes different rotations and involvement

| Overview of our development and Our graduate programme
. training programmes

“Leading the Way to Engineering
GREAT” programme

a robust process for selecting and ntegrating new Delegates: our leadarshi group In live projects across the Group
employses, We follow the principles embedded  Dbjective: to ensure we have leadership skils

In our Recruitment Policy which aims to ensure | 267058 the Group capable of supporting our strategy Our apprenticeship schemes
our process is falr transparent and consistent and growth

We operate cur apprenticeship schemes in many

with our amsitior: fo develop our own talent Number of partiipats: of our European based businesses including

and leaders for the future since launch in 2015 areund 230

people including 70 n 2018, In Germany, UK and Sweden Around 50 new

Target for end of 2019 — 300. apprentices Join us each year and for each of them
Development and succession we create a career development plan which covers
planning on and off the oh traning across a range of relevant
At Ml we have a strong talent pipeline ang traming “Being a GREAT IMI Manager” ! technical skills.
and procegures which enable our employees to Delegates: newly promoted and existing managers " . . i
enhance ther skills and progress their careers. Lo A ere some of our apprentices explain
We operate a wide ranging platform of fraining f:;:gm-;Sp‘;‘g:g:g%fﬂfg‘:faggrﬁmggm; talent how their careers have developed

and development programmes designed to Number of participants: since launch in 2015

increase employee skills across a number of \ around 1,150 peopie including 400 1n 2018. + NAME AND CURRENT ROLE:

disciplings. During the year the internationally Target for end of 2619 — 1,450, Maria Collins

renowned Brandon Hall Group awarded our Apprentice, Junior

“Leading the Way to Engineerng GREAT" Applications Engineer,

programme a gold award for excellence “IMI Learn” - our Group-wide IMI Precision Engineering

in leadership development, E-training platform Fradley.

In addition to our training and development Delegates: all employess across IMI WHY | JOINED:

programmes, all employees are provided with Dbjective: 10 provide accessible and effective on-line | wanted to gain workplace skills and experience
on-the-job tramning and where appropriate, training t0 support fraining and development across ' wat | could put into practice while Studying and

personal mentoring. We alsc operate a I globally © my interests in sgience and problem solving led

Performance Management Process 10 ensure Number of participanis: we have 8,00C registered | e 1o choose a career in engingenng. | wanted

that all employees are appraised n a farr and Users 01 our earfing management system o work at IM for several reasons, including the

consisient way This process provides employees continuous improvement cultura which provides
with regutar opportunities to discuss their <IMI Lean"- the key to operational lots of epportunities for me to get nvolved in

objectives and personal development plans
during the year,

really interesting projects.

MY EXPERIENGE:
| have gained so many skills including machine
operation, computer aided design, lean and

excellence

Delegates: senior organisational leaders

Dbjective: to equip site leaders to accelerate their
lean improvements

In ine with our ambition to develop our own talent
for future leadership roles we set and achieved

our target of 40% for our 2018 lgadership group . ergonamics. | have also worked on & number of five
internal succession rate (32% in 2017). For 2019 :}‘;:;‘:gn"g' ;’ﬂ“:ﬁé?%ﬁ:%ﬁi“ﬁ:ﬁ?&ﬁw assignments including severat factory improverent
we ar aiming to improve this further. Targgt for end of 2019 — 480, ' programmes and a project to design a large-scale

maodel for use at a trade fair in Germany, At the
same time, | have gained further qualifications and
have also been able to promote engingering to
pupils at bocal schools and careers fairs.
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Engagement How we engage with our employees

Gven how important people are o our success,

} . . Forum Engagement %)
maintaining an active dialogue with them is S
esseml'al We keep them nformed about the bIMI Way Day All employees participate in this annual event, Senior management S
Group's performance and development as provide a business update and empioyees then have an opporturity ;
well as specific matters that affect them as to ask guestions and discuss a range of Issues. Dunng the day )
employees And we listen to therr feedback employees complete an employees engagemenl survey which covers g'
0 1denty the key issues that matter to them therr views on a nurmber ol mportant business subjects, Survey resulls
O entt ¥ 15suts thal matier 1o the are recorded and the data 1s share@ with employees Action plans

| are developed and used 10 measure and track progress Further and

To faciitate this dialogue we operate a number
ongoing survey work 1s conducted where approprate to maintain

of regular and ad hoc mgchamsms, some of postive mementum,
which are detailed cn this page In addition,
In November 2018 Birgit Nergaard, one of our Group Conference 300 senior employees from across the Group meet for an updale o
non-execUlive directors, was designated as the on strategy and initiatives for the coming year, The agenda ncludes g
Diractor resnonsible for undertaking Board lavel a Q&A session with the Executive Directors and Divisional Managing =~
o ! g ‘ . Direciors and the Chairman also addresses participants. Feedback &
workforce engagement, In this role Birgit will ; ts gathered during and after the event with the conference’s key ¢
participate in cur Group management conferance ! messages and outputs then communicated to all employees, e
g E
and our European Communications Forum as ! E Ermol Talves ¢ dtenE ‘ . ‘g“
uropean mployee representatives from around ten Eurcpean countries mee 8
well as olher events involving employees. Communications regulary with senior management 10 discuss strategic progress and
Forum {("ECF™ performance compared to our key performance objectives
The discussions cover updates on key inttiatives such as [T security,
NAME AND CURRENT ROLE: New Product Development, Lean and Value Engineenng Following N
Nils Nesladek X the meeting, minutes and newsletters are produced and used by the 2
Tramnee Production employee representatives to share information with ther colleagues. %
o
Designar, IMI Z&J, Town hall meetings  Our Divisioral Managing Directors hold guarterly oniine town hall »
Germany meetings covering recent results and current initiatives. Employees =
are Invited 10 ask questions and provide feedback on ther own 3
concerns and/or share best practice on current Indiatives. =
WHY | JOINED: .
IMI has a reputation for being & good employer Pulse surveys Where required we use guick and effective localised real-time surveys
p llent trami to gather specific nsights from employees. We use the findings to
that offers an excellent training programme inform our plans for Improvement.
And because the Company recruits quite a _
number of apprentices, | knew there would IMI Eye Our cross-divisional magazine 1s published twice a year and covers

be a good support network and lots of news slories and best practice sharing from around the Group.

opportunities o share experiences. Group-wide and Qur global and divisional miranets are used to communicate key
MY EXPERIENCE: diisional intranet developments and share best praclice across the Group quickly

. and effectively
| am currently a frainee produchion designer
My role covers both product design and ‘
production engineering Fvery day we're | In 2018 over 8,900 employees participated in our IMI Way Day
looking 1o improve our customer offenng which survey. Results were consistent with the encouraging feedback
means always evoling what we do and mowing . from previous years. In particular, 71% would recommend IMI
forward. ] am impressed by the future focus as a good employer to family and friends and 87% are clear

of the company and the emphasis on } about the key priorities their division is focused on.
|
|

continuous improvement |am pleased
to feel part of a secure, yet constantly
improving work environment.
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Corporate responsibility ”

Prioritising health
& safety

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

The health and safety of our employees, contractors and visitors
to our facilities is of paramount importance and integral to our
ambition to be a world-class business with a world-class health
& safety record. To achieve this ambition, we take a proactive
approach and strive to continuously improve our performance.

Our proactive approach

Health and safety 1s our key prionty and monitering and improving our performance 1§ a core metrc which
15 embedded n our reporting systems at muttipls levels across the whole of IMI, All areas of our business
continuously assess their operations and twice yearly we undertake a formal Group-wide health and
safety audit at every major operation to menitor ihe progress against our formal improvement actions.
Details ot this review process are outlined below.

Our bi-annual review process

Timing Activities Objectives and outputs

Novernber/ Local assessment of key

December* operational and satety

and areas, focused on business

May/Jure” performance i1ssues and rate
of improvement. Undertaken
by independent IMi Group
or dvisional specialist heaith
and safety experta.

» Audit current benchmark scores

» Identify business-cntical 1ssues,
develop impravement actions to
progress and track KPI trends.

= Agree further improvement activities
with local and divisional leadership.

» Montor improvement activities.

Publication of Lean - HSE
benchmarking data on
Group intranet,

January and July » ldentify commonly recurnng

Group-wide hazards.
» Develop remedial plans to address.

» Share best practice.
* Combined with semi-annual Lean benchmarking reviews

In Iine with our established policies and procedures we strive to ensure that accidents are avoided and
that our aperations are risk assessed to be as safe as possible, All employees. as part of their induction,
receive health and safety training relevant to therr role in ling with health, safety and environmental
comphance principles. Further on-site training in refation to hazard identfication, risk assessment

and action planning is provided to employees engaged in manufacturing operations

We report, record and investigate every incident requinng first ald, or medical intervention and in addition,
a full root cause investigation of every Lost Time Accident (“LTA") is presented 1o the relevant Divisional
Managing Director. Following a formal review at divisional level, a remediation plan is agreed and
implemented, and safety alerts are issued 10 share lessons learned and increase safety awareness
across the Group.

\ Progress during the year

. During the year we improved our health and
safety performance in a number of areas

» Duning the year the total number of £ETAS reduced
more than 20% to 18 against 23 in 2017
The 2018 figure includes 3 LTAs recorded by
Bimba. which was acquired i January 2018.
The Precision Engineering dvision is currently
executing a range of plans and nitiatives to
integrate fully Bimba inte their North American
operations and our key priority 1S to entbad the
IMI health and safety culture and supporting
procedures across Bimba's entire business.

» There has been a slight reduction in the number
of sites reporting zero LTAs (79% compared
with 83% In 2017}. This reflects the restructuring
+ of IMI Critcal Engineering’s manufacturing
1 footprint and the acquisition of Bimba,

» The LTA Trequency rate improved censiderably
(26%) 1n 2018 and across IMI there was 0.8
LTAs for every million hours worked compared
to 1.1in 2017

» [n 2017, we launched a Group-wide campaign
to prevent hand injunies which were the largest
yolume of injuries reported in 2017, In 2018 IMI
Critical Engineering delivered a 65% reduction
in hand njunes and IM| Precision Engineering
and IMI Hydronic Engneenng reported reductions
of 35% and 56% respectively,
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2018 Health & Safety initiatives

Qur passion to continue 1 improve our heatth
& satety performance resulted in the launch
of a number of new procedures and training
nitiatives during the year inciuding "Leaming
to See” and "Lock Out Tag Out”

“Learning to See”

In all our manufacturing operations
management routinely undertake “Gemba
Walks” — a Lean term used to describe the
detailed observation and identification of
potential hazards and risks. During 2018
we launched our “Leaming te See” training
programme which equips our operational
management with further knowledge and
skills to make their Gemba Walks even
more effective, The two-day training
programme takes place on site and
provides practical instruction on taking
the process beyond completion of health
and safety checklists to a more interactive
discussion with employees. This process
allows questions to he asked, encourages
suggestions for improvement and creates
more effective and proactive engagement
on health and safety issues. During the
year over 600 employees based at our
manufacturing sites participated in

the Learning to See programme.
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“Lock Out Tag Out”

Lock Qut Tag Out is a safety procedure

used to ensure that machines are properly

shut off and not able to operate during

maintenance and repair work. Prior to

2018 every IM| husiness operated its own

Lock Out Tag Out procedure and as a result,

standards of protection varied across the

Group. In an effart to reduce the risk of T S
serious injury in the high-risk shutdown : Flinty s 11 tortares ol Pt o
procedure, we introduced a new and speniliod perfaemance charastenadicn,
more stringent Lock Out Tag Out pmcedure 2 Thee Qrastgs - camhintisd (OIS 0N W edrndg

which all our operaliuns are requirad appropriat oo pealted in g sigoihcant
vistduction mobned wyueecs o AMECritieal
to adopt.

3 Throwghesn 2010 Learnmg lo See frannmg
vt e liyered 1 Ol Hysrsue Enaricering
trobatactinneg st -,

Ab oy ale prachue s and the correct
clothimg prede or gur people.

LS
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Corporate responsibility

Ensuring that we minimise
our environmental impact

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Our purpose is to deliver great solutions that tackie the most demanding
engineering challenges and help our customers operate their systems
and processes safely, cleanly and cost effectively. We are committed

to doing this in a way that minimises the impact on the environment,.

Our operations

We operate globally with manufacturing faciities
in mare than 20 countries. We are committed to
operating these facilittes in a sustainable way
and to minimise their impact on the emaronment.

We monitor and report our environmantal
performance at the manthly Executive meetings
with a view to dehvering continuous improvement
and reducing our CO, emissions year-on-year

Energy efficiency

Given the nature of our production processes,
our main focus is energy efficiency and our
Group-wide energy efficiency programme delivered
a number of Improvements during the year. Delails
of some of the key projects are set out below.

» EMI Critical Engineering installed a new
award-winmng heating system In three of the
manufacturing halls at IMI Z&J's faility in Daren,
Germany. As a result, gas consumption in the
three halls has been reduced by 30%.

» IMl Precision Engineering mtroduced a
renewable power system In parts of ts facility
in Alpen Germany. Following the instaliation
of solar panels and heat pumps the facility’s
£0; emissions and energy consumption
have reduced

» IMI Hydronic Engineering installed new LED
lighting throughout its Swedish plant in Ljung
which has helped reduce C0» emissions and
electricity consumption.

We support the Carbon Diselosure Project ("CDP™)
climate change initiative and submit annual CDP
reports which cover our nisk management approach
to climate change and our emissions performance.

Since 2015, on a like for like hasis (excluding
Bimba), we have reduced our CO. emissions by
over 4%, In line with our continuous improvement
cuiture and investment in our operations, we are
committed to further reducing our emissions

in the future.

CO,emissions

2015 2016 2017 208

Reduction in waste and scrap

As outlined on page 22, improving operational
performance 1S one of our key strategic priorities.
By running our business more efficiently we
enhance our competitiveness save costs and
reduce waste and scrap levels. Each of our divisions
has made significant progress in this area including

» IMI Critical Engineering: at IM| 7&J's facility
in Germany, Lean methodology problem solving
techrigues were used to identity three main
areas for improvemeant, including welding errors
Processes In the plant have beer adapted and
improved and as a result scrap levels have
reduced by 58% vear on year.

IMI Precision Engineering: since 2017, IMI
Precision Engineering Fradley's scrap levels have
reduced by 67%, driven by the implementation
of Lean process design and the Fradley 1eam
undertaking regular problem solving and Kaizen
continuous improvernent activities, Lead times
and inventory levels have shown radical
improvement as a resuft.

IMI Hydronic Engineering: the division’s facility
at Erwitte, Germany has continued to reduce its
scrap. Building on the 50% reduction achieved

in 2017, the plant reduced #ts scrap levels by

a further 10% in 2018. The application of Lean
methodology and problem solving to identify

the root cause and implementing mprovement
actions underpinned the Improvemeant.

| Qur prodﬁéts

Our products and technalogles help our customers
operate their processes safely, cleanly and
efficiently and help address some of the biggest
global challenges facing the world today including
climate change and resource scarcity Below are
some of our products that help reduce emissions
and energy consumpticn.

» |MI Critical Engineering's EEEasy-Seal™:
this innovative sealing system for control valves
prevents the leakage of emissions in ol refineries
and petrochemical plants.

» [MI Precision Engineering's PET
blowing blocks:
this market leading product reduces the amount
of air, and as & result energy, reguired to
manufaciure plastic bottles.

» {MI Hydronic Engineering’s Halo:
launched 1n 2018, this thermastatic radiator
head, which has a buillt-in sensor, contrals the
temperature of indmidual roems by automatically
adjusting flows, depending on ambient
temperature. Compared with a manuai ragiator
head, it can reduce energy consumption by as
much a3 28%




uonANPOIL|

maway siBaens

(@]
[]
=
g
=4
@
o
Q
&
g
=}
o
3
o
@

SiBWANEIS [eIoLRL |

* 1 WMl Precision Engineering s new plant i

.- yo_ida near New Debhi hias its own sowage
- u:ealmenl plant which converts sewage into
. hiodegradable waste. The facilily also has
4 4 rin water hatvesting systom winah colieet,
+ain and feeds it back info Ihe ground.
« #Farther information about the new plant can
e bea [ound on gage 20.
2 Hygronie Enginecring's now thermostabie
* heat Hala not ondy helps Lo actieve encrgy
¥ avings for homeowners, ¢t also has i+
.stylssh modern design.

3¥cw encrgy efficient and cnvironmentally
friendly LED lighting ny Hydronic
- Engineermg’s plant i Swecden,

¥ “41MI Noraren PET Blovang black.
o+ .
5 PET botfle manufacluring.
r
6 EEEasy=Scal™ will ensure o signiicant
reduction in valve Isakagoes.

)




Measurements and targets

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Our business performance is measured through a programme
of Group-wide targets and improvement measures. Every IMI
business participates in an annual round of planning meetings
with the Executive Committee, during which performance
and future plans for that business are reviewed and updated.
The Key Performance Indicators (‘KPIs’) set out below
represent financial and non-financial largets which are
integral to the delivery of our strategy.

Organic revenue growth

+5%

‘
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1‘!'|I\*H
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‘ |
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U

© 2816 2017 2018

Organic revenue growth excludes the impact

of acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchange
movements. The revenues from acguisitions are
only included In the current year for the period
during which the revenues were also included in
the prior period. In 2018 the Group's continuing
pusinesses delivered 5% organic revenue growth.

Segmental operating profit

— £227.7Tm £240.0im

2016 2017 218

In 2018, Group segmental operating profit was
£266m compared to £241m representing an
increase of 11% on an adjusted basis. On an
organic basis, after adjusting for the impact

of exchange rates, acquisittons and disposals,
segmental operating profit increased by 9%.




Health & Safety lost time
accident rate

0.07 o.n 0.08

Tzo06 =07 2008

The health and safety of all our employees Is
paramount, We measure our progress in this
area by tracking our 1 day lost time accident
frequency rate ('L TA rate’) In 2018 our LTA
rate reduced to 0.08, reflecting the Group's

centinugd focus on identifying and reducing
workplace hazards,

Lean assessment

ap% 1% 757
Year-end  Year-end Year-end
2018 2017 2018

During the year we continued to improve our
operational performance and Lean scores

Qur six monthly benchmarking process is now
fully embedded, and scores continue to reflect
the improvement which is being achieved across
all Group operations. Dur highest score 1s now
95% and the average has increased from 31%
when we first benchmarked the busingss in
2014 10 /5% at year-end 2018,

Skilled vantplogecs hoeip ensure
waorld-class quality products
Jor our customers.

Return on capital employed

12.5% 12.4% 12.8

" 2016 2017 2018

Return on capital employed (‘ROCE) 1s defined
as segmental operating profit after tax divided
by capital employed Caprtal employed is defined
as net assels adjusted to remove net debt,
dervative assets/liabilities, deferred tax and

to reverse historical impairments of goodwil
and amorisation of acquired intangihle assets.
In 2018, ROCE was 12 8% which compares

o 12 4% in 2017 and reflects the Group's abiity
lo delver improved profitability despite mixed
market cenditions
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How we manage risk

Our risk management processes are embedded in all our
businesses and are designed to identify, evaluate and manage
the risks which could impact our performance, our reputation
or cur abitily 1o successfully execute our growth strategy.

Our risk management framework
The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that we manage our
risk £xposure appropriately to achieve our strategic abectives and build
sustainable shareholder value.

The Board determines our nsk appetite and monitors and reviews the nsk
management processes we operate. The Board delegates responsibility for
implementing and menitoring internal controls and other elements of risk
management to the Chief Executive and the Executwve Committee The Board
has also tasked its commuttees with responsibility for key areas of risk, as follows

» avarsight of financial reporting, internal financial controls and assurance
processes — the Audit Committee;

» succession risk - the Nominatiens Committee, and

» remuneration and incentive structure rsk - the Remuneration Committee

Further information about the roles and responsibiities of the Board and each
Committee is set out on pages 52 to 79.

How we approach risk management

I Our rlsk appetlte

i in determining our risk appetite, the Board considers a number of factors
wicluding our strategic opportunites, the nsks that could affect our business
and our ability to mitigate their impact Our nsk appetite, the nature and leve!

’ of risk we are prepared to accept to achieve our strategic objectives, 1s divided

‘ into three categonigs. prudent, balanced and receptve.

|

Risk appetite

Strategic risk

Prudept i

Qperational rrsk

Financial risk
Complance nsk

Across the Group we operate a “top-down, bottom-up approach” 1o nsk management which s Wustrated in the graptuc below, This approach aflows the Board
and the senior leadership team to actively assess strategic nisks and monitor the measures used to mitigate, transfer or avoid such risks. It also ensures that
operational risks are identfied and managed at multiple levels and that key nisk information s communicatad effectively across the Group.

Cur risk management process s embeadded in all our busingsses. It provides guidance on how o identify, evaluate and manage risks which could impact

our performance and our ability to implement our strategy

STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

= Determines risk appetite Board » Rewiews bi-annually 2 deiared analysis of the Group’s sk profile ncluding supporting divisional
+ Baviews prncipal nsks data and the actions undertaken to ensre compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
» bamitars and reviews risk management processes » Reviewss annually the effectiveness of the Group’s mternal controls
» Respangible for ensunng risk management culture is Integrated Divisional » Develops bl-annually a detalled Group and dmisional risk profle which is based on mformation
across thefr division and aligned to the Graup's objectives, and upleaded to the Group intranet by sach manufacturing operation. This profile analyses each
» Detarmines principal nsks and miigation strategies Executwe divisien's most significant rigks and oullines mitigation strategies
» Moniters changes In the nisk profile.
» Monitors quality and effectiveness of business level risk
management prosesses,
» Operates and manitors an actve and effective nsk Qperating » Maintams an up-to-date ngk protle which wentifies (he key neks tacing 1he Husiness, assesses
managernent process. companies mitigating processes and controls operales key performance indicaters to validate the
» Updates operating companes on principal nisks and effecliveness of those conirols and identifies areas for improvement
mitigation strategias, » Publishes risk profiles for each manufacturing operation to the Greup infranat twice a year
» Dperates reporting systems that merease management ¥ » Provides monthly updates on key risks, mitigatien and confrols through incorparaion of risk

ownarship and accountabilty

profile data m monthly management reporting process



0 u r prl n c l p al rls ks STRATEGIC Q Capitahsing on significant organic
GROWTH & growth opportunities
The principal risks facing the Group are shown in order of prionity in the tatle below. PRIORITIES
This analysis covers how each nisk could impact our strategy and explains what we KEY 9 L”ggﬁ“%’fﬂg‘gefa‘“’"a'
are doing to monitor and mitigate each risk area,
: ‘ increasing mvestment in
The Group 15 also exposed to broader financial market risks, In particular, currency @ Newpmj'uct Dewelopment
exchange rate volatilty following the Brexit referendum. A descniption of these nisks
and our centralised approach to managing them is described in Section 4 4 of the Expan%mg outr adddfessable markets
financial statements. through 2rgeted acguisiians
STRATEGIC GROWTH

PRINCIPAL RISKS PRIGRITIES TRAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING

— CHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFECTED 1S IMPORTANT THE RISK

GLOBAL ECONOMIC » The threat of 2 'no-deal’ Brexit 13 the nsk » Bild flexiility to respond to market canditions and

OR POLITICAL INSTABILITY

RISk MAOVEREHT o

INCREASED

» The possibiity that the UK Jzaves the EL with
neither a transrion perwd nor a free trade
agreement in place contnues to pose a nsk

10 the supply chains ongoing aperations and
pro* tability of the Group

IMI Critical Engingering continued 1o face highly
competidive markets and an ongong slow-down
n the New Construction Fossil Power sector
The impact has been managed through ongoing
restructuring actions including expanding the
omision's Value Engineering actmities and
antering new less severe market areas

Whilst reraiming in a strong compatitive
position, IM! Precision Fnginzening has also
axpenenced volatlity in some geographies
and sectars

IMI Hyd-onic Enginger.ng markets remaned

stable with steady growth < most markets ang
“Ight-51zIng actigns were undertaken o ensure
the business could raspond to market changes

¥

¥

*

@

QO

@@’

oi both ELJ and UK ports not coping with
the additranal velume of customs work
wrich could impact our supply chain
and sales delivery

= The Group operates in dverse global markets
and demang fer pur products 15 dependent on
geonoic and sector-specific environments

= A dowenturn in a global or regional eccnomy
o pohitical nstability could impact end marset
demand, neaatwely impacting revenue and
our apiity to deliver our strategy and achugve
market expectations

the potentiat impart assorate:d wath Broxd

» Divisional project tears formed to1dentify 'ne-deal
Brexit nsks and bulid mitigation contingency plans,
EU-UK cross-border transaction flows have been
mapped and critical supply chain risks identified by
customer and part with specific action plans cut in place
Qur main ebjsctive and the focus of our contingency
planning 18 1o minimise nterruptions *2 our supphy chain
and ensure our customer dzlvery commitrents arg meat
tAanlain a nalanued portiche operaling duross a

1ange of markels, seelors ¢nd guograpiues wilh

e single dapentency

+ Monitor Key custemers and respond gquickly to changss
in the.r demanas

Utihise core forecast ng processes “hat ensure
operat onal output ca~ be nght-sized "o market
derand

lindertake enhanrer stress testng and sensitry
analysis of husiness plans and renularky review key
markel and secmor metnzs

Fozus on gnhancing competiivengss by increasing
myestment in New Product Development and Valug
Enginesnng and impraving aperational parformance

z

Develop robust contingzney plans b ensure agilly
@ realign the cost Lase as regqared

FAILURE TO DELIVER MAJOR
TRANSFORMATIONAL PROJECTS

ON TIME AND ON BUDGET

RISK MGVERENT

N1[] CHANGE @

» Successful ERP implemantations across the
Group in 2078 continued to demonstrate the
proficiency of our system implementation teams
end proven effective control,

» I Critical Engingenng has successfully
managed a number of significant restruciunng
projects over the course of 2018 — including
several plant closires — on time and to budgel.

» The Group 1s continually evolving, bath in
response o external market pressures and
to achieve our strategic goals

» Uhange progedts include business
regrgamisations and mplementations
of complex new 1T systems

» Failure 19 delver these change projects on
time and on budget, and failure to respond o
changing market condrtions, could adversely
impact cur financial performanca

Operate rcbust systems and procedurgs to manage
and monitor BUSINESs prejscts Ircluding clear and
measurable milestores which are reviewed regularly
by Dwvisional Managing Directors

» Review major project progress at monthly Executive
Committee meetings

Continue to enhance nsk assessment processas and
mitigation artizn plans

» Undertake specialist IT and Sroup Assuqande reviews
af major IT grojects

- Develep detalled continyency plans,

» Hold morthly operational and ERP s"eernng committee
meetings which r.gorously review projsct progiess,

» Past go-Ive audits to revew progress on
implementation plans

QUALITY ISSUES LEADING TC
PRODUCT FAILURE, RECALL,

WARRANTY ISSUES, INJURY,

DAMAGE OR DISRUPTION TO

CUSTOMERS' BUSINESS

RisK MOVERENT @
KO CHANGL

= Qur oparational perfermance continued to
improve over the course of 2018 Details of key
developments can be found on fage 22

»During the year, we successfully faunched a range
of new products, mamtaln ng our high standards
for quality and customer satisfaction The level ot
risk has remained *he same year-on-year due o
the strength of the procedures and controls in the
New Product Development process

06

= Developing safe, mnovative and technically
advanced products is at the heart of what
wa do

» Fallure to delwer the quahty requirsd

couid result m negative financial and
reputationat damage

« Established Group-wide stanJdard fur Acvanuad
Produc Quality Pla-ning process (tAPQP} which
gvery busingss 1epe-ls o weekly and monthly
Tts ientities mprovemands m the carly phases
of the development process

Contnued focus cn Qualty Managament Systems
and augis

Test firished products ang secu-e customar Sign-off
on the most cntical progucts

Daploy targotod | ean ovents oy improve Nualiy
nelucing implementation at Obeya reviows
Reviewe every 8-months with Groap -wine

| 8an asspssmeant programineg

» Continue te upgrade talent wath a focus on gualty
and protiuc® development expertise and experience

i
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Our principal risks
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STRATEGIC GROWTH
PRINCIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAY WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
~ CHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFECTED IS IMPORTANT THE RISK '
FAILURE TO INTEGRATE » An integral part of o strategic plan 15 1o make » Lindertake anrual review to 1denfy potential targe

ACQUISITIONS SUCCESSFULLY AND
DELIVER THE REQUIRED SYNERGIES

<>

= (ur post acquisition integration process which
deploys a mix of dwisionat ang Group resources
ensures that the nght people across all thscipings
are avallable to successfully project manage
acquisition integration

» Successhully depleyed the mtegrabion process fo
monitor and manage Bimba Manufactuning post
acquisiion, Progress has heen fracked using a
structured integration plan with key milestones
and responsibilites

PISK MOVEMENT
NG CHANGE

valug enhancing acquisihons.

» Failure to celiver the post-acquisition strategy
could reduce the value of acquired busmesses

acquisitions that aban wih our strategy

» ld=ntify hard and soft synergies within targsted
acquisition ppportuniies

= Adnete to formal acquisiion approval due ailigence
and post-acquisian Itegraticn proresses

~ Deploy a ngorous 100-¢ay process (o sfectvely
monitor and manage post acquisiion iniegration

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH
LEGISLATION OR A BREACH OF OUR
DWN HIGH STANDARDS OF ETHICAL
BEHAVIOUR

RISK MOVEMENT,
N0 CHANGE

» We do not engage with customers, supphers
or any other thirgd partes who are not aligned
with our own code of conduct and strong
elhical standards

= Dunng the year we miroouced internal conwols
and procedures to ensure compliance with the
EU General Data Protection Regulation

= Prior to the Navember 2018 deadiine, we closed
down all trading actwibies with iran following the
re-impesition of LS sanchons

= The challenging terntories n winch we operate

rmake the risk of regulatory breach a continueo
area of forus As such, our risk profile remains

+ Tne gioba) markets and regulatory environment
demani the Mighest standards of conduct and
adherence to compliance rules and procedures

» Fallure to comply with legislative requirements or
a breach of our Code of Conduct could result in
significant financial and reputaticnal damage:

- As we expand our operabions to achigve growth it
1§ essenthial that we maintain out high standards
of conduet and comphance procedures,

~ Legislative requirements in relation to tax.
ant-bribery, fraud and competition faw include
rigorous Moenitoring and traming of new and
auisting employees

» Commiten 1o fosienng a postive culiure U gdorpimead
hy ore values ad behavigurs that promote fair and
eth cal working practicas,

» Continue a robust nternal zortrols declaration
process

» Established dedivaled Lomphance resources at aroup,
divisigral and local lgvels Each division have speci‘c
compl ance plarts in place which are executed over
the course of Ihe year

~ All employees are provided wath easy access to
policies, manuals, guitelines and standard cperating
procedures wa our global ntranet,

» Undertake reguiar employee training focused on key
ngk areas such as fraud, antihnbery and corruption
and how Yo apply the 1) Way n everyday situations

- Operate a confidential ndependent hoting to
report roncams

» Undertake ngoious due diligence and approval
procedues on turd party agents Termenate all
non-compliant agents

unchanged = Operate stringent procedures and processes
dealings with higher nisk ternterias incluchng formal
lraiming {or relevant employess.
= Actively monitor and manage trade sanctions
FAILURE TO MANAGE » We depend on & sigmficant number of suppliers » Autharise the purchase and manufacture ot long iead-
THE SUPPLY CHAIN who prowide essentral products and services, time components (o and frem our UKEU supply base
- Fatlure to manage our supply cham, especially » Fxgcute our cortingency plans in the case of a no-
RISK MOVEMENT: ° n respect of quality or on-time delivery to our deal' Brexit and continue to monitor the sivation and
INCREASED tusiomers, toutd have a matenal impact on pur 1eart geeordingly
financtal performance and reputation. » Monitor risks on & requiar basts and develop

» The possibility that the LK feaves the EU with
nertner 4 wansiien period nor a free rade
agreement In place continues to pose a sk to
the supply chains, ongaing operalions ang
profitability of the Group

» Growth In our IMI Prectsion Engingering markets
has placed pressure on our supphers, in some
cases impacting on our delvery performance
n 2018, In respanse, the division wigraded its
supplier managerent pracesses and 1S exgcuting
speclfic impravement plans for critical suppllers,

contingeney plans 1o mitigate the 'mpact of suppher
failure, increased pricing or any ather suppher
associated risk

» Assess specitic Supplier Code of Conduit risks across
divisional supply chans and audit lgh-risk supphers for
Al aspacts of suppty than nsk inciuting kotiern Slavery,

» Operate preferred suppher hsts for all major materials
and components Where appropriate cestam suppliess
are operating under & framework agreement

» Reqular (aview meatings Wih key supplers acd
45 required, deploy escalation meetings

» Monitor key supplier parformance using
supplier scorecards,

= Carry adequate safety stock and/or maintan
dual supply sources for £nticai components



STRATEGIC
Capitalising on significant organic
GROWTH growth epportunibes
PRIORITIES
KEY Improving operationad
performance
Increasing investment in
New Product Davelopment
@gﬁ Expanding our addressable markels
through targeted acquisiions
STRATEGIC GROWTH
PRINGIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
— CHANGES DURING 2018 C0ULD BE AFFECTED 15 IMPORTANT THE RISK
UNAUTHORISED ACCESS TO »While we havs a well-developed strategy 1o » Cantinug our IT Sscur ty fmprcvement programms=

RISK MOVEMENT o

INCREASED

» The digital and security threat environment in
relation 10 our IT systems and infrastructure 1s
constantly and quickly evalving We contnued
ta Invest in stengthening our IT systems
and protecting our data, alongside raising
awareness of cyber secunty acress all parts
of our business

Luring 2018 the Gioup sigmificantly upgraded
our anti-makware, Intruder delection, USB
device control and internet filiening capabihlies
In additio, v have deployed faplop encryplion
and completed a sigm’cant number of firgwall
replacements to reintorce our infrastiucture
aydinst npw and emerging threats

A sgcurity awarengss campaign ‘Be Cyber
Safe’ commenced rell cut duning 2018 and

will continue to run throughout 2019

OUR IT SYSTEMS

9

u

keep atreast of new threats and continually
mprove the Group's IT infrastructure, we
cannot guarantee that our actions are keeping
pace with the canstantly evelving threat
environment

» Unapproved access to our 1T systems could

resutt m loss of mtellectual property fraudulent
actrty, theft and business intarruption

across the Group This ncludss 24/7 netwerk
monitgning via a security oparat ons cantre

» Cenralised security safttware in place Cantinued
emphasis on upgrading and strengthening our
existing hardware and software against new and
emerging threats

+ Montnly roviews with Dvisional Mananing Directors
to 85858 progress and honiter futurs achons
an prres
Cortinug t0 rase aviareness 0° cyber saounty tiough
regular employee communications

» Instigated disasler rzcovery plans on all gssenlial
1 assels neluding slungent syslem back ug
provedores g all of pw busmasses

INCREASINGLY COMPETITIVE
MARKETS L;Q

» Market gynamics continues to be a significant
consideration for the Group and impacts all
three divisions, We have expenenced ncreases
in matertal, iahour and other costs which
impacted our busingss over the course of 2018,

» Valse Engingening processes enabled IMI
Critical Engingening to win £180m of new
orders in 2018,

» Divisional restructuring actvities continue to
efficiently manage our fied cost bass and
will remain an cngoing facus over the
course of 2019

RiSK MOVEMENT
HCREASED

e0e

= Increased competdion could lead to loss
ot customers and/or pricing pressures
resulting n lest sales, reduced profits and
margn detenoratign

» Gortnge 10 2mbed effe.twve New Produc” Developmen®
provesses melud g competior tear down lesting,
Benchmarking comipettar producls and Value Enginaenng

» Active partciration n international tade fairs and shows

» Utlise our metrizs o track performance ard denufy
areas for improvemant

Contnug Lo review Site capadity 1o ensure best
Utihisation dne imerove productivity

- Develcped stardard coztings ta ensure thoraugh
unaerstanding of product cost ang mternal processes
ta track and manage cast incraase apprognately

= Cortinue o enhance operstional performance qualiy
delvery ang service standards threugh Lean implsmentation

= Undertake regulas tustomer feedrack parformance
surveys and Impiament act on plans where
improvements ars required

» Continug Value Engineening activities i all three
dwisions to delwer better more cost-efective products
1o the customer

» Operale masket speLific prving strategiss to
maintan marging and continually revizw supply Lhan
performance lo mibigate or deter input costmflation

NEW PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT @

» (ur end to end Advanced Product Quality
Planning (APQF) and New Product Development
processes have successfully delivered
competitively priced new products to market

» Luring 2018, processes Lovanng design
prolotyping, test ng costing and launch
o markets, were embenderl across all
three divisions

= A New Product Development and Future
Innovaton strategy was put i place for
each dnisicn In 2018

= Further n‘ermation about cur New Product
Development activilies are detalled on paye 24

RISK MOVEMENT
NO GHANGE

o6

» Qur sustainabia Jong-term growtn is reliant
on delvening a pipeline of innovative
new products

» Fadure 1o delver market leading products
on time and on huaget will impact our abilty
10 grow

» Embed New Product Development inte strategic
planmng process with tschnology and product
roadmans Inzhuded in gach dwisan's five-year plan

« Goninue (o nvest n researuh and oevelopmeant to
ensure we target the —ost crofitlable cpportunites

» Established centres of design and
technological excellence

~ Track new product intraduchon plans and actions
on heth g weekly and monthly basis

» Trark key performarce metnes including sales
from ~ew products and rasearch and davelopment
srend ananst cales

- Continue competitor preduct tear down and lesting,

LONENPOLL|
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Board of Directqrs

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chamnan {74)

Nationality
Bntish

Committee membership
Nominaticns Committee — Char

Date of appointment
2015

Expertise
Sigrificant UK and international
board experience

Extersive knowledge of both
engineering and manufacturng

Strong track record in private
equity, mergers and acguistions

Speaciaist capabity in finance

Key axternal appointments

Non-sxecutive Chairman of
Alance Trust plo
Non-executive Ghairman of the
British Business Banrk plc

* Roy Twite assumes Chief Executive role from Mark Selway on 9 May 2019

Mark Selway
Chief Executive' (59)

Auslrahan

Executve Committee

2013

Experienced and praven

Chief Executive

Sold track record runnming
International engineerng
businesses

In-depth knowledge of rolovant
end-markets including ol 8 gas,
energy and automobive

Roy Twite
Executive Director' (51}

British

Executive Committee

2007

Proven organisatcenal and
enginesnng exnertise
Marmagement capability having
run all of IMI's dwisions
Extensive knowledge of
end-markets and

customer base

Non-executive director of
Halma plc

@ Find out more www.imiplc.com/about-Iml/leadership-and-governance/board.aspx

Daniel Shook
Finance Director (51)

Amencan British

Execut ve Committee

2015

txtensive financial
mahagement expencnce
Extensve knowledge of complex
process manuiactunng across
a range of nductnal sectors

Strong international
perspeciive having worked in
a number of key geographies
dunng hes time with twa leading
global buzinesses

Carl-Peter Forster
Senior independent
non-executive director (64)

German

Audit Sommittes
Nominations Commitles
Remuneration Committee

2012

Experenced interrational
business leader

In-depth knowledge of
the autemaotive sector

Expert in operational excellence
and Lean manutacturng

Significant expenence in
technology management

Non-executive director of Gesly
Automobile Holdings, Hong Kong
Charrman of London

Taxi Company

Non-executive director of

Velve Cars Corporation
Charman of Chemring Group plc

Member of the PWC
Adgvisory Board




Birgit Nergaard
Independent
non-executive director (80)

Nationality
Danish

Commuttee membership
Remuneration Cemmitiece
— Charr

Audit Committee
Nomnatizns Committee
MNon-executve director for
emoloyee engagement

Date of appeintment
2012

Expertise
Experenced non-executive

Hela semior executive positiors
In engneenng consuliancy
\Wide ranging sectoral
experience INcluding energy
water, nfrastructure and
bulding industres

Experence in strategy as well
as finance and accounting

Key external appointments

Non-executive director of
D8V A/S and NCC AB

Non-exacutive director of
WSF Global Inc.

Isobel Sharp
Independent

nan-executive director (63}

Brtish

Audt Committee — Gharr
Nominations Camimittee

2015

Considerable accounting, audit
governance and transactons
experence including ime as the
Senior Techrucal Partner at
Delotte in |Londor, President

of the Institule of Chartersd
Accodntants of Scotland

and membership of the UK
Accounting Sterdards Board
and the Repeorting Review Panel

Non-executive director and
Audit Cammittea Chair of The
Bankers Investment Trust PLC

Non-executive director and
Aucit Committee Charr of
winton Group Limited
Honorary Professor at
Cdinburgh University
Business School

Thomas Thune
Andersen
Independent

non-executive director (63) ‘
|

Dansh

Nomirations Lommittee
Remunerat on Committeg

2018

Experenced international
business leader N sectors
nclucing oil, energy, maring
and ertical rifrastruciure

Broad expetience as a non-
executve director of vanaous
public companies

Charrman of Lloyds Register
Group Non-executive director
of BW Offshore Limrted and
Charrman of Orsted A/S
Member of the Darush
Committee for Good
Corporate Governance

Katie Jackson
Independent
non-executive director (45}

British

NoTinations Lomnitiee
Rermuneration Cornrrillee

2018

Semor execulne experence
N majcr ol companies and
rves iment banking

specalst knowledge of the ail
and gas sertor and excelient
corporate finance expenence

Executive Vice Prezident

of Commercal and New

Business Developreent at
Royal Dutch Shell

Board

experience

International
business
responsibility

Engineering

Public
company
board

Finance

Regulatory &
legal

Mergers &
acquisitions
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54 IMI plc

Corporate Governance introduction

Chairman’s

Governance letter

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the Corporate Governance
Report for 2018. As Chaiwrman, my focus continues
to be on ensuring that the Board provides effective
leadership and maintains the highest standards of
corporate governance and integrity at alt times. In the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 55 o 79,
we describe our governance arrangements and the
practical workings of the Board and its commitiees.

Leadership

1 am now in my fourth year as Charman and very much enjoying my role.
During the year two new non-executive directors joined the Beard brnging
considerable and relevant experience as well as fresh perspective.

The Board is fully engaged, able to both support and challenge the executive
team, and has the skills and experience fc oversee governance, financial
controls and risk management, The quality of debate at meetings 1s high
and we get valuable input from all of our non-executive direclors. | benefit
from a strong working relationship with the Chief Executive and we keep
in close contact on @ weekly and more frequent basis as necessary.

Culture

The Board sets the tone at the top and has established clear leadership values
and behaviours which are underpinned by a comprehensive Code of Conduct and
governance framework. The IMI Code of Conduct 1s given to every employee
and features in induction and other training and the annual IMI Way Day.

QOur values and expected behaviours are built nto our leadership development
programmes and performance assessment processes. Excellent leadership
behaviours are a pre-requisite for satistactory performance and caresr
advancement in the Group. We have also embedded policies and processes

to set clear standards for compliance and doing business i the right way.

During 2019 the Board will commence an increasingly formal review of the
Group's culture by reference to a range of key indigators ingluding Group-wide
employee survey data and other stakeholder feedback.

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Governance highlights

» Following a ngorous selection process supported by Russell Reynolds that
inctuded Bboth internal and external candidates, the Board agreed to appoint
Roy Twite as IMI's next Chief Executive.

» The new chairs of the Audit and Rernuneration Committees were fully
Inducted and have made an excellent start in their roles

» Following wide ranging search processes lad by the Nominations
Committee, Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson were apponted
to the Board as non-executive directors

» A review of the Directors’ Remuneration Poficy was completed by the
Remuneration Commuttee followng stakeholder consultation and the
resulting proposals were approved by the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

» We continued o refine the detailed plans behind the Group's strategy and to
gversee progress in the implementation of the strategy at a busingss fevel

» We completed the significant, complementary acguisition of Bimoa
Manufacturing Company for £138m and following the Bimba acquisition
the Board visited the pringipal manufactuning site near Chicagg.

» An audit tender process was run by the Audit Committee which resulted
in a decision to reappomt Ernst & Young LLP as auditor subject to
annual shareholdar approval at the Annual General Meeting.

» We continued to maintain good Investor relationships and the
drectors met with major shareholders as part of our ongoing
investor relations programme.

Compliance with the 2016 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the “2016 Code”)

| am pleased to report that IMI comphed with the principles of the 2016 Code
throughout the year. We also complied with the 20106 Cede provisions save
for a period when our Remuneration Committee membership was reduced
to two while we brought other non-executives on beard following the sad
death of Bob Stack late in 2017,

We acknowledge the introduction of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance
Code (the “2018 Code™) and during the year we took appropriate steps to
prepare for compliance with the new requirements which came into effect
from 1 January 2019. In November 2018, we anncunced the appointment
of Birgit Nergaard as non-executive director with respongibility for workforce
engagement. We have also revised our corporate governance framework
and the business cycles for the Board and its committees to reflect the
2018 Code and agpropriate training has heen provided to the Board.

Yours faithfully

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

28 February 2018
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Corporate
Governance Report

Set out helow is the Board’s formal report on corporate g
governance and separate reports from the Audit, g
Nominations and Remuneration Committees.
2016 Code - Compliance statement Non-executive / Gender Nationality

executive directors*
The Board i committed to mantaining goed governance and confirms that ‘
throughout the year-gnding 31 December 2018 the Company has apphed | o S
the principles contained in the 2016 Code and complied with its best _ £ . i _ @
practice provisions save for & temporary shorifall in the membership of the i o "k + f Q 4 §
Remuneration Committee The 2016 Code provisions require a Remuneration "i % f
Committee to have at least three members and there was a pericd of six U™ RN ?(E'
months when the memberstup was reducad 0 two following the sad death I A ndepenent nor - AFemdle 1 Bl h g

exe utne direc lars Ml & Cther
3 Exervtive et fors

of Bob Stack n December 2017 Two new non-executives joned us on
1 July 2018 and became members of the Committee,

* Uinder the 2018 Code, the Chamnan 1s excluder when ronsidening
Further details of how we have apphed the 2016 Code appear below, in the ‘ the Indepencent nan-execulive compositian of the Board

Directors” Report and other cross-referenced sections of this Annual Report,

all of which are incorporated by reference nto this report, A description of the ‘ . . p
main features of the Company’s internal control system and disclosureson | Dates of appointment for the Chairman and 5
other regulatory matters ncluding statements on going concern and vatility = Non-executive directors g
can he found in the Directors’ report on pages 138 to 142, A summary of our £
nisk management systems and information about the nisks and uncertainties Length of tenure at 31 December é’
that relate 1o our business s detalled within the ‘How we manags risk' 5
section on pages 46 to 49 Information on corporate responsibility can Thomas Thune Andersen §
be found in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 to 43 Carl-Peter Forster @®
Katie Jackscn
Board composition Birgit Norgaard
Seven directors served on the Board throughout 2018 the Charman, the Isabel Sharp o
Chief Executive, three independent non-executive directors, the Finance bord Robert Smith Z
Drector and one oparational executive director In addilion, two new non- o1 2 =04 5 & 7 =
executive directors were appointed with effect from 1 July 2018, The Beard Years g
now comprises ning girectors. All continuing directors stang for re-election 3
at each Annual General Maeting. Z
Date of appointment Date of current latier of
appointment
Independence of non-executive directors | Thomas Thune Andersen 1 LIy 2018 +2 December 2018
The Board consilers that all of the non-executive directors are freg from . Carl-Peter Forster 1 Cctoben 2012 12 December 2018
any business or other relationshin which could materiatly interfere wath Katie Jackson 1) 2018 12 Cecember 2018
the exercise of their independent judgement and all meet the critena Eirgit Nergaard £ \oember 2012 12 Cecember 2018
for independence under the Cede All of the non-executive directors are | Isobel Sharp 1 September 2015 12 December 2018
regarded by the Board as independent The Chairman was also regarded Lord Robert Smith 7 May 2015 12 December 2018
as independent at the dale of tus appontment to the Board '
Board diversity Share ownership for the Chairman and
The non-executive directors are a diverse group from different backgrounds non-executive directors
and nationalities and bring with them a wide range of skills and experience The Chairman and non-executive directors are encouraged to hoid
in commerce, fnance and industry from around the world. More than half the some shares in IMI wihin a reasonable period after their appointment,
Board are non-British and there are five different nationaliies on the Boarg As at 31 Decamber 2018, the Chairman and non-executive directors
Three of the nine directors are female {1.e. 33%;} Our approach to diversny all held IMI shares as set out in the table on page 77
1s set out In more detal in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages
341043 and in the Nommations Commuttes Report on pages 64 and 65




56 IMI plc

Corporate Governance Report

Meetings and use of Board time

The Board met on six occasions during the year inCluding two results
reporting meetings, a day dedicated to sirategy discussions and regular
review meetings at which updates are provided as appropriate covering health
and safsty, operaticnal and financial matters, investor relations, risk and legal
affars In addition, there were several days spent on Board site visits and
attendance at other events,

2018 Board cycle

In addition to the regular agenda items for operationat matters, business
performance and corporate affars, the following matters were dealt with
at Board meetings in the year.

February

Approval of the prebminary results announcement and Annual Report
Approval of the final dvidend recormmendation

Approval of the notice of Annual General Meeling

Review of the first monthly phased forecast {the “Q1 Forecast”)
Review of a significant possible acquisition

May

Review of trading and other updates

Approval of the imterim management statement
Preparation for the Annual General Meeting
Strategy update

Review of the Q2 Forecast

Bimba miegration update

Bopp & Reuther post-acquisition review

IT update

July

Approval of the half year resuits announicernent
Approval of the interm avidend

Interim risk review

Review of the Q3 Forecast

September
Strategy review

Five year business plan review

October

Site visit to US operations

Corporate Governance Update

Review of the Q4 Forecast

Approval of the interim management statement

December

Budget for 2019

Annual risk review
Board evaluation
Strategy update

Board evaluation report
Post-nvestment reviews

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Board attendance

Director Board % attended where

meetings eligible
Thomas Thune Andersen’ 474 100
Carl-Peter Forsier 6/6 100
Katie Jackson' 4/4 100
Birgit Nergaard 6/6 100
Isobel Sharp 6/6 100
Lord Smith 6/6 100
Mark Selway 6/6 100
Daniel Shook 6/6 100
Roy Twite 6/6 100

' Joined the Board on 1 July 2018,
|

In 2019 to date the Board has met once with all members in atlendance.

Board roles and reserved matters |
|

A descniption of Board roles and reserved matters 1s included in the IMI
Corporate Governance Framework {which can be found on the Company

website) and is summansed in the Directors’ Report on pages 139 to 142

Induction and continuing development programme

A formal induction process for new non-executive dirgctors is well established
ang 1s the responsibility of the Charman with support from the Chief Executive
and Company Secretary.

Business familiansation 1s at the core of mduchon and continuing development
for non-executive directors at IM and is centred around ganing an
understanding of the business and getting to know the wider management
team. The two new non-executive directors appointed in July 2018 have had
induction meetings with all of the members of the Executive Commitiee and
the auditor, In addition, all new non-executive directors will attend a corporate
induction day for senior managers held at head office. There is also

a committes induction process designed 16 brigf new committee members

on the relevant committee and the issues it faces.

Non-executive directors are required to wisit business units around the Group
and to meet face-to-face with senior operating management and key corporate
staff. There is regular contact between management and non-executive
directors during site visits, formal meetings and other company events.

During 2018 all of the non-executive dirgctors made site wsits and the whole
Board visited US operations including IMI CCl in IMI Critical Engineering and
Bimba in IMi Precision Engineening. Feedback on Board and individual site
visits 1s discussed by the Board.

Appropriate training and other continuing professional development 1s available
1o all non-executive directors and regular updates are given during the year
where relevant to the business arising at Board and committee meetings.
For example, appropriate best practice updates were provided lo the
Remuneration Committes and to the Board during 2018 including traning
on the 2018 Code. Non-executive directors are encouraged to undertake
addtional training and several did attend external training during ihe vear.




Board visit te US operations

Site visits are an impertant, regular feature of the Board calendar.

In October 2018 the Beard visited IMi CCl in Califorrnia and Bimba

in linais where 1t held meetings and loured the manufacturing sites.
IMI's core processes were seen to be well embedded at IMI CCl and
the business has made excellent progress with 1ts Value Engineering
programme. Bimba 1s progressing well as a business and has achigved |
the integration milestenes as planned.

IMI has a substantial presence in the USA which 1s home to business units
in alt three divisions {n part:cular IMI Criical Engineering has four business
units 1n the country nciuding, IMI CClin California, and IMI Preciston
Engineening has 10 business units including Bimba in lings IMICCLis

a powerful brand for IMI Critical Engineering and offers a range of valves
for power plants and other severe service applications. Bimba 1s 2 key player
in the US Precision Engineering Industrial Automation market which joined
the Group from January 2018,

Dunng the factory tours, management and staff had the opportunity to
showcase a wide range of improvements and lecal management made
business presentations. Senior managers from US businesses joined
the Board for discussions over dinner, Each wisit proviged an excellent
opporturity for the Board to meet a wider group of employees and gain
a more in-depth understanding of the businesses.

Board evaluation

The Chawrman arranged an internally facilitated evaluation process in 2018.
An externally facilitated evalvation was last conducted in 2017 with Egon
Zehnder Based on that review Egon Zehnder's overriding conclusien was
that the Board 1s run in an effective manner. Following discussion of the
report by Egon Zehnder the Board noted seme areas for development
incluging reuting feedback on site wisits, continuing development of strong
relationships among Board members and regular strategic progress
updates for the Board to be expanded All of these development argas

have received appropniate attention during the year

The 2018 internal evaluation exercise was carned out through a guestionnarre
process run by the Company Secretary and by the Chairman canvassing the
views of directors individually While the findings of the internal evaluation
were overwhelmingly positve, In keeping with the Group's commitment to
continuous improvement, the Board agreed that it will make 1t a priority to
allocate a genercus proportion of tme to strategy. In addition, external training
opportunities for directors will be expanded and participation encouraged.

As senior ndependant director, Carl-Peter Forster conducted a review of
the Charrman with the other non-executive directors and shared the results
with the Chairman. During the year the Chairman also met with the non-
executwve directors individually for performance review and feedback
sessions and as a group to review the performance of the Chief Executive,
The Charman passed on to the Chief Execubve appropnate feedback

from the review of fus performance.

The Charman 15 satisfied that the Board 1s fulbiling its responsibilities
appropriately and that the Board and ils comnittees are effective and
that each director demaonstrates a vatuable contnbution and 15 committed
to thew role

v

IMI CCI RSM, Califoria

IMI's Board visit Bimba's University
Park site in Gcigber 2018,
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v

Bimba University Park, lllincis
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Annual Regort and Accounts 2018

Standing committees of the Board

The standing committees of the Board are the Audit Committee, the
Nominations Committee and the Remuneration Commitiee, Each of these
committees operates under wntien terms of reference which clearly set
out therr respective delegated responsibilities and authorities. The full terms
of reference of these committees are part of the IMI Gorporate Governance
Framework (which can be found on the Company's website). The committees
regort to the Board on therr work, normally through ther respective chair,
following each meeting.

Audit Committee

Isobel Sharp Lord Smith of Xelvin
Chair Chair
Membership Membership

Carl-Peter Forster Thomas Thune Andersen

Birgit Nergaard Carl-Peter Forster
Katie Jackson
Birgtt Nergaard

Isobel Sharp

Main responsibilities Main responsibilities
Financial reporting

Nominations Committee

» Board and committee compasiior:

Separate reporls from the committees appear in this Annual Report as follows
Audit Committee Reporl on pages 60 to 63, Nominations Committee Report
on pages 64 and 65 and Remuneration Committee Report on pages 66 fo 79

‘ Remuneration Committee
I
|
[

Birgit Nergaard
Char

Membership

Thomas Thune Andersen
Carl-Peter Forster

Katie Jackson

Main responsibilities
» Define and recommend the remuneration policy
for the Charrman and members of the Executive

» Qversight role in relabion 1o financial statements

= Reviewing significant areas of judgement and
accounting policies

» Reviewing the proposed statements on
going concern and vigbility to appear in the
Annual Report

= Adwvising the Beoard on whether the draft Annual
Report is far, balanced and understandable

» Monitorng announcemaents in raspect of
financial performance

Financial control and nsk

» Monitoring the effectiveness of internal
financial controls

» Raviewing financial nsks including fraud nsk

» Ovarsight of internal audit and other key processes
for monrtoring internal financial control

» Ovarseeing the extarnal audit process,
15 objectivity, effectveness and cost with
responsibility for setbng the audit feg

» Making recommendations to the Beard for the
appontment of the auddor Including oversight
of the audit tender process

» Reviewing the system for confidential
whistleblowing and the treatment of reponts
recewed (this became a Board responsibiity
from 2018)

» Oversight of succession plans for the Board and
the Executive Committee

» Search for and recommendation of candidates

for appomtment as non-executive directors, Chief
Executive and other executive director positions

¢ Dversity policy, promotion of diversity and

monitoring of progress

Committee

» Determine the individual remuneration packages
for the Charman and members of the Executive
Committes within the policy approved by
shareholders

- Set annual and long-term incentive metncs
and awards and determine the outcomes for
the members of the Executve Committee

» Report on remuneration matters and constructivety
engage with shareholders

-+ Assess nsk n respect of remuneraticn
and ncentive structures in particular




Executive Committee

The Executive Committee 1s chared by the Chief Executive and the ather
members are shown or page 15 The Committee meets monthly and more
often as may be required. Regular attendzes at its meetings include the
Group Financial Controller Director of Risk and Compliance, and the
Head of Investor Relatiens

The Executve Committee 1s the senior management body and as part

of the broad remit set by the Chief Executive it monitors and manages
business performance reviews progress aganst strategic objectives and
formulates budgets and proposals on strategy and resource allocation for
consideration by the Board. The Executive Commitlee 1s 2 management
committee which takes (ts authonty from the Chief Executive and 18 not

a committee of the Board.

The Executive Committee plays a key part in risk assessment, risk
management and monitornng processes and receives regular reports

on investor relations, human resources health and safety, internal audi,
compliance, legal and other corporate affairs

Investor relations

The Board oversees shareholder engagement and maintains a hafanced
understanding of the issues and concerns of major shareholders The Chief
Executive and Finance Director have primary respensibility at Board level
for investor relations and they and the Head of Investor Relations, report
to the Board on shareholder 1ssues at every Beard meeting duning the
year. Financsal analysts’ notes are circulated to the directors and the Board
receives reqular feedback regorts from the Company's brokers and public
relations advisers as well as from management. Dialogue 15 maintained
with the principal shareholders and the executive directors meet regularly
with institutional investors. During 2018 there were aver 130 such meetings
with institutional shareholders. The Chairman and the senicr independent
director also are available to sharegholders as needed and both have had
contact with investors during the year

The 2018 Annual General Meeting was presided cver by the Chairman
and attended by all of the serving directors. The Charman and the other
directors met sharehelders mformally afterwards. Each substantively
separate 1ssue was put to the Annual General Meeting as an indvidual
motion Notice of the Annual Generai Meeting was issued more than twenty
working days in advance of the meeting and the level of votes lodged for
and against each resolutien togsther with details of abstentions, arg shown
on the IMl website The Board values the support of shareholders and the
poll results for all resolutions proposed at the Annual General Meeting
were well above 80% in favour in each case.

In adthtion to the Annual Report, the Company issues preliminary
results and half year results announcements, as well as two intenm
management statemants between results announcaments. The IMI
website includes recordings of results presentations made by senior
management, recent annual and half year reports, intenim management
statements, other corporate announcements and links to the websites
of the Group's husinesses

59

The Company has arranged a dealing service for the convenience of
shareholders with Equiniti {details are shown on page 164) A sponsored
Level 1 Amencan Depesitary Receipt programme has been establisheg for
which Citibank. N A, acts as depositary (details can be found on page 164)

By arder of the Board

John O’Shea
Group Legal Director and Company Secretary

28 February 2019
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Dear Shareholder

This report covers the Audit Committee’s
composition and our main areas of activity
and focus over the last year. Qur role is to
monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial
reporting, to review internal financial controls
and the effectiveness of internal audil, and to
make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of our external auditor whose
independence, objectivity and effectiveness
is reviewed by us. The full terms of reference
of the Commitiee can be found in the IMI
Corporate Governance Framework on the
Company's website and was revised with
effect from 1 January 2019 to take account
of the 2018 Code.

Two particular areas of activity for the
Committee in 2018 have been the acquisition
of Bimba and the audit tender process,
details on which are given below.

Annhual Repeort and Accounts 2018

Composition of the Audit Committee

Birgit Nérgaard, Carl-Peter Forster and | were members of the Audit
Committee throughout the year. All of the Committee members are regarded
by the Board as independent non-executive directors | have chaired the Audit
Committee since 1 October 2017 and became a member on 1 September
2015 | spent my earler career in the accounting and audit profession

and the Committee 15 satisfied that | have significant recent and relevant
financial experience. | also currently chair the audit committee at The Bankers
Investment Trust PLC and Winton Group Limited In my rcle as Chair | have
had significant Interactions with key senior execulives and reviewed in
advance selected papers and agendas for meetings of the Committee

1 also have met with our external auditor prior 1o Committee meetings

My colleagues on the Committee also have experence at audit committee
level and coltectively the Commuttee has the skills, experience and objectivity
to be an effective Audit Committee ang to challenge constructively. During the
year, Commitiee members received updates covering changes In accounting
standards, best practice guidance and other key topics. Furthermore, we each
attend as appropriate external traiming sessions to update oyr knowledge.

The Committes asks the fellowing to join all or part of its mestings. the
Chairman. the Chief Executive, the Finance Director, the Group Financial
Controller, the Director of Risk and Compliance, the Group Assurance Director
and the external auditor, Emst & Young LLP {('EY"). In addition, other non-
exgcutive directors are welcome to attend.

The Committee holds at least part of several meetings each yzar alone
with the external auditer and with the Director of Risk and Compliance and
the Group Assurance Directar, The Committee has the power to call on
any employee to attend. The Secretary to the Committee 1s the Company
Secretary, who 5 aiso the Group Legal Director.

Main areas of activity

The Audrt Committee met four times in 2018. For two meetings the focus was
on the forthcoming results reporting and for the other two the focus was on
planning and review matters.

The effecbveness of mternal financial cortrols continues to be a key area for
the Committee which welcomes management’s continuing commitment to
improve the Group's internal financial centrols. Based on its review of selected
key controls, EY agreed with management’s assessment that the ievel of




control effectiveness at the focations assessed as full or specific in the audit
remains high at 95% Nonetheless, the Committee continues to assess with
management opporiunities for improvement, which has resulted in a number
of further control initiatives being dentified for 2019 The IT nvestment and
infrastructure programme 1s continuing and its implementation facilitates
improvemnents in the audit efficiency as well as in internal centrols

The Committee has reviewed reports on the six-monthly Internal Control
Declarations which are submitted by each business unit and cover interna
controls on financial affairs, {T, human resources and other key areas The
process 18 managed by Group Assurance, which follows up declarations with
on-site visits fo review scores and track appropriate improvement actions
During the year, the Committee has sought information on the accounting
systems and internal controls at Bimba and has been pleased to note the
pregress achigved to date and the way in wiich 1ts staft have responded to
the additional financial reporting requirements which come with being part
of a public company.

A presentation on tax policy and comphance from the Head of Group Tax
was recewved by the Commitiee Treasury matters were discussed with the
Group Treasurer.

The Committee approved the proposed external audit approach and

its scope based on the size and level of nsk of the entities concerned
The Group and EY take a nsk based approach to audit and other assurance
activity The key audit matters identifigd by EY are sat out In its report on
pages 145 to 147 and were reviewed by the Committee in approving the
audit scope and plan.

The Committee reviewead and approved for sibmission to the Board the
statements on going concern and viability, which are in the Directors’
Report on pages 139 to 142

The Committee adwises the Board on the fair, balanced and understandable
requrements for the Annual Report and half year resufts statement. The Commitiee
has made posive reports to the Board against these critena The Committee's
review included consideration by the Committee of alternative performance
measures and the presentation of acjusting tems n accordance with the
Group accounting policy In respect of the Annual Report, the far, balanced
and understandable criteria are also a review area for the external auditor

In relation to which it did not report any exceptions The statement of
Directors’ responsibiities on page 143 includes confirmation by the

Board that it considers the Annual Repert. taken as a whole to be far,
balanced and understandable.

Oversight of financial reporting

The Commitiee acts In an oversight rele in respect of the Annual Report
and other announcements with financial content all of which are prepared
by management The Committee received reports en the annual and half
year statemenits from management and the external auditor

Significant judgements related to the
financial statements

In prepanng the accounts, there are a number of areas requinng the
exercise by management of judgement and estimaticn. These matters were
the subject of appropriate detaled analysis and commentary in papers and
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reports to the Committee by management and the external auditor
The Committee reviewsd the most significant accounting areas nvolving

+ such judgements and estimates and these are described below

Acquisition accounting for Bimba

Bimba was acquired cn 31 January 2018 for a cash consideration of £138m
The Group had a 12-month measurement penod after the acquisition dats to
finalise the accounting for the acquisition of Bimba. Management exgroises
judgement on the types of intangible assets acquired and estimates were
made of the fair value of all assets and habilities The provisional fair value
amounts recognised at the half-year in respect of the dentifiable assets
acquired and labilites assumed were included in the notes to the half-

year financial statements, As set out In note 3 4 to the financial statements
on page 108, one change in these provisional values was made at the

year end totalling £1 9m The external auditor provided confirmation that

the judgements made n this connection, ncluding the assumptions used

to value the acquired customer relationships and the Bimba brand, were
considered 1o be acceptable.

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles arising

from acquisitions

The Committee considered the leved of goodwill and intangible assets held
on the Group's balance sheet in respect of a number of past acquisitions
and whether, given the future prospects of these businesses, the carrying
valug In each matenal case remained appropriate.

The year end balance sheet includes goodwill of £437m and intangible asssts
arising on acquisitions of £79m. The Committee reviewed the assumptions
and calculations used by management in the assessment of any impairment
of goodwill and intangible assets and agreed that an impairment of the £2m
goodwill held refating to the IMI Hydronic Engingering service companies CGU

+ was required Impairment was also a key audit matter for EY which reported

its findings 1o the Commitiee. Sectien 3.2 to the financiat statsments on page

- 105 provides details regarding the Group's intangihle assets and goodwiil.

Revenue and profit recognition

The Committee discussed the timing of revenue and profit recognibon on
some of the Group’s larger contracts. [n addibion, this 1s a key audit matter
on which EY reported to the Commitiee

Having reviewed management’s grocess and EY's report, the Commitieg

- concluded that revenues and profiis were apprapriately reflected in the

financial statements Section 5.4 note C to the financial statements on
page 135 provides further information.

The Committee also reviewed management’s assessment of 1he impact of
IFRS 15 *Revenue from Contracts with Customers' which came into effect
from January 2018 and is discussed further n Section 1 on page 92,

Inventory vatuation
The year end balance sheet includes inventories of £273m after £33m of

- provisions. The Committee reviewed the judgements applied to standard

casting valuations and provisions against excess and obsolete inventory and
concurred with management's assessment This was a key audit matter for
EY, n respect of which 1t reperted to the Commuttee that inventory valuation

, across the Group 18 considered appropnate Section 3 1.1 to the financial

statements on page 104 provides detaiis of inventory valuation
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Audit Committee Report

Other judgement areas The Commuttee reviewed the effectveness of Group Assurance with

The Committes reviewed the appropniateness of the accounting treatment in management and recewved mput from the external auditor. The Committee
respect of pension scheme liabilities Including the actuaral assumptions used was pleased with the further development of the co-sourcing model with the

and the impact of one-off special pension events. The Committee also reviewed Group Assurance Team and experienced financial managers from the dmisions
reporting from the external auditor, which coencurred with the accounting for working together to enhance the effactiveness of assurance processes
pensions propesed by management The Committee supporied management’s An area for improvement which was identified is for Group Assurance

on-going efforts to de-nisk the Group’s pensicn cbligations which i 2018 > to do more to share best practice around the Group
in¢luded the buy-out by an insurance company of £409m of UK defined benefit
obligations. Further details can be found in Section 4.9 on page 122, . External audit independence and

- performance review

The Commuttee approved the proposed external audit approach and #s scope
The Committee considered the independence and objectivity of the external
auditor to be satisfactory. In assessing audilor ngependence the Committee
had regard to the Financial Reporting Council's best practice guidance for
audit committees In addition, the external auditor confirmed that its ethics
and independence policies compled with the reguirements of the Institute

of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

In addition the Committee reviewed the appropriateness of restructuring costs
disclosed as adjusting items, leasing arrangements and the impact of IFRS
changes. property sales and the adequacy of taxation provisions Further details
on these matters can be found in Sections 2 2 and 2 4 respectively, on pages
98 and 100

Internal audit

The Commuttee received reports from and moritored the work of the Group's
internal audit function. known as Group Assurance Group ASSUrance reports
threugh the Director of Risk and Comphiance to the Chief Executive. Group
Assurance also has a direct reporting Iine to the Comnuttee. Group Assurance
work 1s pnmarily directed towards financial contrel audits but also covers The policy requires approval by the Committee Chair for any nen-audit

other selected areas including project planming and implementation for major engagement which is more than trivial The Finance Director monitors any
business changes and internal centrel declarations. The principal projects " proposed non-audit engagements of EY and refers to the Commuttee Chair
reviewed in 2018 were major computer systems implementations in each for approval as appropriale. The pohcy does not allow work 1o be placed with
of the three divisions and a review of the Bimba integration process. the auditor if it could compromise auditor independence, such as functioning
in the role of management or auditing its own work. Non-audit fees paid to
the auditor were £0,1m (2017 £0,1m), which represents 3% of the audit
fee and demonstrates the tight control which 1s maintained in this area.

One non-audit engagement involved fees ahove £30,000 and the main areas
of achvity were the intenm results review and an oparating risk assessment.
The Committee considers the level and nature of non-audit work to be
modest and not to compromise the independence of the external auditor.
We are satisfied that EY 1s fully independent from the management and

free of conflicts of interest.

The policy on the use of the auditor far non-audit work was reviewed and
updaied by the Commuttee in 2016 to take account of developments in
regulatory requirements and ethical guidelines for the audit profession.

Duning the year 46 miternal audit reviews were completed with 42 of these
supported by divisional finance managers. Centrally the Group Assurance
team is led by experienced, senior internal audit professionals and across
the Group there are over 7( staff trained to conduct internal financial contral
audits. Locations to be reviewed each year are selecled on a risk assessed
basis, discussed with the Audit Committee and co-grdinated with the external
auditor. The completion of actiens anising from internal audits and reviews

is monitored by the Coemmittee and the track record is excellent.

Group Assurance works closely with the divisions te implement monitoring
and review processes to complement the internal and external audit coverage.
The annual plan and resourcing for internal audit were approved by the
Committes and take account of the enhanced monitoring and review acivity

Benchmarking of the audit fee was conducted in the context of the full audnt
tender process described befow and the fee 1s considered by the Committee
to be appropriate The Committee reviewed and approved the proposed audit

within the divisions, From 2017 the scope of internal audnts has been fee payable to EY

extended to cover certain other cperational and commercial risks. To maintan the abjectwvity of the audrt process, the external audit partner
To achieve this a co-sourcing model has been adopted, where experienced respensible for the Group is rotated within the audit firm at least every five
financial managers from the divisions work with the Group Assurance team years and the current Senior Statutory Auditor, Simon O'Neill, was appointed
on combined audits covening financial, operatienal and commercial matters. following completion of the 2017 audtt.

Group Assurance has also trained divisional finance managers in financial
control auditing skills and provided a toolkit to enable them to carry out
financial control audits at selected sites in the internal audit plan. Financial
control evidence binders have been introduced across the Group in 2018.
These binders help internal audits become mare efficient and support
fransrion and continuity in the event of the changes in finance staff.

The Committee welcomed management’s decision to introduce the
binders as a furthar step to ensure rebust financsal controls,

We formally reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit process.

As in other years, a questionnaire was used to review the external auditor's
performance. In 2018 the Committee also received feedback on EY through the
audit tender process (discussed further below). As a result of the questionnaire
and audit tender feadback, the Commitiee beiieves the external auditor's
performance has been good and effective. To enhance further the external audit
process, certain improvement actions were identified and plans have been put
in place by EY to address these. These included action to improve continuity of
junicr level staff on the audit and more rigoreus structure n the audit process,
especially in refation to audit deliverable requests and progress meetings.




The audit tender process

Pursuant to the statutory requirement for audit lendering after ten years

{i e. n time for the 31 December 2019 audit) and as signalled in the 2017
Annual Reporl, the Committee led an audit tender process duning the year,
the result of which was our recommendation to the Board to select EY as
auditor for the 2019 year The Board approved the recommendation and 15
seeking shareholders’ approval to re-appont EY as the external auditor at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting The term of appointment 15 annual
and there are no contractual restrictions on the Commitise s choice of
external auditor,

The audit tender process involved the following main steps

Considering how the tender should be conducted and
agreeing how the firms should be assessed

The Committge agreed that three firms should be imated to tender, This
decision was reached after considering the needs of the Group, the existing
substantial relationship with ong firm which currently provides tax services
lo the Group and initial spundings taken from other first and second tier
infernational audt firms

To support the Committee, the day-to-day running cf the tender process was
managed by a panel which consisted of the Aucit Committee Charr, the Chuef
Executive Oificer, the Group Finance Director, the Group Financial Controller.,
the Chief Financial Accountant ang the Global Head of Procurement

To assist In evaluating overall audit quality, the key assessment critena were
the capability and competence of the audit team, the approach to and
managemnent of, the audit: relationships and cultural fit wath the Group,

and gquality of the propesal and management of fees. Throughout the process,
alt relevanit staff were provided with the detailed assessment cnfena and
asked to provide their feedback to the tender panel

Running the process

The tender panet issued the Request for Propesal to the three firms and
made available, n a data room, information on the Group and its divisions
to assist the firms After receipt of the proposals, meetings were held with
Group representatives in our major gecgraphies and the firms' staff, This
was followed by indnidual meetings with divisional heads and with Group
representatives, ncluding the Chief Executive, Finance Director and Audit
Committee Chair The results were then collated and made avalable to
the Committee.

In May 2018, the three firms were invited to meet with representatives of
the Audit Commitlee and the Group Executive to present their proposals
for the audit.

Selecting the firm

At s meeting In June 2018 the Aucit Committee reviewed the process and
the information and views gathered therein and agreed to recommend to
the Board that, subject to shareholders' approval, EY should be appointed
auditors for the year to 31 Decemnber 2019, The Committee believes that

a robust audit tender process was executed and that EY has the skill and
expenence to ensure that a ngorous and challenging aud, led by EY's Simon
O'Neill who has just completed his first year as Senir Statutory Auditor.

15 carmed out.

| Compliance hotline

During 2018 the Committee reviewed the operation of the independent
compliance hotline for reporting concerns, reviewed the more significant
reports receved and considered how these are inveshigaled and followed
up. The Commmittee believes that the notline process and nvestigations are
effective and thal proportionate action 1s taken by management in response
In line with the 2018 Code this responsibility has been transferred to the
Board frem the start of 2019

Committee attendance and evaluation

Director Audit Committee % attended where

meetings ehgible
Carl-Peter Forster 4/4 100
Birgit Nergaard 4/4 100
Isobel Sharp 4/4 100

The Committee reviewed its own performance and terms of reference
and received posttive feedback from the evaiuation exercise carned out
i refation to the Board and each of its standing committees. As a result
of the evaluation, the meeting cycle for future years been adjusted fo
improve efficiency

The Committee approved this report on ts work.

Yours fathfully

tsobel Sharp
Char of the Audt Committee

28 February 2019
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Nominations

Committee Report

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased 1o make my report as Chair of
the Nominations Committee. This report is
intended to give an account of the Committee
and its activity. The core responsibilities of
the Committee are succession planning and
appointments at Board level and oversight

of appointments to the Executive Committee.
The full terms of reference of the Committee
can be found in the IMI Corporate Governance
Framework on the Company's website and
was revised with effect from 1 January 2019
to take account of the 2018 Code,

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Composition

Carl-Peter Forster, Birgit Nargaard, Isobet Sharp and | were members of the
Committes throughout the year Thomas Thune Andersen and Kabe Jackson
Joingd the Committee on 1 July 2018, For the purposes of the 2018 Code.
all of the non-executive directers on the Committee are regarded as
independent non-executive directors

 Attendance

Director Nominations % attended

Committee where sligible

meetings

Thomas Thune Andersen’ 3/3 100
Carl-Peter Forster a/4 100
Katie Jackson' 2/3 67
Birgit Nergaard 4/4 100
lsobel Sharp 4/4 100
Lord Smith 474 100

" Joined the Committee on 1 July 2018 Katie Jackson had a prior commitment on
appointment which prevented her attendance at one of the three mestings hedd since
her appontment,

Main areas of activity
Chief Executive succession

' Following a rigorous selection process supported by Russell Reynolds that

included both internal and external candidates, the Board agreed to appoint
Roy Twite as IMI's next Chief Executive. He 1s a strong and expenenced
successer who has been pivotal to the Group’s continued success. He has
extensive operaticnal experience, deep knowledge of our core markets ang
outstanding leadership gualities.

The Committee is also reviewing the sugcession choices for a new Divisional
Managing Director in the IMI Critical Engineering divisign, Ar announcement
on that appoiniment wil be made in due course




Board changes and recommendations for election and
re-election

The Committee commussioned Zygos Partrership to undertake a full search
progess to racruit tw new non-gxecutive dirgciors and recommended to the
Board the agpomntment of Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson [he
Committee also recommended the appointment of Birgit Nergaard as non-
executive director with responsibility for employee engagement, All of the
directors standing are recommended for re-glection at the Annual Generat
Meeting, The Board approved all of the recommendations made by the
Committee for the renewals of appointment for continuing directers,

Succession planning
The Commuttee reviews Board composition and has formuiated a structured
medium-term plan for Board succession

As already highlighted, during the year Thomas Thune Andersen and Kabe
Jackson joned the Board. Oniginally it was envisaged that they would jom
all three Board committees, but in the interests of better balance of overall
committee memberships, 1 was decided that they would serve on two,
the Nominahons and Remuneration Committees

During the year we reviewed lalent development and succession planning
for the top 220 roles n the Group with the support of the Chief Executive
and Group Human Rescurces Director We were encouraged to see that
significant progress continues to be made in terms of cultivating a stronger
pipeline of high-calibre talent as demonstrated by the internal appointment
of the new Chef Executive and the strong list of internal candidates for the
Cnticat Engineering, Divisional Managing Director rofe Further details of our
leadership development and succession planming processes are set out In
the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 to 43

Review of time commitments and contributions

The appointments ¢f the Chairman and non-executive directors are made
on the basis of a formal letter of appointment including a stated minimum
time commitment judged appropriate by the Committee The Committee
considers that the tme given to IMI by gach non-executive director is
sufficient. The Board 1s satisfied that | have the necessary time to devote
to my role as Chairman

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefits a diverse pool of talent can bring to a
boardroom and remains commitied 1o increasing diversity across IMI by
voluntary measures. We will continug to review the compaosition of our
management teams and the Board to ensure that we have the right

mix of skills and expenience while mamtaiming our effectiveness and
execution capabiities.

At Board level more than half the Board are non-Brilish and there are five
nationalities. Three of the non-executive directors are female, representing
33% of the Board, and there is a broad mix of backgrounds and expenence.
We are supportive of the need to improve gender diverse ragresentation

at Board and senior executive levels and are working hard to this end
Further information on workforce diversity matters 1s given in the

Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 to 43,
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The Committee waicomes its responsibility under the 2018 Code for
promoting broader diversity at Board and senior management level

Committee evailuation

The Nominations Committee reviewed its own performance and terms
of reference and receved postive feedback from the evaluation exercise
carned out in respect of the Board and each of Its committees.

The Committee approved this report on its work

Yours faithfully
Lord Smith of Kelvin

Chair of the Nominations Committee
- 28 February 2019
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

IMI plg

Annual Report and Acccuntsg(g]fj

Annual Statement from the

Chair of the Committee

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present
the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year
ended 31 December, 2018. In May 2018 the
Directors’ Remuneration Policy {the “Pelicy”)}
was put to shareholders for a binding vote at
the Annual General Meeting. The Policy, and the
annual remuneration report, were both approved
by almost 90% of votes cast at the meeting.

During the year we refreshed the compasition
of the Committee. In July 2018 Thomas Thune
Andersen and Katie Jackson joined IMI as
non-executive directors and became members
of the Remuneration Committee at the same
time. Information about Thomas and Katie is
set aut on page 53.

Pay for performance in 2018

Cur focus this year has been twofold to ensure consistent applicatien of
our Policy and to ensure our remuneration arrangements remain appropriate
In the context of the challenging economic and market conditions we are
conbinung to face in a number of our key markets,

Al the heart of our Policy 1s pay for performance and a high proportion of
our executive directors’ remuneration is closely tied to business performance.
The Committee select performance measures that align 1o strategy and
when setting stretching performance targets take inte account a number

of factors, including the strategic plan, annual budget, analysts’ forecasts
and econoric conditions. Our objective 1s always to set streiching targets
while at the same time ensuring that strong undertying performance, which
can sometimes be obscured by external macro-economic conditions, 1s
recognised. When assessing the level of performance achieved the Committee
takes into account wider circumstances ta ensure INcentive outcomes are a
fair reflection of actual performance. Further information about the process we
follow when setting targets and assessing performance is set out on page 71.

2018 has been a year of good progress for (M1 despite continued mixed
economic and market congitions. Group adjusted profit before tax has
increased by 12% te £251.2m while organic revenue growth increased
5% to £1 907m on a constant currency basis Cash conversion was 83%
in 2018, Subject to ther approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
sharehelders will receive a totai dividend of 40.6p — an increase of 3%
from last year.

Our various strategic initatves, which are aimed at harnessing the Group's
full potential, are progressing well. In particular we remain focused on bullding
both competitive advantage and shareholder valug by continuing to invest

in new product development and improving our operational performance.

Our cost reductien initiatives have been successfully implemented and our
integration plar: for Bimba, the business we acquired in January 2018,

is now being executed,



How were pay outcomes linked to performance
in 20187

Annual incentives paid to executive directors in respect of performance
In 2018 were based ¢n strong tinancial performance and achigvement
of stretching targets relating to Group adjusted profit before tax, organic
revenug growth, sash conversion and strategic and perscnal objectives
Further mtormation about these incenlive arrangements 1s set oul on
page 71. The Commitiee 18 corfident that the annual ncentive outcomes
which range between 56 8% and 75 0% of maximum, farrly reflect
business and indivdual perfermance in the context of our ongong
challenging operating environment,

2019 marks only the second year of vesting under the IMI Incentive

Plan {1IP") Mark Setway, Roy Twite and Danigl Shock were granted a
performance share award under the [IP in 2016 and the awards will

vest at 29,2% in March 2019,

What decisions were made during the year?

The Committee reviewed the base salary levels for executive directors
taking into account a number of factors including indwvidual performance,
2018 business performance, prevailing economic conditions and wider
circumstances, the Group’s financial performance, and salary increases
for other employees, The Commitiee concluded that an increase of 2.2%
for Roy Twite and Daniel Shook effective 1 January 2019 was appropriate
and in ine with the wider employee workforce The Committee concluded
that Mark Selway would not recewve a base salary increase for 2019.

The Chairman and non-executive director fees were also reviewed and
were increased by 2.2%, with effect from 1 January 2019

Looking forward

Chief Executive, Mark Selway, has given notice to the Board of his wish o
retire Mark will step down as Chief Executive at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting before retiring from the Board on 37 July 2019. Remuneration
arrangements refating to tis retirement will be in line with his service
contract and the shareholder approved remuneration policy In respect of
2019. Mark will te elgible for a pro-rated bonus for time served paid wholly
in cash in accordance with the (IP rules. Full retrospective disclosure of
performance against targets set will be made in the 2019 Annual Report.
All liP deferred bonus share awards will vest in accordance with policy.
Mark wilt not be eligible for a base salary increase or an liP performance
share award in 2019. Taking inlo account Mark’s performance in the five
years he has heen Chief Executive, and his departure baing for reason of
retirement, the Committee have agreed that all outstanding IIP performance
share awards shalf continue to their ordinary vesting date when performance
will be assessed against the targets set and any vesting will be pro-rated.

Roy Twite will succeed Mark Selway as Chief Executive at the 2019 Annual
General Meeting Roy will be appointed on a base salary of £720,000
Addtonally, the pension opportunity for Roy will reduce from the current
level of 35% of base salary to 11%" Roy Twite will participate in the annual
incentive bonus and IIP on the same terms as the previous Chief Execulive,

" In arder 1o abgn with the pension contnibutions of the majonty of the global wokforce

67

Finally, the Committee welcomes the changes intreduced by the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code and updated remuneration reporting regulations
published in the Summer of 2018 Supporting our strategy, promoting
long-term sustainable success, transparency and independent judgment

are already at the core of cur remuneration policy but alongside the Board
ied review of the new Code requirements, the Committee has discussed

at iength the imphicatons for remuneration and taken steps In readiness

for their application from 1 January 2019. | lock forward to reporting next
year on how the Committee has complied with the new Code obligations

Birgit Nergaard
Chair of the Remuneration Committee on
hehalf of the Board

28 February 2019
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Directors’ Remuneratlon Report

IMI plc

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Annual Remuneration

Report

The Remuneration Committee {the “Commitiee”) presents the Directors’
Remuneration Report, which will be put to shareholders for an advisory
(non-binding) vote at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 9 May
2019. The report includes details of the Committee, the pay received
during the year in accordance with our current remmuneration policy as it
was approved on 3 May 2018 and comparative internal and external data.
A copy of the approved directors’ remuneration policy is included in the
2017 annual report which can be found on the IM] website.

The Committee

Compaosition

The mermbers of the Commitiee throughout the year were Birgit Nergaard
(Charr), Carl-Peter Forster, and from 1 July 2018 Thomas Thune Andersen
and Katie Jackson in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code,
all of the non-executive directors are regarded by the Board as ndependent.

Responsibility
The Committee determines the remuneration policy and rewards for the
executwe directors and other members of the Executive Commuittee and the

Chairman The Comrmttee also considers the levels of pay and benefits acress |

the Group. A copy of the Committee's terms of reference. which has been
updated to reflect the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, is included
in the IM| Caorporate Gavernance Framework and availabile on the IMI website.

internal advisers to the Committee

During the year, the Committee consuited the Chief Executive, regarding
the packages of ths other executive directors and semor managers. R also
received support from the Finance Director, the Group Human Resources
Director, the Head of Group Reward and the Company Secretary, whc 15
also secretary to the Committee. None of these individuals were involved
In determining their own remuneration.

External advisers to the Committee

Independent remuneration consuliant, Willis Towers Watson, is formally
appointed by the Committeg and provided advice on executive remuneration
to the Committee in 2018. The Committee noted that the firm are actuanes
and administrators for the IMI Pension Fund. The Committee Is comfortable
that these activities do not represent a canflict of interest and that abjective
and independent advice continues to be received by the Committee from
the dedicated team servicing it at Wilhs Towers Watsoen,

Ouring 2018, Willis Tawers Watson has also supported management on seme
broader reward and human resource matters. The fees charged by Willis
Towers Watson in respect of advice and services to the Committee totalled
£79.594 in 2018. Willis Towers Watson are signatories to the Remuneration
Consuitants' Code of Conduct in the UK,

\
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A summary of the Commlttee s activities
during 2018

Tre Comimitiee had three tormal meetngs dunng the year: atiendance can
be viewed in the table below. The principal agenda tems were as follows

» consideration of sharghalder feedback and engagement wath major shareholders
in relation to the preposed remuneration policy,

» final approval of the new Directors' Remuneration Palicy (‘the Policy') for
subrnission 1o the Annua) General Meeting n May 2018,

» a review of total compensation packages of the executive directors and the most
senior management of the Group as well as a review of workforce remuneration
and related polcies to ensure alignment with IMI's strategic growth plan,

» approval of achievements and outcomes under the incentive plans,
> consideration of the fees for the Chairman,
» setting the framewark and target levels for the 2018 incentive cycle,

» approval of the granting of 2018 share awards to executive directors and cerain
other levels of management including a review of the Total Shareholder Return
comparator group o ensure it remains appropriate,

» review of the performance targets in respect of the 2019 long term incentive
plan awards,

» review of IMI's gender pay gap results for the year ended 5 Apnl 2018
and ensured compliance with legislation (see page 36).

» review of the UK corporate gavernance and regulatory environment
following issuance of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
updated reporiing regulabions,

» review cf the engagement of the Independent remuneration ¢onsultants
to the Committee; and

= reviews of the Commwitee's own performance, constitution and terms of reference.

Attendance
Director Ramuneration % attended whers
Committee meetings eligible
Birgit Norgaard 3 100
Carl-Peter Forster 3 100
Thomas Thune Andersen® 2 100
Katie Jackson’-2 1 50

' Joined the Committee on 1 July 2018
¢ Kabie Jackson had & pror commitment en appomiment which prevented her from aentding
ane of the two mesetings hed since her appointment,
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Meeting voting outcomes

Voting outcome Votes for Votes against Votes withheld
The following table summarises the detalls of votes cast for and
s Diractors B3 1% 10.8% 0 1%
against the 2018 directors’ remuneration policy, and the 2017 i Remuneration
annual remuneration report resolutions along with the number of | Policy 2018
votes withheld. The Committee will conlinue to consider the views of, | Annual 94 6% 5 49 0.7%
and feedback from, shareholders when determining and reporting | Remuneration
0n remuneration arrangements. ; Report 2017
Executive single figure table {audited)
Annual Long-term Other items in the nature
Fixed pay variable pay variable pay of remuneration
(£000) {£000) {£000) {FO00)
All- Diwidend
Taxable Annual incentive 1M Incentive employee share equivalent Totai
Director Base salary Pension benefits bonus Plan (NP} plans payments (£000)
See page Page 70 Page 70 Page 70 Pages 71 to v3 Page 74 Page 75
208 822 247 67 1,232 673 4 2 3,047
Mark Selway
2017 BO1 240 63 1,525 138 5 1 2,773
2018 475 166 30 405 312 4 - 1,392
Roy Twite
2017 463 162 27 541 684 4 - 1,261
2018 43¢ 88 40 409 211 3 - 1,180
Daniel Shook
2017 418 84 39 506 43 3 - 1,083

Roy Twite served on the Board of Halina ple dunng the yoar and receved fees of £65,750 0 respect of this appomtment which he retaned.

These figures have bee

Base salary
Pension,
Taxable benefits

Annual incentive bonus

IMI Incentive Plan (1P}

Share price assuniptions:

n calculated as follows:

the actual salary recevable for the year
the cash allowance paid In lleu of pension

the gross value of alt taxable benehts (or henefits
that would be taxable for a persen tax resident n
the UK) recerved in the year

the value of the annual Incentive payable for
performance n respect of the relevant financial year
(half of this 1s automatically delvered in the form of
deterred bonus share awards when the executive
does not imeel the share ownerstup requiremeri)

the value on vesting of the nil cost options that were
subyect to pedormance conditiians over the three-
year penod ending on 31 December in the relevant
financial year (see share price assumptions below)

for shares vesting in 2019, that related to
performance In the three years to 31 December
2018, the average share price over the final three
months of 2018 (871 20 pence) 1s used to estimate
the value of shares on vesting.

All-employee share plans

Duadenad payments

the value of free shares at award and dividends under
the Employee Share Ownership Plan in the relevant
financial year and the ntrinsic value of Save As You
Earn share options on the date of grant n the relevant
financial year {applying a 10% discount as pennitted
under the Save As You Earn Share Plan),

For the IP an addiional number of chares
proporhonal to the dvidends pad between the date
of the award and the date of vesting are delivered on
the vesting date (no further dividends are accrued
after the vésting date] This applies to both the
performance share awards and deterred bonus share
awards under the HIP, Dmidend eguivalent paymients
anse from unexercised awards under the legacy PSP
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Executive remuneration received in respect of 2018
Base salary

Salarigs effective 1 January 2018 were agreed taking into account a

range of factors including the prevarfing economic condrtions, the financial
performance of the Greup ang comparative salary Increases awarded from
other relevant employee benchmarks. The average increase for employees in
2018 was 3 0%, compared 1o 2 &% for the executive directors, Mark Selway's
and Roy Twite’s salanes were increased by 2 6% to £822.000 and £475,000
respectively, As noted in last year's report, taking into account the progress
made dunng s three year tenure and faling into account relevant financiat
director benchmarks Qanet Shook's salary was increased hy 5.0% effective
1 January 2618 to £439,000.

Pension

The ‘Policy’ reduced the current maximum pension related allowance for new
hires from 30% to 25% of base salary for a Chief Executive and 20% for any
other executive director The Committee considers this to be more closely
aligned with the wider employee pension provision at sericr management
tevel within the Group and comparatile with narms.

Under existing servicé agreements, executive directors received a taxabie
cash aflowance instead of pension benefits Mark Selway receives a cash
allowance of 30% of salary and Daniel Shook receives a cash aflowance
ot 20% of salary. Roy Twite receives a cash allowance of 35% of safary
as a legacy cbligation from his appointment as an executive director in
2007 which continues to be honoured

Pension benefits for past service

Roy Twite was previously an active member of tne definet beneht IMi Pension
Fund. He opted out with effect from 1 February 2007, before he became an
executive director and as a result, he retains past pensicnable service up to
that date in the IMI 2014 Deferred Fund (‘the Fund’).

The key elements of the benefits in the Fund are summarised below

» the normal retiremant age under the Fund is 62 and Roy Twite may retire
from employment with IMI any time after age 60 without actuarial discount.

» on death after retirement, a dependant’s pension Is provided equal to 50%
of the member's pension

» should he die within the first five years of retrement, the dependant’s
pension 1s ingreased to 100% of the member's pension for the remainder
of the five year pericd.

» DENSIONS in payment, in excess of any guaranteed minimum pension, are
increased gach year in ing with price inflation ug to a maximum of 5% in
respact of pension butlt up before 1 January 2006, and 2 5% In respect
of pension built up after 1 January 2006.

Accrued penslon
in the Fund as at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

£000pa £000pa

Accrued pension
in the Fund as at

Roy Twite 74 71
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Benefits
During the year the executive directars received a number of benefits These
are summansed below ana amounts tess than £10,000 p.a are combined.

Mark Selway Roy Twite Daniel Shook

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Non-cash 22 14 13 10 26 21
benefits (EQ00}
Company 20 20 17 17 14 14
car and fuel
allowance (£000)
Allowances and 25 29 - - 4
reimbursement
{E000)
Total 67 63 30 27 40 39

In addition to the above benefits and allowances that are included m the
single figure table (refer to table on page 69), the executive drectors are
also beneficiaries of company policies that have no taxable vaiue, including
drectors’ and officers’ insurance, death in service cover, travel insurance
and personal accident cover
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Annual Incentive Bonus
In setting targets and assessing performance the foliowing process s adopted by the Committee

5. Apply discretion
if required

4, Take account
of wider
circumstances

1. Set performance 2. Set stretching 3. Assess
measures aligned performance performance

with strategy and targets
budget

As per the Policy. the Commitiee reviews and selects performance measures, | 3. Assess performance
targets and ranges annually, which take account of the economic conditions, 2018 has been a year of good progress for IVl despite continued mixed
strategy and the prionties of IM! at the time. economic and markel conditions

» Group adjusted profit before tax increased to £251.2m n 2018 from
£224.1min 2017, representing a 12% increase,

1. Set performance measures aligned with strategy
and budget I
The Committee reviewed and selected performanice measures that were |
fully aligned to the business strategy and the annual budget These i »Cashconversion was 83% in 2018. compared with 92% n 2017,
remain unchanged from prior year. The 2018 annual incentive bonus | » Adjusted Basic EPS increased 12% from 65 3p 10 73 2p,
i

focused on a number of financial metr\cs and non-financial metncs » The total dvidend for the year increased by 3% compared to 201/,
considered central to strategy These included

and
» Group adjusted profit before tax (40%). » Good health and safety performance and delivery of measurable
» Organic revenue growth (20%). | henefits from Lean and other health, safety and environmental
» Cash corwersion (20%), | initiztives,

» Strategic and personal objectives (20%)

There was a health and safety underpin to allow bonuses to be paid
onty when minimum standards werg achieved

4. Take account of wider circumstances

The Committee beligves that the range of measures used to assess
performance of the annual incentive benus ensures that performance
1 assessed using a balanced approach without due focus on a single

2. Set stretching performance targets
9p g metric which could be achieved at the expense of wider intiatives

At the time of setting siretching performance largets the Committee Given the performance noted above and wider operational achievements
considered a range of influencing factors that included the strategic noted the Committee 1s comiortabie that the annual INncentive onus
plan, the annual budget, analysts” forecasts, economic conditions, outcomes represent a fair reward for performance delvered
individuals' areas of responsibilities and the Committee’s expectations

over the relevant period 5. Discretion to override formulaic outcomes and to
The perfermance largel range was established based on the annual apply malus and clawback

budgel, which required true outperformance for Executive Directors Depending on the nature of the measure e.g. health and safety, the

to achieve the maximum The Remuneration Commuttee has a history Committee may exercise judgement in assessing performance and

of setting challenging targets. evidenced by the average Annual Incentive determining the level of achievement The Commitiee has fuil discretion
Plan pay-out aver the previous five years of 59% of the established to override formulaic cutcomes As per the Policy, the Committee also
target maximum has the power 1o operate malus and/or ciawback provisions in the event

that the Company misstaled financial results. The Commuttee also has
the authority to give such permission for recovery of awards in cases cf
serious reputaticnal damage, corporate falure and othér circumstances
No such discretion has been apglied in respect of the financial metric
outcomes 1o the 2018 annual bonus plan awards

+ Group revenue increased to £1,907m n 2018 from £1,751m in 2017,
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Summarised In the table below 1s the achievement against Group targets for Mark Selway and Danie! Shook and & combination of Group adjusted profit
before tax and Dmvisicnal targets for Roy Twite

Director Measure Maximum Performance Targets Actual Actual
opportunity (% of performance’ performance

salary)  Threshold Target Maximum {as % of salary)

Mark Selway  Group adyusted profit befare tax® 80% £211.0m €248 2m CZT30m £257.7m 553%
Group organic revenue growth® 40% £1,713 9m £1,778 5m £1,843 5m £1,844 4m 40 0%

Group cash conversion” 40% 70.7% 83.2% 91.6% 84% 19 7%

Strategic personal objectives 40% See table on page 73 87% 34 8%

200% 149.9%

Caniel Shook  Group profit before tax? 50% £211 0m £248.2m £273.0m £257.7m 34.6%
Group organic revenue growth? 25% £1,713 9m £1,778.5m £1,843 5m £1,844 4m 25.0%

Group cash conversion® 25% T0.74% 83 2% 81.6% 84% 12 3%

Strategic personal objectives 25% See table on page 73 B85% 21 3%

125% 93 2%

Roy Twite Group profit befora tax? 52 5% £211 0m £248.2m £273 0m £257.7m 36 3%
Cisional operating proft” 22 5% £84 1m £99 Om £108 9m £88 7m 3.5%

Divistonal organic revenue® 22 5% £645 9m £672.3m £688 5m £688.6m 18 7%

Diwistonal cash conversion? 22.5% 81 2% 95 5% 105.1% 84% 14%

Strategic personal objectives 30.0% See table on page 73 84% 25.3%

150% Bh 2%

' Actual performance 15 stated at the exchange rates used in the targets.

* Adjusled Group profit before tax, as set out i Section 2 1 1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange and acquisitions

* Growth of organic revenue, as set out n Section 2 1.1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange.

*Thus 15 calculated as management operating cash flow divided by management operating proft at the stated exchange rates used in the targets,
* Management divisional aperatng profit adjusted for the rmpact of foreign exchange

*This is as set out in Secton 2.1 1 page 94, agjusted for the impact of foregn exchange,



Strategic personal objectives

73

As parl of the slralegic growth plan, lhe Commities sets each executive director a number ¢f strategic personal objectives each year Perlormance against these
objectives 1s assessed using a combination of guantitative and qualitative refarence points to ensure a robust assessment process. Mid-way through the year the
executive 15 reviewed against their progress towards achiewing the strategic personal objectives with a full rewiew undertaken by the Committee at the end of the
nerformance period As well as performance against strategic personal obectives the Committes considers the wider performance of the Group. A summary of
the strategic personal abjectives set for 2018 and the performance against them s provided in the table below

Director Strategic personal objectives Commentary

Mark Selway  Strengthen organisatron, Transiion of IMI Hydronie Engmeerng Secured the appomntiment of Phil Chifton as Managing Director of
leadership and strengthen organisational struclure, continue to IMI Hydronic Engineening and strengthened the management team
improve operational performance through Lean with addition of Policy Lean improvements continue to positively impact the performance
Deployment across the Group, and actively sponsor and support the of all areas of the Group and Policy Deployment now embedded
Group's diversiy agenda throughout the organisation Group and Dwvisions actively engaged

with Diversity plans.
Strategic growth: refine acquisition targets aganst clearly defined Acquisition target st i fully devetoped and relationships wath key
and disciplined critena and butld strong relationships with acquisition targets continue to develop. Significant progress made te continue
targets. continue to bulld strong relationships with investors, and to build strong invester relationships with some notable successes
enzure successiul execution of 2018 growth strategies,
Delver projects: strengthen IMI capabilties through enbanced 1T Continued successful rollout of enhanced IT systems in all three
improvement plans, revised go-to-market strategies, new product dvsions and a significant upgrade of the Group's firewall,
portfolios and compeling customer solutions authentication and third party providers completed on time and on
budget Supply chan improvement plans in Precision Engingsring
now fully developed with addional resources embedded across
the regions All three divisions have now established strong sales
and marketing plans to support go-to-market straleges.

Daniel Shook  Strengthen finance organisation, execute strong succossion Strong succession planning in place at senior levels, with robust
plannng, rebust transition arrangements with clear visicity of transition plans established across the organisation  Divsional audit
resources and capabilites around the Group, support the teams’ controls processes further enhanced through best practice
achievement of best practice documentation for the divisional audit decumentation processes Inventory and fixed assets controls
teams and deliver agreed outcomes for Group Finance Control, processeas further enhanced, Strong performance from treasury
Treasury and Tax and tax functions,

Deliver projects: strengthen tMI capabilities through enhanced Suceesstul delivery of IT projects nchiding ERF, Secunty

IT mprovement plans e.g ERP, IT IoT advancements, desktop Enhancement Programme and loT advancement, ensuring that

collaboration standards, and the secunty enhancement programme dvtsions continue to effectivdy dovelop foc usod inbiatives to
advance IMI's connected products.

Roy Twite Strengthen division: deliver rabonalisation projects in ine with the Rationalsation projects delivered on time and on budget in ine with

approved business cases, further enhance team diversity when
opportunities anse, improve Lean scores by the end of the year,
collaborate with other Dnisional Managing Directors to drive
growth and technology agenda, and bulld strong retationships
with acquisition targets.

Deliver projects: develop plan to support continued margin
growth in 2019, deliver 2018 ERP milestenes, and develop
artificial inteligence strategy

aoproved business cases. All dwisional diversity targets (including
recruitment ‘argets) met Lean scores across the Grtical Engineerng
divisior have increased signficantly to an average 4% frors 70%
N 2017, Strong relatiorships have been developad w th key
acquisitor targets

Scenartic plans have been developed to support budgsted margin
growlh in 2019, New ERP installations delivered on time and on
hudget New artifiial inteligence strategy now fully developed to
support growth agenda

Based on the performance described above, the annual incentive bonus putcomes for 2018 are set oul below:

Total bonus
awarded

Total bonus
awarded (£000)

2018 maximum
bonus opportunity

Achievement of share
ownership guidelines

Bonus delivered
in form of share

Bonus delivered
in form of cash

{% of salary) {% of salary) at 31 Dec 2018’ (£000) awards (E000)
Mark Selway 200% 1.232 149 9% 114°% 616 616
Roy Twite 150% 4058 85 2% 253% 405
Daniel Shook 125% 408 93 2% 65% 204.5 2045

Delalls of the share ownership guidelines for Mark Selway Roy Twite and Damel Shook can be found on page 74
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In March 2016, performance share awards were made to the executive directars under the (IP The vesting of the awards was subject to the achievement of
three ndependent performance condmons as descnbed below, measured over the res-years endmg 31 December 2018 The 2016 #P award wll vestin |

March 2019 at 29 2% of maximum

Initial award Value on date of Number of initial Additional dmdend Total shares  Value of shares on

award (EQ00) shares vesting equivalent shares vesting vesting? (E00D)

Mark Selway 213007 1,962 62,198 7152 69.350 673
Roy Twite 98,553 aos 28,777 3,309 32.086 312 !

Daniel Shook 66,751 615 19,491 2,241 21,732 211

" The three day average nug-market price on the date of award was 921 33 pence

" The price on westing s unknown at this tme and so the total number of shares vesting 1 valued at the average price over the last quarter of 2018 971 20 pence),

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

25% of the award was subject to the achievement of ROCE This measure is defined
as segmental operating profit as a percentage of the capital employed during the
{inancial year ended 31 ODecember 2018 Capuital employed being Intangtbie Assets \
{excluding Acquired Intangibles and Geodwill}, Property Plant and Equipment and
Working capital. it compares the earnings of the Company with the camital mvested, \
ROCE was chosen as a measure as it represents how well the Company has used

ils investmen made by shareholders and capital from Crediors 10 generate a profit,

The partion of the share award that will vast related to ROCE depends on ROCE inthe
final year of the performance penod For ROCE of loss than 40% no award under this
element will vest, 25% of the award will vest for ROCE of 40%, nsing on a straight-line
basts 1o full vesting for ROGE employed of 50% At the énd of the performance pencd
return on capital employed was 38.4% resuling in tis element vesting al nil,

Total Shareholder Return {TSR)

25% of the award was subject to the achievement of a relative 1SR performance
measure aganst a defined group of companigs adjusted dunng the performance penod
to take account of merger and acquistion activity during the performance: penod in ing
with the Committee’s estabhshed guidelines. TSR is defined as the movement in share
price during the performance period, measuced in local cusrency, with adjustment to
take account of changes in capital structure and dwidends, which are assumed to be
reinvestad i shares on the ex-dividend date, TER was chosen as a measwe as itis

an external, relative benchmark for performance that aligns executives’ rewards with
tne creation of shareholder vatue.

The pottion of the award that wall vest relatad to TSR depands on where Wl ranks

in the comparator group. For a TSR rank that 1s betow median, no award under this
element will vest 25% of the award will vest for median 13R, rising on a straight-ing
basis 1o full vesting for upper quartile TSR. At the end of the three-year performance
petiod, the Company ranked in the lowsr quartie of the peer group, The resuitant
vesting outcorne for this element of the award is nil.

Group adjusted profit before tax growth

50% of the award was subject to the achievement of the Group adwsted profit before
1ax growth mzasure This measyre is defined as the profit before tax before adjusted
items as shown in the audited accounts of the Group, adjusted to reflect changes

in the Company's capital structure and any adiusted items, at the Remuneration
Committee’s discretion.

Adjusted profit before lax growth s a key measure for IMI as it gives an indication of
the strength of the Company's financial perfarmance and shows the amount available
to renvest into the business, and pay a retum to shareholders through dividends.

For growth of less than 2.5% per annum, no award ender this sfement will vest

25% of the award will vest for growth of 2.5% per annum rising on a straight-ling
basis to full vesting tor growth of 7 5% per annum.

Over the three year performance penod ending 31 December 2018 IMI delivered

- a compound annual growth rate of 4.7%. The resultant vesting outcome for thrs
} element of the award s 29.2%

Deferred bonus share awards

In March 2016, deferrad bonus share awards wece alsg made under the (P which
vest in March 2019 These are the form of share award used for mandatory bonus
deferral into shares of up (6 50% of annual bonus payabie where the executive
director is yet to reach their shareholding guideline,

Discretion to override formulaic outcomes and to
apply malus and clawback

The Cornmittes has the discredon to override formulaic outcormes and may
apply discretion 1o adjust the number of shares which would otherwise vest to
effect recovery in circumstances where it sees fit, and it has tha authority to
give permission for recovery of awards in cases of serious reputaticnal damage,
corporate failurg and other circumstances. No such discretion has heen applied
to the 2016 IIP award gutcome for executive directors

Share ownership guideline

It1s a requirement of remuneration policy that executive directors are subject to
guidelines which require them to buitd a sharehelding in IMI worth at ieast 250%
of salary for Mark Sehwvay, 150% of salary for Daniel Shock and 200% of salary
for Roy Twite. The Policy permits the Commitiee discretion to determing that 50%
of any annual bonus eamed 15 deferred inte shares until the share ownership
guideling 1s achisved together with 50% of any vestad share awards, Each
executive 15 then required to maintain trug share ownerstup guideling (subject to
allowances for share price fluctuations and ¢hanges in base salary thereafter)
When assessing compliance with this guidehne the Committee reviews hoth the
level of bensficial share ownership and vested but unexercised share incentive
awards on a post-tax basis. Although Mark Seiway and Daniet Shook centinue

to make progress towards this guideling, and have a matenal intergst in the
Company’s shares, the Committee has determined that half of the annual honus
payable to Mark Selway and Danfel Shook as outlined on page 73 will be delivered
int the form of deferred bonus share awards which must be held for a period of at
least three years and until the share ownership guideline has been med. Further,
the Committee has determined that half of the performance share awards made to
Mark Selway and Daniel Shook in Marct 2016 and due ta vest in March 2019 must
also be retained until such time as the share ownership requirement 1s met. Al the
end of the year Roy Twite significantly excesded the share ownership guideling.
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Share interests granted to executive directors during 2018 {audited) 2
o
Grants made under the lIP * The following performance share award grants were approved and made §
o
Performance share award grants under the IP were made on 12 March 20181n = 1N 2018 -
the form of nil-cost options. Awards are due to vest on 12 March 2021, subject | WP < val aat Award
. _ | shares alue on date ward as a
to performance in three core areas aligned to our longer-term strategic priorties ‘ awarded of award' percentage of
ROCE (25%), refative TSR (25%) and Group adjusted profit before tax (50%). {E000) salary
The performance targets and vesting scale that apply te the 2018 HP awards Mark Selway 181.644 2,055 250%
are as follows ‘ Roy Twite 83,971 950 200%
| Daniel Shook 58,205 658 150°% @
ROCE  Relative TSR Group Levelof | Rl
adjusted vesting | The three day average mid-market price on the date of award was 1 131 33 pence, &
profit before %
tax growth' The [IP 15 also used to grant deferred bonus awards exercisable after 2
Threshold 46% Median 25% 25% three years to satisfy bonuses dalivered in the form of shares Datails of z
Maximum 50%  Upper quartile 755 100% , these addmonal IP awards made in 2018 are shown In the table on page
Weighting 950 250, 505, _ 77 under the 'without performance cenditions’ column No performance

conditions apply 1o these awards.
Annughsed Compound Anrual Growth Rate over 3 yoars

|
Further details of the above performance targets can be found in the awards |
vesting under the [IP seciion on page 74 |
For share awards granted in 2018 the TSR group included 17 companies to ensure complete alignment with our peers and companson to companies with
similar products. customers and global spread, The 2018 peer group includes the fellowing companies and these have been adjusted 1o take into account
merger and acquisition actmty during the performance period in ing with the Committee’s guidelines
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TSR comparator group companies

1 ArTAC 7 Ingersoll-Rand 13. SMC

2 Belmo 8 ITT 14, Srniths Group Y

3. Curtiss-Wright 9 Morgan Advanced Matenals 15, Spectns §

4. Ealon 10 Parker-Hanain 16 8PX %

5. Emerson Electnc 11 Rockwell Automation 17 Wer %

6 Flowserve 12 Rotork §
&

GKN has been removed from the TSR comparator group followng s acausition by Metrose Industzies PLC i May 2018

All-employee share plans
Executive directors are eligible to participate in the all-employee share plans on the same terms as other eligible employees at IMI. in 2018, Mark Selway.
Roy Twite and Daniel Shook receved free share awards under the Employee Share Ownership Plan.

All Employee Share Ownership Plan SAYE
Number of shares Value of free Number of options Value of BAYE Total value undger the
awarded share award awarded options Dividends all-employee share
(FO00) (£000) (E£000) plans {£000)
2018 336 4 - - - 4
Mark Selway
2017 278 4 813 1 - 5
2018 336 4 - - - 4
Roy Twite
2017 278 4 - - - 4
2ms 304 3 - - - 3
Daniel Shook
2017 235 3 - - 3

'l 2018 free shares were awarded at a share price of 1,071 00 panea (1,292.00 pence i 2017)
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Payments to past directors (audited)
it s the Committee’s intenbion o disclose any payments to past dwecions, meluting the vesting of share-based awards post departure on a basis consistent
with the continuing executive directors There were no payments to past directors during the year

Chairman's and non-executive directors’ single figure table (audited}

The following table summarises the total fees and benefits paid to the Charman and non-executive directers in respect of the financial years ending
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017

Director 2018 (£000) 2017 (£000)

Base fees Additional Taxable Total Base fees Additional Taxable Total

foes benelts? fees benefits’

Lord Smith of Kelvin 320 - 5 325 312 - 5 317
Carl-Peter Forster* 64 11 8 83 62 1 3 86
Birgit Nergaard® 541 16 8 88 62 1 8 71
Robert Stack’ - - - - 632 26 3 e
Ross Mcinnes?® - - - - 47 12 5 54
Isobel Sharp? 64 16 5 85 (¥4 4 2 68
Thomas Thune Andersen® a2 - 5 37 - - - -
Katle Jackson® 32 - 1 33 - - - -

" Includes fees for bewng Char of the Remuneration Committee and Semwor Indepsndent Owector unty 7 December 2017
+ Incluces fee for being Char of the Audit Comnattee
Restgned as Director effective 30 September 2017
* Incliades fee for Seror Independent Director effective from 11 December 2017
tncludes fee for being Chair of the Remunerauen Commatee cifechive from 11 December 7017,
¢ Pro-rata fee from date of appointment on 1 July 2018
* Taxable benefits nchudes travel and hotel expenses plus tax costs asseciated with Board meetings held at IMI HQ



Directors’ shareholdings and share interests {audited) ;3;
The followang table summarises the share interests of any director who served duning the year as at 31 December 2018 or at the date of leaving the Board g
Duning the period 31 December 2018 to 28 February 2019 there were no changes in the interests of any current directer from those shown save for E
purchases within the [MI All Employee Share Ownership Plan on 8 January 2019 of 13 shares each on behalf of Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Damiel Shock at
985 00 pence per share, and 12 February 2019 of 13 shares on behalf of each of Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Dansel Shook at 963.50 pence per share
Director Total Beneficial Scheme interests
Intarests interests Nil-cost options All-employee
With performance conditions Without performance conditions share plans 5
Unvested' Vested but Unvested Vested but &
unexercised unexercised o
Mark Selway TH4,787 9,900 593,573 15,271 139 5&1 24,334 2.128 %
Roy Twite 405,316 123 107 271,514 - - - 7.605
Damigl Shook 211,524 7507 187 205 - 45,424 - 1,208
Lord Smith of Kelvin 14 300 14,310 - - - - -
Carl-Peter Forster 2,625 2,625 - - - - -
Birgit Norgaard 2.625 2,625 - - - - -
Isobel Sharp 3,000 3,000 - - - - -
Thomas Thune Andersen 2625 2,625 - - - - -
Katie Jackson 2,618 2,618 - - - - -

' Vesting dates of share awards are shown in Sechion 4 11 on page 130
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Relative importance of spend on pay
The following information 1s intended to provide additional context regarding
the total remuneration for execuiive directors.

2018 2017 Change |
{£m} {€m}
Dividends 1079 106.5 2% |
Total employment costs for Group 615.8 5787 6% |

{see Section 2.1.3.1 on page 97}

In 2018, the total dividend for the year of 40 8 pence represented an Increase
of 3% over last year's 39.4 pence

Relative percentage change in remuneration for
Chief Executive

The Commmitiee achively considers any increases in base pay for the Chiet
Executive relative to the broader IMI employee population. Benefits and bonus
payments are not typically comparable given they are driven by a broad
range of factars such as geographical persuasion, facal practices, elgitildy,
individual circumstances and role

Chief Executive Employees’
Base salary 26% 3%
Benefits 8% 4%
Annual bonus -19% -24%

' AllUK head office employees This companison excludes our international workforce which
we believe would not provide a true comparison given differing local market factors

The following table summanses the total remuneration for the Chief Executive over t
a percentage of maximum.

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Historical performance and remuneration

In additton to considering executive remuneration In the context of mnternal
compariscns, the Committee reviews historical outcomes under the variable
pay plans.

The graph below compares IMI's total sharehotder refurn (TSR) to the
FTSE100 over the last ten years, We compare performance to the FTSE100
as Wi has bean included in the Index in the past and 1t 1s a positon where Mt
aspires 10 be. TSR measures the returns that a company has provided for its
sharehelders, reflecting share price movements and assuming remvestment
of dwidends {source DataStream). with data averaged over the final 30 days
of each finangial year As the graph below illustrates IMI's absclute and
relative TSR performance has been strong over the last ten years.

Value of a hypothetical £100 investment
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he last ten years, and the outcomes of short and long-term incentive plans as

Financial year-ended 31 Dacember 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 20142 20152 2016° 20177 20
Total remuneration {single figure, £000) 2,547 4,439 12,289 7,954 5,888 1,567 1667 1.901° 2,773 3,047
Annuai variable pay (% of maximym) 91% 95% 85% 47% G2% 36% 40% 50% 95% 76%
Long-term variable pay (% of maximum) B4% 97% 95% 100% 10Q% - - - - -
- Share Matching Plan

Long-term variable pay (% of maximum) 45% 100% 100% 100% 82.6% - - 35% - -
- Performance Share Plan

Lang-term variable pay (% of maximum} - - - - - - - - 8.55% 29 2%

- IM! Incentive Plan

! Represents remuneration for Martin Lamb who was Chief Executive from before 2009 until 31 December 2013,

< Represents remuneration for Mark Selway who was appomted Chiel Executive on 1 January 2014



Application of the Policy in 2019
Executive director fixed pay

Mark Selway will retire from the Board effective 31 July 2019 and will not
receive a base salary increase for 2019, Mark wall receive a payment in
lieu of notice, representing two menths’ basic salary. Roy Twile 1s appointed
Chief Executive from the conclusion of the 2019 Annual General Meeting
from which date his salary will increase tg £720,000

The base salary for the Finance Director was increased by 2.2% consistent
with the average increase for 2019 awarded to employees

To align with the pension contributions of the majority of the global
wiorkforce. the pension opportunity for Roy Twite will be reduced from the
current level of 35% of salary to 11% from the date of his appontment
as Chief Executive.

Incentive pay

Annual bonus
In accordance with the Policy, the annual bonus plan wall e operated
as follows in 2019

» As i 2018, the 2019 maximum bonus opportunity 13 set at 200% of
salary for Mark Selway and wilt be pro-rated for time served and paid
wholly n cash.

» Roy Twite will be eligible for a maximum bonus epportunity of 200%
as Chief Executive and pro-rated in respect of 2019, The maximum
banus opportunity for Daniel Shook is 125%

» Target bonus 15 set at 50% of maximum bonus opportunity

» Ag In 2018, the annual bonus for Mark Selway and Daniel Shook will
he subject to performance in Group adjusted profit before tax (40%),
organic revenue {20%j, cash conversion (20%) and strateqic and personal
objectives {20%) Health and safety will serve as an underpin to ensure
bonuses are only gaid out when minimum standards are achieved.

» Asin 2018, the annual bonus for the Chiel Executive (both outgoing
and incoming} and Finance Director will be subject to performance n
Group adjusted profit before tax (35%). IMI Cntical Engingering operating
profit {15%), IMI Critical Engineening organic revenue (15%j, IME Critical
Engineering cash conversion (15%) and strategic and parsonal
objectives (20%)

» The Committee has determined that the targets associated with the
performance measures will be disclosed retrospectively on the same
basis and o the same extent as for 2018 targels (see annual bonus
metrics table on page 72).

9

Performance share awards under the |IP
In accordance with the new remuneration policy, the IP will be operated
as follows n 2019

» No award to be made to Mark Selway in 2018,

» As Chief Executive, Roy Twite will be elgible for a maximum opportunity
of 250% of salary. The maximum opportunity for Daniel Shook will be
set at 150%

» Awards will vest subject 1o perfermance in three core areas ahgned to
our longer-term strategic prionties' ROCE (25%), relative TSR (25%)
and Group adjusted profit before tax growth (50%)

= Awards will be subyect to a two year post-vesting holding period extending
tne total time horizon to five years As per the Policy vested awards which
are subject 1o a holding period will not narmally be forfeited on termination
and the holding period will continue to apply to such awards {although
the Committee may release awards early from the helding period in
approprate cases)

» The performance targets that will apply to the 2019 IIP awards are as follows

ROCE Relative Group Level of
TSR adjusted vesting
profit before
tax growth®
Threshold 40% Median 2.5% 25%
Maximum 50% Upper 7 5% 100%
quarhie
Weighting 25% 25% 50U%s

' Annualised Compound Annual Growth Rate over 3 years

Service contracts
The unexpired terms of the non-executive directors' service contracts can
te reviewed in the Board's Corporate Governance Report on page 55.

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors

. The Chairman and nen-executive directors’ remuneration increased by
" 2.2%, with effect from 1 January 2019. This 1s in line with the executive

directors and compares with an 3 0% Increase acress the wider workforce.

Birgit Nergaard
Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee
for and on behalf of the Board

28 February 2019
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I;inancial Stéiements "
Finance Director’s Introduction

Introduction from Daniel Shook
Dear Sharshoider,

Welcome to the financial statements section of our Annual Report.

My financial review commentary 1s set out in this section alongside the primary statements. These financial statements are
presented with the pnmary statements first, followed by five sections: 'Basts of preparation’, 'Results for the year’, 'Operating
assets and habilities’, ‘Capital structure and financing costs’ and ‘Other notes'.

Despite mixed market conditions, IMI defivered solid results for the year, with revenue, profits and operating cash flow all
growing in 2018,

The company has further mitigated 1he nsks associated with the defined benefit pension schemes through the buy-out of
£409m of liabilties during the year. IMI continues to improve its overall control environment and nsk management procedures
in 2018 through the implementation of a co-sourcing model for internal audits between Group Assurance and the dvisions.

In 2018 IMI completed the acquisition of Bmba Manufacturing Company, which 1s contnibuting in line with expectations.

Daniel Shook
Finance Director

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information required by statute, accounting standards or the Listing Rules
to explain a particular feature of the financial statements. The notes that follow will also provide explanations and additional
disclosure to assist readers’ understanding and interpretation of the Annual Report and the financial statemenits.
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|
2018 ‘ 2017
Adjusting | Agjusting
Adjusted items Stattory | Agusted tems Statutory
Notes £m £m £m I €rm £m £m
Revenue 21 1,907 1,907 1731 1.75%
Scgmental operaling proit 21 266.3 266.3 . 240 ¢ 2409
|
Raversal of net cconomic hedge contract 105505 1gairs 224 1.9 1.9/ 09 (23
Reastriuctinm g « 001y 221 (0.8) (12.4) {13.2) n" 134 61 136 3,
Getrrie wn sped lal pen Lt evetits, P 6.8 6.8 108 104
Azaured tangibie amortis=t o and other aeqesihion tams 225 (28.8) {28.8) (195 1195,
Gary {5 OrHsposal of subskliares 223 0.6 0.6 te JI 23
Gan o disposal of propertios, Y0 3.2 3.2 - -
lgip e et fos o - 227 (2.0} (2.0 -
Inciiect taxes Ansng On 1ecrganisation 248 (3.2} (3.2)
Operating profit 265.5 (33.9) 231.6 2392 16 5) 9L T
Finan wl ne onie 13 5.8 16.1 21.9 | 6565 126 181)
i
Finanoial expense 43 (18.7) (20.5) (39.2) {19 8 1924 290,
Net inancial expense relating to defined benett pen-inn ser omes 4923 {149 (1.4) 0y 8} s,
Net lnanciad expen. e Al 4.3) _ a9 _‘1_@:7)_& 115 13 33 (AR -1
Profit before tax 251.2 (38.3) 212.9 2041 133 2 18009
Taxation 2456 (52.8) .93 _ 435)| (1) 15 (35 &
Profit from continuing operations after tax 198.4 {29.0) 169.4 1770 317 1453
Protit o dhacontinueo opsrations atler 1ax 2h - - 1689 1549
Totai profit for the year 198.4 (29.0} 169.4 1770 115.8) gz e
Attnbutable to: :
Ownors af the paent 198.4 169.4 1rp O ‘621
Non-contiofing interests i 01 01
Profit for the year 198.4 169.4 1770 162 2
Earnings per share 23
Basic - fram proft tor tho year 62.5p 59 8p
Dluted - from profit for the vea 62.4p 59 7p
Basic - from contnuing operahons 62.5p 53 6p
Diluted - rom contit uing operations 62.4p | 53 5p
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Results summary
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
. m £m £m £m
Profit for the year 169.4 RESe
ltems that may be reclassified to profit and loss
Change ntan value of erfect ve net niestment edge denvat ves 1.9 3.4
Exchar ge differerces on tarulation of orelgn operations « 6t of hedye settien and- and funding revaluaions (4.5) 11
Fait v alue gan flossy o avaldable for 2ale bnan, i as o' 0.2 0&
Related tax effoct on tenes that miay, subeequently, ho roclassitod 1o profit ard loss (0.3) [{935)]
o @7 B
ltemns that will not subsequently be reclassified to profit and loss
Re-measuremen: guite{foss on defined benent plans 1.6 {12.3)
Far value loss on equiy mstrarments nob teld for trace g (9.8)
Related taxation etfeot (3.5) 17
Lffer b of taxator rate ¢ harge on proviously re g o tee - 0.5
1.7 (109,
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of taxation (4.4) 193
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year, net of taxation 165.0 t42 9
Attnbutable to:
Cuvniee 2 of tha parent 165.0 128
Non-controfiing interests l i1
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of taxation 165.0 | “429

Finance Director’s commentary on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity

Movermnents in shareholders’ equity
Shatgholders’ equity at the end of 2018 was £866m (2017 £607m) Movernenls
n shareholders” equity can be split into three ¢ ategornss

» the profit for the year allnutabie (o the equity sharehclders of £168m (2017
£162m) This 15 discussed N the commentary to the income statement

* other comprehensive Income movements in the year decreased sharcholders’
equty by £4m (2017 £19m deciease). “hese are discussed helow.

= movements laken direddly to eguity n the year reduced shaicholders oguily
by £108m (2017 C79m}) These are discussed overleaf

Other comprehensive income

When the Group makes unrealsed gans of leaoes onassets arad babditics,
nstead of beiny recurded n the ncome stalemord, they are credited or
chiatgad 1o rosenves and recorded in i stalement of comprehensive g ome
I avcordance with the arnendment W IAS 1, these Loms are allocaled belween
those lems that have been reclasohied 10 1he nicorme statement, thowe thal may
bic reclassified to the meoime stalement and those tems thal will 1ot subseqguentty
be rec lasshed to he neorne stalermend

Any nel nivestment hedge detvalives which have not been settled by the
yeat-end are marked to maiket on the balance sheet al the yeat-end and the
movements are recorded in the hedgnyg teserve This movement s dlso ncluded
In other comprenersive Income and ir 2018, amotinted to o gan o $2m 2017
£3m) ncludding the relaled taxation effect

Tne Group's foreign denominated net assets are b anslatod mto sterling using
exchange rates pravailing at the year-ond  To the extent that these differ rom the
rates used at the previous year-end to tranglate net assets at that date and trom
the average exchange rate used to translate foregn denommnated ncomie during
the year a difference on reserves anses, which s included m other comprehenisive
N ome, along with the settlement of net nvestment hedge dervatves and
revaluations of foreign deat, which are used to protect the Group from this
exposure These tems (Including the relatedt taxaton effectl amounted to a

loss of £8m in 2018 (2017 ©11m loss).

Actuanal imovernents in the Group's detined benetit penson obhgations are also
ret ortdedd nother comprehenisive ncwme These movements are explaned
detal n Section 4 9 on page 122 Together with Ihe taxalion eflecl, the gan

N thie year was C8m (2017 C111dous)




Consolidated statement of changes

a7

in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Share Captal Total Non-
Snare PIEMIAT redernption Hedging Translation Retlared parenl controlng Total
capntal acLount resenve FOLOTVE reLrve eanngs cyuty iErests equity
m £rm £m om om fm Emo i £m
Asdat 1 Janaary 201, ol 8 121 1541 110Gy w8 =33 7 SRR 400 ofs =
Profit o the yeor 1621 1623 L 1%z
Ol wuanprchens ree 1 Lome texoens ) gl R RERRST Yy [ARERGI]
Total cwapenr enuive fgome e expen Je) 119 e ERI ) S| g
fs202 of sliae ¢apral - 06 b UG
Daerd pead 1105 5y 1105 5 uh o
Stgre-th-ed payirents { e of tax, [=30] 83,0 80
Sharess aroured L
amploves srare <0 eme st 12 2T 27
Deocogit o at inrerest 0 IMI S ottah
Lrritess Parmngre by 213 2104 ‘39 3¢ 118 0y
Dorzeogneter o mrese tm IMEGCESPLT inos W 10 & oL
Ag @t 3Y Decembe 2017 ol 8 127 1744 0 295 NiAn [EHO - 1R |
Changes in equity in 2018
Profit for the year 169.4 169.4 169.4
Gther comprehensive iIncome/{expense) 1.8 {4.5) {1.7) (4.4} (4.4)
Total comprehensive iIncome/(expense} 1.8 {4.5) 167.7 165.0 - 165.0
Issue of share capital - 0.6 0.6 0.6
Dividends paid (107.9} (107.9) (107.9)
Share-based payments (net of tax) 7.0 7.0 7.0
Shares acquired for:
employee share scheme trust 5.9) ﬂ o (5.9)
As at 31 December 2018 81.8 13.3 174.4 28 25.3 368.6 666.2 - | 666.2

Uk adoption oF IFRS 9 an edrelen vas macke 1o desagoade oy exteroal invesinien
held uo not for radnig b o L value ol 810000 The tar vale of the nsestrient has
b6t fnssid by reandgeme it on 31 Decer bt 2018 ronoding in oo panment
otallng ©10m baing res og used N othar ¢ omarehengyve ne oime

ltems recognised directly in equity

NMercetnenls itvaserves shicr repre-eol e aosa i o vith Jis shareholoer - o
th & Groap v recogmed ditec o sqoty rather thanom theancome stalement
nr e edher ~oinprenct e ne o e

O b 2017 001 Shearon w1 1o trecd Jduningg I Coyoar realangg SO B2t
SOomire the -hoare ol s =F are preman acconns

The 201 tinal tivioenor of 205 21 per Chare ancd e 2018 nlenm dvidend of 11 0p)
pet Shdre yeere nald durog the year ta17 2010 nal de wdend o 23 Tpraned 207
rern choedend of 14 213 s D oredduc e ety by $10Rm 120717 L0

The credit for chair-b aed poymes U webicbores e the TR 201 Sarmn
thargea e tgbetbes rw cnries < fatorent 10 e e or herehsy deternng the redue o
s nndl oo b ler e cn b et e are e o s koo o capseed e e

Together sebtb e gl thie ey aobg el S m b ool G201 ul

The ¢ hergges tGoeser s relsting 1o the sucDane of sluarts Dy the empiboyeo Irsg
b sedinly shiare options net of amaounts recened fron en ployeess represe tirg
e PIce on exercine for hose oplios s was FOm 2077 7300 chargel rofer o
Sec ot A 10 for more: infosnatien

Derecognition of minority interest

Qe 31 sarniary 2017 the teane of the condibional ent flenent for the IMI 2074
Defetred and Perooner Funcds 1o e e oo of 9 A per annirm frionm
the Cwong s wis dered The reaultoii e the Seottisbe e el Portnes s and
4 ab 00 el non contolling mtereat bepeg detecogrisend from e Groog o
balanee sheset froen thies ool

Oy 2 e nibics 20T e e Growys e guirecd the poranig 300 of Shan holuing
e Stahal GO Poser Dot Equpment Co Dinite d 7 €1 1me “olloss g 1l

tran o b ansocded rnonty mheree U s Aercc pegnned trom the Group

Bralane o - hiect fronr . ouste
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2018 2047

el L Notes £m £m
Assels
Intangbsle assets 32 606.7 SR 0
Propetty, plant and eqgopment 33 284.4 2704
Emplovee benefit assott 48 27.8 57
Deferred tax assels 247 17.0 279
Other roe ervabiles 3.2 42
Total non-current assets 939.1 5102
rventuties 311 272.5 ) 2513
Tiade ano other recelvable 312 450.3 | T
Other ¢ urrent fin-ecral asset - 47 1.0 ‘ 41
Cuttent tax 4.0 83
Investrients A7 3.7 138
Cash and ¢a.h equivakents 11 132.2 96 £y
Total current assets ’ gé?? 1 7949
Total assets 1,802.8 605
Liabilities
Banlc o verdraft 41 (82.6) (310
Intew cot-bearing lGans and borrowangs a4z (78.8) 13 &
Prov s ons 36 (12.5) 19 21
Current tax (62.5) (SARell
Tracls ane other Payables 313 (390.9) 116 5
Otner current financial labihtes 47 {4.0)! 39
Total current habilities ) _@31342:\ 045 4
Intarest-beanng loans and Lonowngs 42 (375.3), 219G,
Enmployee benett oblgahons 48 {80.1) (83 6.
Poovis ons 36 {14.6) {154
Deforred tax llabilities 247 {29.8) (27 7
Olher payables 313 (5.5) b &
Total non-current habilitres 7&33_)- (352 3
Total liabilties " {1,136.6)] 997.7)
Net assets " 666.2 BT 4
Equity
Shara capntat 1101 81.8 A1 R
Share premium 1331 127
Other reserves 202.5 205 2
Retamed earnings 368.6 307 7
Equtty attributable to owners of the parent 666.2 o07 4
Total equity " 666.2 607 1

Apraved by the Board of Drector on 28 February 2019 and signed oo s behall by

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Charman
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Finance Director’s commentary on
the consolidated balance sheet

Net debt

Neld=ht ol the yer-e @ way V=G cor poned o § zhbn el the end of fhe
prreslouls yaar reilso g tng e spd sibes 00 B ba dun g the v e nier debid
oo oS 07 H eaTh RAlaNCs of TRE2m 207 S0, a bunh overdraT of
1837 2097 U35 crul vlar st Leanng loar. woad tuerce oo o0 £4040
{201 LE3an

The yoar ond net dubst to EBITDA vy was 3 3 ime 2017 a2 & e st bazed
Of cormtin eny cdecled EBITDA A the onvd ot 2005 T notes totalloa 7 130m
AT 3z et s eoghde e age e ot G 2 ve s 2010 5 B yoary,
Al e [oar s e Laed g nank overdoets e llod SEan I T Sl Totdl
corrmitteet cant Lran tag e eealabile o the Groapr ot 0 o year ored veste

R oTeTa s

SR 20T YaUlma o s b sl izt T Sraloweat deaan

Intangible assets
The oo ot Gre g st wgibde o 70 e can st TLO ar ab Y Tererinne
O (2017 THOCNT T e ease LS o Lo e e 00 N ~fan J.n(}l:le

vt folloaneg e Brnba o st oo ano athe i lonon - e nd gl Ao assd s
o V20t T VD e il otset By the ot sation charg o tor the pta

QECE NS T PTG anparinent of e
frenves g raoveor et gr PE2nnehe T

TPl and an e ge sE arainy

e 10as

Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’}

The ne boak vyl e ot =9 Grongyy FRE af 31 Scocember 27570 ran 1284 -
BT P27 0y Copatal s ol ore o FRE g ated 10 £300 0 201Y B am,
wth capital oxger difore tocuacd Dooneod prodll Tnes Bohn US and anow
Incuar s facton . 1 =rec s Engmeete e, i ag < apt sheod nitang ble assots
iGtal Lapdal Capeneitore feas Folng 201 ST0mypandweos 1 e es 200 1 5
tmicsd the oeprecat civa oo ator s borae s ng ascoorcd o targ ble
arnortinations o e vear of V55 01T e

Working caprtal

The Grougs s trade: ard O ner recen abdos neraasect b, D320 chinneg e v car
et foregn oxc b ange moverns it - of SN bading mereenent s of C8m
s an e bt e ot Y1 folloean g e Biroced wguie hion,

The Group's wendory ncreased by § 29 m dunng the year due to troong
o= et o SO offeat by oot rease ollove iy the Bimbea acy austion

The Growg s trade aned om0 payablos decred,ed by 82700 due to foroign
exchiange movenents of § 10 a0 d g ncrease of C10m fallo s ng ioe Bimba
acequia tion offset by trading r uyerments of P47

Theswerkoniey ©aptal o sah mcse nent cirng e e are d <oy sevniney one
dedal nhe rerrat e pposee the <o ol daleo e a boflow tatemen

Taxation

The current o one of dee peas “en o 320 120 Ui e thie Grons o ot aedd
torec eor tacdebror 2018 The crereet o bty neroa ed - ogatly 1o
T (P17 0Ghin

Doterred Ly asc et . dscreased Ly, Cdm o T17m02007 F21p aned ddztsred
toas Btalitier aw rmaved by T2 dunr g the year 1o 750m 20017 F2Rmy The
sigrlicar mogements net of the effect of foge exclunge rovements, relate
to the de’erred Laxcren oy & 4 iespect of pesaon e ds che effec e of the
arniorhsahion OF 1 ang b c sl o e s onecel Lox losses More analzs
b [her et o macenend o b year i shessr i Secbo 2 4

Pensions

The Grougn ax BY 2017 09 denncad Bonhiett obflgabon, 1 eRi-e 0o as at
31 Decormber 2018 The Group soooank os Twrg s a Bnding and mvee-tnierni
sl athin detred Darefd arrengemaents anc seehe o oontin e e
progrernms of Clooing v tegas defined henefit play e ee posabile and
prowct ey s ther place appaopeeie detncd contrmution ana gonreenins

Fisk nk

The: ne dielicn for ol ed s enefl obiligabon: ot o1 Decempet P01 Las
Ve @M T T o dshior s The R un worecodled] o s plul of Y22 s al
BT Tecmmbas 207802077 S0 apd ey sl oo sttiten T Z01T <L
ot thig ot dhehies s et I0blibg - and 870 w2010 Qe p ot e total aefine.,
henefit wost, The pre e e Ul rphe o 2o Thpnne ol aro-e fram

CHeNges Mo cAnal aseenr tons Se—secton < O detally

The e b thie »oerseae tundd, s at 31 Decembor 2o 18 o Udom o’ ™
80m defioh Detal s of ncecoont mactu ral as
N Seoctioey 4 ¢

DS Are s RS (F

Foreign exchange and interest rate risk

Corthior trorma on o b o the 30 mendede - Te o xronsure T o0 fnaen 1l
G thie e ol staterme e onpage 113 The 1o+t
Papsortanl S o ne e T E TR S esreanr e 2o a0 cfihe o S Dol
et P ok eant Clesr grate - o e xe ey for e balate Che et ey

tele e by Secton T

As al 31 December

2018 2017
Furo 1.11 113
UZ Dolix 1.28 135

Return on capital employed

Post tax retarm on capd sl en pdoved « BOTE 3 trony con neang operation:
ot 12 MY QOMDEEN L 124 ¢ 2T Tre ncredse on the metne rediect-
the Groesrs alutty b oelver sohid resUlts 10 sed 7mareet codiions while
cor inung tone estin th o busne s,

Dividend

The Board Tias recommendedd o nal oradead inrespect of 218 of 26 0.
12017 25 Cpyper ware an ncigase of 30 over the 2017 final cradend Thie
makes e lotal dviden for 2018 of 40 6p 12017 539 4p) "he cost of ke it
diader doz expecled o be CTmMI2017 e leadr g to o ota davrdenid Cosl
O C110mM 27T 10T i aespecl of the vear enced 37 Datenber 2018
Diacdend cover baseo on acdy o"ed 2atranags bo ha continuing businesses .

1 & tmes 2017 1 T rmess Al detafea nthe Compeany inandlal slatement.
on peage 155 Al of the relaned evn g at both 51 Decer ber 2015 and

37 Ui emibyy 2017 are cancmered o be chisfnn Lble tesetves

Ve obtthe Group does bt Fave g tornal anodde d pobiey G payorst ©ooie, tog
T30, & alte < 10 coninn e satb progresews drtdends vobie bty ically mere e
at a -tewly rate for both he 1 tenm and final div dena payments, worhoan
alit that the th dend should through the cycle e coverad Ly a leost tao
trres s ted eoerings I rmalang s diacdend recommendations, thie Boaerd
t O aedors B heve s of canky and debt et the Geoupr foretasted opiating
alwd Capmed Cosd flowe ey reimctite and e avalbbaity of astibutablo reoen ses
Toes Boated also man tor- he Gronga's dradanid cos er based on adje-ted

rar g for the ot aang by oo ss For miore detols retes 1o Sectior 105

Share price and shareholder return

Trg shiare prce o 31 O etmiber 2008 w0, ™3 20012017 5718 830 and the
actraty dar the e s P D 0y
ot A0 & s ey Based o the 2018 aurrage b proe
the vy & Col total dhividencd of W0 Op presents ayield of 17,

S 1) represoniing Jecreoeaos
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

a7
] £m | £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Oper st g prood for the year fron conlinuding operations 192
Cpetat og proft for the yean from discontrued ooeration- 22
Adjustments for

Danret iatior: aned arnorhisalion bBh s

Imparment of ropery plant and oguiomen Land o tangibie aosots 33

(GainyLoss on disposal of sabsid anes 17

Oty 3o quhion itemie -

Gam on special pension coonts (10 8;
IProhtvLass on sqlé of property, plant ard equipreont 15
Cyuity-settled share-hascd payment expense LRV
Deatrodse ninventones 349
Increase N tracle and otner red evables 126 5
Decreace, erease N tade and other payables 22
Do 10050 0 provisions 4 o erployes benedts W
Cash generated from operations 257 2
InCormne taxes pran (39 8,
Cash generated from operations after tax 2171
Additional pen=ion s heme funding 33
Net cash from operating activities 2141
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest receved 5.8 5o
Proceeds from sale of proverty plant and eaupiment 12.8 \ as
Nel -ale of nvestnients 01 08
Settlemean of tan .actional denvatives (1.3): 0o
Setticment of cunency dotvatives heoging balance shaet 7.9y 18 3
Acgusiions of subsichares net o* cash (1 37.6)§ -
Accpasition ot property, plant and eotpmont @ Do -aquitead rdangbiles o —(58'4)j (69 8
Net cash from investing activities (195.7} (82 2}
Cash flows from financing activities
Inlerest paid TN (19 8)
Payment 0 non-controlling nterest - (2.2
Shates acaured for emiployee share scheme trust {5.9) (27
Proceeds from he issue of shara capnal for employec share schemes 0.6 0e
Net drawdovmn/gepayment; of boirowings 100.9 ; 121}
Divdends paid to equily shargholders anct non-cortroling inerest {107.9} 05 5}
Net cash from financing activities T OELy 1317
Net rereaseAdecroase) in ca-h and cash eouivalont (19.7) 0z
Cash and cash equivalents al the sta ! of the year 67.6 675
Effoct of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 1.7 10.1)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year” 498 | 676

* Net of ban« overdrafts of £82.6m (2017 £31 0my),
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Finance Director’s commentary on
the consolidated statement of cash flows

2018! Q017

Movement in net debt £m i
Adjusted EBITDA® from continuing operations 320.1 2875
Viorkaitag capaled e cimensle {50 3} R
Copta and descdope ont expend s & (S8 4) 088,
Freamsions aad ompsda, a2 bencttime emenls 23 (AR
Tohocr 78 10 &
Adjusted cperaling cash flow™ 221.5 2179
Actlrshing tens” 89 Lo
Operating cash flow 2126 188.7
{129 [y
Do vt s {18.4) a2
Teux praaid _ 41 1) LN
Cash generation 140.2 1154
Adahon b poerdas s 1 s fanding (10.1) 133
Free cash flow before corporate activity 130.1 1121
Suderds poad ety s aehobers o . -
‘L‘ J!IIU(L ’[mlt' j;H"ug 1’ IL“(L(;')- aelnalers o d (167 9 s s
AUt ot o e (122 ) -
Paymiet 1 1o © on-c entrolli g rtorest - e
Mottt of . e (59 2w
Net cash flow {excluding debt movements) (105.7) 2.3
Dpernig net ety (265 .2), 2?6,
Fet debit at e (15.0)] -
Foagign ex hnege t-nalabon (18.6)5 151
Closing net debl (404.5) (265.2)

S Adpsted proft stier toe (T105 ) hetors inteved (014 lant oy (762 A
“eney abon 47 & sad amortisation (50T Snn
Mecement o wooviaions and en ployoe broeetrs das por mac statement
Ol Gash oz 187 St adiusted tor the movement i the restrud urng
LrOVIL 0N 48 9

s Adpted operating cash flow s 1he O ash generated frorothe ooendatuons
=how o the dtatement of cash Bows 1895 Gash s pent aeguenina propery,
Planm and enaipment, NoN-dcquired intangible dousets o Goneesioon g

ash e epeerd om the <ol of property, plant ancd ecinprnent G 1 e

“reesdiments, exchning the cashimpa Eom adpsdiong lents D inessore
Lovtreflec ta the oporating cash flows, o the Srov gy

" Canh et of ceogusting Hlemes

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to movement in net debt

The Group s conmoloate d statoment af Cash ke shovar o the opon e
nage whie ceconcilos the oparste g profir for the y Car to the change 1 cast
andd aserdiatt i the Balane e shaet as required for tinanc atb -enorting gy nprosoes

Howesot, hot guse e Ssroup s clebt finanong al oonchdes ome gt
Bieat oy ik, 1o aist mderstonding an analys of the effect of the
Danseat ot v Ihe weu on net el fos beos §raaded Acco dngly

corest 00 ihahion bet oo adjuste d ESITDA ared net dend s s hown oy

ther Lables b owve upssrwanic by Fos <o Lon provides Commentoey

Operating cash flow

Advsterdoper g cash o cas U222m2 17 U218 AR bae P9 cash
outflowe rom acl ued g ks 12017 T20m 0 cotfow, e opetatiney cas e
pas S ETI 207T V8% Thi  1upreseits o Lonves it sales 0F 101al Groy,
segrmental ¢ perannu erofit after restn tinng costs o operat ng cash fl~ &
af 83 2017 91

Nl resriangg Capil Jealings Lanti@ased nine cren! viear 2017 equall
ecerlor s decreased by ©5m207 7 Cdm des eass doe o decreases in
acretor g o Sl Enpmeenney whie roweene prantially © flee by e reg e
st 2018

Fore o beny it Precision Enge esong folow g continnc e o

The Sroun e bles neteasco b PEmn21y S nre reanet o e aal
ol arcn rease nrevenus Poyd o decrees oo by P70 T VEEm e e

dac to cveall pesvant teag o Cucing big g saoec. addand o p avingnts
veca et by Dol cngincei g 0 20T

Ton cRONT onpeoperts plant a d egupanent and oWer nen-gcguired

Patan oS Tt yedr wa, COEmM 20T R g me eprealont to 100
T 5 (1T 1S himess gop re Clalio T ania ot bon e ol Bes earch and
deelpomr it spend mel ding < sptalued o tar gible acsclonment coct o T

SOl T4Am T T YH0

r

1200

lev vl o Creapa paudd tax of O3 2017y T 20T D
ol b ot tax charge for b peer Tosedle ot the hrnng ot o tmate s s
sols o scountard o rLLTo

shchran TR

fra,n e aetakin Sectern 01

T

Nz o hete ads P31 casbrontfin 2037 F5 0 CLtlow foe mleest anad
et at cs nclirang a £17m outfioy 201 C18nr outllove fram the settler -
of crrrend y Aderreatl €8 Bedg g the balar ce et

At paviie ol nterest akd f wanh generaticn veas C 1 Lm 2017 P11

Free cash flow before corporate activity

TA0m of cdebtional po s on con rbutions sore mace SO T 3m) anich

i1 cluchsd a ene-off paymart of 3 Tmomade 1o vend up he UK Pensions
Fund as part o the buyolt exeteee completed in 2018 Free cash flow before
et ate dotn ity was £ 30m 21T S 112im

Net cash outflow (excluding debt movemenis)
A cash ontflow of £123m0 toge e warh den? acgquneea of P15 caas ncuntea
N 2018 o the acqu sition o Bir ba

shareholders totalle s £108m (017 S 1060y and 1 ere vy
- 1o natisty

Dadends piact 1
acash outlow of 5 2017 £2m oartloen or nel share purd
erpioyee Chdare opions

The teb Tret ca bocdHove rexc e debd »veitiene. v V1060

(20 fl e of P20

Closing net debt
Thex cpaee phcy 16 deb ot weds, §260010120 ¢+ V2A5000 T e vere exoi el ge
rate losees of T19m (201§ Tam gan, ponepally on oS Dolles aned B
denomatod borowinags Aftor B e net cos b ont law b yoar 6 910{an
(2071,
S C10m, clesing net debt voes §a300m 201

C2m nfleve s and thie delt e cnmred @ part of the Bt v thioo

F260m)
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Section 1 - basis of preparation

1.1
Introduction

M ple e Gompany 11s 2 Compars, domictled v e Unred Kingdom: Tha
consolidated finanadl - tatements of the Company compee the Gar nany and
itz subsidianes (togetl or fCterred 1o as the Growes y The CoTpamy nancial
statements presentinommialion about she comipany A s soparate e bty and ot
aho tthe Group The conohidated finas cal < tatements have hoos prepared
ac e ordane eoath Internatirmal s sl Report g Standard . as adooted by e
CU and enpleable lav ITRSs; The Compeaiy Dar eder o to prepare ds Parent
Compan, Cnandal Statements o o cordan e vath TRS 101 and these are
presented o page 152 17 160 The finane o stalomenits wore approged

i the Boardd of Diractors ot Ze [ ofsuasy, 20010

Alteinative Petfommange Meaanes { ARMe'Hare used in dice 13210ns with the
nvesiment analyst coimmun by and by tae Boad and moe agerr sni o monttor (e
tradng performance of the Growgs Ve coneice trat e preseniabion of APMs aliows
for miprened nsIot i e adng perforranece of the Group We bave 1eviewed the
APMs presented ds ran of the contimtious mproverment o our extenial reponting
and conaice that (Fe s Adistend logether with o aditisling 18ms Gategry, best
reflec 1a the trading performanc e of the Group The APMe precantad in the Annual
Reronl awd Accournrs 1a 31 Degemiber 2018 a2 defried n Section 2 11

1.2
Basis of accounting

The fnancid statements cre prezenled n Pourds Stethrg pehucen 12 the
Compary’s functional Lireticy), rounded 1o tre rearest huniched Mousend
excep reveruas, which are ounded (o te rearast whiole milion They are
prepared on ke hustone at € ot basis exe epl that the folloving assets and
liab btes are stated al ther forvalue dervative finanoal nstruments, financal
asears classihied as tan value through prodit and loss of other comps chensive
Incotre and assets and labities acgured thvough bos ness comtnnaions
Noni-¢ utient as=ets and labilties held for sale are stated al the lower of then
Cartylr g amounts and thes far valies loss cosls to sefl

Tre policies describped N tis section and N the accompanyng sections have
been applied consistently throughout the Group for the purposes of these
consolidated financal slatemens except as discussed below Refer 10
Section 5 4 for the Group's significant accounting polces

i} New or amended EU Endorsed Accounting Standards adopted
by the Group during 2018

Noted below are the amended and new IMernational Finand .l Repor ting

Stanitards which hecame eliccl e tor the Group as of 1 danuary 2018,

none ot whroh ras amatenal mmgac t ore the inancdl slalements

o [FRS 1 '‘First Twne Adkopton: or nternational Finanicil Reporting Standa ds

» [FRS 2 ‘Share Based Payrmont’

* AS 28 hvestments in Assockites

= IAS 40 ‘invesiment Property’

= IFRIC 22 Foragn Curtency Transactons and Advance Corrideration’

The impact of the rew intetnational Financil Repoing Stardards effective for
the Group as of * January 2018 s set out below

* IFRS 9 ‘Finanual Inslruments ' - an election was made (o recognise movermeant
i1 the fair value of the i vestments hislorcally held ot amoriised cost in olher
romprehiensive neoime At the dale of adoptian, 1 January 2018, judgiment
vra- applied ndeterrmining thal |he difference belween he hisloneal arortived
cost and the Tar value was rrinatenal The effect of adopting the remamnder
of thus standard was not materal and ne further accounting pobcies bave
been amended tollowing the adophon of the standard

-

FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers” - this standard was adopted
hom the date of imtial application - 1 January 2018 The five sten model for revenue
ecoghition s been apphed 1 eac h sigrnificant revenuc sream lor each operating
segme-! Wi ich are dentded in Soction 2 %1 The ac counting policy for reverus

rRCOANon Ads been apddled 1 secron 540 norger o dentiy when
aac b peronmanee ohligation hos been completed Ton gach reven g chieam
Mo material mipact an the firiar cal statensen 1= tolles, g atopton of *he
stardderdd has been idetlied

it} Issued Accounting Standards which are nol effective for the year
ended 31 December 2018

The [ASE and FRIC have scued @ - umber of nesw, aocourhng standars arl
amend merts v ih an effec tive dade after the dae of these ingnoial ~tatemens
Those whach wll have a migtenal impdes on the Gro i dre cet oul bsto v

FMS 16§ casen = thie dandad provide, o snagle Jesses oocount g model,
FOOUINDI S 00 O FOCOONILEe dusele and bebif tes for ofl lea o unles - the
Grgtecd ease terin s 12 months o los s or the leascd © set s a by calue

The standana vl be adoptod ron 1 Janoan, 205G O wdoprion, the Groop vall apph
e macifiod matrospective Earoach and the followang exomptions il be tahen and
as (1w I the saces idencdod bolow wall not b oo iscd on the balane e sheat

Shl-tenm 10005 — ledason whch Nave an onginal mnmunm con Teted
lease penocd which s less thar 12 months aoad

- LOW vilue leases = leases of which the leasea assel: have d 1otal valbie
of leas then $5 000

Judgements vall be made by manageiment i relat on te the monimuam
conmitted lease penod and the nceemertal bonow g ate used by cach
subsichary to discount the least paymer t= 11 order to caleulate the nght of
use usset on adoptionr

The Geutgy has updated ts IFRS 1o mmipac] asoes sament ofalt lea-esneld by e
Grovpr Thellustralre mipac of the nee standard on the raancal :talements and
relevant 1WPJs as at 31 December 2018 1 outlined in e table belo s

2018
Financial 2018 Impact  (IFRS 16)
Statement ftern £m £m £m
Income Critical Engmeernny 88 3 07 89.0
Statement Proc s on Cngmeering 153 2 0.6 153.8
Hydromc Eng neering 520 o1 521
Corparate Costs 272 01 {27.1}
Segmental Operating Profit 266.3 1.5 267.8
Statutory nel inancial expense 1g.n 21 (20.8)
Statutory profit before tax 212 8 (O 6y 2123
Adjusted FRITDA 3201 325 352.6
Balance Froperty Plant and Eqrpmont 284 4 113.2 397 6
sheet Net debt (045 (1132 (BIT T
Statement Cash generated from 263 2 320 2907
of cash operations
flows Net cash hom fnancing @BIoy (325 153 5}
actvities
Net deciease in cash (197) - (19 7}
and cash equavalents
Key ratios Net vebt to FRITDA ratio 1 3x 0.9x 1 5x
Retuny on eapital employed 12.8, {0.8) 1 1220

Followimg he adoption of IFRS 16, management rave reviewed its practive of

making interna property recharges 1o equalse the mpact o rent and depeaation
Al a division and sie level and concluded that the rechiarye wil 10 longer be required
from 2019 onwards  This will have the effect of ncreasing dvisional profits Crtical
Engineeirg - £1.0m, Precison Engnesnng - T1 D, Hydron ¢ Engmeenng - £0 8mi)
with & corresponding crease N corporale costs by £3 3im
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Section 2 - results for the year

What you will find in this section

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the following pages you will find disclosures
explaining the Group’s results for the year, including segmental information, adjusting items, taxation and earnings per
share. You will also find a summary of the Group's alternative performance measures, including the definition of each

and the rationale for their use.

2.1
Segmental information and alternative
performance measures

Organic revere growth and operating profit are the two short-term key
performance indcators or measures that reflect the way the performance
of the Group is managed and montored by the Executive Committee,

In this section the key consttuents of these two KPI's, beng the Group's
adjusted 1evenues and segmental operating profits, are analysed by
reference to the performance and activities of the Group's segments

and ther aperating costs.

2.1.1
Segimental information

Soyental inforeiaten i presented in ke consaldated tnanc Jf staterment
for each of the Gronp's ooerabng seg et The opaialing Seqment renorin'g
format ref e u e 3roups INdanagement and niecsalh.eporting sbootores

ard represente Dz o mahon hat was presenten ta the choef opetat ng
docsionrakern, beng e Bxecuitive Jommittee Ay oescnbed on page ¢
eacht Of e Gron p s thees rasans has a nue ber of key Brands aross its man
markes and crerationg oabion - For the purpese s oo e able ~cgnmiental
i fo rsion, operating eye et dre aggragated nto the Group’s thrae
div=n . s e n-dure o the products produd bon prog esses ard ype of
custorer are eyl wilbin e b deerion Inter-ceqmie ¢ reven e = insegnifs ant

I Critical Engineering

INE Gt al Envinesnng s eosorld-baading puowvide: of Yow eontrol wobiton thae

crahle vital energy and process ir dustngs to opetate saledy, cear Iy el bly
ancd mare et ently Qo procue toconttefihe fog of stear gas and firp §on
bt boormrarenents ard dre aesiy o fo sathstand temper -tore dane presone
exbemes s ol an 1o el abros e or oot e o gl al cpetatior «

IMIt Precision Engmeering

M1 Precis on Eagineetcg cpseat dses it e cesignand mana dac e o notien
annt it centol technologies v bare precrsisn speed and rellabshity are ossonrgl
tothes processes I vare b they ars - sobsed

IMt Rydrome Engineering

I Hycrone Sngmeenneg s a leacdmg prossider of bl ogies bl cobver
peratonal and eneagy eHicent viater-baoed hed rg and - oobrng sy terns for
fhere e el Aned comer erc b boald g secton

Prodonioan e eaeardrcd b certoncaciasloc wogemenlalepeoralog s eodit erngh
ot el e table dothe gt B L e onlemando lar s anc erre oy and

thetal conttoe Bt pston e oo s e bedige Cage st the npe bor profilabalg,

ol g e are G i ac e e eosathe e Sronprs ol y oo e
thiee Fibe vl wolatill g e cer s, coll and torge o Segmiental apetatineg
prodits e thewerene chargoederedded waith the impae Lot Tha o conteoct

Ity cacc oo e i RS 3000 euc contracts done U ect e <eqgurciment Tor
Negige e Ly o dagar ane foosos are e crecd aut af o peratineg 1ot
andb e e arded onct e pibire omoe aeed esprene e do the g or e ot
Yoot clih b Lineon o tatesnent

Alternative Performance Measures ('APMs’)

Too falitste aomors mesangful ses en of nertore caice —tla i alive
prtfonmen ¢ 1 eusares e D oangl dec aathe s Ay al Repaoat Thees
AP are tined Do the Boecuts O nimnt e b moi 0 A nianiags 1h
peefores e of e Growgs v rder b ensue ot decmion tahen alge /e s
g ermonteresis Mosernents noLdiusted sevenuz ana segmental aperatig
Profit are given on a0 gane Rase ee defimmon Lelow) w0 that perionnanee
o di=aler By acepisition, crapote [t monenienit. ek angs tales
Toe e 10 bl 2 detalls the donifio - of eaon ABM o d g ie'eteneas fo o are
ear b recor g d o e e aedent - tatolon roeasre

: Reconcihation to

APM Definition | statutory measure

See e e
cebatetnent rn

sduutz e ue These measures are as reported o
miaragement and do not reflect the
mpact of adjueting items described N paue 84
Section 2 2

Adustoo ol
SIRIGII I 1
1
Adunlorroed |
leres oot |
|
i

Addude s carrmgge PSee Secliear 2 3

e s hare

Auostod oo e CSee Secton 24
tax r=to .

Adoaen FBIE DA Ths measure refiects adjusted VS0 cash s

profit after tax before inmerest, tax, | cormmentary o

depreciaticn and armortisation | e 91

These measures are as reporied o See i ome
management and do not reflect the | stalement on page
impact of adjusting items described n | 84 Aned =ogmental
Section 2 2 Vroporting note r

1 Sevon 2011
This measure removes the mpact of |~

adusting items, acquisitions, disposals,
and movenents In exchange rates

Adlstea
segmerntal
operating prit
At margn

Orgatin grosdh

|
Aclsted operatng | This measure reflects cash generated : Ser oashflen
vanh flow frorm operations as shown in the "Conimertary oo
- staternent of cash flows less cash Ve 21

spent acquinng property, plant and :
equpment, non-acquired ntangible
assets and mvestments, plus cash
recaived from the sale of property,
plant and equipment and the sale
of investments, excluding the cash |
impact of adusing tems

These measures ale sub-totals N the  See cauhill
reconcihation of adusted EBITDA to
Net Debit and are presented to assist
the reader to understand the nature

of the current year's cash flows

O pateng
o flow cotmentary o

Jrge 9
Pt bfioe fricy

brelore corpaerate

IURMN LI
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{continued)

Tre tollowing tavde llustrates how the resuls ko the sediments econule W the uenal resulis seporied e ne ome sldemne
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Revenue Operating profit Operating margin
2018 2017 2018 | 2017 2018 2017
£m £m £m l tm % %
Continuing operations ‘ !
IMI Zritcal Ensgmisenny 682 ‘ (SR ] 88.3 1 HA 0 12.9% RICRVAN
IMI Preec s .0n Engineent g 916 7431 163.2 13350 16.7% iba
M1 = yedronie, Engmeenng 309 | 312 52.0 49 7 16.8% 15.9-
Cotporate cosls . _ {27.9) (263 L
Total adjusted revenue/segmental operating profit and margin 1,907 1751 266.3 oy 14.0% R
Restructurrig cosis {non-ddy IRAURTAH i (0.8} . RIS
Total adjusted revenue/operating profit and margm 1,907 ! 1731 265.5 2302 13.9% 3T
T
Reversal of net econtemic hedge confract lasses | 1.9 {{eNeH
Restrictunreg « osls ! (12.4) {34 0y
Gainis 001 5pecial pension events 6.8 © 108
Acautred intangible amortisaton and other acoquisition tems (28.8) (19 5)
Cun loss) o aepo Al of subsidianes 0.6 173
Gain o dposal of popsities 3.2
Imipa reent fosses (2.0}
Indrre ) 1axes on reurganiualion: (3.2)
[T oo g - |
Statutory revenue/operating profit o 1,907, oot 72§1.7674; 192 - o
Net inancial expensc . - 772?1) 1118
Statutory profit before tax from continuing operations | 212.9 1809
Treioliorang lacke dustrates hauyreve we aud operating probt have been imoacied by movements 31 1oregn excianige, acguistions and dis)osdal
Year ended 31 December 2017 Year ended 31 December 2018
Movement
As in foreign As Adjusted QOrganic
adnsted exchange Disposals {Organic adjusted Acquisitions Organic  growth (%} growth (%}
Adjusted revenue
IMi Critieal Engineening 648 (&) (3} 639 682 - 682 5% 7%
IMI Precison Enginsening 791 (10) - 781 916 88) 828 16% 6%
IMI Hydronic Engincenng 312 (&3] 309 309 - 309 :]Za_ . 0%
Total 1,751 {143 4 1,729 1,907 (B8} 1,819 9% 5%
Segmental operating profit
MI Critcal Engneenng 84 0 13 06 833 88.3 - 88.3 5% 6%
IMI Precision Dnygnesnng 133.5 15) - 1300 153.2 6.7) 146.5 15% 11%
IMI Hycronie Enginesning 487 13} - 18z 52.0 - 52.0 5% 6%
Corporate costs 26 3) - {26.3) {27.2) - {27.2) B
Total 2409 (3.3) 06 7382 266.3 6.7 259.6 11% 9%
Segmental operating profit margin (%) 1389, 138% 14.0% 14,3%
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Fhe foliowe gy Cblz il strates 1 ove lbie segren alassels oo o lab lbies recncile to e overall total =w-eta ano belibes reported o the balance shoet

Asgels Liz2biltes
2018 2017 2018 | 217
e . £m £m £m J o
M Tl Ernginigenineg 723.7 } R 186.6 Zeh A
IMEFrec < Enginesing 669.7 2217 1358 1 4
IME- i Eng neenng 215.8 . TR 66.8 w7
Total segmental assets/hakilities 1,608.2 RN 380.2 "6 0
Corpos Je tems 1.4 158 43.3 259
Eeraquley 2ttt 27.8 i 57 80.1 UG
it 1o 15 3.7 38 -
Mo L etob o 132.2 | 9 6 536.7 338
Nt faxation and 2t e 18.5 | 26 b B7.3 A
Total assets and habilihies in Group balance sheet 1,802.8 | T3 1,136.6 G497 7
Tra A0l g tabsle el e ofhios reornanon oo noe s cerbam ety o allocated betseen bae oo onts ot th o Geoup
Festructunng Sapral
costs” expenditure Amo-tisaton™ Depreciation
2018 201 2018 204+ 2018 2mr 2018 i 2017
Em £m £m o £m im £m | £m
Il Ernreen ng 9.2 o 185 | 242 187 s 13.5 “a
IMI Prec - on Engineerimg 15 56 28.6 ‘ 271 16.4 31 20.6 5T
INGL Foy clronie Engl eening 2.5 3u 1.2/ 18 4 3.3 o0 8.2 el
13.2 ST 58.3 2 36.4 20 42.3 S8
Corpo A0 oy - : - 0.2 1 0.5 805} 0.5 ns
Total 13.2 | 3 585 buy 369 | i 42.8 3806

Flestrde Tunneg contsnchede Dot adia ling 4ne s onadjusting tems

* The amorteat on figures sbove a1 lode the amortration of scgured mtangmles £11 80092017 1216 s e bicerd i respect of Gritical Engneenna,
L3 2m =017 00 Gy o koded nrespect of Frocn o Engrecrng ar d Pl (2017 S0 m) s ke o respretof Hydtomic Engneenng
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(continued)

Thie fllowanigy table st o cengraptacal aah sie O how the Group - tgver ne s arved by destnation,

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

2018 2017
Revenue Revenue
£m m
UK 80 78
Germany 289 260
Other Wostern Europe 382 503
Western Europe 681 B53
LISA 427 518
Carada 24 2}
North Amernca 451 338
Emerging Markets 608 | 505
Rest of World 77 ., 86
Total statutory revenue 77717,907" *TA
Adjusted revenue by destination {2018) Adpusted revenug by destinatios 207 /)
Rewst af the UK Best ot he UK
World B, Waorkd ey
4 5

Ermergr i

Weatern Burop £

Emergrg

Wester Europe

W arlepte 3p%- Market- 289,
32 34
North America North Ametiea
237 19°
The Group s revenus sreams ae disagoregated 1Ir the tabln balow Tor detals of the performand e obligatioes relating 1o theze revonue stream: slease refor
to Section 5.4 C,
2018 2017

Revenue Revenue
Sectar £m 'm
News Constructiorn 361 337
Aftermarket 321 311
Critical £Engineering T 682 | 648
Indusinal Avtomaon 525 440
Commercial Vehicle 166 183
Eneryy 77 67
Lie Scicnees 77 B4
Rail 41 a7
Precision Engineering ) 916 | g1
T 151 147
Heimeicr 28 104
Preumatex 4 41
Other 17 20
Hydromec Engineering T 300 | 312
Total revenue i T qmer | 1T




2.1.2
Operating costs by function

The following table 1s included to show how much of the operating costs
deducted from revenue to arrive al the Group's statutory operating profi,
retate to cost of sales, seling and distribuhion costs, administratve
expenses and adjusting dems.

2018 ' 2017

£m £m

Adjusted revenus 1,807 1751
Cootod ke 77&17,%97.4} it |
Segmental gross profit 817.(? TITaa
Selb g aned i nbdion Lot {242.2} esy 2
R0 RN (AR oI ST eI (309.1} BeSINC]
Fe troctonng . - {0.8} [
Adjusted operating profit 265.5 c302
At ey e, _(ééé} I ERE
Statutory cperating profit é31 é rap -

The Loueting Aems are o alvscd o detalin Secton 202

The tollovang table sbows 2 goagranheGal anadv, s of e location of the Groupy'
property pland vl eaupmient < d miangible assots

2018 2017

£m | £m

e 76.6 ‘ H1 8
Germany 251.1) 2509
Rest of Euope 219.7 : 23 a
Usa 263.5| 197
Asia Pac e 60.4 | 108
Rest of Vol 19.8 1646
Total ) '_E;F.f" 194

2.1.3
Specific elements of cperating costs

Certain spoecific tems of operating expenses are disclosed to provide the
reader of financial statements with more nformation regarding these costs
This section provides this analysis.

2.1.3.1 Employee information

The guveroge nurnbier of people employed by the Gronn dosmeg thie y ear v

201ﬂ 201/

AL CTIEe Al B Eegine cring 3,274 RPN
B 2o s on Brogineetine 5,933 . el
I G Enggn eening 1,790 1800
Cotporale 109, 105
Total Group 1-1- 06 SR CREY

Thevrw et in 2018 s i o the worpas ton of Bl e Procran B o acnney
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The: agareate =aloyment coul thargs . o aperatng predl o dhe ceat Ao

|
2018 20,17

£m £m
W agges and salanes 519.4 187 2
Shiares b~ 24 pag mente 8.2 = {0
S0 dl Cundy coule 87.7 3 D
Peaiaon Gosts, 0.5 2
Total 615.8 57 T

Fe i cost- e lde e Soam g
e enty wba Iy are

AT S s g o specal e on
oot e atdil g e s Be o L4 E
2.1.3.2 Operating lease charges and operating lease commitments

The Group enters into leases for property, plant and equipment assets
when doing so represents a more cost-effective or fower nsk option than
purchasing them, This leads o an income statement charge for the year
and future commitments for the Group In respect of these leases.

Coo @ aeectineg s neb s de aonorgeon Tl 20T O3 s edating 1o

Pl e ol properhie  aed acbiarge o T3 32000 0 A B T reka g o e e ¢
I renpe t of non-c ang Clubile

cperatinylcases toplree e o nothe follow e 1 bl by e penod

af plant and macr oy e contnu g o e e

2018 2017

Land and Land and
buddings Others baldings Others
£m £em £m £m
Wit ong year 216 13.6 HY n.a
I b e ond t i by e 54.2 24.3 L8 6 36

AHCE fye years 2.3 - ‘56
T 8Ba 379 a4 19,5

2.1.3.3 Research and development expenditure

The continunag cost of teseareh arcd des elopment expenoture chaged drec tiy to b
biC O statement was ©11,2m (2007 998 Ony mchaden ! vatbn the 15 amontisaceon
07 Gaprall oo it blo o veloun ont costs which amaeunted 1173 Sm 2007 I3 ny

arcd dctoe the Grotes e 7 1 2007 9300 Hwas < apatalized in the v

2.1.3.4 Exchange on operating activities net of hedging arrangements

Ihe toaneac fional Oceig e e gt n the Srovg ¢ ore €2 2m
201 gane ot £3 Hng

2.1.3.5 Audit fees

The Groups engagos (1 dudtor BEY fo petlorn other asairanc e d: iy iments
1 ddibion o ther ctat dory auddit daliee where her expethioe expenence ardd
kniswleddge of e Groups shoutd enobsle them to perforr the ar asignniens t
thars @thiciently Ihan ather aimidoar se e prowviders,

e Gy il on
P C2 b o cancd by EY aned o ase o des canng the venr e act oot Bolow,

CrCEr e signmetitn paaet ong e e et Coreratteo [t ot

2018 2017
£m in
Foes erned by th o Compatty aceeibor o he oo
G e Companmy s ann val decoents, 0.2 e
The ettt ofF the G oanpaatry e ubsdones
prurstant o legedation 2.6 A
O cms e e S Ao 0.1 [V

Total 2.9 Ex
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(continued)

2.2
Adjusting items

The adusting tems category in the income statement ncludes those items
which are removed from statutory measures to provide insight as to the
performance of the Group. Accordingly, adjusting dems are inciuded in a
separate colurnn on the face of the mcome staterment.

Thay nciude restructurng costs, special pension events, gans/losses on
dispoesals of subsdiarnes and properties, impakrment losses, the reversal of
gains/losses on economic hedges, acquisition costs, the release of inventory
uplits recogrised on acquisition and acguired intangible amortisation.

2.2.1
Restructuring costs

T restructinng ¢ o8 troated as adustng dems totd Y12 3m 2017 $384 b
are us dtesult of 4 number of s grificant testuciun g projects across tre
Group Tris ecludess the closuie of one ot aur Chittcal Engineciing sites m
waoecken and nght 51z ng of opetatinrs &8 6imy the Globul Restruc tunng
Progtamme within Hydrome Engmeen g (72 5im) and the finaleation of
restiuctiue ity proects related to the Swiss Contols & Nudlear business.
N Crit cal Engmeenng €0 Ty and the Ernopean busness in Precision
Engineering 70 Gimy

Adiusting restructonng costs n 2017 mcluded 112 d4m relalng to the closare
of o e aur Critical Engineening sitez 1n Belglum, Vs 5m far the restruciure of
1he Switzerland Control- & Nuglear husmess i Criical Engmgenng £4 11~
for the restruclure of our BEuropean business N Frec =on Engineenny <
£23 Om onrelation o rest-ictarng undertaken in the Bydrenic duision

Clher restructun g cosls o1 SOE 2017 21 7 are not ncuded o lhe
thigasure Gl seyree Ll operating probl reporied ke the Excoulrae Cumnfice
These costs have been thdrged below segrmer tal operating prolit as they
arose from nermal recurnng cost reduction exercises and are ncluced n
the agusted hancial perfornance of the Group

222
Gains on special pension events

During 2018, de-nsking actiities relating to o.r defired beneit schemes
contnued inckiding e corverson of certan pension benelits 1o being
nieni-inflation inkedd, ocounng i the UK which resutted in ne gamns of £ dm
Requlatory changes and the completion of a huy out in Switzerland res ilted
#1 ganis Woldllag £3 0m he completon of the lransfor of £409m of Fabibhhics
covored by msurance pohcies ta the msurance companies through a fonmal
buy-out transaction resulted 4 net gan of £2 8m An expense of £0 4m
ansing from the equalisahion o' the JK defined bencil schemes, has boen
recogaised [ofowing the ruling on the teel casc on Guaranteed Minemun
Perisions Gang on special ponsion events n the UK aivl Switzerland of
§110,8m were recognised in 2017

2.2.3
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries

No subsichanes have been disposad of in 2018 A gar of [0 8m has been
recoqguised following the expiry ot an ndeninity provided on a fustorical
disposal In 2017, the Group disposed of Stanless Steel Fasteners Limited
restilting n a loss of £2 3m.

2.2.4
Reversal of net economic hedge contract
losses/gains

Fur segmental reporing plirposes, changes nthe far value of oconomie hedges
whic b are not designaced &= Pedyes ol accoantl g purposes, togethon wath the gere,
arcr losses onther sefflement ae nclidad in the adw steo revenues and operating
pro’ o the iclovant business segrent The ad usting soms at the operati g level
reserse s toattctit. The net financ g adjusting foms retiect tha < hange in vakae
or setllenent of Bese contracts walby the nanctal nsteutions v ibabiom they aere
trarsactodt The ormor corpnsed a everal of Lloss of 1 8042017 rove sal ol a
gar of PN ano the Latter a0 onnted (o alos- 0 V1 Am 2017 gan of €3 Smo

225
Acquired intangible amortisation and other
acquisition items

S o sogrental purpcses accp o ntarphle g ertiaation s oxe ke rom ade ‘od
prodit, o allowe for botior comypsaralulty of toe perfornanc e acrcss die ons e
alloyes users of the finesoal stalormon 1 10 goan a edrer indarnstar ding of the
peronmancs of the Lo nous, wihy the rrpact of amotlisat onndentit ed < oparatoly

1 Ine watl antornal ropartineg to anaragemens

Acquired intar gible armort sation in 2018 totalled C25 1Tm 217 £17 5y The
meiease n 2018 refiocts the amarlisabion of the mtanaibls assots recegrised on
the acquisiton of Bamoa auring the year, ncluding the full smostisation of the Birmiba
order book whict contributed Udim to *he ¢arge An analyeis by seagment of
acquired mtangmle amortisation s ind luded in Section 2 11

Also Incudied 16 a reledse of the tlar value uplit 1o nver Loy, 1ecognmet 48

part of the Bimba acquistion accounting n accordance with IFRS 3 Buoiness
Combinalions o 3 72017 201 Acguisition coste of £2 0m were incurred
01 2017 ans ng [ ot the acgquisition of Bimiba Manufac tuimg Company which
completed on 31 Jdanuary 2018 tsee Section 3 4y

2.2.6
Gain on disposal of properties

Agan ol £3 2m (2017 Onill was recogh sed v 2018 follovany the disposal of
the Crmcal Engneenng site in Seishin, Japan, The proceeds of the sale will
be used 1o consnuct 4 purpose bull fas ity in Japan which will aliow Crlical
Engineeting 10 better meead customer demand n this region

2.2.7
Impairment losses

Ag raported on paqge 108, the Group recorded ar adjusting ropairment charge
ot £2.0m aganst the goodwill associated with the Hydronic service comoanics
CGU The carrying valug of the goodwill was reassossed after a salos process
tor the CGU was ¢ancelled,

2.2.8
Indirect taxes arising on reorganisation

Following a ietrospective chanye 16 European tax law on the transfer of assets
a provision of £3 2m to reflect the probakile exposure has been recognised
The provision 1s recognised as an adiust ng item e operating profit as it
relates to ndirect taxes

2.2.9
Taxation

e tax etfects of the ahove temns are ind lided in the adjeting fames colamn
of the incone statement
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2.3
Earnings per ordinary share

Earnings per share {'EPS") is the amount of post-tax profit atinbutable 1o each share [excluding those held in the Employee Benefit Trust or by the Company).
Basic EPS measures are caiculated as the Group profit for the year attributable 1o eguity shareholders dvided by the waighted average number of shares in
1ssue during the year. Diluted EPS takes mto account the dilutive effect of all outstanding share options priced below the market pnice, in arriving at the
number of shaies used In its calculation.

Both of these measures are also presented on an adjusted basis, 10 assist the reader of the financial statements to get a better understanding of the
performance of the Group The note below demonstrates how this calculation has been performed

2018 2017

o Key milion |, mulior
Veahrerd e ane e o0 sores tor e arpes e Phasic eoar g e share 2 271.0 2711
Bl dve flea Lo empson e shoro o) tion - 0.3 S
Yeerghized we agenumty s 0 s Cor bt unese Of dluted eartman pen share &) 271.3 21 B

Key £m &m
Statutory profit for the year 169.4 ey
M- cntrodiogs o teree s, - 0o
Statutory profit for the year attnbutable 1o owners of the parent Z 169.4 15201
Statutoty prottnoan discontned aperation, nel ol lax - tew
Continuing statutory profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent o 169.4 14572
Total adgu-tin., e ey ehargos ndudens a1 robt befors tax 38.3 32
Tolad adhus g e cred oo hoed nn iation (9.3) 13
Earnings for adjusted EPS L 198.4 Tik Q9

Key 2017
Statutory EPS measures -
Stalutory bawx EPS CA 62.5p 59 8p
Statutury diluted ERPS B 62.4p | 09 7p
Statutar s bagsic contingang EFS DA 62.5p 53 8
Slatutory dilited contnun.g EPS DB 62.4p 53 6
Adjusted EPS measutes
A dea base Fos LA 73.2p 1550
Adustnn diluted EPS =] 73.1p 65 1y

Discontinued earnings per share

Statttory havae dico doed gy per share et il (201 6 21 ) Statotory Chldord dmcondrmed earrncogy per oF areowcte nil (2017 0 2o
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2.4
Taxation

IMI operates through subsidiary companies all around the world that pay many
different taxes such as corporate ncome taxes, VAT, payrol withholdings, social
secunty contributions, customs import and excise duties. This note aggregates
only those comporate Income taxes that are or will be levied on the ndividual
profits of I plc and its subsidiary companies for penods leading up to and
including the balance sheet date. The profits of each company are subject to
certam adustments as specified by applicable tax laws in each country to arve
at the tax fiabifity that is expected to result on ther tax returns, Whera these
adustments have future tax impact then deferred taxes may also be recorded.

2.41
Tax governance, risk and strategy

M red oyrises s ¢ oiporate responaialty 1o ensure that all b nesses wilbin
Ihe IMI Group follow 1esponsible tax pro tees, Accordingly, the IME Tax Policy
sets the coe pinuiples of complar ce farmes:, valug and ransi arency for the
maragemnent ol re Group's lax aftars

Froe boley bas bern approved e 1 e Board (ot coramnme oted to <ube ciary
BiLsinceses, ance 1s revicwseod o ons ure responasible business pra bic e s aomons
the Groun are mantancd Archu ttax governance frameygork 1ac aleo hoen
estahhshed under which the Exccutive Sommitlee and the IMI Board e
apprased on arogulkar hasi: of any matenal or sgnificant lax matters, so lral
approprade action can be electad  Throoah the M Slobal Intianal the Group
cannmunicates peloe s, procedares, guidancg and Lest practices te smprove
the tnanegemient of dxalion acraes * s subsichary Gomparios workbaidc

Caompliance: Ml seeks to 1anage its taxation obligations worklace in
complance with all applcable 1ax laws and regufations a= well as fully nne wath
the Group s Code of Conduct Accordingly, the tax contnbution by the individuial
businesses s monitored and 1obust standard tax ¢ omolance mrocesses operale
together with appropriate financial controis to ensure that all tax roturns aro
complete, acourate and filed oo a timely basis with the tax authorlies arctned

the works and the declared taxes pad on time

Recenily enacted U K legislation regarcing trnd party tax evasier has also
hean ncorpe ated i to the Group's prevention pracedntes, mchicding employves
franmg Futhemaore the preparation and fling of the corporate meome tax
retarns for IME subsidary companies watldwide have been largel, oltsouced
10 ane tax advisory fitm

Tax laws are often complex, which can lead to inconuston ntepretations
vy different stakeholders Vwhere this ocours, IMEmay reduce uncortainty and
controversy through various achions, including proactive discuss on wath he
fiscal authorities to obtan early resolution and secunng external tax advice to
ensure the 1obust interpretation of tax laws and practices

Fairness: M| saeks 1o rocord its profits across the subschiary companies arpund
the world on an arm’s length Basis 1 accordance with nternationally accopted
bowt practices, recognisng the relative contnbutions of prople, assats ntallectual
property and risks borne by the varnous businesses, The resulting allocaton of
proins s regularly todled for complancs wath this stanard

IMI has taken action 1o enslre that t meets the enhanced transter prong disclosires
and documentation requirements by tax aulhories 4@s a resull of the Bage Eroson &
Proht Shifting (commanty referred to as BEPS) ntiatve by the OQECD.

Value: M manages the mpact of taxation on ts businesses in a resporsble
manner by only adopting legtimate. commercial and generally acceptable
positions In particular, IMI seels o follow not only the: law tscit ut the
mtention of the kocal laws whete this can reasonably be ascertaned As a UK
Headqguartored group IMIs profits are ullimately sutbject to UK taxation althiough
as the Group pays sy imedant taxes oversoas, the overall offective tax rate 1ot
the Gotip 15 izl g ally above the UK statutony tax rate,

Transparency. Ml armis to brald po <itive werkar g relationsiyos varti o o e
Py CO-ANRMATING A ot ive, open andd inoly marnor IMELeekes 10 disclose
Fa tax affair ot pubhshed = connts and taxation returas nadly maccordarce v h
the anplicatde <lanickaeds and, where appropate will supplerment it tax o closnes
watly further afor ation to bettor Inform, & of 10 bes tranopatent =t smahehalcor

Risk: 1M1 engages ex-eral suppornt 1o manage tax neks and achiove the st tegic
obs ectvas cuthned atbiove Tax nshe are regularly assessens on all cormpanigs
it the Graap oiomiptly addressed and reported <o hat ey ir ay be
appropriaiety provided and disclosed in the relevant accoo ds aned ta ety
Tey the exten that identhen tax nshs e malenal they will he tepotad 1o the
Execurve Comrmdtes thronugh the Groun s process for shalegr ok ma agemen
de nescrned at nage 46

242
UK corporation tax

The average weig ted rate of Corpunation tax n th e Uk or the 2018 Calenda
year wa= 19,7 (2017 19 25721 Charges to the rate of UK ¢ oporation tax
wire stbstartively cnacted n 2015160 reduce the rate to 180 wor 1 Aprl 2017
and to 187, from 1 Apud 2020 The budget of 16 March 2018 then proposed to
foher meduee the rame (0 179 from 1 Apok 2020 The addinonal © e was
sabstantively enacted on & September 20160 UK deferred tax assets and
Deabiiitics haver therefore Deen calclatod ush g aate of 172017 1770

2.4.3
Tax payments

Dunineg the year, e Group macde paymoents of comorate ncore lax ol £41 1ir
(2017 V38 sy poncipally ans ng as tollows

Junsdiction of companies making corporate income tax payments

Orher teritones 51, ©5 4m
Crath 1 4m Genmany ©6 5m
Poland 11 2m
Ausina ©1.1m

o
Sweden 0 7m 2018 £41.1m s £ am
ftaly £2.7m
Japan 1 7
UK 12 2m
Swrtserlard 184 9m
Orher teniones <F1my, £6 5m
Gormany £11 3m
Canada 1 1m
France £1 1m
2018 £39.8m

Ausina £1.2m
Swedon 01 9m - US 120 3m

UK 4 1m Italy £4.2m

Swilzerland £4.6m Japan £3 3m

There 15 normally an glemenit of volatibty in the annual paymients of corporate ncome
taxes due 1o 1he tinung of assessments, acgurtion and disposals, adusting
tems and paynients on acenunt N the many countnes N which the Gronp operates
Changes in the junseictions n which profts are eamed can have an tapact on
cash ilow levels which inay take ime to be ratlecied i the 14ax cash flow
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T el ot eavnent o adz dunng 2018 norgasec shgl L coniparen to 2ot e The mouae lax ohearge s apporbones befweso ontinng anao di-c mlinaea
e Group v antinued 1o reeover tas debtor- i Gornasy, Jupar and the S wdpch operations i the ncome statement oy follons

¢ ere ohisel by addinonal pe el regunedd i the Ul Targely d- aresndl of cnarages
i tan s And 1 e LS G o pre-ac G Lo tax absbl es ot acgonea

conpanis Qloe terrtoral mosarments i paymes s largel refles t shifn i rading 2ns 27
£m y'm
i ecdoihon the Gronpymake sob-tanticl odb o sax povi onts vl g o cmplo,ent 1
CO1S BTG PAGLUETCTT A IRV - Iens 10 k0 sl e arbie s eal o the workd Current tax charge !
Cuniins g Oporatin, 41.8 Gh e
2.4.4 Dhecanbinued ope 1aho & - 147

‘ ‘ 218 05

Recognised in the income statement ‘ o
Deferred tax charge

Thi e nesein oo e carren 1 e ddetenod Lax - orge whic b ot e Cartinur g e eons 1.7 U1

Fornenis e P el e s bergee n the neore sbelormien

| o 2018 § 2017
2018 | 2017 £m ! fm
£m | &m -
i Total Income tax charge
Current tax charge v
- G tirml g operadires 43.5 3506
Do viar thiatge 46.1 EAEP - : _
N | ' ! Oi-e e ntinge ¢ eps tatior < - 1T
ciuslenl [ o viears, . s
fuslael meres pec ul paeor vear (4.3) L 435 a6
a1.8 200
Deferred taxation
O ralion o rewerssl of fenporany e e 1.7 1
Tatal income tax charge 43.5 A

2.4.5
Reconclliation of effective tax rate

AuiMls beat atlr e and parent compar iy 1s donaled in the UK, the Groupeferernces L= effectne taxaate to the UK corporaiiue Das tate: despitc only a small norticn of
De Tros Basines : being in the UK Thacfore e fullaan g tax iccunesdation 2ppies thee U< corproeation 1ot mon he sean o pror § btore tex, both bofore ann aftor
e temes The sosuiting tax chiargeas reconcilad 1o the actoal tax ohuarne for the Geoup, Dy taking accoant of spoc i “ax wif i moes ds s foellows

2018 iE 2017
Adjusting ‘ Adjusting
Adjusted items Statutory Adyuslad tems Statutory
Sezton £m £m £m £m £m £Em
Profit before tax from continuing operations 251.2 {38.3) 2129 ‘ | M3 14019
Profit before tax from discontinued operations zh ‘ oz 27
Profit before tax 281.2 {38.2) 212.9 c2dt A1 0y 1631
I orac tax nsng the S paty Sdomeste rate ot bt o T 00 - 201 19205 47.7 {7.3) 40.4 131 % 9t KGR
Froctsof
Mevi-decue tibls tens 0.7 0.7 1.4 18 37 0.5
Mo axable impastment Tloss on tisprosal of busiresses - 0.3 0.3 - o} 01
FRilisertieony G Jor ves oty aninb s o delerred ax bad Deer red Oy ed {0.4) - {0.4) {4 o) - @ Bl
Clrent yeadr losses for whi-hino defened fax a- et has baenirec oaniwed 3.0 - 3.0 [S35] 04 59
Chierge n future tax e ds on deter rd s - - - 150 5 ()
[henn.g s rates 5.2 (3.0} 2.2 s [ 11
Ower prosacdedd m prce year 3.4) - (3.4) ' R 200 6)
Total tax in Income staterment 52.8 . (53) ' 43.5 Py Js
Income tax exoense teoorteo o he contolidatod ingore statement 52.8 ) (9_35 TY RS RERH
Ffiective rate of tax - continuing cporations. 21.0% 20.4% | 21.0% 19 5%
T oo tax bt e 1o dineor tineed o cratione 25 114 71 AR
Eftective rate of tax - discontinued operations |
Total tax in income statement 52.8 (9.3) 43.5 1 A6y ER
Effective rate of tax - total Group O 21.0% ; 21.0% 11.5%

Ther UG5 Lo Gty e Jobe 20 bnecan oe biecon 22 Dovennbes 200 e d kvwec e e reale of Fedoad ndome foax Bome 30 W D1 foen 1 dare ey 21018 Gean thad the
e bange . s Lariie by mnectioo by thie balanc 6 hent onte TG dsforred o bala cosonees romievsredd ronesnlton v or e ot e it 2017 o e dne ogne

obaberi b af s “rcand a Choarge 13 e o dedated Stserornd ot Songuche o b come uf 0 am
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2.4.6
Recognised outside of the income statement

In ackonton 1 amous-ls charged (o g ncome staen mt some currant Lax ancd deleres] tax s fored ed) o arged drectly 1o eq ol o niongh omer compreher se g
i oreg, which can be analysed ae follows

2018 2017
e £m £m
Deterred tax. !
On eguty-settled trarsactons a1 i iy
Orire-madsirenent g« aeo o defined eenefin plans 3.5 t1.3,
) (1.8
Current tax.
wn change < valig of ellecive nel investment hedge dervaines 0.3 0
On ety settled transactions 11 -
B (1.
Of whue b the followang amcnn bs are chatgede (e redited;
to the staterront of compre ensve NCQR I 3.8 o
to the stalenert of changes 1 eduily 1.2 {3
5.0 SRE

2.4.7
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deteried taxes record the tax ¢ onsedquences of temparary difzenices belveet the ac counting o d taxation recognilion o certzan tems as oxplaned below

Assets Liabities Net

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

£m £m £m om £m £m

Non-cuitent assets 0.9 11 (34.8) 34 1 {33.9) (33
Inveritories 3.9 42 (2.8) 3 5} 14 07
O rovaluationr of dorvalives 0.2 05 (3.1) 136 (2.9) 3.1}
Emplovee benafits and provisions 30.3 303 (8.6) 37 21.7 268
Other 1ax assets ey 20 - | -2 20
36.5 381 {49.3) | {44 9) (12.8) 6.8

QHtsetting wirhi tax unsdlc tons (19.5) (172} 19.5 | 1e 2 - -
Total deferred tax assets and liabilities ~ro 209 (20.8) 2r7  12.8) 68,
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The e ncnd o el ddeined 1ax badat © e Pas been rgoogteechn thie ine neal statersants s anabveed heloes
g

Recogmsed Recognised
inthe outside the

Balance at income NCome Balance at

t Jan 18 statement staterment Exchange 31 Dec 18

. L o in fm fm £m £m

Mon-e et 4 ety A3 0.2 - (1.1) (33.9}
Iry.entong, [ 0.6 - 0.2) 1.3
O s ahalion o e el ocs 131 0.2 - - 2.9}
Ermploves beac fits and proscior 260 {1.8) {3.6) 0.5 21.7
Ot g “ax dhbels 20 {0.9) - 0.1 1.2
et detered tax baks ity 6 &) 171 (3.8 {0.7) {(12.8)

Recopnised  Recogrised
n g cutside the

Balarce at g nCome Balarco &t

1dan 17 staterment staternent Cxcmange 31 Deg 17

£m m £m £ £m

M- ot asuet 235 11z - 16 L33
frvratone: Sy e - J1 S
Onyreafuation ol el (R I - - a1
Ernpleyae Denetds ancs prea o s 3R 2 12 0 =] ine, 26 6
Ot o T aseere N RR4) - Wt 20
Net deierred tax labalny 192 Wy 18 106 16 3)

All excharge mosertents v Liken through e e lanon resane

2.4.8
Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Destorred tax 2este of U0 2m 201 £49 1m) have not e recogriszd nresnect of tax fosces of $69 4m (2017 060 i nterent of 32 30207 TH3 6ry
and captal lossos of T113 0m 2017 C118 dmy The majarty of the tax oswes havoe no expiry dates No deferred tax a0 sot hins been recogrsacd for theao temporay
differances due to the uncersanty over ther offsot aganst future taxahle profits and thorelore ther rer cverabiity I ome s ances 1those balanoes e also yet o
b accopred by the tax sutl onbcs nd condd e challenaged i the event of an audit

It 15 Ikl hat the ety of nn e rutted e nngs of overseas subedianes s ld auahfy for the Uk dividend exempltion: Hogeser V3G zm 2017 250 Smy of those
Bt ngs May sttt 1 tax babilty prncpally as o recutt of wathholomng taxes kevierd By 100 v seas | i S0CHons 00 et Eone sabsidianes operate. These lax

babuit o wser T od eapecied o exceed 2 4 2017 T2 50 ) ot which V2 T 2017 Tz any haw been provicied on the baois o he Gion evpec - loenim b ase v onnly

2.5
Discontinued operations

When the Group has assets and labilties that have been sold In the year or are lkely 1o De sold rather than being held for continuing use, these assets and liabiies
are included n current assets and liabites and denoted ‘held for sale’ rather than n ther usual categonies. They are recogrised at the lower of camying amount and farr
value less costs to sef Impairment losses on the initial classfication of assets as held for sale are ncluded in the Income Statement, even for assets measured at fair
value, as are mparment [osses on subseqguent remeasurement and any reversal thereof. Once classified as heid for sale, assets are no longer depreciated or amortised.

If they represent a significant enough proportion of the Group, they are also treated as discontinued operations. A discontinued operation 1s a component of
the Group's business that represents a separate major linc of business that has besn disposed of, is held for sale or 1s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to re-sale. This means that ther trading performance, 1.e. ther revenues, costs and other ilems of income and expense, are no longer reported within the
headiine figures n the Income Statement and are Instead reported N a separate ine, net of tax, called ‘discontinued operations’. These amounts no longer form
part of continuing earmings per share. Comparative igures are restated to be shown on the same basis.

This enables the income Statement for the currert and prior year to be presented on a consistent basis and to convey a more forward-looking version of the
results for the year,

Troorts waets Ty proft or loos rom decontinr s ape alrns m 20°a

A ok gan of 2 m aned pe bl g ef ©T6 e oo cgnn e i 2000 e ase it e the fnalb-stion ot omib er of matters velde opto bistone sbds conte ued operation-.
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What you will find in this section

This section shows the assets used to generate the Group’s trading performance and the liabilities incurred as a resuilt.
Liabilities relating to the Group’s tinancing activities are addressed in Section 4. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are shown in Section 2.4.7. On the following pages there are sections covering working capital, non-current assets,
acquisitions, other payables due after more than one year, provisions and pensions,

3.1
Working capital

Working captal represents the assets and labilites the Group generates
through its trading activities. The Group therefore defines working capital as
trade and other recevables, Inventory and trade and other payables Working
caprtal is managed very carefully to ensure that the Group can meet its trading
and financing obligations within s ordinary operating cycle.

To provide the Executive Committee with insight into the management

of working capital, an important measure monrtored is cash conversion
Cash conversion ts defined as the operating cash flow (as defined in the
commentary on the cash flow statement) divided by the segmental operating
profit which therefore represents the proportion of segmental operating profit
generated during the year that has been converted into cash.

3.1.1
fnventories
2018 M7
£m e
Raw materals and consumables 1016 KSR+
Work In progress 104.6 1136
Firushed goodis 66.3 58 2
o5 251.3
Inventories are stated after: - L B
Aliowance for mparment 33.3 38.2

In 208 the cost nfrwentonies recogrised as an expenso (being segimental
cost of sales) amoeanted to £1,089 4m 2017 €980 1), The Group's inventory
ncreasedd by £21 2m due 10 ncreases In mwentory held i Preciion Eaognecnng
{relating to the acouistion of Biriig) anc ycront Chognecting

In 2018 the wihle-down of mveniones 1o net redliwable value armno inted to
£6 O (2017 £13 4m} The resersal of wiile-downs amounted 10 113 5m
(2017 L8 6m) Write-downg and 1evel sals i both years relate 1o on-gongy
assessments of Inventory obsolescerce, excess nventory helding ana
rwventory resale vatuas across all of the Group's busnesses

3.1.2
Trade and other receivables
2018 2017
fm fm
Current
Tra= recanal e, 370.2 3399
Other recetvables 58.1 522
Prepraments ar d accrued meomee . 22,0 26 .
450.3 4188
Receivables are stated after, .
Allo vanie for impatrinent 132 125

The Group s traue and other recervables moreansed by £32m durng e year
doe to loreign exchange Tnoverrietils of 1300 raumg movemenis of 9o and
an i resse of P 10m fullowing the Brmba acouetion

The Growp's exposure 1o credt and market neks related Lo trade and < iher
recewabiles 1o disclosed n Section 4 4

3.1.3
Trade and other payables
2018 2017
£m £m
Current |
Trade payables 198.4 ]
Soctal secunty ard other taxation 28.4 | 268
Other payables 8.2 TH
Accruals and defoned meaime o __‘I_?iq | 158 9
05 4155
Non-current ‘
Other payables __bb ‘ [oR)
396.4 | 4231

The Group u trade and other payables decrearea by £27m Jue to foregn
exchiange movernents of T10m and an nerease of C10m following the Bimtba
acguisiion oftsel by trading movements, of £47m,




105

3.2
Intangible assets

The fallowing section shows the non-physical assets used by the Group to generate revenues and protis. These assets include goodwill, customer relatonships,
order books, patents, development costs and software development costs. The cost of these assets 1s the amount that the Group has pad for them of, when
they have afnsen due to a business combination, the farr value of the specific intangible assets that could be sold separately or which anse from legal rights.

In the case of goodwall, ts cost 1s the amount the Group has paid In acguinng a business over and above the far value of the individual assets net of the labilites
acquired The value of the goodwill can arise from a number of scurces, but i refation 1o our more recent acguistions, 1 has been represented by post-acquistion
synergles and the skills and knowiedge of the workforce The value of the Group's Intangible assets, with the exception of goodwill, reduces over the number of
years over which the Group expects to use the asset, the useful life, via an annual amortisation charge to the income statement.

The Group splits s ntangble assels belween 1hose ansing on acguistions and those which do not, because the amortisation of acquired ntangibles 1s recognised
as an adjusting tem in the income staterment.

Where there are indications that the value of :intangible assets 1s no longer representative of their value to the Group, for example where there 15 a customer

relationshup recogrised but reverues from that customer are reducing, or where goodwill was recognised on an acquisiton but the performance of the business
acquired 1s below expectations, the directors review the value of the assets to ensuwre they have not fallen below therr amortised values. If thus has happened,
a one-nff Imparment charge is recogrised, This section explams the overall carrying values of the intangibie assets within the Group and the specific judgements

and estimates made by the directors n arrving at these values

3.2.1
Analysis of intangible assels

Nor-acqured
Acgured Olhgr Totai Other nori- intangibles
cuslorner atquired acquired acquired under
Goodwall  refabior ships ntargbles ntangioles mtangibles  constuction Total
£m £m £m £m £m m Om
Cost
Aeat 1 arary 2017 472G 0 T34 9 g C202 59 ci RN
Ext hiarege adp timents L) 2.0 01 11y e o {1y
O wprosaty of subs dianes - - {1, (AR i1 - 1) 2y
Agdratipne - - - - 0 ilh 220
Trarslers frosassets 0 he cotr e of core rnction - - - - 130 13 -
[ npoysals - - - - 22} 0 1 it 3)
Ay at 31 Secember 2037 A1 195 4 IR 15 - 1114 251 852 7
Exchange adjustments 16.0 7.0 4.6 27.6 26 0.1 0.1
Acquisitions 39.1 34.2 20.0 93.3 3.4 - 96.7
Additions - - - - 6.7 13.7 20.4
Transfers from assets in the course of construction - - - u 21.4 (21.4) -
Disposals - - {2.2} (2.2} {1.9} - {4.1)
As at 31 December 2018 475 5 236.6 122.3 834.4 143.6 17.3 995.3
Amortisation
Anat 1 danary 237 31T 1151 B8 67T D 514 1490
B Fdtngis atdl s et 11 09 (OReT 20 04 - 203
[raponcs of < ubs cidrnes "1 ni i, w2
[ pa-ak - - - - 51 b
Arnertination for ey 1= 0 2 T E - 22
Anat 3 Decenrbe 217 SR 10 iR 2470 HIER4 3132
Exchange adjustments 0.2 3.3 2.8 5.3 3.0 - 9.3
Disposals - {2.2) (2.2} {1.8) - {4.0)
Impairment 2.0 - - 2.0 1.2 - 3.2
Amartisation for year - 16.2 8.9 251 11.8 - 36.9
As at 31 December 2018 383 1805 99.4 3182 70.4 - 388.6
MNet by ol valir o 21 Do ermba r 20T 813 34 4 100 A28 hiy ¥ 201 IR
Net book value at 31 December 2018 437.2 56.1 22.9 516.2 73.2 17.3 606.7
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3.2.2
Goodwill impainment testing

Goodwill 1s not subect to an annual amortisation charge. Instead, its carrying value 18 assessed annually by comparison to the future cash flows of the busness
to which it relates (the cash generating unit, or 'CGU"). These cash flows are discounted to reflect the time value of money and this discount rate, togsether wih
the growth rates assumed in the cash flow forecasts, are the key assumptions in this mpairment testing process.

Govathalll s Ao ated 10 GO s basad on the synergios expot Wd o be doreed
fresm Hie ac gues tor dpody wiie b the goodwall aros e The Groags has 2012017
19) ¢ ash generating Ul 1o ahieh goodvs e allocated The compsoaiion o
COU rellects Doth the zay e kb oashnflues are gereraled ad he mileinal
reporting struciure Whore our buo b eune s operdate usely vath eact other e
aill cor trme b reevs whether they < Fsuld be trealed as o sngle Gt

Gaodwill 1t tested annaally “or impanmant as part of the ovorall assessmont or
AsSCta agarnist ther recoverdable amounts Theecoverable amount of 4 GGU
the hughor of 1 far value les costs to sell and s value muce Value muce »
determmned e g tash How procctions from financ st budgets, forceast and
plar ~ approvedd by the Board covereg a tvesyear penod and nelude a terminasl
value minttiple The progedded cash flows refloot e [atest expectation

of demandd for produets ano seeoaces

The: hey wsumplions in these calculahions ae the long-lerm growtiy rates nd

the discount rates, appled to forecast cash flows i adaition to the ac higvernen:

of the forecasts themsehes Long turm giowth rates are based on long-terr
ecanotnie fored auts for growth in e manufactunng Lecion n tre gengraphical
1egions 1In which the cash generating anit onerates Pre-lax discount rales
spectic 1o each cash genel sing unil e cdleulated by adiustig Ut e Group
po=t-tax weighted average coel of capital (WACC ) o0 722 (2017 7 ) for the
L rate ralevant 10 the unsde hon belore adding nsk meemia tor the size of

the unit, the characlenslios of the segment m whchat residas and the
geogiraphical regions from which the cash flows are derved

This exeroise resultod n 1t © u<e of the followny ranges of val es for tne
ey assumptions

2018 2017
% %
Pre-tax discount rafe 89-148| 84-114

L ong-tenn growlh rate 0.8-13.1 V=21

For e purpose ol as oang Ahe ogrime diw 2 ol GG 1 e Geup ases a
thre he i or 207 ol the Lt goou il Balance Goodwall oF L 98 2 (2017
VR T e s tiated with he Condrel Vabees SOUn Crte AL E wpreeanig i
vone dered o Bt sigiibic ant The rec cverable aivound of e GG e delemancd
fronn @ valae 1 use cal ulation The key assumptions for the calae mase

v austion are e s courn | rade, growth rate cnd operaling ©ashtlon

These entimates are deternined using the methodokagy diausssend ale o
Tha diseound rate appled tor Contol Vah oo = 3% (2017 10170 and a
growthrate of 2 19+ (2017 2 1-0) 15 auplied mto perpet.ty

No otfer CGEILs have goodwrll Hiat 1= consiclered sk - fic ant 1 the wortas
of the Gio s 1tal aoooaill Dalance nor de any G3EUs tse the canie key
csbuinphion - ter the porpos e o 1 pdrment 1estnd s ol o thes soar ot

thio st

The Grow gy ree eneled an adjosing mpannent chaoge of the coeng valug ol
§72 0 aganst the goodedll asscoated with he Hydlonie senece companies
CGU The catying valie or Ire goanwilb was - eassesserd afler a sales procens
for the CGL was canvelledd

Tno aggregate anaount of goocwill ansing from ad gul=dior < pnor 101 Janary
2004 which rad beor acductea fror the profit andd [0S resenes 5nd
incorporated nto the IFRS transtional balance sheet as at 1 danuaey 200 1,
armounted to 1364r The cumulative smparment recognised in relation tw
goodwill 1= 24 1m 2017 £39m
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The following section concerns the physical assets used by the Group to generate revenues and profits. These assets include manufacturing, distribution and

office sites, as well as equipment used in the manufacture of the Group’s products. The cost of these assets represents the amount initially paid for them

Wilh the exception of the Group's land and assets under construction which have not vet been brought nto use, a depreciation expense 1s charged to the

ncome staterment to reflect the annual wear and tear and the reduction in the value of the asset over ime For details on the peniods over which agsets are
depreciated, see Section 5. Depreciation is calculated by reference 1o the assets’ useful ives, by estimating the number of years over which the Group expects
the asset to be used As we do for our intangible assets (see Section 3.2}, if there has been a technological change or decline in business performance the
drectors review the value of the assets to ensure they have ot falien below their depreciated value If an asset’s value falls below its depreciated valueg,

a one-off mparment charge 15 made agamnst profit

Assets inthe

Land & rlant & coutse of
buildngs eoupmat  corstrusiion Total
om ©m m N
Cost
Ao sty Z0T7 i6e 1 LE3 1 20y 3T
Exchange  djuetments, 05 11 01 15
D posas o sube dhanes w4 21 r (26
~ddtions 17 182 N 47 6
Treeters hor assets  he Lot ae of Con=Trac e 33 2506 2549
[BENSTITRRY 14 L) HCICI LV [T
s at 31 D ember 2017 184 9 0325 211 838 5
Exchange adjustments 14.4 34.7 1.7y 47.4
Acquisitions 7.4 11.0 04 18.8
Additions 0.7 16.3 211 381
Transfers from assets in the course of construction 1.6 20.0 {21.6) -
Disposals (15.0} (27.0) {0.1) (42.1})
As at 31 December 2018 1940 681.5 19,2 9007
Jepreciation
Asal 1 Jantary 2017 9538 a6s T - 5645
Extharige adpu _biments, - 0ne - (2
U3 _ponals of sk e 02 {14 11 6)
D ~pnsals 13 <) 133 8) - (365 9y
Imp:arment « harge 04 29 - RRC]
Derrac 1itior 36 350 - RicN
Anal 37 Decenbe 2057 86.2 4719 - Sits 1
Exchange adjustments 12.9 24.8 - 37.7
Disposals 6.2) (26.1) - (32.3)
Depreciation 28 %8 - 428
As at 31 December 2018 105.8 510.5 . 616.3
NEY at 31 Docemiber 2017 wBT ol 6 214 PRI
NBV at 31 Decomber 2018 88.2 177.0 19.2 284.4
Avetie paement Chan g of Srolrehating to contr uing operation . ocour < dom g the yoar o178 s 3 The recoverable ar ound of thoewe g se has beordotermed

ey thesr Tan value fese coats to off entmated by Dothonderncl and externial coluanon spiec il 19

Crouprcanran by e pen tof oo capdal oxprencdtore wboe b Dad Been placcd ot oo Dadanes cheet datarobt g o the coabinug busmenss o mded 008 150

G017 T e

e bicdecd b s fotral net tiook v g of plant ared cqupr et s COCa 2T O np enne bod aceels aronnoof nngder oo o e g

fheas cavst v C0 2 42017 00 e

Dieporese b for e s on
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3.4
Acquisitions

The following section discusses busmnesses acqured by the Group, which
have given nse to the addiiions 1o the acquired intangble assets (including
goedwil) reported in Section 3.2 and which contributed to the Group's profits,
working capital and other balance sheet asset and habilites.

Gh 31 Jdanwary 2018, the Gro g acqurod 1007 of the share oap tal, and
Assouiated voting nghts of Bimba Manuractunng Sompany (Bimbal and it
sobaid anes for cash consideration of T13% 4m Bimbd s a market leading
maniufac turer of pneumat Ty draale aned electre miot on solutior s Dasod
Narth An enca

This acquist 0N hdas been acLaunted 1or as g business - cmbination “he
firvadsed Far value amosnls recognised = respead O E G denbiiable o sels

acqured dand lalyliies ac umed are s sel oul nothe table b elow

Fair vaiue at
31 January 2018

£m
Ilarigi e ane ety 576
Froperty, phant and equpment 188
Inventories 243
Trade anu other recervalles 93
Cash and cash equivalonts 08
Ttade and other payabiles 1101y
Pruvic cns 14
Total wdent fianle net ansets 99,5
Goowill anssing on acguisition 391
Total purchase consideration 138 1

Tre goodwill recognised above ncludes certam i tangible assets that Lannot
be separately identified and measured duc 1o then nature This includes
control over tho acquired business, the skills and experence of the assemblecl
workforce, the nciease in =cale, synergics and the futire growth opportunities
that the busmnesses provide 1o the Group's operations, The goodhwill and all
intanginfe asscts recogrised are amottisable 1o tax purposes Acquistion
costs of R2.0m were 1ecogrised us an adustng item e the income

statement in 2017

Tre revenue and operaiing profit ncluded i the Consolidated Income Staternent
N 2018 contrbuated by Bimba were £88 3m and £6, "mt respeciively Thete s
no difference belween adjusted and statutery operating prohit for Bimba

I the acaquisihons had taken place on 1 January 2018 thay would Rave
contribated adjusted revenue of £96 Tim and adqusted opearating profit of
£7.0m to the Group results

There were no acquisitions dunng 2017

3.5
Disposals

Thele were no disposal o subsidianes dunng 2018

On 1 Septermber 2017 the Group: disposed of Stanless Stesl ~astorers f S5F
resulting N a loss of £2 3m whech s nptesentecd i the g ome statement as

aft adpisting fem The fu-s on discosals ot asclosed within d scontinues
operahions ¢ SSF did ot epresent o raqgor e of cusines: A sunmaty of the
pioceads ecewed, asvets disposed and iesuling ss ondirposal @ inchded
i the table below

S5F
1 September 2017
£m
Sdle consideration 01
Net assels disposead (11
Consth of disprosadl (13)
Loss on disposal (2.3)
Net cash flow ansing on disposal
Cash disposod ol -
Cash costs of disposal [(83s1]
MNet cash flow ansing on disposal of operations (0.6)




3.6
Provisions

109

A provision 1s recorded instead of a payable (see Section 3.1.3) when there is less certainty over how much cash will be paid and when the payment might be made.
Prowisions are recogrised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliebly estmated. Provisions are valued at management’s best estmate of the amount required ¢ settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date.

A provision for restructunng is recagnised whien the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuning has ether commenced or
has been announced publicly.

The recognition of a provision reguires estimation, The principal estimales made in respect of the Group's provisions concern the iming and amount of payrments
required to

= cover the costs of known restructunng projects;

< reimburse customers for potential product warranty clasms,

» gnsure that current and former manufactunng sites meet refevant environmental standards,

» raflect the estimated outcome of ongony legal disputes, and

» provide against ndemnities following the disposal of subsidianes

Analysis of the Group's provisions.,

Ermronmertal,

Trade legal &

Restructunng warrantias Indemruty Total

£m £m £m £m

Coarreny 30 62 - Gz
Bar-onrern t 15 =35 v 54
At Lanan 2018 } H 5 128 -3 216
Arising during the year 36 0.9 3.4 7.9
Utihsed during the year {13.5} (1.8) (C.4) (15.7)
Exchange adjustment o8 0.2 . -
At 31 December 2018 47 121 104 271
Current 4.3 5.0 3.2 12.5
Non-current 04 71 71 148
4.7 121 10.3 27.1

Thies restruc o prosvison <eflects res dual amnounts comimatted bat aot spent nrelabon o anarber of <nacdie prrogect -

Trade vearraniic are grert e e nonm boours o 1 husese et coeer o swe of penoos, beple allby one 10 e years with e cep oo ted amaonnts salling o oo e
hal And Grea‘er I an one vedl £Cperatch analyued aboes Ao ante <ot aoe reprosen e diced tors" st ez tirnate regardng the ar oot of 1ha setilemcnts, ard
e g of res Slution wathy customen

Enwr orinattal aned logal prostsions rocuge 1uehe Gronp s ohhganon o romedide contanrnated barws at a number ol cunent and former sites together aothy erproni
lexgasl Caataczs for wahie b o settloment & coredore 1 orcbable Beass of the dong-term natiie of e kabihoos the tress ales are e-caran and foe provs ons repracernd
the creclare hest eetinntes of these - ons

Propssinns lar mdemm e v e et e thee sgrecd lerme of on posals of subscdhianes e proscded for based on e espected probatality of nidemindiod losses that
ity b sufteaed by the ponchase:
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What you will find in this section

This section outlines how the Group manages its capital and related financing costs. The directors determine the
appropriate capital structure for the Group, specifically, how much cash is raised from shareholders {equity) and how
much is borrowed from financial institutions {debt} in order to finance the Group’s activities both now and in the future,
The directors consider the Group’s capital structure and dividend policy at least twice a year ahead of announcing resuits
in the context of its ability to continue as a going concern and deliver its business plan.

The Board is mindful that equity capital cannot be easily flexed and in particular raising new equity would normally be
fikely only in the context of an acquisition. Debt can be issued and repurchased more easily but frequent changes lead
to high transaction costs and debt helders are under no obligation to accept repurchase offers.

4.1
Net debt

Net debt 1s the Group's key measure used to evaluate total outstanding debt, net of the current cash resources, Some of the Group's borrowings (and cash)

are held n foreign currences. Movements in foreign exchange rates affect the steriing value of the net debt, Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an mitegral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the staternent of cash flows.

a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

2018 2017
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents I current asects 132.2 98 &
Bank overdraftin cunent ldblies {82.6) (3149
Cash and cash equivalents 49.6 67 6
b) Reconciliation of net cash to movement in net borrowings
208 2017
£m fm
Net ‘decrease)increase n cash and cash equivalents excluong foreign exchange (18.7) 02
Net ichavedownytepayment of botrowings excluding forewgn excharge and net debt disposed-acquied 7 (86.0} 2.1
(Increase)/decrease n net debt before acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchange {105.7}! 23
Net rlebl ac ey ared (15.04,
I
Curntency translat on difforences o (18.6) 151
Movement in net borrowings in the year (139.3) 17.4
Net borrowang: al the start of the vear (265.2) 282,86

Net borrowings at the end of the year {404.5) 285 2




c) Analysis of net debt

Borrowings and
finance leases due

111

Cash and cash withun after more Total

equivalents ONE yedr ‘ham™ one yoar net debi

m om m m

Al Catulaty 201z 67 o 18 19 2ol 2y
Covsbr o ke adinng <6 Nlraent of Coeong v A0ral L os el g Dabonc e shoet anel et 01U s eeed Df st orec (3.4) 36.6 {121.8) (88.6)
MNe L sebt 20 g 0.8 - (15.8) (15.0)
SetlEment of curre s ten, @ De - bedgng Dalane & [issg {17.1) " B (17.1)
Tt o S allatio | difter (e e 1.7 (1.8) (18.7) (18.8)
At 31 December 2018 "7 496 (78.8)  (375.3)  (404.5)

4.2
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The Group borrows money from financial mstitutions in the form of bonds and other financial nstruments These generally have fixed interest rates and are for

a fixedt term or are drawn from cornmitted borrowing faciities that generally have floating interest rates.

Thir o nproviaes N onnabio catout e tore ook Lo Gro dpes otene I=bese nyg laaee ano Larias g
Vet rale and lorsgn e ncy risk see Secton 1103

Fur more, i eniotirt abc b e Groups e L

2018 2017
£m i £m
Current habilities
U ired o 4m wotes aed other loar - 78.6 ' 1738
Fnang e leq. e tabiltes 0.2
- 788 175 8
Non-current habihties :
tvecired o aoten Ard other 1gar 5 375.2 27848
Friane ¢ 1ease kabilities 0.1 8}
3753 90

On 21 February 2018, the Grows repard uosocured o otes o 508 T abe sgreed tew ohsecured loan notes fotaling £70 8im- "he new loan notes have

aden-year ienn ard an effectae nteres gale 01 547

On 31 dettn iy, 2018 follover ng e aropa vion S8 Bin bac WVarof g Gor pary, 10e Sroup copaed 1715 i ol uesocoeed [osne bold by e cobdy priee 4o

Aconsdar Or o Apnl 2018, he Group entere din To ne e un octred o reetes for P8R Cmoand Cbag 2mowhieh Baee terms of 8 and 9 years rospec el

These s lozn aotes s a6 effe lise meres e of o 2o and 352 - renp o tenly The oo a o otes
wsed o und e acouisation o1 Banba Manutad iunng Gomipasiy

Were vsed {G repdy e s hiort erm borroanggs
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Section 4 — capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.3
Net financing costs

This section details the Income generated on the Group's financial assets ang the expense incurred on borrowings and other financial assets and habiies.
The finance income and expense takan into account in armving at adjusted earnings only includes the income and expense ansing on cash balances,
borrowings and retirement benefit obligations, The finance mcome or expense on mark-to-rmarket movernents on interest and foreign exchange derivatives
and other financing costs are excluded from adjusted earnings.

Recognised in the income statement

2018 207
Financiah Fnancial
interest instruments Total Interest  Instruments Total
£m £m £m £ £m £m
fterest imcome on bank doposit 5.8 5.8 55 55
Fmareoial mstron ents at fan value through pront or kess i
O or eronomc hediges
- cunrant year rading 13.9 139 09 6
- fultne year transachon s 2.2 2.2 56 58
Financial iIncome 5.8 18 219 | 5hH 126 180
Interest expenue on interest-baanrg kans ana Loneyings {18.7) {18.7}° 119 8) 119 8,
Financial nstraments al far value throwgh profit or loss
Other eronormic bedge:
- cutrert yoar trading {15.9} {15.9) 6 8) &8,
futire year Lan.ac o’ s {4.6) (4.6} 24 24
Financial expense a7 {20.5) (39.2) (148 fickel} 29
Net financial income relating to defined benefit pension schemes (1.4) o (1.4} 0.8 (]
Net financial expense {14.3} (4.4} {(18.7) (151 33 1118
Incivded in financidl nstruments are Clorent yedr trading gans and losses on ecoromicaly effectve hansactions which for management repottmng puiposes ae
ncluced n adjusted revenue and operatng proft (see Section 2 1) For siatutory plrposes these are regquied 1o be showrn wath i net Inancial neome and expense
above Gans or losses for futtre year bansactions are in -espect of itanual instruments reld by the Group to pravide stabhty of futuwre tradng cash flows
Recognised in other comprehensive income
|
2ms8 2017
£m m
Chanye in fan value of offec tve portion of net mvestment hedges 1.9 34
Foreign currency translation differences (4.5) {110,
Change i far value of otrer financial assets 0.2 {021
lnco_rp_@_ rax on temns r_ec:ogmsqd n other comprobensive NCOMo B £_0_§) {61
Total items recognised in other comprehensive income (nstrof tax) _(_g.‘l) 84
Recoyrised n i
Hedging reserve 1.8 | 26
Translation reseive B {a.5) (11 ()

27" 8.4)




4.4
Financial risk management

The Group's activiies expose It 1o a vanety of financial risks Inteiest rate,
foreign exchange and base mestal price movements in addion to funding
and figuidity nsks. The financial nstruments used 1o manage these risks

themselves mtroduce exposure to cradit nsk, market risk and liquidity risk

This section presents mformation about the Group's exposure to each of
these riske, the Group's objectives, pelicies and processes for measurng
and managing risks, ncluding each of the above ngks, and the Group's
management of capial

4.4 .1
Overview

The Soard bor o aallse e buliry for b e | obie b o tans s abt
the Srovgpe - sk e agemier fore o As e b ihe Corpeorate
Gormtanee Senart on peaae s e Exe e Gorr e Hes monsor s e ko
cohee alrontnl e the Ao Comormttas g o hipancal red, vaalle the

et Boarcl onnnttess ab ook oot cormbadiog o the et ol e b

The Avcdt Comn ittee oot s os bow taenagen 01 reoncrs o omsdan,e aath
the GIoup s finarc o sl management potivies e o eduwes anekees s the
acdoyuacy of itk ar agoment amevork o ckaaon 1o he mancnl she
faved by the Sioun The Gerup AT arane e dopatment o rtakes both regolar
Aney ad-hoe ieviews, of sk rmaragenmert controbs wno arecertues the resolts
ot sher ae opoded o the Andt Somm itee

Thie fullcearng -3¢ s dis uss e managoment of - e fo inansnd nsds fa ors
v et ncduding credil ke oreaan exe hange el cachi-llo o terest rate ne
corimoediy rrk anc haudily nak

4.472
Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s the nisk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or
counterparty 1o a financial Instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Group's recevables from customers, cash
and cash equivalents held by the Group’s banks and other financial assets.
At the end of 2018 these totalled £503.4m (2017 £442.5m).

4.4.21
Managing credit nsk arising from customers

The Grag v =xpootre Lo Creaht nskos influences iy sy e il
Charactenst s of each costomer e demographic = of the Group o custoner
Prase e o b aefaadt nelc ol e ncaandey anc oo antry eowbic b cus loniers
operate Dave ez of coomdlence on credt nskc Our Larges! sine customer

a rmed ord oo BB connc [P0y g8

Geoograntag dly Dicte s Gt tal e b enitanko o credil ok Toe Giroop
cordrac Lap prot al prroc e e cocare s iat large connac s are gned o at
el dnootor Toeetal aba b o the ke protile o B cotitract o cding

polerial ered Tand forcsgr e nagege ke s gc oo Greditrskos o nnk o

thro igh dine diiger ce on o o Dol s usTomers, apy roprate cred hmts ooeh
oy raragernens anc e v ooof coe rmentary ¢redits s ere ar Oprate

4.4.2.2

Exposure to credit risk in respect

of financial assets

113

The miax mum exsocue W credit res for Tren gl st s pepnesentesd b then

Ly vab e ar ool sedd ek

Carryng amouit

208 | 207

em | m

Coy @ doashi eyt dents 132.2 O G
Invesume: s 3.7 YU
1359 Y

4.4.2.3

Exposure to credit nsk in respect

of trade receivables

Carrying amaount

2018 | 2047

£m ‘ fm

LN 16.2 140
Getimiarny 26.1 1 R
Fe-tof Eurons 109.5 ‘ ag
UsA 66.0 | AT
Asla Pacific 84.9 | 816
Fiet of Workd 67.5 | G
T s70.2 339 9

The midsamurm sxrosing o crsedit = for race recetvables at the reporting

date by segment was as follow:

WAL Crite b By gvisetarg
INA Pre et sty Enrpineson gy
M —yceon o Engmesernng

Carrying armourit

2018 2017
£m £m
188.5 " ;R4
135.8 | 163
45.9 1 2
a7o.z A4 4
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(continued)

4.4.2.4
Impairment provisions for trade receivables

The agang of nade erevables at the rtepot g date was

208 ‘ 2017

Gross  Impairment Gross  Imparment

im £m em m

Not pact due 299.9 ©0.1) N2G HSCS
Pactcue 1-30d o5 36.0 (0.5} 26 4 [
Past due 31 9 uags 22,7 (0.9) 126 8
Past dues over 9 days B 248 RULE 208 10 B)
Total 383.4 (13.2) 352 4 gz b

The net mevernent n e alloean e for mpaimment aeapec ot racde
rocenable clanng t e yedr was a- follows

2018 2017

£m | €m

Net patanen a1 Jantiay 12.5 114
Aceuisihions 0.1 -
Uiilsed dunng the year .7 ARYY]
Chargad to the Income s atemen-t 2.6 30
Released {0.3). 3
Exc ha-ge L -i 03
Net balance at 31 December 13.2 125

The not imparment ¢ harae rocoanined of £2 .3m 2017 charge ot §2 7imj
rolatos 1o the movement In the Group's assessment of the nsk of non-rec overy
from a range o custoimers across all of its busnesses

4,425
Managing credit risk arising
from counterparties

A group of eelationshnip Hanks provides 1he bul o e banking serve g wilh
pre-approved crecit {nats set for each mstitohon Financal denvatives are
entered INto with hese fore Banks and tre credit exposure to 'Pese narument
15 e ludad when considanigg ihe credit expos,ure 1o e cotintarparhes. At the
end of 2018 credrt exposure nciuding « ash deposrred cid not exceed ©18 Om
w th Ay s ngle nstitahon 2017 £18.0my

4.4.3
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and commadity prices will affect the Group's
income and cash flows or the value of its financial instruments. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters.

Under the management of the central treasury function, the Group enters
into derivatives in the ordinary course of business and also manages financial
fiabiities in order to mitigate market risks, Al such transactions are canied
out within the guidelines set by the Board and are undertaken only if they
relate to undertying exposures.

4.4.3.1
Fareign exchange risk

The Group pubhshes consolidated accounts in sterling but conducts much
of its global busness in other currencies, As a result it 1s subject to the nsks
assocrated with foreign exchange movemnents affecting transaction costs
{'transactional risk ), translation of foreign profits {'profit translation nsk’}
and translation of the underlying net assets of foreign operations

("asset translation nsk’).

a) Management of transactional nsk

The Broeps wde geograbiieod spreadd huth i termis of Cost base and customer
fou alitr s helos to reduee the anpact on prof talbality of <einge 1 excbar ug

ratos g well as croatng Spportunmes for contral etmg of exposures s the
Sronpr s pobey T rminnise msk to exchange rate movements affecting sdles and
prrchasrs by econanedlly heaging or nett ng corrend y expuasures at the tmae

of commitnent, or when there 15 acbugh probabelity of future con nitment using
currency nstrurments (primardy “orward exc hange contrad tst A proportion of
foree «st exposures are hadged dopene ng on the lovel of conidence and bredging
15 petadically adisted Felowing reqgular revigas On thes as = over 50 of the
Growgr s annual oxposures to transachonal vako are Hlely to be hedged ol ary port
In A e and e Group's Net Bansdc o al expo-te 1 drteron Lounenc os vanos
o time 1o time

b) Management of profit translation risk

I Gron gy ks axsosed 10 the trarslation of profit . dencmindgted 0 Gregn
Gurencies mio he sterling-bHased meome stiatement Tha mierest colt related
to the cieren vy labdhties hedamg the asset hase provides a parbal hedge 1o th -
expostne Sorl-lerm corrercy ophion contracts imdy be uged to provide be ter
prolection aganst sterlng strength o an opporlonistic base The translaton
of US dollar and auro-nased protts iepresent she mo-t sgnine an® transtation
exposures lor 1he Group

c} Management of asset translation risk

The Group hedges ils net Investment® I s Mar Svarseas operalion: by way
of external currency loans and forward currency ¢onracts The intentior s fu
managa Ihe GroLp s exposure 1o gairs and [osses o Group equity resulting
trom retranslation of currency net assets ot balance sheet dates

o the extent that an nstrument used to hedge « nelirvestment in & ‘oregn
operation s determined 1o be an effective hodge, the gam or 1085 anzing

I recogmsed diet By i ihe ranslation reserses Any 1 otied tve orliorn i
reuagnised runediatel, my the income staterment
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d} Currency profile of assets and liabilittes

Assels ‘
subject |
Exchange to interest Other Total | Total
Cash" Debt cortracts rate nsk net assets net asset{s | net assets
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 | 2017
£m £m £m £m Em £m | £m
Slenligg 41 - 485 526 (11 515 nA
5 doll - {248) (11) {259) 318 59 =0y
Etiray (AR} {207) (2186} (434) 520 86 170}
Ot e 20 - {258) {238) 244 6 133
Total 50 {455) - (405) 1,071 666 G

SOl e st L ne of cucrn afe

Exchbarwgz on tncms g dnon telrg deb b ancalvstoae tosdbascaen o hedgeo of oeerscos et Ls -t
] 1

4,432
interest rate risk

The Group 1s exposed to a number of global nterest rates through assets and liabities denominated in junisdictions to which these rates are apphed, most

notably US, Eurczone and UK rates. The Group is exposed to these because market movermnents in these rates will ncrease or decrease the interest charge
recognised N the Group income statement.

a} Management of interest rate risk
The Grows edOpts a RpolCy of Todantandig 4 portan o Ly hbilbe- at fixea inrerestrares and reviey ng the balat e e of the = sating rate exposure tu ensarc that it
Horest raes rae globally e eftie, ton the Grolp s 17come statemen® i 1 anagedbie

Ireront rate < e mrnacted Lsing tend anea fosteg rste debt andd soane s resemmeats ineludineg imlereat rate seaps Tlnatoyg rate lapditen compne e short-tenm anlbs
whi honears rtore- tat shert-term benlo rates acd the Iablty e of excobanage contrad ts waere the wton o eloment o hased poer Sely e o o o b e terbiankorates

Allcash zsuplises are rwvested for shor pe ods and are trested as Hoaling aota mvestments

Non-pterest bear *g inane lal as-ets ad labimesone ding snam-term tacz recelvables amd payables | ase been oxcded »on the tollosing anaiysls
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b) Interest rate risk profile

Tre iehorang taole shows how nuch of o Lashe nterent teanng labilies ancd exchanage contoacts allract bath ixecd and flonting 1aie nterest chagss

and hovr this s anabvsed hetween cunencies

Assels Weighted
Debt and Cash and subject Weighted average
exchange exchange to interest Floating Fixed average period
contracts contracts rate risk rate rate fixed for which
2018 2n8 2018 2018 2018 interestrate rate s fixed
£m £m £m £m £m % years
Swerlr y - 526 526 526 -
US dollar {259) - (259) (12} (248) 5.2 5.2
Euro (423) {11) (434) (226) (207) 1.4 7.3
Othey {258) 20 (238) (238} -
Total  (940) 535  (a08) 50 ' (a58)
Assets Wenghted
Dbt and Cash and subyect Weightet average
exchange sxchangs to interest Floatng Fixed average peniod
contracts contracts rate rnisk rale rate fixed for which
2017 2017 “m7 2017 2017 nlerestrate  rate s fixed
£m £m £m £m £m % years
Sterlingy - 522 522 Ay
US dollar 217 36 1181 15 1186 67 10
Furo A306) 9 A27) 1.294) 1135 11 73
Othet 205) 26 ITG a7y
Total (B85H8) 583 1265) 64 1329)
4433 Funding for the Group 15 co-ordinated ¢enlrally by the treasury fune o and

Commodity risk

The commodity mputs to the Group's production process typically consist
of base metals. Commaodity risk for the Group is the risk that the prices of
these inputs could rise, thus reducing Group profits.

The Group s operating companies purchase metal and 7 glal Lononents
and are therefore exposed 10 ¢hanges 10 cormmocity prices

Management of commodity risk

The Group manages his exposurs through o cenbralised process hedging
copper, 2nc and alummium using a combmatior of financal contracts and local
supply agreements designad 10 minm se the volatiity of short-term inargins

4.4.4
Liguidity risk

Liquidlty risk is the nisk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due.

a) Management of liquidity risk

The Group's approach to managing hguichly s 1o ensure, as far as possible
that it will always have adequate resources to meet its izl ies when they
fall due, wilh su'ficient headroom to cope vath abnormal market conditions
Thig posirion s reviewed on a quartetly basis

comprses corrmited bilateral fact es valb a core group of banks, and a senew
ol US loan nole issues, The level of faciities 1 mantaned suct that faciities
and ferm loans exceed the forecast peak grass debit of the Group over a roling
12 month wievr by an appropr ate amount taking mo account miarket conditions
and corporale aclvily, meluding acquesttions, organic growth plans and share
Duybracks I addition, we undertake regular covenant comphance reviews o
ensure that we rema i fully wathin those coverant inints At the end o 2018

the Group had undrawn committed faciibes totaling C300m (2017 £302n0;

and w4t holding cash and cash eguivalents of 5132 (2017 £9%m) There are
no significant seasonal funding recuarements or capital ntensive ~vestiment
areas [or tre Group

4.5
Capital management

Capital management concerns the decision as to how the Group's activities
are financed and specifically, how much of the Group capital is provided by
borrowings {or debt) and how much of it is financed with equity raised from
the issue of share capital.

The Board's policy is 10 maintain a balance sheet with a broad capital
base and the strength to sustain the future development of the business
including acquisitions. This section discusses how the Board views the
capital base of the Group and the impact on leverage, distribution policy
and investment policy.




451
Overview

The Board mian tors, the geogtap ol spread of ity sharenckds - andg ermoloyees
al€ ENeniage G o old shares it o Somipany The Captal Dase o1 e Graik,
iwelucter colal oo oaty ardeserves ond net debt Ernployer Genelr obbgatieons
rel o deiened e fonn arl of e exler ded copatel Ba e Manag-mert of g
glatent of the Captal one ke oI cunsed turther m Sacton 39 of The finanged
statemenls Ul eomae ted luncding facilibies are ininetaned s o6 ke
i1 Sechor 4ot oGprnode addinonal contab Tor g oath g bndie g accp - tions
abJdorgane e me e e oty sgurenente gy diucussed obe oo
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Capital base

2018 207
km | £m

- - P— I
Tedal eau 666 1
et el cdineg e erddraft 537 I aed
G s ¢ st {132)! 199}
Capitel bra-e EY: 2 ! ATo
Ernpluyee bene s o e ieered e ae e ls 45 27
Exterdod . aptal ha-c 1,116 | 599
Hirchiay - funding fzoihes 300 ! 302

A arlabie capral b e 1,416 i 1.2

Part L1 o captalba o < held i correncies 10 0 cadly mateh the cunend y tast
of the waets ooy Tunded as descibod in ee @sect ranskaien rsk sectio”

453
Debt or equity

The bradart e tetree el ancd eguiy 1 the capal Jbase ol he Groap L
conidered euularly by the Boara i highe of miarke® cornbhons, Lusnes
foree a1 graredh opporturie and the tatio of et debl e cundinu g
AdjisteE FRITOA Fundr g omenanl cuirendhy Il net desd L amaximium
of 30 tmes FRITDA The net debt 1o FRITDA rato al the end of 2018 s
13 tmes 2017 09 umes) Through the e of o five year vdan, the Board
veondld Lor e capprosmale asagun dioss that could teke net delt up 1o 2 5
Lines FBITOA o de guisit on s provided e d cledar plyo et Gs 1o reduce 1o
FANO bR T e 200 e, It expecien boat al these leels our debt veould
comtre e 10 b pores e as naestment grade. The potential becetts to eoory
sharet olders of greater leverage are ifsel by higher -k and ihe cost and
avebatality of funde g "he Board will conrader rarng addhanal egaty in

Ther evert that ! 1 recuned to suppeort the cauital base of the Group
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454
Dividend policy and share buy-backs

A et of e Capital ranagemer! niocess e Grobp encires that acegste
recstpy ale atllabile 1 BAL Pk 1 Oie to miced croposed sherehiolaen dhaderd
the purchuse of shoes o employee sbore 0o o ek oles and any on-mehet
“Fare Ly ko programme-=

Uit the Groupr o er et Fee a furmal de dened ol ro g ont e,

e Group s amme o cort Lo ch topie alty

INE A0S AT A STeacd, rate o oot thienlo e e sl di dend payineods ) etn
At e that e diodend shauld 1 ouy the ol e cosored by At least toe
timee adie ted conngs I the event hat the Bo wd cannsbdentiry suraomnt
It Lt oppr st s fhrough capitab cxperdina orgdnee grosathe nflatec -
AN AT D07 e retrn of Thndds b cnared older, 3ormagh s hae buvboag ks
ar special diader ds wilk e conaidered 1t sheuld be noted that a numiber of
Chares ate g bty Do the macke Ly o erpuley oo Denefit 1 st nooedet

ug sath progress © b el

fohege e Expes G nnader on e e egemient o ente o plars Dotsils of

fro coonlichase A shavron Secthon 170 2 o the i e al statement .

455
Weighted average cost of capital

The Granp Carrenlly uses a | Gol-lax ve ghted duetage cost ol capital FLVACTS
of T L 20T T g as arenchirah for moestment refurns This = e ed
tegulaly mthe Tght of Clkages memree et rates The Bowd lacks the Gronp~
eturn o rvested Lot andd seetes o ensu e el consietently aetbvers seturms
in exeess of the WACT

4.6
Debt and credit facilities

This section provides details regarding the specific borrowings that the Group
has in place to satisfy the debt elements of the capital management policy
discussed above.

4.6.1
Undrawn committed facilities

Thes Grove has vanous, ndraven commatted boe oaong Tacile The facilkber,
Avalabte at &1 Decermbar orespect of sarch all canont ere precodent §ard
b onmet s ere e follows

2018 017

£m £m

Lxpatrs g watlser onue yiar 50.0 515
Expnrig petwens one arkd Lo yoears 125.0 D0
Fxpmiricy after v oore bars i ve g s 125.0 Lo
300.0 ant s

T seighite ol aworate Do st thoao Tao o 18 Hyoare G0 23 ear )



118 IMI ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.6.2
Terms and debt repayment schedule

The tetits ana Corkdions of Carh and cash egeesalants and outslanding loans were as folloas

Fffeciive Carryng  Contractual Oto 1t0 Zto 310 410 5 years
interest rate value cash fows <1 year <2 years <3 years ~4 years <5 years and over
% £m £m £m £m £m £m ©mn £m
2018
Cash and cash equivalents Floating 132.2 132.2 132.2
US loan notes 2019 7.61% {78.6) {84.1) (84.1)
US loan notes 2022 717% (11.7) (15.1) (0.8) (0.8) (0.8} (t2.6)
US lpan notes 2025 1.39% (135.1) (147.3) .9 (1.9) (1.9} {1.9) (1.9) (138.0)
US loah notes 2026 3.86% (97.7) (125.9) (3.8} (3.8) (3.8) {3.8) {3.8} (107.1)
US loan notes 2027 3.92% {58.6} {78.1) (2.3} (2.3} (2.3) (2.3} {2.3) {66.6}
US lpan notes 2028 1.53% {721} (82.5) 1.1} (1.1} {1.1) (1.1} {1.1) {77.0)
Finance leases Vanous 0.3) 0.4) {0.2} {0.2}
Bank overdrafts Floating {82.6) 82.6) (82.6)
Total ) (404.5)  (483.8) ‘448 @od) T 9.9 @17 81y (@388
2017
Casthr And € a0 h equivalernt: Flealing GH G Gy [ G (s
US laan notes 20148 598 A1 1121 11z 1
US lgan notes 2014 F01 (74 1) (82 9 15 1) (77 3l
LIS loait notes 2022 TAF™ 11N (150 {0 =) for k) L ed o) {11 e
US an notes 2025 139 132 140 & 1&) (el A= RN 1 & {1369
Fiicre € leases War ULy {0 4 04 - o4
Bank overdafts Fivating 31 0) 131 ) 310
Unseoured bank lnans [Noating (R0} B4 2.7} 7y
Total {265 2) 292 1 (55 4) 810 (2 6) (2 b) {13 6) {136 9)

Contraciudgl cash flows mohude unchiscouted commiltedbnterest case ows ang, where the amount payable » not fixed  the amount chisc losed 1s celermmed by
reference 1o the conditions existing «t the reporting date



4.7
Fair value

financial nstruments ncluded in the financial statements are measured at either fair value or amortsed cost. The measurement of this far value can in some
cases be subjective, and can depend on the inputs used in the calculations. The Group generally calculates s own far values using comparable observed
market prices and a valuation madel using the respective and relevant market data for the instrument being valkied

4.7 .1
Total financial assets and Labilities

Tr table e lowy st Gt D Gronps 30 e Clasniflc on of ca frolass of fincenaal as =0t~ and abilitcs s oo far cahoes o 07 Decembies 20018
et A1 Docernbe e 2017 Tinger FRS Gl serate e boane il e Brgreend nat na bedoge iehatioscbae ae ol Bod s dere alpo oo al bar doe ferongh the

neome staterment Toe Groups diss not use detioalives 100 spot Uk o0 purpes 05 and transa ts Sl cenvar ve wih culiable Fvsstment Crade Cotmerpiares
Al tearsactior Lmdenn vree i b stenonts aiedetsher foomanage the skl st o rom the Gres e boseess g vt

Far value
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Other Finanzial . At Total
Desigrated ueralnes duuglsat o amorlised CaTying Fair vaiue
at tar value at fan value fair value™ % cost value if ddfarent
£m om o £m m £rm
2018
Crnt ar doash ool oty 132.2 132.2
Bk cra i, {82.6) {82.6)
Bor oangs due aathe ong yaar {78.8) {78.8) {79.8)
Bor onvnigs o allen cne oy ga (375.3) (375.3) {379.9)
Trade and o1oer payatle - (396.4) (396.4)
Tredde roc erabile 370.2 370.2
Inves, menfs 2.9 0.8 3.7
Other carront Tnanie al —see s Ahatal be-)
Darvatre souets” 1.0 1.0
Derwative fabubaas: ** (3.5) 0.5) {4.0)
Total  Bs 8 136.1 (562.1)  (430.0)
o
Caml a i Cdsh: oy dents 98 b 98 &
B k overcirafis 31 04 131 0f
Bor v angs due siber o0y oar 1113 8; 113 8 11116
Borrosage doue ey one your (AN (2190 2z )
Trade and otrer pavables 1423.1) i2d T
Trade reden abile 3399 A399
A (] ST (R 130 0H 138
Ctagn coaront fnancial assetsohatsl tos)
Dervative as ets" 41 41
Dervatree Tatiline 3 o) 349y
[otat 12 3) 0 i11e 116 2} (534 )

Fhis oL s B an e edes terves for s b by ey spiee oenend an L vedie anll bre oo ogrised i Doth pretit o ko andd e counpreboer e e omes

Trade and otrer pavabile s excluce c orporaden Lo and cthier fas ablitios ool indode abdties of £ SmoZ0t s 6 oo fallig due at'er more than ong yoa

Includes Cra ot Cootme falbneg doe acter noore than one sy e

Bror vt el b e g baabhie of S0 Am 2910 00 Y Salle g doc alter o thanane yeor VO T 322 ers an Tl Z-6 e w207 T

1 -2 vears and Ciabin - s yrar b Devatee ab e desagnalod gt faor value repres cn e bar valie ot nct sestime Uhodge donate o The e reasc oo
value cf bet ecsdmen e e dee wa e abiieson the year of 5 dm s shownon the anseldated statement - foor probenaseone ome et of 3oxt

SO adop:hion ot RS G an oo ot s mmade to designate an o xtornshmve e ont G008 g beld s not tor fradineg at fee valie throagh other
cempAeheT o e

There are o uthier e el labilties g e srbie pagable di-cloe ed above oo feange feases ohe closed m oo nion 162
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I he fedlowar g tabile shuee e Groop £ inancal nslusienies hela al far val e

Quoted prices In
active rmarkete Significant

for identical other
agsets angd observable Unobservable
llabilties puts nputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2018
Financial assets measured at farr value
Bty nistruments® 2.9 2.9
Cash and cash equivalents 132.2 132.2
Forengn c.urrenic s tonward contrac s 1.0 1.¢
1851 10 - 1384
Financial habilities measured at fair value
Qrewgn currency toryaid Contac ts, 4.0 {4.0)
Y - )
A= atl 31 Decermber 2017
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equuty matruments 32 as 130
Cash and cash oguivalonts 98 6 98 6
Foreign currency torward contracis 41 41
1018 41 98 “1h 7
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Foreign currency forward contracis t39) 39
39 - &9

CEquily metruments relate Lo wmestmends in funds i oruer fo satishy foog-terme oencht arra gements

Valuation techniques for level 2 inputs

Dervative assets and Laislities of 1 0m and £4 Om respechively are valued by level 2 techniques The valualions are derved from discounted c.ontractual
cash flows using observable. ond directly televant, market interest rates and foreign exchange rates rom markel data providers

Valuation techniques for level 3 inputs

The Groun has no financial assets or Inancial iabhtics measured at far valae Lsing signmcant unobiservable tlavel 3) inputs The valuation s derved using the
cash flows of the rvestment which inclicates 2 far value of Ml

4.7.2
Valuation methodalogy

Cash and ¢ ash equivalents, bank oven(rafts trade payvalies and tiade recevables are camed at ther ook values as this approxmates to ther fan value due 1o the
short-term natare of the nstrumen's

Long-tenn and short-term borrowlngs, @part from any which are subject to hedging arrangements Gie caired at amortised cost as i 1s the ntention tnat they will not
be repaid pror to matunty where this option exists, The far valies are evaluated by the Group based on patameters such as interest 1ates and elevant credit spreacis,

I ong-term borrowngs which are subject to hedyging arrangements are valued using appropnale discount rates 1o value the relevent hedged « ash flows

Lervative assets and habalties, mcliding foreiyn exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps ard metal hedues, are valued using comparable ohserved imarket
prices and a vahiation model using foreign exchange spot and orward rares, mlerest rate curves and fonaard rate curves Tor the andertying comn odilies




4.7.3
Fair value hierarchy

The Grotpe sses e I o angg brerens Dy do detormonirag zocd o~ ¢ lasingg He T valoe o0 finned misiomments oy valiats 1ot choigue

Le o 11 g asted LLnatd LT o) PHeas N ACHG Miathest Hob ettt al & ol o Daodiie

Cowl W oother techneue foretich alhnputs eda b bave o giife ant effect o tae o rdod tar due e abaeteable ether diec s or ey

con Al 3 b nes, w b Brnse epuls whic hoe= s b cent efiect ancthe tec oeded T vane et e ot Branecd on oot bl ket Ol

4.8
Market risk sensitivity analysis on financial instruments

This section shows how the farr value of financial instruments presented can changs for a given change in market rates.

121

The values shown in the table below are estimates of the iImpact on financial instruments orly. The nsks that these financial nstruments have been acquired

to hedge will move n an opposite direction

481
Overview

esme g hie sen daaly ol e e ciabin deaments Gl ob e catanles ar belo oo tant o aetarrane he nmpe Don pret Letore s oo
ol dledeatt e purp 0@ only, s 1dniee mArket cates rarely o ange el <o

Ay

[he anely e

sctialresdlin oo lhe tate 0 5y difer matonelly oo the oo o tmates dos G e mose e b the sncd el B e chione o iy Taeoteio nlibrgate any pote td

looms oo pEesrachior of 0 o har one SO0 @y oo e aed ethe developmed s globat ieancal markets A o bt table shoted ned be eoneidered

A7 oy bon of Taeke tftiee g and lovsoe in e e insncal nsiromme nes

4.8.2
Financial derivatives sensitivity table

The outp By o the serottivily dndlysis e estin < of the mpact Gf e atkaet g assuming that e ~peditad chuages oceur ool 10 10 e ' rondal desatives
ek der ey eeflee tohe onpeste moveraant fie mshe repact ~f the speome chanage ond b e undarbama bosmess at they are desigr ed 1o bedae

1% % 1046 10%
decrease ncrease 10% 10%  decrease n Increassn
In interest N mterest weakening strengthening base metal base metal
rates rates i steding N stering costs costs
£m £m Cm £m £m £m

At 31 December 2018
I t o meorne - latement  [nesigan - - (7.1} 7.1 0.4) 0.4
Inp act on ety o= yen - - (92.5) 92.5 - -

Al 31 Decernber 2017

Ipract onncome tatement os 51 gam - - [ H o R {1 0
Inypract oncep ity oz shyat - - T Fa9 - -
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4.9
Retirement Benefits

IMI offers a number of defined benefit arrangements to empleyees that will not be paid until more than a year after the penod n which they are eamed, for

example pension benefits, jublee plans, post-employment and other long-term employee benefit arrangements.

There is a significant degree of estination involved in predicting the ulimate benefits payable under these defined benefit arrangements in respect of which
the Group holds net liabilities on its balance sheet This section explains how the value of thase benelits payable and any assets funding the arrangements

are accounted for n the Group financial statements and gives details of the key assumptions upon which the estimations are bas

ed.

Assets and habiities for defined contributton arrangerments are minimal as they relate salely to short-term timng differences tetween the penod during which

benefits have accrued and when coniributions are paid into schemes.

Defined contribution ('DC’): Arrangements where the employer pays fixed contributions into an external fund on behalf of the employee {(who 18 responsibie for
making the investment decision and therefore assurnes the risks and rewards of fund performance). Contributions to these arrangements are recogrised mn the

income statement as incurred.

Dsfined benefit (DB'}: A defined benefit pension plan is a pension arrangement in which the employer promises a specified annual benefit on retirement that
is predetermined by a formula based on the employee’s earnings history, tenure of service and age, rather than depending directly on individual investment
returns. In some cases, this benefit is paid as a lump sum on leaving the Company or whike In the service of the Company rather than as a pension. The Group
underwmtas one or more risks in meeting these obligations and therefore any net kability or surplus in these arrangements 1S shown on the Group balance sheet.

4.9.1
Summary information

Net pension deficit: £52.3m (2017 deficit of £77.9m}

The assels and habililies of the defoed beneft vehomes are aggregated recognived in the consoidiled balance sheet and sho an witbun non-cureeetabdites

or e eon-cunent assets it a schemes e surplus and 1Lis deemed recoverable

Number of defined Benefit arrangements: 67 (2017: 69)

The number of defmedd bonent anrangemernits decrcased due to fhe wind-up of @ pension - vome n the UK

The following table shmas o sum sy of the geog aprucal protile of the Group s defined benefit st hemes

Net Surplus/

Quantity Quantity Assats Liabilty (deficit)

2018 | 207 £m fm fm

Australia 2! 2 - 0.4 {0.4)
Austiia 6 } S - 3.4 3.4}
France al 3 0.2 1.0 (0.8)
Gennany 28 “ 28 6.9 57.6 50.7)
Indta 6 5 - 0.8 {0.8)
aly 5 | 5 - 2.8 2.8
Mox .0 6 ! 5} - 0.4 {0.4)
Span 2 2 - 0.1 {0.1)
Suartserland 5 5 64.1 77.6 (+3.5)
UAE 1 i . 1.4 (1.4
us’ 2| 2 - 58 (5.8)
UK ) i 3 4733 445.5 27.8
T 87 69 544.5 596.8 (52.3)

* The US detcit above excludes £2 9 of assets relating to ungualified plans classiied as nvestments (see Section 4 7)



123

Thes ol pr pronactes pena1san beneins U orotgh a mipaare: of fure et andd anfoneed Asset profile of schemes
et e el and de i ed contnbution (0O Y artangemenits, allbaago it
Aralegy SO Moo w bt el cd beret tanangements tuvard s detinnd
ottt it ngenenl wnerevet ponShile o s the habilny o the Groags
Avcpvamicrds of D blicahions of the defined benent plan @@ carnesd oat by
e penaend o lant e banad ot peoye e of Leeb credil eme biocd Ao aislonie Al
ol the types om cehaed hencfit <chemes aeoporaten o an inlla e

The tollosmmg b sete out the profl 2 of the overaln ol ot b e so & e ilo
Qe arcnee o of Bner nse profiles he compatative aroenn s of e fande s
A urt e dehnea benel fub e S DBOs o asplt of the babing e heet
st Betieen & hermes wilhn i DE fenaon sl a7 d & e per uor o0 el

2018 2017
£m '
iz G - -
ot total of total Chaote e e, 21.0 I
Gy Assels asuely L bty labilies Cuucted o ids 299.2 KI2 R
Type of scheme o No im In jays % [l Guode o s T 372072” A e
2018 Privato s uibies 113.8 il
Final salary* 25 473.5 87% 494.9 B3% e o p olic e 17.9 191 0
Cash balance*” 10 64.3 12% 80.4 14% Hrdge o 0.8 1
Jubilee’*” 14 - 0% 3.2 0% Propert 17.8 e
Other !? . 7”7{3.9 1% 1?._3 _3__01_'0_ [ 74.1 ' G
Total 67 544.7 100% o 5968 100% Toled vngaotendd a1 224.5 25NN
Asset celling 02) b vdud of anets 5447 i1
Rewised assets 544.5 Ree rcion due te <ot el 0.2) A
i DR 510 b ded sehemes (532.8) .ty B
Firnal sdary,” 2. At 5 ae 12 o Do for tnfid d =eherm e, _164.0} SR
Camt alane e’ 14 T4 3. G109 58 Net surplaswdef ) o DBOy (52.3} [t
Jutilee 1 - 8 30 v Seher e, e e san defion (80.1} 183 6]
Ot o 16 65 it 17 2. ScheT oo n oot pos. Sf sunal 27.8 57
Tots! 69 1002 1 100 - 10708 1767
Asset o oling Uz Fheow ducs oo sigred te the nsurane e poboes are e tal b by an
Reoscd annets JRSIVA ] depet e Utoed paety a taary b g regand to e kabidibes e urea

ancin particul o he 3AS S diccoanl rate, It e ey ected penuion mered.e.

Al tee A suer od ke expe Langy 2 the memibers © overed
* Final salary scheme. The paotie e asalable do o mcmbior 1 a final salan ' ° ’

anangen enl vl be apeoportan ot e meenber sonalary at or arondd ther S Other amsets e lude the markot valie ormte-cst inflabion cgeby cand
retirement dale The proporhie vl pe detenn ned Dy he mesber  longth smerey taoaps elalirgg e JK schera assets ar d abdites
ol pen eable seroce, he raconual tate g any particular creone lances

. The overseds eoets of £71 2 (2017 £84 Omi cormprise eguities of
e 2 Fach the mernber relres ttor example edrly dl-heail rel rement)

£233m 20T £33 Tmy bonds of $ 28 2n 12017 123 9mj meurane
=* Gash balance: A ¢ - h halanc e scheme foafomn of defimed he el of £1 4 2017 74 Tmy property of ©14 Gm (2017 718 51 and othe
pensie under e L ihe miemibar v the nght 1o adefned g am on annels of T Tm201 T 05 2my)
retrement rather tan « defined amoard o peson recenvable Fro example

Funded: The g oty of the G defined berwedt and other 2ost-co plog e it
Acarboalan e pla o moy hase o o g asanlesd sate s b retarm on

bonaht catanoernents cre unded, whi b mears they are inked (o ospecito plen

Serpane ¢ opdnkthone Toe ot of teone on o ver b thoet hangy o
per I b ‘ ' accclechie have boo egregated n adr sbor founadat on

ity be converod o doterm ned by e rruty raoc presehng ol toe

tue o Coreeison Unfunded: Slans b e ror hncle d are those thal ae not backod By wmgiogated
A0t These noload some pension pl s cut dloa oumber ot athier oneg-ten
dnan gereentes for the penefit of our emiployecs with benetts pavable while thicy
are cmiployad By the Gredp at more tharn * 2 months afien the relatod seneee

1 rencictes Actuanal ganes and lossas on otier ong-ten v arangements e
recouneed n the o o statenant i the penoch ry vAu b e e

2 Jubilee: Jubiles plane proacio for cash asard payo e baovn bare bascd on
completed length = of ©ereee Thewe payrienits e oizen made oneees: ation
o e e wath e Corprany <obge Tty s rranien ar posed of serar e

Average duration by geography
The tollo g babis shows the weighted aucrage rombor ol peers tor duration
voorwr g pen b et ae expetted o e ped

o - 018 L
1K 21.5 s 7
Sviddsetlari 17.4 18-
(UR 6.5 v

Furoson o 15.5 1Ha
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492
The UK and overseas pension funds

4921
The UK Funds

The Unred Kimadom conuiituies 757 12017 83 -1 ot Tutal dofr ed ber efit

flaby blies and 8751207 G290 ol (etal detned venedt 2-tots, Hsro cally e
IMI Persion Fue d offered fhad salary benerty 1o UK employees ol it clo oo o
N entrants e 20005 and to tutore acc roal on 31 Decamber 2010 1 Sacember
2011 sancdng-Up procedir - comimer ced and thoso mer e who e

not eigiude or ot not take up the ofter of o wingle eash umg suim frans’ered
1o one o1 twd now Funds I 2614 Pensioner Fund or the IMI 2011 Deferred
Fund — e o Fundds ) Chgong jpension benefits in e LA are provided via
the Trustee s defined contribution stan - The IMERetiremert Sawing: Plan All
UK pension axsets are un an hehalf of the Troistos by the Bourd of 1 e IMI
Commer Investment Fu

The True tee bas detenraned anrestiment Gheeine To aclue.e over e
uposition ol sedl- Uihcenc s, defined using a discound rale ot giles - 0287

Asset allocation

The Trustaes ds, Over recent valoations, Ccontinue o redduee asset volatilty and
geraitivty 1o LK mterosl rates ntlation ard foregn cutreatics I Decey ber 2018
£409m of habiltics Goverad by INsurance poloes were permancntly transterred
to the nsurance comparies through e eimal buy-out trancachon This resulted
N the pension asset and ot tesponding BBO being 1emoved from the balance
sheot These aciv 1es v elded gams of 72 8 woich are classfied as adusting
ome {(see Section 2 2 21 Following complenon ot the buy out tansfers, no
henchoianes remain in the 2031 1 Pansioner Fund and, thevefare, 1 anficpaten

the: Fund wailk ber woundd-ups in 2019

Liability management

e Inisdae has contried 1o urdenake where practcable laoilty managemant
programs Bunng 2018 de- shing acivilies continued ncluding (he conversion
of certan penuion beneits 10 non-inflation lnked, occurmng n the UK which
resulled inonet gans of ©1 4m whic h are ¢lassificd as adjusting tem- (oo
Secten 2 2 2} Anexpense of U0 am, ansing friom the agualisation ot the UK
defned benebl schermies, has been iecognised followina tho ruling on the

lest case on Guararieed Mimmum Pensions

Contribitions

The Match 2018 Val .at on was completed n Deceriber 2018 and the Funds’
Actuary cerlibed Inaw no deficit funding contabulions weuld be recuired over
and above the projgecled mvestment returns and tre scheduled payments

of £7 Om per annum, due from the Scotlish Lemited Partnerships untd the
eatfier of full fundiny of the UK Deferred Fund or 2030

4922 .
Overseas pension funds :

Rouiston, Chonges ond the completion of 8 ov-out i S artrotand res led
1 gans ol 3 Om These avents led 10 the specal pension mvents which
e claagit e as adiusting dems fs2e Sechion 2 2 2)

4.9.3
Specific effect on financial statements

Thie Lo responcing entries e 0 ks € and Cetiggses in the et pension

detio il reporten rthe balanc s sheel are rotlediad o follow s Dlner movemenly

ine lides forenn exchange

+ Cash flow statement: Wher the Group miakes o ase contrbutionss to o
the detic it they are reflected e the cash Hov slalement and resuce the niet
detic Ve rease the net sarplos

Income statement: Movemonts in tho overdll et pensen defict are
recognsed rthe incomne siatement when ey ielate to changes in thoe
overall ension pramise due to ether ar addoonal ponoa of servee nown
af 'cunent senic e cost ) changes 1o par sion ims n the wcheme tules
e as past cervica costor closure of all or part ot aschome hnown s
settlen onts and cutalments) Thoe nterest ¢ harge imc ome on the net defict”
st plus postion s also recognsed n the nconte stalemoent

.

Other comprehensive income (OCH): Movenicnts, in the overall el perision
Johot are recognesed through OChwnen ey refate o change s nack anel
assUIMPLIONS ar the diference UexXuenence gain o1 luss ) Demweer pevious
ansumptions and actual results

The table below rec onalles the mcvernent e ho UK and overse 15 dotined
beneft ohlgation hetween 1 January 2018 and 31 Docomber 2018

Ui Overseas Total
£rm £m m
Net defined benefn surplus/iphligation}
at 1 Janary 2018 16 179 5) (9
Movement recognised in:
Income statement 3.9 (4.4} (0.5}
o] +]] 12.2 (0.6} 11.6
Cash flow statement 101 6.4 18.5
Other mavements o - 20 {20
Net defined benefit surplus/{obhgation) N
at 3t December 2018 27.8 {80.1) (62.3)




4.9.3.1
Cash flow impacts

2018 ‘

125

2017
UK Overseas Total (816 Overseas Total
£m £m Em m fm b
Arnonrt feent ey e - 2.1 2.1 1 - Lo 20
At oan eminles et 101 2.3 12.4 33 33 &
Beniefl » and settlement s paid droetly by e Grow - 4.1 4.1 LIS 152
Total 10.1 8.5 186 53 40 TG
Thererprecle-d o lnbubior o P delr s Leno e orbogeraents no, D1 are 0 3 oo gl smiploset o tbubions and B0m or g den et i
Lolbemeselation lo vrerneas Lenraso lunds Add D 1 abe o trbotiore of 87 Lol e o aue i s R0 2019
4932
Other comprehensive income
RGOS e e aAnt et A apd te b arce G e ranarom s bieqses 1 b andl s amphions or beca e g R N N I S (1 LN I A TO BT
ATtinal A5t e tris . aFerGe s |y copty e olbwer conprehier v ome These moyernonils ar=an Lo neloy
§
2018 2017
Overseas Overseas Overssas Ovarseas
post non-post post non-post

UK employment employment Total UK amployment  employment Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m m Em
Crange mdiscount 1ate 43,3 2.3 - 45.6 5319, 17 - 30 2
Crange mntatie (3.1) (0.5) - (3.8) G2 - - G2
Carn o e ook A0t {5.8} 1.4 - 5.4) 214 14 el
Actuandg oxpenence 1.9 0.2 - 21 101 S35 - 07
Agret exnoinenc e {23.1) {4.0) - {27.1) 418, 11 - 1Mo
Actuaral gains/{lossos) i the year 12.2 {0.8) - 116! 35,01 ) - 130 1}
Change n tho asset celing - - - - - 0o - na
Exchatige lo: <o) 'sans - {1.9) {0.2} {2.1) - 03 3¢}
Gains/(losses) recognised through equity 12,2 {2.5) {0.2) 9,5 ; 185 ) 53 03 130 ()

M1 1asE s Achec® rom ndepenaent actudnes regardirg e approprglenes s of the assumiions deed 1o defentune it e present walue of the demne o benefit

obligatnng Thece AssLmplion e bade the discount rale apiulied to dhe asaet and iabilres e e expr ctarcy of e rembers, ther expeciad -

penson ncreases ard mftalion The gegur phens s ed for thie purpose 1ohese Inancrl staterments e suenian ed pelos

Weighted Averages

alary ana

31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016

UK Ovaerseas LK Overseas (9118 Overseas

B % pa pa % pa Y% pa % pa % pa

Indl ey - B 3.3 n/a 33 AR a1 1
ferth neary - 47 2.3 1.4 R 14 2 17
[2 v int roat 2.7 1.5 21 13 26 11
Expseced sulay norease- n/a 1.8 n’ 14 22 14
Rever OF Dl sl ¢ g and 3.3 0.6 33 15 a1 (G2
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2018 t 2017 201E
Years Yedrs Years
Life expectancy at age 65 {UK Funds only) !
Cunent male pensioners 21.3 209 210
Current femele pensioner - 243 256 241
Future imdle pensinie o 23.0 228 233
Future female pensionars 262 } 265 264

T mortally a-sumphions ueea for he UK Fonog above retlect ity sehome specfic expenent e, 1ogether vath an alkssdnce Tor improvernr erts suet time The espenende
A 1 0VIOWe e part of the formmial thenn gl s tuanal yal ation camed o aw al 31 Marc 2015, and 1.0 das=urnpuons u-cd a5 at 31 December 2018 refloct the esults

[T RN Y TRl

The tabie below liustratos how the UK Funrts net pension surplis soukd doc mase
texch g the wpac t of nflalion raze and merest tate hedyging) as at 31 2ecembe

2018, nihe ovent of the tollosaing reasonable ¢ hangos ke key assumplions ahowe,

The able below shows niows thg net nension deficl for M- non-Uk plans
wotddh inceease, 1t o ovent of g followarg reasonanle Changos in e key
asstnphions above

UK Non-UK

Discount rate 019 pa o e $°8 Om Diseounit rate U0 palowo 2 1m
inflation-Inked prervsien inceeoasos O 1 - na fugher '3 bim Salary 1w reases 0.1 nigher 70 4Am
Incledse 6 one year n life expeclancy hom age 65 ©13 0m Incteaze 0 one year i ife expaclanty ol age 65 3 8m
107 fall 0 non-bond-{ie: assots” £118m

In eacl cane all othes gssumptions are unchanged
THIS 15 A0 IM-paymont pen< e NGrease Soretty,

RUNU assels exe ding cash bonds, naurance vobces and the Fur dy”
nterest 1 the IMI Scottish Limted Pardnersl ips

Income statement
I accordance wilh 1A% 19 pension cosls recorden through the mcome stalen.ent prmanly represent the increase n the defined benefil obligalion based on employese

service Juring the year and the nterest on the net habxilty or suiplus for defined berefil oblgations nrespect of emoloves service N Previour years The table below
shows the total cost reponted ¢ the ncome statement n respect of penision ohigatiors and therefare sfso nciudes the cos' of the defrned contubuticn schemes

2018 2017

Overseas Overseas Overseag Overseas

post non-post post non-post
UK employment employment Total UK employment  smployment Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £rn
Currenl sorvice ¢ ol - 4.3 0.8 5% | - 51 10 61
Past servic @ costicredil) 0.4 1.0} - 0.6} ©8) 1 01 10
Settlement/curtalment gan (4.2) {2.0} - 6.2) 80 ".8} - 165
Recogrtion of lossas - - 0.8 0.8 - - 0?2 02
DG employer contrinons - - I i - . ) .
Penston (IComeyexpense - oparating costs (3.8) i3 18 (09 | (9.5) (1.9 13 ©.2)
Interest on DEO 20,4 1.8 0.2 225 253 20 03 276
Interest on as-ets {20.5} 0.6) - 21.1} (26.2} 0 ) - {26 8)
Interest (ncome)yexpense - financng costs o >7(0.1) ] 0.2 14 09 1.4 03 0.8
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4.9.4
Overall reconciliation of changes in the net surplus/(liability} for defined benefit cbligations

2018 2017
Net defined Net definea
Defined benefit | Dered bernent
benefit Asset asset/ ‘ henatil Asser azset/
abhgation Assets ceiling {liability) 1 obligation Asaels eilng {iabilty)
£m £m Em Em 1 ’m £m £m I'm
Brought forward at start of year ~{1,079.8) 1,002.1 {0.2) (77.9) | 1"t Tz a5
Income Statement (charges)/credits )
O erent werace ot (5.1) - - 5.1y 1y . . 1)
Pt -0 0 (oel - Pha am ol s 0.6 - - 06 ! Ao - - Gy
Fast =eone o5t - cartallinent - - - - 53 - - 53
Setdement 436.9 {430.7) - 62 ' 2o 4517 . 1o
Peod I s 0 00st e e N e by o P20 !
Lkl As o (22.5) 211 - (1.4) ERY FISaL - Ty
londater Recennitioon o7 oo e - ‘
Otror Long-2orm Benefr- {0.8) - - {0.8) ks - DS
Total charged to income statement T 4094 (409.5) - o @5}7‘! ~33 3 RN - &5
Remeasurements recognised in other :
comprehensive iIncome ) i B 7 '
Atuanal gain due o Actoanal Fxporen o 2.2 - - 22 I 107 - - T
Actuarill Gan fLoss duss to Finuneal i
Aonunpiin - Changes 44.1 - - 44.1 (A Y] - 20
ACT AL TS5 gl due ) Semoagtanhie !
Agsdnptio Shanges (7.5} - - (7.5) | 236 - 206
Return on Sian Assets” daas than Discownd Rate - {27.1) - {(27.1} - AL - 122 A}
Crange 0 Bilact of Asoel Crding ) - - ) - - 7! - HEed! 11 2)
Total remeasurements recognised in other .
comprehensive Income 38.8 27.1) - 1.7 ! 103 22 ) 02, 112 3)
Daracogriun of Scotish Limited Partnershy, - - - - i - 180 - 1180
Total recogmised directly in equity Tt T/ 4 - s 1] . RE:Xe)) - 30
Cash flows in the year ‘
Ermployer contrisution s - 12.4 - 12.4 - [aXs] Gh
Ernpdoyee o onbribnat e {2.1) 2.1 - - 12 oy P -
Benehis and setflemonts pad daoctle by the comp aoy 4.1 - - 4.1 82 - - 182
Beredirs pod tom plaf aseets 38.4 (38.4) - - 178 RY-1 -
Net Cash Inflow/Outflow © 404 {23.9) - 16,5 635 35 7 - P38
Other movements
tanges N exchogg ales {5.3) 3.2 - [2.1) - 45 47 - [AR¢)
New matenal plat- - - - - 114 . . T
Total other movements {5.3) ’ 3z N (2.1) 1 2y - (1
Garned forward at end of year T (596.8) 5447 (0.2)  (523) 1 (10798 10021 02} U7 )

CNet ot GGt et
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4.10
Share capital

The ordinary sharehalders of the Group own the Company. This section shows how the total nurmber of ordinary shares in 1ssue has changed during the

year and how many of these ordinary shares are held as treasury shares or in Employee Benefit Trusts, to be used to satisTy share options and awards to
directors and employees of the Company, as part of employee share ownership programmes. This section also sets out the dwidends paid or proposed

to be paid to shareholders.

4101
Number and value of shares

|
2018 i 2017

Ordinary i Crdinary

Shares Shares

28 4/7p per ?847p per

share share
Number (m)  Value {£m)| Number i} Value [£m)
In 1ssue at the start of the year 286.2 81.8 | 286 2 818
Issued 10 satisly employee share schemes LA - - -
In 1ssue at the end of the year 286.3 81.8 "' 280 2 a1y

Al et share capital at 31 Decernbier 20181 fully praid andd onvevs the same nghts

410.2
Share movements in the year

Movoments 11 shares due to share 1ssues and purchases durng the yean were as follows

Number of ordinary shares of 28 4/7p each {milkon)

Empioyee
Benefit Trust Treasury Other Total
Inigsue at 31 December 2017 i 143 2709 2862
New 1ssues 1o satsfy amnloyee share schieme awards - - 0.1 0.1
Market purchuses 0.6 - (0.6) -
Shares daltocaled under employee share schemes o {0.2) - 0.2 -
A1 31 December 2018 T 714 143 2706 2863

Dunng the yoan $ 1in (2017 nill shares were 1ssued under employee sharg schemes reabsing £0 6m (2017 £0.6m)

Employee Benefit Trust

The Employee Benefit Trnist mane market purohases of a total of 0,6m 2017 0 3m) shares with an aggregate markel value of £/ 0m 2017 £4 Om) and a nominat
value of 0 2 (2017 £0 1M} Associated transartion osts amonnted to Cril (2017 €nil)

Share options exercised n 2018 were settled using the snares in the Gioup's Employee Benefit Trust 0 2018, 0 2m (2017 0.2m) shares wel ¢ 1ssued for cash
of 1 0m 2017 £1 3}

Ofthe 15 7 (2017 45 3m} shares held within retaned eqrnings 1 4m (2017
N trust to sansfy employee share scheme vesting

1 0my shares wih an agyregate market value of ©10 4m (2017 13 (m} are held



4103
Dividends

Alrs thec bl e e U eet pate o foll s de e el e oo sed by The dinec ors Thed o

laX LOMN-EOUeneo-

e e

ot heen puovick=tl far a1t ere soene

SO e
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2018 2017

£m ¥m

. T ) e o T L
Corrent yeat 1oaldiadondd - 2 ot quadlying ordinary - are 2070 25 2 704 | tEs

Phie fodos ney dividetios seces dnclerond g e by the Sronpe chan g e 0

2018 | 2017

£m | £m
: -

Procr veen bl Guedlen oraid - 0% e Gl o oeedinny s 2000 alb e @ar diosoed 0o 68.3 ‘ o U
Gotr b yean nem oo o ot - 1100 per o ushtang ordines, Frees 20t T 1 Ap 39.6 1 R
107.9° 155
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.11
Share-based paymenis

The Group uses share option schemes to reward and retan its employees. The estmated cost of awarding these share options 1s charged to the income
staterment over the peniod that the Group benefits from the emplayees’ services, This cost is then added back 1o retaned earmings, to reflect that there 1s
no overall impact on the Group’s balance shaet until the shares are 1ssued to the employees when the options are exercised.

The individual share option schemas, the number of options outstanding under each of them, the estimated cost of these options recognised in the income
statement and the assumptions used in arriving at this estimated cost are described in this section

4111
Outstanding share opticns
A131 December 2008 ophons 1o prnchast ordinary, stares had tieen granied to but not ye, exeteosed by parhicinatds of 1M share aption s hemes as *ollowes
Date of Number
grant of shares Price Dates from which exercisable
1M1 Sharesave Scheme 060 14 2513 1364 D20 (MO8 1 oral 0819
08 3615 50135 1075 32n Q108 18 o 01 008 20
290316 167 307 845 Ty G108 18w 38 21
21011 A1 08 1106 U0p: a1 08 20w o1 08 22
04 04 18 91 687 1012680 010821 0r 0108 23
335,830
Global Employee Share 140817 23,905 1087 0 14 08 19
Purc hase Plans 15.08.18 53 326 1019 3 1508 20
77,230
IMI Incentive Plan 070515 19,421 - Q7 Q517 or 07 0518
"3 0316 O17 488 - 8,03 18 or 90319
Q03T TO3 897 - (903193 611903 20
20318 820,988 - 1203200r 120321
2,461,794
Il Share Option Plan 220310 19 500 845 00 220313
2303 11 141,800 971 830 230314
040512 278 800 EEN YN 44,08 15
27 1112 12,200 1007 33p 2711145
120313 307 800G 1322 7op 120316
221013 “4,000 1518 33p 221018
110314 302 350 140, 00N 110317
1,135,950
Incentsve Plan (also known as Performance Share Plan) 221013 3,418 - 281616
Share Matening Plan 2803 1 1,160 - 2803 11
Stare Matching Plan 100512 48,264 - 100615
Share Matching Plan 090413 1296 - 09 04 18
’ 40,720

Total 4,054,524




4.11.2
Schemes under which options
are outstanding

The opons 1 ing abese Laele relate Lo the iellnvang <h e e-based
prayrient sehemes:

IMI Sharesave Scheme {'SAYE’)

Thee ~cmgnme s oneniio lre o onty ot 1oe Jrouns Uk ompl yoo el adineg
Ard allowe s the agrant Sfoptiore b et do o -
dhecnnrt af ap e 200 below he market price S ocbcschemess oot hjeet
to peoromar oo otent s ard Gffor Laxoe corifinee, o nn ontage c Yok ece 4o

the exe e dires oy

L then ow e ey 1o bane M share - S0 b s oy be o oxcremed
FRANTTRNP S SR CRCAC (NS ) (ol Lt T a ot s A N P T LT I T

Global Employee Share Purchase Plans {{GESPP)

THgsr prlhan- corr bitowat e 0 2010 mor e US ang Sonmecy The Goeninean
) LS GESPPS ottt r thes L4007ty o by o ares o BASE s e uriee ot
dfitire date e Setvan GESPE minvors the UK Shiaresaae Serome, o1 a
PO 1A € s LI pr e T8 e onvrae ouration of three
e ras The US SESFP e operate <0 o s e lar Vo mo the Uk Staress o
Seler e b ammnmien e 0 sdangs [ned per month bt e contract
AAUtalion 15 * 4 2 fxed pe oo G T years and Jdifores tax son conadions ap .
tor 4t eotstoiss Pl NO BIter e dred s are inlenaded to Re granted us der
the Gern an GESPP

1Mt Share Option Ptan (‘'SOP")

Share orlion av.w oo were mingde fror 2708 1o alectod sencr o wgers aned
t o en other e loyees e the SOF THews aveards e not sotyet o
perfornance condifions, | ut are subject 1o a three year vessting penod - Tha
purpos2 of e SUP = 1o give selectod M eroployvees tveo dare ol exsontvd
directors of the Cormprant the oppartemily o sbare in the benehts -1 share
prit e grewdh and 1o roreas e ther IME r arenoliing

1M1 2005 Long-term Incentive Plan (also known as Performance Share
Plan (‘PSP’)

Awiands hene Deen granted (o tre Comogny & executive drecton, and selec ed
SEN Or 1 enagert i the Grawn Axards have been grarted subec (o
stretching perfor s - ce Largets the nature of vlich ditfers depend ng upon
the year ity whien e award sas granied Na forther awards can be grianted
o e 1he PSP Toe otitatandliy PEF av et wall expare 1 2025
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4.11.3
Other share-based payment arrangemants

The Groupe also operates the foloy ng etaployce =ne plas
] I

Share Matching Plan (*SMP’)

Trer deletry of the executive thteclo o andc slectod wen 1 0 agily e ribal
bonu e 1 ogoveimen by he nenada d s acr iesemend o o Share D.aness ap
Guadshoe » SOG The SO, aeqeremiett o hokd o pereertage of walary

A2 IMEshares i i acteved Ny Lon s oand moast Tha SMP e as Feen
operted g e 2gs hat The SSG 1k o acheew ] e apontine of ary aneaal
Dotz vl e i aned von by dalcrodd for s e s and deliverec i AL Twaes
wotder e SRAP This oy taledd rasshinent of the 303 € ned ac g hiag
been matehed fronn 730w 0 Ga masrmu ol 200 Trese 1 a0y shares
L L N R L R LT SRS K I B | T L e N B S A e

Pt

St ng on by ees b sl b crcable to obom Lebe o o ta deter b o art
Sng re ke o ae o ard o et ersancd foods g Lo 8 mernin
of 10,7 ot herar ud bor no ppottomnt Add e ab - s s € ot of
AR NG aait] md g b cvened s L1 d Miees Tor 0l 200t
SRt Tomibe ot - ares o L tes e the SR pedont ang - ool fone

ctihe grosy

av e e thre e vear ves Iing e vl are e

Thie pettonsare e g ures Jor S raie regarer it deprendieg Lpee
e veat b o the ae ard v g granted fso aetbies aesard cin o granled

Uotder e SMP

Share Incentive Plan (‘SIP’)

The SIP 15 open o the oty of the Seoup s WK empoye e 1o ang

the excou e chector  This st Peme e o 0o b st aie oppaon it e for

ephoyees th Srare e IMEs success as fellowss

* Partien s ofnares — allo v emipluyors S basst 1 i tne s atutory mesamoarn
fron pro-tee pagy wiue b vsed e by IME shares

s Frog sharen — allows o grant of shares e eimployees eac vear L 1 e
stal Aoy mesomuom

Shirttes acguted or daadcd undo o SIP ae not subect o peforniance
renctions abd ofter tax ncentiees 1o encot age emplovees e pld up thei
<hiarehioldiogs wth tre Somyprany

The IMI Incentive Plan {IIP’}

I bt ot be expay 10 2005 of beth e =38 ad ShMP e IF v nbioeka e
Uy act e e Coinpary 5 sole csnaor execurn e long-tenn acentive plan [he
P ot wn ovomibredla plan sehae beodlone the Compran, toq ot differant Lype
of oy et o ehifferart 2 pbovee gro s i an efioent wey Toe iE ste b uoed
A nAlly b great R ane s Shore Awdrels 0 respect nf andnary shares,
tor the exec utve onectors And other memnbers of somen managament oL et
Lo pratenmig e conditons  The HE sl aleo be e bamnn lby to arand Bore
Shiare Awarct - below Bodrd level ThedlP aleo qrens the Gampang the abal by
tr grant Bestr ten Stok Un? Aevard ond Shore DSpaons I cenenly
prter et gt este ctect Stoek Vnt feneds oned 5 mare ~pston, el anly he
granted nicspoun: e o Cpee o bosness reoparcenents
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

(continued)

4.11.4

Options granted during the year

Number of Waighted
ootions average Narmal
granted optor exercisable
{thousand) pnce date
SAYE
“0tT ol 1 Gy PR
2018 100 1013p 2021-2024
GESPP
sl eI 11670 A1
2018 54 1409p 2020
np
2017 042 - 2018-2020
2018 835 - 2020-2021
4.14.5
Movement in outstanding options in the year
Ophions
granted at
Opbons not granted at nil cost? il cost* Total
Number of Weaighted Number of Number of
oplions Range of average options options
{thousand) ophion prices  oplian price (thousand} (thousand)
Cutstandimg at 1 Januaty 2017 2,099 141-1518p 11561 2,462 1561
Exercable at 1 January 2017 1,235 441-1528p 1128p 1056 1,341
Granted #1 10Gs-*106p 1G91p 212 1025
Exercised 195 645-* 384 9556p 82 277
Lapsed 267 845-1467 12420 320 -0
Cutslanding al 31 Decemper 2017 1,718 A11-i161kp 11620 2 802 4 520
Exorcisable at 3% December 2017 1,340 441-1518p 1218p 18 1,458
Granted 153 1013-1049p 1026p 1,222 1,375
Exercised 164 441-1322p 989p 68 232
Lapsed 153 845-1467p 1208p 699 852
Qutstanding at 31 December 2018 1,555 545-1518p 1162p 3,257 4,812
Exercisable at 31 December 2018 1,156 §45-1518p 1229p 128 1,284

Options not granted at nil cost include options granted under the following schenes IMI Sharesave Schame, Global Employee Share Purchase Plans and

IMI Share Option Plan

7 Options granted al nil Cost are those granted under the Pertormiance Share Plan, Share Matching Pl and IMI Incentive Plan




4.11.6 4.11.8

Share-based payment charge for the year Othar share-based payment disclosures

The Tobal erp emng 1 G oo for he vear ansing o share-based payn gl The weighled average emarir g conitaciudd hfe 1o the ahare cplions
Vgt T8 EM P07 BB UM v cumipiees o harge of P13 G (2077 D13 O cul-tandmg - at 51 Decemie 2015 0 G 18 e 1017 B OE Yy
fordreser ofse bvavredt 00 Tm 2007 08 Om) rirespet | of lypses andd e v agh 1874 aomage far vaiie of share ophiors gracdsd o e yea

- o . . a e grart aale v o, S0 T TEE0TT U1 8
1Tl S8 o of e tolal eharge andd 57 3m 200§ 2 ol the ot

crect anesper s of option gra e 1o dirediors The werghted acerano share prce at 1l e date b exerase of <hars
Aptions exOeos0H g He year @a- C11 83 U0 018 26,

4.11.7
Share-based payiment valuation methedology

The tar alue ol se e receped el oo deaee o oty graved e

Miea cren becreteienne 1o the L value of sare aplon gianates baned o

I3 ke=Srnokel o fone e e thoed=l ThiE d cur pt oo waed dor granta o 218

Pl s gk o el obd o 1T AR T s e ted shidre g 2 vl il
€

cleo POTT 27 ve el oo elage exproted T o o 3k ear ol T
Sdaea Jal s egalte quenage ntetect rale of D017 T 01T The

crpected vo it ooee olly Basedbon b necercal olabibty oAb ulated Lased
crothe weigbden ] 2 eage iy gy e of tne share opt st adpised o any
eapset ted o luges oo fatae s clat Ity dues Lo publeb 3 alble mifcrmation
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Section 5 - other notes

5.1
Contingent liabhilities

A contingent kability is a labifity that is not sufficiently certain to qualify for
recognrion as a provision because significant subjectivity exists regardmng
ts outcome.

Growg. contingent abillies relating 1o gua anlees i thie nor 3 Course of
titian pees drwd otnier cemis dmountedd o 182m{Fa17 ©187my

5.2
Related party transactions

Related parties are solely the key management personnel. The Board is
considerad 1o be the key management personnel of the Group.

2018 2017

£m Em

Short-terr. employee ber etits 5.1 B2
Shiare-hia e payments” 2.4 24
Total 7.5 80

' Short-term emploves henchts comprze salary, mcluding emplovers vocial
¢ontribiutions, beneiits earnad duning he vear and bomuso- anarded for
the year
For details of tne shared based payrmaent <harge tor key rmanagemaont
porsonnel see secton s 116

There are no othor relatad party trarsactions

5.3
Subsequent events

Events that oceur in the perod between 31 December and the date of
approval of the annual report can be categonsed as adjusting or non-adjusting
depending on whether the condition existed at 31 Decemnber. If the event is an
adjusting evenl, then an adjustiment to the resulls is made. If a non-adusting
event after the year end rs material, non-disciosure could nfluence decisions
that readers of the financial statements make. Accordingly, for each material
non-adjusting event after the reporting pericd we disclose the nature of the
event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that such an
esfimate cannot be made.

Trere were no adiusting subsequent events after the balance sheet date of
31 December 2018,
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5.4
Significant accounting policies

A. Subsidiaries

The Group tinanclal statoments, oomeolidate the finan cal ~tatemonts of IV ple and
the ernties t cordrols it0 suboebane 3 107 the year 10 37 Dotomner The Grong hae
ey sageibe ant nkeeate whier are accounded tor a - Associates rgomt venures

Subsaiclanes are consokdded from e date of 2 aoqusihor peng the date o
shier the Gronp obtams contol and cor teue 10 Le consoldated il the date
that such contiol ceases. Contiol compriees the power 1o govern b e finano i andd
operaunyg polices of 1he inyestee £0 e 10 okdan benell ron, e actiabes and s
aclievecd hrough direct o ndiect ornelsm e of voling v ghts clnently exercrsable
o converible octenhial voling nghts on by way of contractual agizement The
inancizl stateriarts of sdusid anes usea 1 ne prepaahior ol the consohduted
fina Gl slalemonte are epared for the same tepoting yeor as the parent
conyany and ate based on corsistent account ng polcies Al int agrousn balances
AN Bansacto0s, mneiong Loweahsed profits ansing hom hem are elimniatled n holl

A cha gen the oarershipy nterest of g subsidiary, s out bss of cormal,
15 80 ourted for as an eguity transaction 1 the Group loses control over 4
subsichary 1t

* dierocognines he assele elodng any gaodwill relating o the subrosdaryd and
Labat s of the ub diare,

» dereCoyriges the carrying amount of any non-cos trolbing nterest

« clergcognises he cumulatee translation dforend o rec orded o equty,
= roCognises the rar value of the oo wsaderation recer.ed

s tacnynises the -an vedue of gy nvestn ent retaned,

® roenarsas aty surplus or dohoert n prots or loss and

* retkasalfies e paront's share of componerts nrevously recogn sed in other
comprrencnsive ncome 10 proft or [oss or retancd eanings, as 2pmopiate

Taxalion on he apove accountarg entrics woutd also berecogrmsed
where applivatlo,

B. Use of judgements ang esbhmates

The preparation of thanaial stalerents reguires management to make
Jdgermnents, estimates ard assamptions that affect the application of
accounting polcies and the reported wmounts of assets, labiities,
Income and expenses. Actual results may differ rom these estimates

I. Key judgements
Clasaification of adjusting tems

Maragement has applied udgemerd 1 the sele ton of the Alterratwve
Performance Measures (ARPMS') ased in the Annual Report and Accounts
The APMs presented are used in discussions wilh the invesiment analyst
commurity ard by the Board and managerient (o monitor the trading
pertomance of the Group We consider that the presentalion of APMs allows
for improved Insiyht to the trading performance of the Group The adjusting tems
In the ncome statenient include restructunng costs, special pension avents,
gans/osses on disposals of subsilanes imparmeant [osses the reversal of
ganglesses on economic hedyes, yains on property disposals acquisihion costs,
acaured Mangible amartisation and other scquistion tems See Section 2 2 for
further details of the items that are classified as adpsting tems

1. Key estimates and assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions conconing the tuture ana other sources
of estimation uncertanty &t the reporting rate are described below. The
Group bases 15 assumnphions and astimates en information available when
the consolidated firancial statements e prepared Market changes or
arcumstances ansing beyond the controt of the Group are reflected in the
assurnptions and eshmates whert they cccur Revisons to acoountig
estimates are 1ecogrused nthe penod inwhich the estimate 1< revised

and nany future penods aftected



Impairment of non-financial assets

Frinar end el owhien the careang valoe uf dnas el oo g erating el
excees L renoveralile amoum it bt e bigh e ol b eahie leeos oo
teselland o vadue e e, Thie value i ase s baced o die o fed cash e
esdel Gee Ttk v, are der s e e Grote s long-lenn Torec 2 b fer the tiesd
e 1 ve years The dasesumens perlormes were malenally e s et
chetage i ibe t derl g grose b asd ise ound rale assianphion s edi d=re
aot clgpe ca tlere s et e canent gear The prine poad key e 17 ate refle-t1,
Tae asstimprons n these o alculahons are he long-tenm gre by rates 2nd tha
e oUNL rate apelied to forer b eash fon s or b o e adh evement of
e forccant themeeles Fonl e mfomnabon Gnemne ds waniphion-s, gooptes or
mglaral Ca 1 goneraing urits and be ety alfected s i deo n Sechion 72

Traching provisions

The Groupr - elle g ste ganie o bigh oy techgeal produste e sbalst bey

are gesiyed el engnaead 1o a bigh doegeee of orecizior drd to casion e
e Lo shons v ere s o neloof produs 15 regunng modkie atien atich caneddd
Browsartanily ©lanrms g ey Gr obeokele roentuny, ane Cole 1o ko gadng

recerablel S ol T ds0s £9T d8s Ddsec Oh

Pl onpe e 0Ty ar Ty s aned the anuoe a s aos s etoriha clame
b doneal de e ara g ego o u s ol ul e ol e st
o foret ot e oste 10 complele, and

o b et arone fews ot andd ternlones dor whache cree s urend

heighte e collecion auk oF w hiere bisiore al issues Baqe arsen

the digree o c-pendenoe or futire events make - thewe £« imate s inherently
Sodyertve The s aunts of e rading prove 100ns 1 ogniseod 10T mventon fratde
recenables and oloer proasion are oo Becan 3 0 1 Secton < 17
anry Se< on 3 & respoec el

Employee benefils

The prasent valug o the Grogp s defieo benelt panse phines ad othar post-
errpile yreent herelits are dntennmned usng acuansd valtahione Anact anal
valicton mvoles miching varcon o onnphor s that may difien rom g taal
deselopments oy the fotore Huee e hude the determimation of the ¢ ool
rate flation, Hdiee salary noeases morlahty rates carvd LGN PonsIon inereansc
The assumpton used and -naly s o0 thor sorsitraty e luded in Sechion 4 8
Dua e the comploxity of the valuat o anao its londg-tere nature, a definedd

D neht shligetin i highly censdive o changs mtheso o sumphon”

. Changes in judgements, estimates and assumplions

Managesnient hdve teassessed the key pdgemients and estir dier presented
= he 2017 Annual Report ard Accormt s ared cone haded Bl 1 the curtent
yadr, the oy Cadrge equired 1rlates 1o the ectimates and judgemends applied
101 the valiatior of kangble assat, ansing from the Bantw .couieatonr uhich
Aat conipl ted durng 2518

Valuation of acquired Intangible Assets

I s Lountifig Tor bushess cumbinaions, the sl nbife e auosts hab e

o contingent bebshlits af guaed | ave 1o ve measorcd b ther Favalaes Iy
PANICULE gty estmiate bay beer madie of the faecast lure sales nder e
i G eumnne Gl relationships whech huy e heen dscounted ol o apraropn ate
Hisr ount rate to value 1he comitratcial ielyvon Pigs aaond Brand sotangibles Detail,
CONCETNIN al GUISAnNG ardd b socombuialions o ontined nesection 31

€. Revenue Recognition

FRen ot e te Ogrised Wiwenc oF e toes o dier the dfeme ol reon bt sl ong
crston e < atr e This gen cnally oncues chen the goods are trans e, o
e srvl s e provided to ote Coslomer Rewvenue = meas a@o as the ar ount
oF Comrade et we oxG | Tec R e 1 exd b Tor ans e geodds or
e seraces Sales and orher ke colieg ted o cne o nere e o ke dd
fror reonie. The nature o1 toe equiprnent, vl and olbes ¢onlacsmto vihien
thi= Groo e ter L maeare thiad

o b e antar sy e tally contam antne peromane e obigation s o beof
whne by rareder control ol he g ods o she steaet here soch distine f
cedotoeacho el ond

preloni oo chlnpab o oo pros e hie 1 1 gl

noaccordance sithe pole b ale ol go o
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e e e elaa 1o U e ontract s usu Uy mewgrabeant norelation bz
fo b ontract value o d e ofien provioed one o shert-tenn or one-of bags
Cihere thes e Ihe Cote e onae s recognised whian he serae g comy lele

A e tos Ll of the above the sehuficass T oty of e Grod s sewrue s

rede Jrset or e sale o gondds bBacs Eerbood the rhivssiorabravenge | acans o0
aut i Sechior 21 1 canconst of the sk ot geords Te orovion of <2rac &
or awormbanahies ot the te o The speor oomehods oo "o e oginee the
difleront tonns of revenue coned by U@ Tnoup o arg <ot oul Distow

v Sale of goods

Teeen e tron b e sl
peaboartes froacder fse o d

[gooe oo oginsedan ne cona Jabee end pet al
v rvohrne 1 bPale when oot baas ean tnonsienred
e g bomer Neo even e s recogne ed whore rooover, of thie conaderdbon
15 NGt protable o dhe e are Serific ant one e bamtie s 1 gardingg asnoeeeed cond
arthe e o et an b eds Thdramoang of s o woaralow fedor el andd the
FOVenUC tee DOnn cd vane ) lne e bodie counte and proenotier offores g

our s ot s A ibor ostormior i Fydroni

The te g otthe et b o con teol ty ot costamer v depe ding on

the nattne Gt s snood 10y <olkd ang tne - oo @l t=en Set b contract or
cale S odes e osde undey 1 ter atoniall, at coptod tatie tere s eote -

TU0 we e o aodd 35 teee e wben To Gronga | as completed 0o bar s
Araee cecrod to trurerer oo ok as oetred o the B esanon al Ghiamber of
Corrersc o Of e J Rules for tre Intarpretation o Tracde Terr s Salrs madn
oulede neoten s 2030 are gan= qlby tocognsed on acdvers 2o tho castomer
Prlmicedd st ances @ o ustomen inay renuiost hat the Sroup setan.
BSOS Of @t asset TF a oo sfer Cotrol s as Becn ranctonad to the
o stornar I These Croais w05, the Group, provdes thie slurane as

a LOrICe 10 e u-tomer andd therefore regenle 15 recody 1wed poorn to
dehvery or e 3.0,

yed ol

1 Rendenng of services

Anned above revenue from 1he rorder ng St sanad oo s bstally nognibe ant
i relanion te toe total Contract vabue and s genstally prowaed o g short-tom
o cne-of Lals Accodinghe roveriie s usually recognisrd shen the serace s
complete

Whers the s oot the cas e revenue fror s epaoes rendore e oonesed n
proporion to the stago of completen of the <ervice at the balane e sheet dace

The & age of coripletion & asseased by reference 1o the cordr dtiual perlormand e
abilitg bor s wilh gach sepatate custome ard ihe costs nourred on the conlract
o date 1 compa 15 o e total feecast cosle of the rantiact Revernne
tenndion comnend es or howhen tre ootcon e ol e contrant cin be reliably
nieas e netallstions feas e similatly cecogisen Dy relerence to the stage of
con pleten oe b oo asdaliabe s ordess ihey e ne diental to e -ale ol ihe goods
A b ase they are racogiisaehahien the goods are sokd

w Combined services and goods

WVihen atrar see boncombines oo suoph of goods wath The proves oncol

d e wit serer ¢ dimbine D paetionnante abligabio e are denmbifiod and
reecagnite e he watts e apspl cabsle policy I the servic e eeaenital 13 1he
one earsalily o1 the goeds soppdied e combanccbperlonmane e obiigaione
e dued Ty the o on o aoods dnd seraces areodentied sl e oseead
{ewol el ne Treary et leot peric e 1 -localen s W e b e dormiare e ot Hgabion
ory art gt Des e, Beers U rome A sere e e toneied oo

1o thie supphy of qooddsor res oguisec at e s ame e 4 e reoer ne

froero the sunply of gooos,

D. Goodwill

Gao Ladb s mitally ineassireth at cost b ameg the excess of the aggre gate ol
Wit gqulation caate B valis of the consideranon ransforred oo e aed
wenhifislle arnoanta ot tie ssets o grarea aned the abilities - s od o
thies b asmniests ¢ arnbarisn
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Section 5 - other notes
(continued)

Atter i ital rec ogition, goodwill 1s ineasured ot cost b ss any accamulmad
pnparment josues =or the pupose of imparment tesbag goodvell ac guiredd
I A 0SINESS Contanalon s fram boe soousibor date, alocated 1o each o
the Group's Cashi-generating Hnily (or groups of cash general r g unils) that sre
expected 10 baharr from the conbinatios irespective of whether olher assels
o habilitie s of the acouiree dare aswgnec 1o those uts Bacs anil or greup o
unes toowhi b goodvall @ allor ated shall represent the lowant buel vathin e
antiry at which the gooowill s menitored 100 e nal dnagement anreses
and <hall et be Largen the oo speraling seqment Fefore aqgregat f

Vhere goodvall Fornis par of o Cost -gonoratirg unit and [par of the operaton
within that unitis d sbosed of, 1he gootwill assoc ated with Hie opearation
dispoced ot 1is mcdadad o+ the canying amount of ho operat oreshio
dotenninng the gail o sy on fisposal of the oper ton Gooawill disposea

of In this cireumstance 15 Measured based on teaelatve values ot tho

o alion thspased of and e Horton, Of the Cdufi-ganeratiog urst retanod

E. Intang:ble assets

[PanLIC @ssets are suby-Uradao i ne « oles o e oo an counts betw een
acguired alangible assets and ron-acauncd 1 tangilbile s els Amor sation
Of ae Gguired mtareihle des el i teated as an adius trgatene as desonbed in
See o 2 2 of thewe atcounting policn becaus ¢ of g inherent valabity
The ace cunting pobicy Tor guod sl s dosoribcd i accaunting poliey 0

1 Research and development

Expenditure on research activities, indetiaken «wath the prospect of gaming
new scientific o technical knowleage and uaderstandng s recognised in the
neorie slateinent as an expense as ncarrecd

Expondture on developiment actealcs whoreby re earc b ingings are apolied o
o pan or design for e procuction o1 1eve or sube fantiully mproved produe s
and processes, 1 capitaliced provided benetits are probable, cost can be
reliably measured and if and anly it the procuct or process s techically and
commercially feasilde and the Groug has suff ciert resources and nitention

10 complete development The expenditure capitabsed ncludes the cost of
matenals, direct labour and dectly attibutable overheads Other development
expenditure 18 recognised in the ncome statement as an exoense as noured
Capnralised development expenditure 15 stated at cost less accumulated
amartisat on {see below) and impairment losses {see accounting poloy
mpairment’y and 18 Includied o+ the othar acquired o ather non-acquired
category of intangible assets dependirg on its or.gn

1. Sofiware development costs

Software apphations and systems that are nol an ntegral part of ther host
computer equpiment are capitahsed on nibal receyniion as intangible assets al
cost Cosl compnses the prucnase phce plus directly attrbutable costs ncurred
on development of the assel to brng 1l into use Foliowing rtal recoyrition,
soltware development costs ae camned al cost less any acoumulated
amorlisation {see below) and accumulated mparment losses (ses accoununy
polcy Imparment’) and are ncludad n the othet acquired or other non-acgured
Category of ntangble asecets depending on ther ongn

in. Customer relationships and other acquired mtangible assets

Cuslomer relatonshin and olher mtangible assels that are acguired by the
Grop as parl 0 & business combinadion are slaled at ther far value caleulated
by reference Lo the nel present value of futdre beneits aceruing to the Group
from utilisation of the asset, discounted at an appropnale discount rate
Fxpenditure on other nternally generated intangble assets 13 recognised

In the income statement as an expense as ncurred

iv. Amortisation of intangible assets other than gocdwill

Amortisdabon 15 chasged to ke ncome slatement on a straight-lne basis
{¢iher than tor customner relationshins and oider book. which are charged
on a sum of digits basms) over the eslimated useful lves of the ntangible
assels, Amortisation commences from the date the Intangible asset
brecomes available for use The estimated usefud hves for
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e Copitabsed development cucts ae e e of e nrasgible daset fusu-lly o
(RAXIHTT OF TU years)

» Soflware development cosls are the Ife of the intargible assel i 1o 10 yeare)
v Customer relatonships are thie e of the rraogible aeset o 10 10 vears!

o Otter targible ssoete (noludirg erder hooks brands anc soteael ae
the Ife of the intang ble assel up to 10 years)

F. Financial income and expense

financial noome corprees Claresl recevable on funos reested noome
framonvestments and gam: ot hedgieg nstunients that are tecogn sea in ‘he
neer e stalement Interest incon e 1s recogised v the incom.e statement axs il
accrues fake g nto de coant the eftective y eld on e agset Deidendd ncome =
recogrised n tte neome statement on the date -hat the dividend s aeclared

Batent el CARONSe GO tnines e 1 payeble wibonownige cale ulated usng
b oo in ¢on'erest rate mothad the nteres! related elorment ot dervaliec and
forssn s o ke Gl mstiunments Wal are recog ased i b cone cne statement
The mletes texpen: ¢ conmponent Of ndice lease pavinentt s e oyiieed i
thie econme staterct b using thie o les ive miterestbra e method

Not tnance axpense relating 10 dot ned betnht pension schemes teprasante
thn assuimeo nterest on the difereng e hetweon armplayee bhenett plan hatantes
and the employee henefit plan assets

Bortowr ¢ costs diectly attributable to fie acqusiion cansiiucton o
production o an agset that recessanly takes o substantial penadd of time 1o
yet ready fonits nterdad use ur sale are capitalced as prarl of the cost of the
respective assets All other bostewrig Losls aie expensed in the penod they
occlr Bo roveng costs cors ot of irterest and other costs trat an enlity ncurs
in cottecton wath the bonovang of finds

G. income tax

Current tax payablonec evable ropresents the axpocted tax payable/recen.able
on the taxable ncaman for the year usmg tax rates enacted ar substantively
enacted at the halance shaot date and 1k ng nto ace ount any adustments in
rospect of proor yoars

Deferred "ax 15 novided. using the balance sheet melhod on temparary
differences belween the cairying amounts of assets and hauilties for inancial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxauon purposes Defenred tax s
not recoanised for the followmg tempaiary dilferences  the inttial recogniton ol
goodval, e mitial recognition of assets or labilimies in a hiansaction that 1s not a
business combination and 11al afec's nellher acoounting nor laxablie pofit and
ditferences relating t& invesiments 1 subsiciar s 1o the extent that the umng
of the 1eversal of the differences can be contiolles and 1 is piohable that the
differenc es will not reverse nthe forgsezabls tuture Delenred tax s rmeasured
al the tax rates that are expected to «pply when the temparary diferences
reverse, based on the tax taws that have been enactedt or substantively
enacted by the balance sheel date

A defened tax asset 1 recogrised tu the extent that it 1s probable that tuture
taxable profit will be availahle agairst which the temporary diterence can
be utilised

H. Foreign currencies

1. Foreign currency transactions

Monatary assets and habities denominated in foraign curencies have been
franslated into steriing at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheaot
date Foreign exchange differences arsing on translating hansachors at

the exchange rate ruling on the transaction date are reflected in the nceme
staterment Non-monetary assets and habiitios that me measured at historical
costin g foregn cunency are transtated using the exchange 1ate at the date
of the lransaction. Non-monetany, assets and habilities denominated in foreign
cutrencies that are stated at fan value are translated into sterling at foregn
exchange rates ruling at the balance shoet dato,



I Foreign operations

Thie e e dlaternents of overseds subimid ay vndeniasang ares e s e dal
e appaapriabe avel tge rg @ o exohange o e veor ane the e e o
yoar eod raie v baken ditectlv 10 resetver,

The, fiosets and Dabiltes o foreign oporanons e dading goo.sadl oo e vale
AImE s ot st Onac g asbons are anslated ol tereuy v exobange o tes
drey al he biland s sheel date

Forogtioxchie godrfo oroes o ag onsctiznslation are recogrased drocd,

A oCpardle compone of vty Snce T Jdand dy 2001 ne Gieup d we
of ronston o IFRSs such diferences have bearorecogni cd 1 the franslanonr
Fooperator o aluponeo of o part or el thes e lesarnd
tarsfeaed o nieht o o

reme ve AVHhen o fore

Aot rche transbibio esene e

I. Financial instruments and fair value hedging

Frecanced rtnoenents are mibialhy r=oorded o b rvali- phis Airecty ttbeot e
ravear g ecst anle b mbr nent s o reaabue not denic ato e -
Bimtlos o —e b elos Sobesgent e varsment deper oo 10ine Ge g gt

e e on i bBcdleeess the caaagne e H13E8 9

s Foed elepion bs o e isaliy compe st i el o b oks e 1 othiel

anc il de Linher s oare ¢ lasafied s avalalste for - ale 2 el noe IFRS 2
ad meld at ar sy due Short tenn bottoangs and overaraflts ae dassfed 10

Teaanse al insdicos at et e mes

Oletralies, co sy nlerest rd e s e a1 e g exc b kit Lot rac

and cptions melals ftures ~anbats acd amy ernpedaed derreds e ae
tlasofieu 4, far dlbe nrough proht or 1o s uoder IFRS 9 ar Jess desagh-end
as hedgen Ders aliver rol designdded ss hasges are milially v ogr. <ed at
Lar valus, atir hutable transaction costs ae récognized 1 proft or lows v hen
g rresd, Supsacuen onlal tec ogotion changes i far calue of sucts

o mealh gy and gans o los- g5 anther seftlemient oo recogmnsed 1o
net thwncial ncome o e<pense

Lo tam nans and othor interest heair ) bone anqgs are generally held at
amertsed cost Uang the effecive interest tate method Where g o g iom
lonan e hedged, gorerall, by g teree tate av ap, and the hedge s regreoed
ds eflective, the carrying vatue of the long term laan s adpucted for changes n
for valuc of the bedge

Tracie recewables are stated at cost as redueCd Dy s propnate mysa rimeot
allowant os 1o expected qrecovesable amos it

¢ Trare pravat les aie slaled ot cosl

Fananical @ obs an llabilae ace reconmned on the bakanc o sheet ondy rhee
he Cirows, oo omes aoparly bl contran fual prrosaone af e oesiianmen

Available for Sal0 oAl assety are canned at tar velue s th g, dloose
Licing rec agnisco incequily axcept for mnpasmient losses v B e i cognised
in the e o o staemeaent

J. Other hedging

t Hedge of monetary assets and habilties, financial commutments or
forecqst ransaclions
Where qodchvatne a1l st enent eoaseed s aneco o heoge of
thes feorewn € e by ringe or mietad, ommodily, prie o expror ore ol g oo ofprca
trscnctary Aanset or bakal, beancial con e Lor Paroa S ansac e bt
Jdoes bt meel the entero o ared T lor bodge accountng unaes 1S 9 no
hietie ac ounting o applicd ened aryg gan oc doss resulting frame chanae n
farcabie of the hiccmeg e < tumen G ecngaised i net et LE e ane
OO

Whete <ocma ot vatre 1o g tormally ey snatcr hiedoge of g forecad teare eter
for atconting poarpaaes rovement i the valae of the de paative are

ree o d dnec e i ot er camp rchieninbee s cnng o e estent e ieddge

el tiee The Coroprany cenesues the offectiaones of he bedoge baa a o -he

e cprecteod] o velue of the amount 1o he sor emed ancd thee mosoroen® e the fan
dolne of the denafive s signat o as e hedie
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Forzeon etvaliepo ing uposes changes o be fair Al el e onomie
hedgss hal aie not designated » edges whonslalz o eorsnt yvear latdingg
tsethor wiin e gare, and los- ¢ onther sett mient, ate dalloo ded 1o he

segmental v ey nd operat ng peol Lt thaealo eant b usines e segien;

1 Hedge of net investmeant in forergn aperation

VVTere A o nrrenic e labil ty or dericstiee 1hee el insbe anent v A forrnaik,
Ae-apate T oedge T a net e eeTinent i fernan oAt ionsmin exe et
cliffrressir o arsang o fthe dorcegn camency labaliby o chen aeon
the far vl f the finoncighinstramont are reccagne <o ot et an

fran [4tion

other comprehion s oo ome b the extent the ecky” -~ orectae The Gro o

Ao e et goes Lot et e tmiesd hodges by asecr o fan cal
et as s e ludingelowvant oo dvall Hdonag ated aun roreign

thedont oo gna o an

chiange- of 8
et Gy o stbyana the tar s slug changos of bot
A he e anc e eele cane fie ancal i trome

K. Property, plant and equipment

Sl b ddard ecets nhe o e ot Lo tan e et deprenaten

Pese st e rop oy pd o arid cgur e e dated at oo 1] IRV TN

arbiney foohe

Cloptec alon e bede 20 denpar oo Plos e 0 e

RONEETI TN

VIWEe an e m ot prop ety prlan ang Euipmien® ¢ omin Sea e aer
Lo g dhitferent vseful bves they ore acr antent for as Separafe "or s o
propety, pla tanrdegupment Sosts meespedt o rnling ovined by the G [
for Cleatly Klentifiable  ew prooucts are cantalized net of a4 contrtsiti:

e e from castomaers and aresnck sded n plant 2nd e apment

(SR A AT

Denrecdataon s Chuge i to T e mcone stdement ona straight-ine sasts (unoss
U achas s es not aligr ed wath the antiopated benet ) so as to venle dover the
(oot ol aosgts 1o s ual vaities oy e penod of then oot miated seful foes
vt e Ollo g ranoe-

s o

s froa old buldngs - 25 to 50 vears

o Plan andd evsnpiment - Go 2O yoarn

L. Leased assets

L anpn whiero the Group a2gumes subantally all the ns « and ewards of
e sni are Classnied as nance [eases,

Plarnt and ecuipment acosared byowav of Tiance lease s -tated @l an amatnnt
~uuial to the lower o 1 far value ar a the present valae of the minemum lease
pavnienle at ncepton of he leaso, less at s umulated depreor dionosen above)
Anchimpermers lo-ges (e deocinting policy mpasrment )

Fromont e e noor opecating feases ang o ogoeed s the e oene statomeond
nr s kb =lne oo oger the term ot the e

Lerteas i coNbves e every are ter ognice b hen come slaler etd Goer e
penod of the lease unless o different <y stematic teethotd s rnote aprroptate
wder the enes of the lease The mgonty of laomg ransactions enferedin o

by the Groop are aperating leanes

M. Inventories

I ontones e valse b at the loa e of o1 and net e ale ablke value Do te
e vty ity abuee OF e Sreps Cperalone botac e S e Cove O
e igh et e crdge et ook are otgaloy b Torerpor Gl sseorkon
progres s Ik e gootda costinge e all direc e ante on praey e
At e ppropn e proporhan b prodie oo st

N. Impairment

The ceorry gy dues of the Grooprs non ina ced @ - otbe 1 lnan e os
e el g poley Inuerror e ol de fopce] T o 1 eee seca nting
poale o Bcne o b creresieeect gt ear b b alany ¢ Choetado o d e e
shicther fere s any nchealion of W1 panmient
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Section 5 — other notes
(continued)

I any s hnddic afon exists e ran avierable amenrt of the asset or dl assets
AT s cash geriersting vt s estimated A miparrmient kst s re ogrised
wheneve, the caryrg amoail of anasse O ts Cash grnerate g unit exceeds 15
racoverable amount Impacent loesel ate recognised n the meone statemran

For goodwill and assets that aie net y o1 available ‘o use, the tecover Jble
amoun® 15 evaludted at sach halanon sheet date

1 Calculation of recoverable amount

[0 recovarable armount of the Groupy s recevable s ather Ihan Inane 4l assete
Bl at fac valhee 1 o al loded ao the pre-ent valia o expec e hitire caslifove
dueonnten at the orging effectve pierest rale nhierent 1 the v aet Bacananle
wallya < hatl Auration of less Ha ong wear are iel oo enntedd

Trerecoverabla amount of otho assols - he greater of et tan value lous costs
te sefl ancd value inuse I assesung valoe 1 s e anndiacd d assessment
midcle of the cstirmated future cash flows genetated for each Gash geneatng Lnd
(hased upon he latest Groun foree st and extrapolated using a0 appiopnate
long-term growth rate or cach cash gorating unitin pe:petuily cor s stord
withi an o3t mate of the -elesnt geograptnd org-term GOP oy, Toewe

arg discounted to ther prosent value naing a pre-tax disc oot rate that 1eflects
cuarran: martkel assessmens of the tme value of money and t-e rieks specifiic

o asgset Management believe that tils anprosc honcudng the vse of

the ndef rite cash flow projecton s appropnate based upor hoth mistore 2
expeticns e and because it e one of *he Dases ihanagement utihse to ovaluate
the ~ar vedtie of nvestment opoortunities For anasset that does not gererate
largely independerit cash nflows, “he reccverablo amount s dotermined or
e smallest cash gencratng 1nd to which he asset onlonag:

I1. Reversals of impairment

As requiren by 1AS 3e fearroent of Asecle sy imiparnoent of geodwall o
avallable for sale finanaal asset: s non-reversible Inre-pect of other avsets,
AN MBAIrn ers 1058 15 reversed f at the baland e sheet date there are indic abon=
that the loss has decreased of no longer 0xIsts followng 4 change in the

et mates used 1o determme the recoverable amount

Arvimparient oss i reversord only to the extent that the assets carrying amo.ant
aoes not excecd the carnng amount that would have been determinad, net of
depreciaton or amortisation if o mparment loss had been recogrised

O. Dividends

Final diiciends payaole ale recoynisod as o habilty ut the date at which

they are approved by the Company's sharehoider s or by the sunsidiary s
sharchoiders i~ respect of dvidends to non-controling nterests Intenm

dvidends payable are recogrisect on the date hey are declaren

P. Investments not held for trading

Investments thal aie designalea as being not held for rading zre «ihizlly
recogrised at far value Subsequently (the far vaiue of the nvesiment 1s
reassessed at each balance sheet date with movements it lhe far valve
recogrsed in other compretensive necomea

Q.Employee benefits

1. Defined contribution pension plans

Contiibut ons to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
expense n the ncome statement as incufred
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o Defined benefd pension plans

The Group s not Sbiaaton m respec b of celined boredit e saon pilans 12

Call Ulatod searately Tor oach plan Dy o goa g e arount ot iutore beneht
that conptoveos have carncd mroturm for e rsorie eom e arrent and pro
periows that benetl s discounted 1o detent e i present value aod the far
Vialue of any plan ascets are nedocled FPast cenvic e conls are rer oynmsd
puoft or loss an the earher of e dale of the plan ameadment or cantamment
and the date hat the Group recoghines restruciu ng-redaled <oty The
discourt rate 1 hieyiekd ¢ e balar ce ur sel dale onbagh geality < opore
Lonides ot Hie aptopia e Currency thal have auralions dpproxitaling thee- e
of the Group s obligation- The cak ulalion s performed by a qualfied setuary
using the proges ted unit credit imetbod  Wie he caloulahon reaults « o et
asset 10 the Sroups 1he recognised aoset 1 imited to the prer ent value of any
future reb nds ron - the plan or reduction- n falare contrbutions 1o the plan
anct testeoted by, any relevant asset < eiling Ay decuction rmade by the sax
authorties in ibe event o a reiuno of a Laplus woedld be regarded by the
GFOLL db an ncome tax

Whern the benatis ol o plan are irmproved the expanss e re agne e
inmeciately e ncome statement Resmeas urement ganss and losses,
arc roc canis oo me T ediatcly ey aned oL Ciosed i the statemend of
i,ﬁﬂ'l[ ORI O

. Long-term service and other post-employment benefits

The Group s net obbuation i respec | ol long-ter service and o her post-
employment henefits olher than nension plans < the amount ot future benelit
that employees have edarted 0 return for ther senace in the carrent and fricr
penods The ubigalion s calculated usiy the proectedd anit creaint rrethiod
and 1§ discounted 1o s present value and Hie far value of any refaled assels
i deducred The discoont rale 1 the yield al the baldnce saeel date on high
guality bonds ol 1he approprate clrrenuy thal have duralions approximaing
those of the Groups obl gations

w, Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

The Group operales a number of equity and eqguitv-related compensalion
henetts as set ot Section 4 11 The farvahue of the amploy e services
rocened In exchange for the grant of the options i recognised as an axpense
each year The fotal amount to be expensed over the vesting penod 1s
determined by reference to the far valug of the options granted, excluding
the imrpact of any non-marked yesting conditions (for example, profitaiility
and sales growth targats) Non-market vesting conditons are included
assamptions abaut the namber of options that are expected ta become
extreisabie The far valie of the options 1= determined based an the
Blach-Schales option-prcing modei

Al each balance sheet date, the Group revises s estimates of the number ol
oprions that are expected lo vest 1 -ecognises the mpact of the rewvision of
ongmal estimates, fany 1 the ncome stalament

For newly 1ssued shares, the proceeds recevead vet of any directly atinbutoble
transaction costs are crechted to share capital (nominal value} and share
premium when the options are exercised




Directors’ Report

138

The directors present their reporl, together with the audited financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Strategic report
i tatcaue e ol e orporated by retorces o anelne haos the

follevenneg content

10 by A4

Strategic Review Poge
Commentary provided on the consolidated PP auge #a
ncome statement

Commentary provided on the consolidated g 80 1tua

statement of comprehensive income

Commentary provided on the consolidated Page , dotu &-

statement of changes 1n equity

Commentary provided on the consolidated
balance sheet and the consolidated
statement of cash flows

Peagea 84 anm 1

Results and dividend

The Group consolirarcd nnon: statamatd 1o oo etoon peage 5 1 Sogimentan
cptstatinny proftamow ted 1008 2o 2010 P2 09mtane prodil botore
taraten and dist ont noed (o onations ame e e €212 90 L0177 £ 180 Gy

Thr cuectors reconvend o b aldade wn ol 26 Up per ~hene 2017 25 2p pe
sheatet onthe ording y shane Capntal pagabile sulyect W sbaeholdes o pree 2l
al tre Annual Get dl Meste g 1o be hel d on @ ey 2019 on 17 My 2018 10
shigreholders o ine reg stes U the doses of b sness on 5 Apnl 2019 Togetr o
wilh e ntearn diadend ¢ 13 B per share pod onc 14 Seplamib o 2018 e
trial chucenid wall brng the total chstibution o the yeir "o 4L op per share
(20T 33 A per sharel

Research and development

Sen Sochion 2.1.3 3 10 tre finaacal wtaton.enis on page 97

Shareholders' funds
Share holders' unes neraased froun § 07 o at the enu ot 2017 1o Febh 2m
Al 31 Cecomibar 2018

Share capital

Ao 37 December 2018, be Compary, s share o aptal comgrised @ sigle clas o
of Lhare caprral chieh aeas diadend rde o ay ob e of 284 Tpecch Diatals
of tre share capntal ot the Comprany e set oot e Secbion 4 10 b thes frarogd
slatemicnts on page 16 The Conpary - ordinar, <Dores e bste Don tha
London Stk Exchange

The Sorpany bas a lecel T Amene an 2epostary Rece PADR D paogramime
fur whiebe Gitibank NA ts s deposrdy Seo e 161 for unther detals

A S8 Docomber 20181008 7 v e crene b ld wanco oo Troed
ol il
b bl tie The mdepenicdon s

for ane i rehaier fo corlan exe cdecome on Ine obae popreoidog S0
1osbtesd Dt s apal e laot ey Irecs Ly e

Pt tighits s any otbuer harehodaer otfset e |
spret o athy e e e g oot deed The ERT Da, aygi e e vooe s

tritsslees Gl e Iroae | by

Aty nght e all deaddend progtnent ooy anchin e fatores FBarlic et e thion

sehwrno et Dol a s st ragb b ot e e Bares antl de el e e e

Ly 20008, 03,102 nes avdieat s Duees omne esnod uhders ptnplo oo e
Achomes B3 197 nnder cove w s e an ple sand bonder cxecanoe e
plare Share o acopimed theotgh Sonus e lore ccherne avd plarne nank

pcquall, ot lae s e are o no e al aghils

The riegbts aned airleg shore attac e o hie Compates oebiard b eves e <ot
Ut e Ciomps oyt ot ke o0 e s opees Of 2 hoob e an s e ebbainged
fronr i Zeanpn rnes e s et Pls froep the o 0 e, e by vt o

the S v Secrotar e Ghinages 1o the articles ~f o sociation nost b2
appiroved by d spotid resolrnon ot tha charchal e T80 mcjone, reguned

10 CeOrdanc @ Atk the legi-lation 1 cnea 11 e e Sobger o applc able
stabai=, Bard hay Beossneis wilh sy hockts androstct ne as the Gomgpare
ay by ichnian, e oluton docde o Jithere 1 o s chvrosoludior: o <o tar as it
dors o miake e prosaot be e Boared sy ddecicie

Hol ey of wredinary, <haves are end 20 e cens e Sompeny’s tepont anid
Acconrts e e sreal and vahe 4t gener e eetnge of the Gomipany

AT LG Appui Eeesies lo kel hee ngnes Holde e oo oidnary ehgres may
reC g a e dandd aroo Tauidat on ey sher e i e asseto or the Gompany

St e UIo 1 Cole g CaTan e nekds nolere OT orainany el iy reey asiion
age erabmeting i e Sampany o prar oseresoldtions 1 A ual General
Nratigs voting < g o lorstamary. nelc - biek i in red Ly aie s e cless and the
trog ey STy gl o cere diuidencds or cther o ok one of acsnt

Toerc aretior Do fore ot Tt for ot crdinrey b o r neJopar,

utner than

& CEHall™ e TIGTCnS b ey hOrm e Lo b be nporaad by e o
teyidalions for cramiple v e baciing ks el

e deabng codoowohored sy, the ddrecto -

A ocpdan ompln Ses ot e Cograny reduere speoye tocealne he

Shares

s oL sban e dbe Somipr

Compony

The 01 tany 19 il aware Gl oy arrangenients betweon sharehiolde s oo
Mgy result nrestchons or he bansfer of ord o ary shnes or ancenting ng s
None of 1g stdinuey shares carn, aty speczl nghts e egart o osnirol o
the Compar y The orly resttn iion s on otng nahts ae he e ot apply to the
ordinan, sharey helnin beas iy Eled tone and paper proxy appoirde ents and
Jotmgy st L tions imust be received by the Complany s reqinia s not L der that
A3 hous iexclading any nor-warlang cayeg before 3 genesal meeting or sabrect
ter the Comiparsy ™ darbeles of assoriation) any adioir-ment thereol

Treasury shares

The Sompn ey wes grandod autborty, gt tbe Ao oel Gonerd Mocting bold ¢ 3
Moy 2018 "0 purcha e up 1o 27 204 278 ot e ordmary hares of 28 4,70 sach
Tiwe aulaority wall exare of e conchnon ol the pext Annual General Meed)
te ve hiebd on G Ry 2019 hiere - barehiolders all De aoked o gre a0 im b
aulhordy, detals ol vbw o Al e ogreen e Motice of Annual General fMeeing

As at 31 December 201, 1+ 208 830 ordibaty SHeros msenmal vislue
T Q71006 vt e Dl 0 eanlity represenling o s of e = bair hare o oapatal
e luding e vy sharaot of that e The naxinivm normber of chare s belkd
wodreds ury i tr e year e dad 31 Decemibor 2018 wat 14 245 856

Substantial shareholdings

10T alon Lrow e 10 the Sompany pursie ot e Dol -ure Goseane e el
Tran- pareaicy Rules s publ-hed ned regulatory w formation serce sl ong 2
Complarn s v ebade Al al 31 Decorber 2018 1 e tollow g saliog roeeal

1 Ahie orepriary w0 e cantal ol the Companty, o b able under the D los e
it ¢k T prarcne s Rode s sd beos nobfied to e Coarmgaans

% Held'
Massachusetts Financial Services Company 1305
.;-\men pris-e -Fmanciai Inc 7 G4-
-S-tanaard Life Invégtﬁ{ents (Holdings) Limited 1a°
Legal & General éroup plc 30

A oof the dateos o nntcahicn o the Somn are
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Directors’ Report
(continued)

Sibwe nt 1o 31 December 2018 ane p ot e aate of ik Heper two
changes n e volr g lerecls have been nolificd 1o the Gompany n accortance
wath the Dist | wire Guadane e asd Tiansparen y Buies Massa bosells Financial

Services Compary Bas nolied a decrease nthee holdng e 1095 0 Artisan
Patine s Jimited Partnership has niotitied an norgase it e bolding to 10 37

As for s the Tompany e o vard thore «rs no oasons with substantal holdings
i1 the Compar y othel than those noted abowe

Statement on corporate governance

Ihe recuieed s losnres are oo taned n the Corposate Govenal g Sepoe”
anprages g 1 s and are e crpora ea Cledbe, Direcrar T epor by pferen o

Employee engagement and diversity

Every effort s made to ensure that spple ations for employment fiom d_arled
employeses are lully and tairdy conudered and 'hal d sabled employees Nave
ecqual opportunly i tranng, succaesson planomg and promotionr Fusdier
disclosues relating 1o emipkiyee divers ty e ployee engagement e related
pohlcies are sel ool on pages 38 10 39

Cetals ol emiplogen shao cenemes are et out nehe Bemuroaton Beport
on page 68 armd in Sectir 4 0 of the finane ol statoments cnpages 130
to 133

Health, safety and the environment

It 1= Group polivy to mprove continuously safe and healtby working cordiions
andd to operate alaaye it an envronmentally responsile rannes

Our cathun reporting gross lonnes CO ¢ petformance was impacted n 2018
by the acousihon of Bimba 2016 — GO.000, 2017 — 58,500 2018 - 83,000
On a lilke for llke bas s exc hiking Brmba, ow 2018 eniscions were i ing with
2017 Ot the 2018 total ouw duect (Scope 1) ermissions of CC - essentially gas
diesol and tuel ol consumed amounted to 17 750 tonnes Cur indirect {Scope
2} ermussions of CO,. essentially the enissions generdtea on our behalf to
provide our clecinoly  amounts to 45,250 tonaes

In adcilion to gross lonnes of CO e we report CO e ntenaity relafive 1o 1 milion
seles, our tesull for 201818 33 0 On a ke for bke biasis exchuding Biniba, GO e
ntensity wds 32 3 for 2018 which 1s an mprovemeni! relative to the 33 9 we
aclhigved n 2017 when estaled on a constant curency basis (2017 reported
figire of 33 4)

We plan to drive further savings noour CO e emissions by inprovinig continuously
the condmon of our sites and cnsLNNG oul Processes are Lean ana sastamablc

Our CO ¢ accounting melhodology tollews DEFRA guidel cs and noludes
All matern sl em s a0ns across (M See page 42 tor lurlher CO e and energy
eliciency detals

Political donations

No polit cal donations were made dunng the year,

Directors

The membership of the Board and bicgraphical details of he diractors are
given on pages 52 and 53 and are incorporated Into this report Ly reference

The rules 1or the appointment and replacenient of directors ae set out In

the Company s arbicles of association. Each nicw appointee to the Board 1s
required to stand for elechion at the next Arnual General Meetng follovarg tho
appontment In agditon the Company's artcles of assocation requite each
dirgctor to stand for re-clection at least once aveny three yedrs, Howevel, In
accordance ‘mith the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the 'Code’) all
directors wishirg to serve agam will submit themselves for re-election at the
next Annaat Seneral Meeting and are recomimended for re-cloction

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Qualifying indemnity provisions and liakility insurance

The Compuany mantans adinectors” and offic e labslity georznee and all deectors
of the Compary bancit from qualifiyeg thrd party indemnty provsions which veg
I place dunng the It anciad year At the dote of ths Anr ual Boport there are sach
1cerinimy are et nert will) gacl cired tor 10 respe.t ol the Losts of defending
oyl canunal and regulaton, proceedr.as brought agamst them &y a drecler or
eriplovers sohicc alwavs to the Tmitanons se1 by the Gompanis At 2006

The Group operates 0 sion schemes nthe Uk wlech provide rearemen and
cleath bhenefits fr ervployees and foimer e ployees of the Group T comolale
tuslen of the pension schemes s Y Zengior s Tust Limiten a subsireey of the
Cotnpany Qualiy g pen=ion scheme ndsninty (rovsions as oedngun section
235 of the Gompar 10a Al 2000 were in fodcs fon the finaneiad year endedd 31
Decernter 2018 aixd rtenian 1n force for the beneht ¢F gach of the drecors of
the comorate truslee o the pension schemes Thase ndemaity |prorasion- Cover
to the extent priliac by b ceitan losses o hatsfilies nconred A4 g e tor o
ofticer of the < orporate tusiee of *he pensior oo hemet

The Group ako has in place thrd party Qualbying ndemity prowvs Ghc

as cefied N section 234 of tie Companes Act 2006~ tavaur of cottan
cmployees who o <2 harge responsbiliiies fon vanons whoty-ownesd subsid ary
companies and these ndemnities are given on d sin lar basis 1o the above

Role of the Board
Therole of the Board 18
e to pronote the lor g-ternn suece s of the Campany for e benghl obds mambiers,

o {0 nnderstand the vie, s of key stakehobders and revies ehgagenien
mechan sms

o {0 ceb/monitor the Campany $ values, pupose and ~tategy and e sar that
these ard is culti e are algred,

s {u selocd and apponit the Excoutne Cutnmmtiee and en-ure thatl 1ha necessary
resour ey ore avillable 1o them,

= to ensure that the Companys abligations to shareholders e tnde-tood and n et

» t¢. demonstrate ethical leaderstip and hgh standards of behaviour and 1o
oversee governanee, nsk and the contrel ervironment, and

* 1 ensuie *hat the Board has the polcies processes, information ime and
resolces 1t needs to function effect vely and ctficiently

The Board provides foaderstin, direction and governark ¢ Tor the Compiany, and
averseas business and management podormance Tr e Board has adopted

a corporate governanse framowoerk which defines Boara roles and neldies.
the st of matters, reserved 16 1t and wrten delogathions of authornity for ds
committees and the Excoutve Committee, RBoard escrved matiers ing lude
strateyy and key arcds of policy, maor operalional and siralegi rske, skgmifi ant
vestinent decsions and malenal changes m he organisation of the Group

1 the IMI Cotporate Governance Framework (fevised n 2018), the Boad
has clearly defined n wriling those matters which are reserved 1ol and

Ihe reypective delegatad duthorties of ts commitiees and it has alsa set
wrtten imits of authonty for the Clust Execitive The Grou hias 4 clear
organisational structure and well-established reporting and control disoiplines
Managers of operaling unids assume responsiility for and exercize a high
degree of autonomy n running day-to-day trading activiies  They do this
wathin & frarmework of Clear rules policies and delegaled authontes regarding
Busines. conduct, approval of proposals for investmert and matenal « hanges
N opearations and are subsect to regular senior management rénvews

of parfonnance




Division of responsibililies amongst directors

Chauman:

* ety the Board ageryd 4 and shopng the codture 1 the tocedkoom

sl reest a A g ey onragaig e o e sngagete sq of 2B o menee

* Ludddiyg e Soant o tex of people kil knowiedyge dnd expenend e a4
apaUnng s ol eclieness noluding the annlty of detale and dec siem-

s onocly v g procdlus e e echan rokstionsbgy st the Soiet Brec cne

o cemaneg enler cngagereod e HI meygor L s

o et e nght ever e lendarstip 20 d st cesaon plans ol

There s ool diael bty Lelrocnctl e S e nd O«
Execiice Wbk b seteciod nthe IMECoroor e Gees ot ane - Frames ork
i ad by the Board i umirmary, the Chiarma s e s ki lor e
foadersbe, aned clleclioene Lot b Bomd Lul aoe s wil o s ar v oxe ul
Lo o o reepons b ke The Chiet Excs atee lnadds (e Exacutae Conr it (o
N Uit g e ke se and mpiemsnt g onerat ored and Strategl pahanos
undet aothert, deleg de b, t e Board

ol b

Thes Ohuarinar 1= ress ot borar eoaonna that the Bor > oo de g o saee ty
st pretvate getida ane et aden-te etormation e preeoncd attie dl,
o dsane o of mente o o 3llogs propser coneaooratiers Pieos aaeported s g tie
Coanprare Secrotary v albo wac e tanen e gt attine Boosd paate on
Ao ordh o et goed Corporate governar oo oo the Sone snarelevard
resjulatoty vecamenends The Sompany Secretan, ot an sooretan fo alk ot <he
Sanchg ooy rteea of the Booand Te Board bas arecmgin oo proe caure tor
any rirector fo obionon dependent or o saonal aovice @t the Sompar s oxprnes
s all dirsc o have ace oo to “he Comipany, Secretany, 2 ho s a colicodor

GChief Executive

s leadorshys of the Exeruts » Sommiten

o geelon g busing s prlans ane s ealegy tor s onsidor Dot ue the Boand and
npsler endng the same

COmIMUTICang To e people athin the Gomg or v the erpeciatuns of the
Boenchinrelation 1o the Compeay 's Gadtare valugs and b en-ovieras incacirg
anslring the high est coniphancs ana gosernan e sl heds

rrdlding an ofe tve operannnial man agement team and de selopeg he
srganisation < trog tore

esourcmig t-lent developmoent and U eaession olans

Directors’ powers

Tha pownrs of the deectors are determined Dy Ur leagiclisn and the antcdes
ab asoociahon of the Company v faca lom time o tme The nectors wsie
Autbonsed to diiot el s -l Orcereay. Rean ann 10 make market purche es

af the Compary's o inary, = bares Dy resoluaons of the Gompany passed alos
Anradl Gonee ol Moenng Feld or 3 Moy 2018 Ey e passrig o’ ne s resobilions
Irpespet 1ol the 1 ew ordinary shees of 28 4.7 gach The cnrrent anthonbes
sl expare ot Ihe conclhision of the next Arnuagl Genoral Meetng b e held on

3 Moy 2018, at which e authonbes w il bhe ought

Further di tals of aut osiic s the Gompany 15 see<ng fon he allotinent s es e ar d
puae hiase Gf ts ordr ary shares will bee ot out i ihe sepndate Nofior of Aninnad
Gonetal Mecting

Directors’ interests

crve g lodingg e tere Eoaf oy o
sere e tor b the ool e vec s el eeare s apnal e dhe S ey aned e
it bamar 0N Pogea B3 100y ¢

Ittt s o e puer P tCud pus ol 3 A0

interest Locer stee opter aned e enfve < biemes

Management of confhcts of interest

The Comeprany  aadicles of a o ooat oo oedes o ortan proaesony, ckevant fo the
Aty of 1ho Boaol a b s come ilees atied cans beowies ed oo e IN veeb ate
The-s presa 1o 0 lde regpirerients, tor arclonare anck approwal by the Baoed
ul prdentnd von et el ainte rest Theoe procedunes apqly, ales aba 1o oxde il

e e cabie rwdit o the Beaarca e bl ey cper el oo Bly Lraey TR
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Fathodiectos bas cduly unsen 0 Gottprees Ao 2o T s sl on
owdie hey hreor may have d dire ™ oond recth ntereet "hat Gorthels or
po-sibly ey Corlict vath the nteress ol the Comippany. Thee daty s omaddd on
to D cudy thal they oo by the Compney o dif Glo=c to e Bodid aty intorest
I ANy rArLACTION LF e gerrent under Cons derahion byohe Gotgsang

any e tor Lecomes anate ol ainy slualion sk may gree nse to a contlel

of wrerest tha direeoo mformes e rest of the Board a0 ioe 2oad s har
prermrtte cbndde e B icles oF GO hon 1 aru e L hone sust conth
The rdaimietion s recorcd=chin e Zompea y - eapetor ol oonthote an f-cconfhe
AU Sate | oter 1 s SLet e the reley ant diecor

Change of control

b Campary s Cobsdianes wre paat 1o g un ber od wpesnciis that ooy
alloe e contos 1o toalkon o tonnate the arraxn 1 & 18 .0 a hanyge of
correasl anthe Corpan s Inlloweno - takbooom oied <o b 4 ommiereeal < ontract
and ¢ miplover shate plans Other nan = referren s nnihe oot patagraph, none
o the e oot rdored byt e J0m prae, b aep ear b oo Tt ikerly

At o the Doy o bde

I the co-nt o a chang® T oo tol ol the Compren this B oprsmain fnsd g
agjrement s allow, e ke s 1 reregolabe O s o g o0 DTee OT e ey ent fon
Al oat=t i g amours s ur oo the releant fac e

The- Tom Daty Joes 1ot bave 2g ot ents v ey deectcor o emplo, oo tha?
seodied provsdde corpensdnion T ko of offic ear Sonpleveicr e e fically cewoltig
rort e takconer althouyg the provmo oot e Zempag s chare “cheries ek e
& discratian 1o allow asards granted (. direc toes an fraployees o der sgeh
gemeT O 10 st hoSe CIRC LU= o

Information to be disciosed under Listing Rules 9.8.4R

Listing Rule Detail Section
reference
of financlal
statement

9.8.4R (1-2}(5-14) Not applicable -

9.8.4R (4} Long-term incentive schemes 417

Internal control

Tre Buard has iespons bty for oseghn of the Sroup s system of ntenal
control Lnd coninms that the syetern of terral control sas ina ac count the
Goae anct relevard Dest praclice guidand e mohiching the Finanoiel Beporing
S ' Seplember 2014 pobleation Guictkand & on Rk Masagement

Iter ol Control and Related Financal oo B siness Repeeting

Albopserating ant prepare Torsasd pla - A orecasie v beane reviewsea i
dctal by e Fxecutive Committee and consalidatod tor reviey: by the Board
Forfonianc o agan st foree Ui contin uouly inoritore al montioly 1 cotaoge of the
Execdtive Gomme tos and, orea guarteth banis by the Board Minem am starickn s
for ACCOUnrg syeten s andd Cottrols ahich e doume ted 40 d monitored. aee
prorruleated throughout the Group Cortfiedd anintlal 10R61s 352 teguirtd from sehior
exccldves of apetating tnits, confirming comphane e vrth Groun el reportng
reqguirements The ntermal audit fund tion Group As ourafic e opetates a0 oling
Deaggramime Of rtenial a-suree on e e an ot elested opetating nnts Deerng
e yar 1 tennaEl auUi hewe bee o camed oot in conund Tion stlviing G experts
1o cach divsion trough the audd fan ion gy Tiws D €riabloed v o revieess
rvcder range of bu sess rsles and foditaled a gieator barng ol best procten
o the prsnesoos Additonally, vt to aporitone Are Carne d out by soror
Srovp tinasee peraut oF These ctermal asaurane € proc o s e aee Go-orcated
wath the act ey of the Gon nany' s e ormal aditor

Fapilal e tnents e salies Vlo a o pros e dar e imee appireisal
Ll alion cnt pae, lcsstingent recesy ol piasr e et el propa b eeertred
of cotdde tatsn by the Txe vl Gornendles andd accordingg o hor mmole nalily 1o
b Ceaard Ieadedte ny the Dxen e Caommelles gogul Hy re aeees [he Gperatt ol
vt b e bcantal one b edreg B eretbreg e ol crowe connp e e
Bllb aand e t, huna

colter o rea Uy TBc, o e e
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Directors’ Report
(continued)

renOUN 84 taatidn Faeurdne @ and pions ~Ns Corr ploanee akd inbe nal aotdit cepots
SLETEVTH e5 arg rhade wadac le G the Board, the Auoat Conwnitles and the oxer dlive
Commiltee 1o enable convol ssaes and developnents o be moniload

Contol processes are dynaTIc o o Continuoe, IMproveents are marcde

16 atapt tnem 1o the changing nek prome o oporations and 1o mplemert
propothonatc measures 10 add oxs any dentihad roakness in the ntarnd
contral systerm Morg araemLnon in rekton G sk s gven o page 16 urder
fhe reachny How A¢ manage sk’ The irternal contiol docla ation process

12 tlly embcdeiod and enables nprovemont in control thiough Bi-ane U seh-
ast esymet te oo alb cperating inte AcTon vl s 10 Imptove Contials Lo o result
of these acsessme to are narwg v ached and e ed 1ot Audit Computtees

Through the procedures onth ed here the Board hae t onsiciered the
eflecveness of all significart aspects of nternat control for th2 year 2018 and ug
fo the date of this Annuid Report. The Board bel eves that the Grou = system ol
rternal control, whioh s desigred to manage wher than elrmate nsl provdes
reanodale ot not dtsolute asurdnee agarst matendl m ssiatement ur [oes

Financial reporting processes

The nse ot the Group © accountd manual and presonbed ieporing
reqinen cnts by tinance teame throughout the Groop are mportant o
ensurng hat the Groun s accouting policia, are ceatly established and
that information 13 apprepoately reviewed and reconciled as oart of the
reponting protoss Tre use of a grandard teponting aclage by all enuties
w1 he Grow onsres that Infonmanor s preseted 41 3 Consistant way
that facilitates the produc ton of tre consalidatea inancial saroments

Viability statement

Iy et ordanc e witt the LK Corporate Governgace Code 1 e direc Loty have
assented e vidh [ty of he Sompars oot 2elevant perod Laking rilo dug o
the Grot = Snandial ana trading pastion as sammanserl i tis Annual Report
the principal nsks and uncertamties set out on pages 16 to 49 and the five-
vear business iHan reviewed by the Beard in September 2018 Based on this
daxsessment, and other matters considsted and reviowed by the Bodard, the
direc tots confirm that they have a reasonable expet tation that the Company
will e able to corminde in operation and meet its habilties as t ey fall due over
the period from the date of this Annual Report ta 31 December 2023

The direc tors have detormined that the penod to 31 Decemiber 2023 constidutes
an anppropriate nenacd aver which so make ts assessment of yiability, Whilst the
droctors have no reasen *o bellave the Compary wili not be viabile over a longer
tirning honze, the flve-vear perod to 31 Decemrber 2023 was chasen as it
aligns sttt the Company’s bustnos: and stratogr, planmmeg timing Horzon andd

1 acsensible ponod tor such an assossment It i belioved this period provides
readors ot the Annual Beport with an appropratoly leng-tonm wviews with wihich

o dnsens the Company s pro-podts allhough utue cuteomes cantil L
prodicted with certainty

In making its assessment, the Board recognised the principal nsks facing

the Company, including those that would threaten s business model, futuie
performance schency or hguidity A simmary of these ns<s can be found on
pages 46 to 49

The fiva-year business plan was used to assess the headroom on the
Company's faciliics and to stress test ongoing covenant comphance unde)
scenartns where ts princpal nsks materalsa. The analysis consiclered hoth
running busness' nsks, such as reducing 1evenues and margns, as well as
one-off *avent nsks such as roduct 1ecalls, The Board also consderad the
Company's ability ta raise capital in the future as welt as hoth the ongong
acticns undertaken to pievent ocourrence and the potential actions to
mitigate the impact or any particular nsk

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

The dieciors also recogrised a numbon of key feat ros of *he Compary &
opniatons The Company © wite oty ) IKal and sootorn diversific gtion are the
lache @« sigle raagon g ducian see, el Tnenss the nek o senous buse s
edetupher Furhernors, our buskiess madshis st wod so tha the Company
15 not el reliant ona fow large customo s Ot largest costomier conttrutas
only 27 of Gioan roverug and ol 1op 20 custemians account 1o s over

17 - of Group reenue by addrion, oo ability o flex our cost hase raduces

our axpo=Uie 1o sudden adverse ccoramic concitions

Going concern

Accourding stanuards reguire b at e lors atsty themselse S -t 1 s reas 2ndbl
far therm W conc lude st ether it appropniate to presare Thate sl slatements on
A going Lot orn bdtds e Srodps sl e s acbatiens logetrer ot the - ors
Ikuly 10 aftectits fulie developn ent porforhare e ang postion dare set ol n the
<1 AtegIc repsort 20 pages 1010 49 Prneipal rieks are detalled on pages 46 10 19
The inancial postion of e Grovk s cash flowe, huidity Posrinn ancy Do wng
ta¢ lties are descbed ntha fie ancal statements naddton Secton 4 410 the
firancial statemerts ncludes the Growys objectves nohees 0 g progesses

for menagmng it= ¢aplal, its inancl nsk managen.ent objective:  detals of 1ts
frar cial metrumen ds and hedgng activities, and i, pxosares 1o oredit sk and
lguiddity rizk Secuon 4 9 1o the tiancal statoments addresses 1he managen ont
ot he fundng nsks of “ha Group's employee benet obligations

The Graupr b camsiderable inancsal cesoure oo togethon wath oag=standing
rodationshipe wath g numibe o7 customars, supeshiers and 10 g prosiders
acroe s differest geograpshic arcas and ndustnes The Group's forog asts

and orojections, faking ac. cunt of potental and realistie, Charges i tracing
porformanc o, inchic ate that the Group m able to oporato within the level of
faciitios othen i place on 31 Jecomibor 2018 or renewed st e, wathout the
(e o renew arty lacther tar fites brofore 1 Wach 2000, As o onsoquee oo
the directors belove that the Gioup e wall-phiced 1o manage s Dusne  roks,
sucte ssiully despre he uncertambes mbwrent n the current eoononie vutlouk
Lo parlic Llar, thie Brexit sk as bighligs led onpage 473 Such uncerlanlies as
tuve been dentified are not reygdrded as materal unc erlan les tor e purpose
OF e guiniy coneern assessmeant

After making due engury, the directors have a reasonable expec tahon that
the Group has adequale resownes to continute n operational existence for the
foresecable future Accordingly they contrrue to adopt the going conc ern basis
1 prepar ng the financal stater-ents

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each drector contrms that, <o far au they are each awarg Pere 1§ no relevant
audil nformation of which the Company s auditor s unaware, and each dreclor
has taken all the stops that he or she ougly to have take: a- & direcior 1o make
himsell o herself aware of any televant audit ntormation anc 1o establish tha:
the Conpany s auddor 1s eware of that information

Annual General Meeting

Thie Annual General Meeting will be held at Crovna Plaza Hotal, Pondigo Wy
Matston Green, Birmingham 840 1NT, on 9 May 2019 at 10am.
Notice of the Annual General Meeting will bo publshed on the Company s wobsite

By eader of the Buard

John O'Shea
Company Seretary

28 Felruary 2019

IMI plc 15 registered 1 England Mo 714275
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Stlatement of directors’ responsibilities m respect of the Annual Report and the financial statements

Thie ehirec tors are esponmdble or oo thes Anre il Beporl, s i b heses the Dee tare Repert 1 e Slrategie Beport, Benun=r clen Report anid O por < e
Gtrsett e e Slalemenl ard e S andd parent Loen nare, Tnas clal <t te st nace croanee it pkLable b s crregobal ms

Gty A reguatns e dirgs Lot 10 preodis fanctal <t it-n aots for £ach froee i yea Undse that fae he direuiors are renres to prepara 106 Sroup finan al
statermentl ol Lorda o ath i asa Interawonal Foa o al Bepor na 20 i deds o anoptas by, he butopean Uisgs od 1o carenl compaty Than ol - <i=iie i
I Coernaes e Iib Lnerd ey font Ge wieall; A epted e o nfng Breocboe Ureec <mandonn A00o mtneg Slando s e d appla abde Loy Under o onpar L et
drcs e can oot appeowe heinancial caternents unles s ey e catinters e e e end ianls e e Cal posoon inan cheettormiatc e apa e flowe oy

tha period i oreps g ieane dinere al sdal rrento, e direc Lors e e 1o

gl b e atabide oo aanhing prohe e an e ther aegsly 1o consistentty

IO e ehts ahicd cstanates thas re reascnable

.

Pres com idonelon s hang s oue i cnkc eo o adnne that presiee ettt b ol s sinpas sle anons dee ot nle nboration

tal e S freanc il <t cements b e compdied v h IFRS as o et by e Sntope o Uninn <tbgocl o ar s masienal depantones de oo ed oo

5

expl- nechin the fr ancel <totements anid

bettrments b ther apete ole U fort Kinao Acecomibor S dhard base oo ol e wimeod = ory matendl
o ntoren s donenr ed explb o edom ke i ol tstee ond

sStabofor e narent conp ny Inere

The ey e rezpon  ble o keep ng adeque & ol oo ds g e caffioent sl s At o pdan e Comipras o barsac e ar coding s o
v o ksl e wacy

e tal staremenss comply ¢ 1 the Comrarns Acl ol v g Aricle o 2 Hhe JAS Pegultion e apoopnte Toey atd auo e eonzisle (s <afegus dina i &

sy et finane s d po bon oo e Gronp e d b e saenl comipe by 30 T fabile et sare tha e G aprantd arent s omp oy

‘

el e Geo s andd this praver 120 ANy andk b ¢ talng reaso wnle stepy o the preserhion and detec or o asd s o e e guilanie:,

The Ji e tors are es ponatsle 0 Hie meurtetanc e od ntegate of the Corporate and frarcal mrormetien s chrded on the Sur pany o wcks ate Legislation
it e Jruted Kingdorm gosennnig the, prevaraton ate disempniticn 6F T ancal staterments may diffes s dege kdioroins othes parschections

Directors’ responsibitity statement under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules
Earli ol the drecting s at the doos ot tas reporl <o tirms thid

o the Grotg. and parg teompany It aneial sltatemnenits 11 this Ar nual Repott coaeh have Geen prevared it ac codance vl acpilcable UK s dne st ibe
aplie dule <ol of accoring stredards gve a tue ane s far e 07 1he assets baolities, ma al postion anc prom o he Grou g a d

the Arial hopart pedien coludes the Drectors Renortand the Strateg ¢ Ropantiine [uees o fall revies of e development s o poiomanc o on the businesoe
and “he posinion of e Somparn and she Greup taen as aowhaln togethaer wn adostnption o7 tbe rancipal ne s and v certapites that thes tace

The clirectors ate reponsible fon [reparing the Antudl Bepotl v accordar ¢ wath applicabsle s s amvdregulat obe bau g taken aduee ffom the Andt Conee ttee,
the Boad cotisiders the eport and acconmvs 1aken aa qarhiole are lar Lalans ed and unaerstandat fe and provide the nfannetion neces sary 1on = e ehicicde rs to
dssess e Groups porfor= e e bunecs miode] and - rategy

By order o the Boaia

John O'Shea
Cornpralmy S00rotarn,

26 Fotruir, 2014
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In our epinion:

* MLl s Groop inanclal statsrments ana Saens Gompaty inineal stademenls e Parent Sompal y iIndne al slatemens, fave been propetly, prap aeo n

fhe finaiu wd stster ents ) give o us and fae vies of 178 slale of the Grops asvordan: e vatn Umnted Kmgdom Ger erall « Arcepled Acco unting Pt
anct at the Paent Comprany s daftars a5 &t 3* Sacernbier 2018 ancd of the drd
Groun s podit for the vear than ended * the financial statoinonts Have Been prepac N acct danc o vark the

» the Group hancial stalements bar e been poonesty prepared noac ortda « o requiernents of the Companies Act 2008 and as regards 19 *he Group
wallh IFRSs s adopted by the Furooean Union finane al staterments Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

Ve have auditecs the finans al statemens ., of IMEple adish corrprise

Group Parent Company )

Conseldated oome stalermiac t tor the year ended 31 De: eniney 2078 Balance sheet ag ol 3° December 2018

Consoldated statement of comprehensse mcome tor e vear then ended Satement of change. in eqguity tor the yerr tien endod

wone-ohdated slatorme ot of chimaos ety tor the year toen cadod Relatea nones O G o o tne inand el staleynents o g 4 ssTunay o

SIGNITIeant atcoukibing pels 10y
Consabdated statement of cash flows for “ha vear then onded
Con-olidsted balance sheet ao 1371 Decembie 2018
Related sectons 1 ke b b the Barncidd atemont 5w Ui 8 somimary o
sigruficant accounting policies

Tre Tnantial reporting frarnework il has Leen apubed n e grepanalion of fhe Grous nancral slatements s apple able ks and biernabional Cinane al Regs rg
Star durd s (IFRS ) an adopted by e Turopean Union: The Inanoal repcr mg framewaorle il has been appbed in the preparaton of he Darerd Somper v itan, 140
slacernents i apphc able vy and United Kingoom Accounting Standard | rchid g FRE 101 Reduced Dig losure Fran ework’

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audd v accordanc e with In e national Standearrls on Aud 1ng (UKHISAs (UK ana appicasle lw O responsislities ander those standards ae
further descr beo n the Auditon s responstilitios tor the audr o7 the inanc o statemenits seclion of o report below We are independent of the Group and Paont
Conipany in accordance with the cthical rerpreme: ts 1t e - olovant to our oudt of the financa statements in the UK, neludiog the FRC - Ethical Standard o
appled to hsted pubhe Interest entities and we have fultilec our other cthical tesponsibilitics N accordanco with theseeouemants

We bellieve that the audit evident @ we have ootared = sufficient and appropriite 1o provide a basi ior oor cpinion

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement

We have nothing to report in respect of the tollowirg information in the annual repert, N relation ta which e ISAs (LK) require s 1o repcrt 10 you whelher
we have anylhing malerial lo add or draw attenton 1o

* the dieclosures in the anrual 1epolt set out on pages 46 10 49 that descnbe the principal eks and explan how they ate beng manuged ot Imtigated

* the diractors confitmation set out an page 142 n the annual report that they fave carmed out a robust asseszment of *he prncipal nsks facing the ontity,
mcluding those that would -hreaten its business model, fulure perfonnance. soheney or Laudity,

the chiectors’ stalerrant set out on page 142 i the inancial statements about whether they considered it appropriale 19 adopt the gong Concen basis of
accountng in prepanng them and ther entification of any matenal uncerlant es 1o 1he entily'= abiulity to conlmite to do s0 over a penod ot dl [east twehe
manthg hom tha aate of appioval of the financual statemenits,

whether 1he directors” statemnent n relation fo gonyg concem reguired umder the L s ling Rules maccordance sath [ isting Rule 9.8 6R3) < nialonally
niconsislent with our knowledye oblaned in the audt, or

the drectors expfanat an set out on page 142 in (re annualieport 4s to how they flave agsessed the prospects of the eniity, over what penod *hoy have
done so and why they consider that perod 10 be appropniate, and ther statement as to whether they have a reasonable oxpectation that the enty will
he able to continue i operalion and meet ts kzbilities as they fail due over the pened of ther assessment, Ncluding any related disclosares drawing
attention to any necessany gqualfications or assumptons,
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Overview ot our audit approach

Iy AU N oatter, S Flscenine rec ot dirm = Gt of i Grite al Crwpneesney ancd rshe of aane goment e
S B rocognimon — approptialensse of oronsaone rateting 1o os s ok g contiac tsonc Gt ub Encpr ety
S lnentory calidation
- Carryng walue of goo el 2od acgoread tangble anusety
- Accounhng o the doeg st of Broba Vnulac nng
AUl g0 Ve pedonmed ar adit oF he complete tna © b intonaation of * 1o paner b gt progedures on spec it balances fur o
futhe 23 compionc s ard G st pr ot edatas we the Tomadin g componce =,
S The cornonenl wbere s pennmmed Wl o soecfic aad o edures ace upted or 88 o Adusted pre it betore fas,
uf Beseniee nd 78 ol Tatal asaet
st d o, - Overall Goonp meaterial oF P12 bro o boreprenends b cbdcgstao prest before s

Key audit matters

may b i hl ATt e Thasa madle e el o oo protess oraladgemen U oaed on e o-tsigefican e n oo aunt of the firancal < tede oo e e tunery pebon and
e lule e mont =g e anl ges€ e s o matenal tmss tateren, Labether o pol dae 1o fraudh that ce denined These mattars poludiech nose sbech had the

peatast sbect oo e averall a2 dec, B alioc too of e e the g b and veee ting e obers cithz e gagement cone Thewe e ttes s wene ackteveedd
1othe cantext atour acnt of he frane al totere oo «odede are ne v avin nthersor ancbwe dn s oF ]roaae 20 PRA-e opei Deat e =g et
I
Risk | Our response to the nisk
Revenue recognition Cut-off

(£1,907m, PY comparative £1.751m) W peronne the fallovanc it proceniares ot te culbaned soecfie soope SGnocal Engrecing lor atorns

Ficter 00 the At Somimuifee Bl 10 ige b1 e e @ 1T I Senpe Revenue at these oo vions reprosants &0 of the tolal Cotical Ergine= + g
AL unnting POt e nge 1351 md Sechon 51 revene hooance of T e3Em
of the Cunsobcdaieo Fraroat Statenernt-

W Cartie 9 ot testing of conmrol over revenue teeogaition v th - ooy oo thos eoclated 1o tne amn g
fLclCe Het

of roeLeeue rroag rhrn
Trcie i ane <nthe Cnhical BEnginee: g divsio
of wappreprate revenue recogtvhon il aelivenes
A0 PeCOrdea wIthin 1he A rong accounrt =g penoed

W prortormiee s Lubeoft bostiag By tede g o sdr gl of B ac oo a0 Lind The petod oo B b e Ly
aelon note documentlation ared cu lomer acceptanee

The oyl o« at e ard value of dolscies rmosits Wer pret fonned 119 of detad or 4 carcde of revenue ranza hons 1o confiee ) e oo sat o had been
1 SIgNfGant shipeents near the Docenibo apptop: ately rec orded n the incorre statement waith referen e o IFRS 15 and correnorated that contral
period ond annd an assoated ot off sk of tha procucts hadd Deen Iranstered to the customer by

* analysing the contract and terms of the eale 1o determine that ~he G oup had ulliled the oo arements
of the contract

There s a s~ gl three dngaon ol
IAr gIrltle reven e bieindg recogni e o e
gt ment overrde oo marad 1o e confitmmng revenus could b robatty aasured by rsterone ot unoerhang docmetialion,

javrnal enlres, s conliming Gollon tabil by of B reve nue s reasor dlaly ave ured by agee eing o collection bustury

For the components corsdoeren do not sighifican® 1 e Groups we s fermiacd spocmed procedanos 1o
reor Lot @ s of fras 4o tons wathine the e eolities 1o e et-eft

Management override

AL Z 7l specfie s ope loe abons whicre revenae o s cope v o obtamed soppont for unuanal andifon
rideral tevenne e @l Bevenue a0 hes o locatiors repres oo~ 61 of the total re s ne baloee e Tor e
coriponets e contdesod « o not signific art fo the Gronpy we analysed the monibly gros < margin reconderd
arwd  btawmed and corrobonated explanatioss Tor mrements 10 magin thoat s e onsideand anosial

Cut oft and management override

[or all lee cdiane, e proormned aealybical procedures Lo comprare re vonud o ool med ye th Gor o tat ones
PO e b esprene e INabage oete berecacts dr a0 v bere porsible. exteroal market data

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee-

Coe met proccedires chd nos e e g o Of pratenal e abemmie nts i res enoe o age e arkaneg rearchie ek ot aaeent e che Grecsl Loy cetineg v n
O IHanagoment Swcrrde tEesugh amanoal bopode eormal entaes o any of tho thiree enions
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Risk

Qur response to tha nsk

Annual Reponrt and Accounts 2018

Profit recognition

Refer to e Aucht Commimtes Fepon! foags 1)
Aceouning pohces {page 134, and Section 21
of g Consoidated P Steements

foage 33

Thero s ok Gt mapproprate pro il e ogeton i
contract o provsions o the Crucal Frgineerny
divisson e misttated

(AN E LT O @

We peHchmed e fotlove iy Aot precediess at 16 full ana sper i stone Crnical Frigineenny ocatr s

where the ro< o errer o~ profit tecourstion exists

e pect af cortrects for Neay, Cor st bon crders e he Cr e al Engeoeenng diviesion wee tested a #napde
i managernent & asse.sment of fomecast cots (o o plete, carrmboretng the undertang #5=um phon
agamst iste ne expenen € 2t firare proeduction nlans o determrme arwy Contrac' Insses are aoprortiatel ¢

PR CUTE SRR

We audited oumdl crvnies recurdad By randgerest oo ord gy pros mons recuned dno mvestigatecd any
crdsudl o kaye movernoents 1 loss provicions Thowe procedures focused onloss v as ry and low margin
contradte 1 ordo 1o acsess the complotoncs. of contract 1030 puovisions

For the campurents consdeed os not sugeficant tn the Gro s pe oblamed the forecast margn on
ignilicant Gpen contracts at year end in thie Crbcal Engneerng uivision and mvestigaten any [ow marg
culracts We slialy-e- | e moven:ente in the 1okl loss Contac ! proasion bulanee and rivestigadeo any
sionific ant movernents not relating o the LEScope or speunic scope £ omponents

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee:

Cut muche procedues did not wentihy, ovicdcce of matenal misstaton 2m- regading probit recagrit on

Risk

Gur response to the risk

Inventory valuation
(€£273m, PY comparative £251m)

Refer to the Audit Cormmittes Report page 611
Accopuntng pohcies (oage 131) and Section

3 1 7 of the Consordated Financisl Statements
(rrige 104)

The vahusation of i vertory acrowy tho Grouwp s
dependent on establishing appropriate valuation
processes This Inciudes the effective operations
of controls Management juogement i applicd
to firmulaie caloulations o standard costing
and excess and obsolete mventory jnovsons

If these Ldgements ale not appoprate then
this increases the sk that inventory s
inconectly vahiocd

RISK MOVEMENT @

Woe pertormed the follorviry audit procedures at 27 full and specme scope locations where nventory
N scope Invertary <t these locations iepresents 817 of the tatal nventory balane o

We carred oul lew g ol cuntrols over hven®ory valualion

We performed tests of aetail tor a sample of nventory dem: 1o check the gecumulation of cost vy thin
rverlory, confaning tie valuation eflected the provac s’ slage of cornpletion 1 cludng agreemes 1o

the phyacal inventory wounits whch we atlended

We obitained evidence 10 suppont the standard costs used and performed procedules 1o assess whicther
only normal production vanances had beon capitalsed in the vear end inventory balonce «nd matenal
abnormal nefficienc.es had been approphately expensed This ncluded companng actual production rates

10 budgat,

We obtaned evidence 1o support nventory i hela at the lower of cast and net realisable value Ly audting
the aderuacy of exc eas and obsolete provimions held agan<st nventory This ine luded companng forec ast
product usage 1o customer orders, considenng hisioncal usage, Fistorie al accurasy of provisionng and

urdlerstanding 1nanagement s future pians (o utinse the mventory

We performedt clencal procedures on the fonmudae cab udation « to evaluate the acouacy of the

IMENTORY PIrGYISICING

For the componenis we considerad as not sigrihicant (o the Group we

* investigated any sigishcant standard 1o actual cost vanarices posted to the Income staten ent or recorden
vatlun mventory and obtaned supporting evidence for the adistments, and

» e analysed the managernen judgement appled 1o the exceass wid ubxsolete (movision and ootained

supporting evidence whers this wasg signimeant

Koy observations communicated to the Audit Committee:

Inventory valitation actoss the Group s consicdered approprate 0 iuding the adeaquacy of lhe excess and obaolete provision Our audit procodures confirmedt
var@nces bhotween standard and aclual costs and the overheads absorbed m the mventory valuation had besn appoprately caltulatod and acoounied for




Risk

Our response to the risk

147

Carrying value of goodwill and
acquired intangible assets
(£517m, PY comparative £429m)

Ferse fo the Auat Cormnaton Report (Dae 61
A sty Paicoes foage T30 and Seckon o0
e Cons ol fatc e P oo SUdoimen

g 1)

AL nmEoue CE o e o s grodl
alrate sra g e antvalue o goodvell g
danghle g oot bras atmen ronn at -t
There 1o a bk that Cash genontig un s
My 0T evet e
paroriane € 1o LuppG tre care o calbue of
these ageal lea drgioanenpa - me | ohage
thet  as not bieetrecogiisca by mdanage mer
S et walgeners s et s wpnsng
the v e caah o of e GEUL Tagetrer

b tne pedes dorhitrey

ot e terl Lo ines,

2 Lonted

Key observattons communicated to the Audit Committee:

SGUs

We exanie e ianagemert o methodol gy a detaled 1 section 3 2 of he consoldated tnane 2l
clatenieris the model, for a, easmg 'he alual cnool agraband geod ol Lalanc e o onde
07 Foction of marage ngnt s lore cas b flow forscacts Lnd the procas- ancerl sken e seepare them
Tose o udas continmimg the uaden ) ing ash i &5 were conse Bnlaih e Board approved Bucgets
he mocei 12 et e roathaman-al nteqnty

W al o re-c etfoamed the caleulstions o

Fow alb Coald weer calonil Qe £ thes dogroo to abi ™ oe e e at wliniplion @ waolilen rect 1 e et b o= ar

Hapearent v ngasten! an b onornead e e lhned of e oo rumng

Irrespee b on e SGUs et el as Bavinng v pann ent nedic atoss o Jower fovels of headion we pefonsca

chtadod 1o st o vt supont ram an vatuation
ot for e st cash flass moliding
e L o ng e du oo raee Lo b Ghitate gt e unaorlng data uscd n the Cald ol e
Bece Tar Arsarig it e s Comiparable argarnsalon s drd e anct gt
e Con renng the growth e comamed By cor panng then (o econs nse e meg by f2ecaols and
o Aoy e bt e arcirae y ot boged s oo accebres ol e cetor Tene bl e tenecae e ar b e

arerehable b cd on e T ospener oo

W anonted ihe s s des i espeo b o goodell micnintangbles aonborodenc e 1 e e reaniends o A8
b ¥ d

36 andd coroan pd ther oo soter vt e e e et o

Toe wedit procedes pestonmed 4o addies: i, sk beoe Deen peiformed by the Grone aode teoen

gpeu a1 1o cnticall, assess ardd conoborate Be key -

Gur ycar end atul neoecdures did re o antify evidenee of matenial ricseatement teqarcing the car, -

1 e Grones

0y v ae of anodresll anc acauireo Nt girle assets

Risk

Cur response to the risk

Accounting for the acquisition of
Bimba Manufactunng

Refer to the Aood Coemiimtiee Beport ipage 61),
ACCOunii § ookt (page 734 andd Sechon 3 4
of the Conuofdaie o Financed Staterent,

e 108}

Mancagement arerecpired 10 a vslee e e et
At Laciltes oo cotad for e accinsdior ol
Birnbra Mar odac foringg 1 e bebes iggentibang
Ancd Aoy Ay Ditarable s -ete, whilc by s an
wiietenatly telgemie dal cxese s B parte alar
pedgetne it o tesgareed i de orraming the
Appropnatn a sumdg s o ase ooy e dhe
Ac(quired cesdornor redabien b, oracy oo
Andd e Birnbs s Banalan bannig £ amd

[E IS O N P TP ]

We perforr.ed progenure s over key cortrac s ae e Liled aglh the aequisation: e ke e ole
arcd conc o e agreentent, to eantinm el e fiear t terms o g conmbions Rave heen appropioalel,
acc ourted for

WIEh support of BY Busins s valuations spoecinhists s evaluaton 9 nagere it s dorermimeat on of e far

valuos of the assets and labites aegine d aad 1 paticubar the valuation of intangible assets We audited
the ke Zesnmpt ons made by, management uch as the nseful economic ves discenmt rates apodied @

the forecast futiee cash fows

Wiz wir ke b EY Lo of o Cal <1 and auoited e accuracy and conpletens s ob he current and aetere -

Tax Dalanoos ¢ udaa in the acquisilion Datance sheet e Laoing he mpyac b o the tax bralar cos od the dar
value adjustreants appiledd i Bie o quisliod 1 s cunting

Yye auiled he dimcdeosares inade e poct Sf e acg e ben of Birmiba Wanafoct aong s thoetorone o
1o the roqurements ot IFRS 3 Lo s cormpre ~alionns

Trig: ueht proe e potforned to adaress this sk g beeen poionmiod by the Groop audr teren

Key observations communicated to the Audit Commities:

Mo on b eaniagemen Ehaed usee appseapiate valaabion iechnigoes to de Crrme the far vealoe of thee won e aesets o labilibies o ouae dd
O it b prese cchares Jnd nobidontiyy ew e ne e of miatersal i s aleme b e gareding the acco ding lo he s quisition of Ennba Mearabactiunng
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An overview of the scope of our audit
Tailoring the scope

Ot assessriett of aundib il o evaloat on ot et enaldy ane oo allocation

of perdanmianc e nyerality detersane cur sudit scope for each orst g wiibin the
Gronpy Tahet togethes this enabiles, 1= to form an opeon o e consobcaton
finaneial statemionts We take into acoonnt the cor tabahion to Groap rovenoe
and opeeating proefit sk prodile pe lucing contry sk nsk detonmaned to be
as sociated hased on the grad og of inteaat o te dinegs, o rals findds gs
histernc al knewiedoge and nsk arang fom ebenge nthe penod incucing
changes 1o T watems and Key manegomaont por o el the wmbee o
sighific ant accounty bz

seel on peronmand o matenalty and acy othor known

tactor vl crvate ot th o Lol obwork T be porfonmed o cdact costy

I sty g the tuk or materal msstatement to the Group i ancial slatemenis,
and to ensure ae ban adeqguate quanitatie coverage of significan accoonts
i the mancidl s atemierdts, of e 147 ranorling comporents o1 e Group

we selocted 37 companents which represe 1 the prngpal bus ess units
walhm the Group

COf the 37 components sefeoind, vee perfunmed an atddit of e complete
tancial wiformation of 11 corporeats ¢ full scope components ' which were
sglected bas-eo ontner size o psk craractenstics For the romoning 23
COMPONEHts { sPoCic scone components '), vee potonmed Judit procedues on
spec e aCcounts vt in thot compenant that we cor £ cored had the potential
Ton the greatest uract on 1he sgnitcant 4 counts N the finareal statemenits
ather pacause o1 tre size of thasa accounts o ther nzk protile

The report ng components vihere we oetormied audit piros edures ac counted
for 887 (2017 7H"s} 0l the Group's Adjusted prefi before lax rigasure used
to caleulate rnaterality, 612 (2017 58775 of the Group's Revenue and T8%-
(2017 T4 -vol the Group's Total assets

For tne current vear, the full scope components contnbuaen 36% (201, z&-4)
of the Group's Adusted proft befare tascineastee tsad 1o calenlate matornalty
A1 2T 38" of tho Group '~ Roverue and G370 201 e ovof the Groupy's
lotal assets [he spocifie seone components contriduted 52 - (2017 48 ) of
the Group'= Adjusted profit betore tax measure usco to calculate matenality,
20 (2017 20%) of the Group s Revenuc and 157 {2017 17"} of the Group's
Total assets The aucit seope ol the SPECIic TCope CoMmpanets May not have
micluded testrag of all sigivficant accounts ot the component But will have
contnbuted (e the coveraae o syt ant accounls tested tor the Group

We also performed procedutes over the revenue recagnised inthe Precision
and Hydronic dissiors marketng comnanies, whieh provided additional
coverage of 18%e {2017 18%) ot the Group s revenua

O theernaining 104 components, thar together represern 12 of the Group's
Adliusled R ofit before lax, none arg Ndwicually greater than 4% of the Growa's
Adusted prolil before tax For these components we performed cortan
substantive audil procediues relen ant to the key audil migllers as set ot above
«ndd ather pracedtures, ncluding analytical rewew testing of consalidation
journals, Ntercompany elimnations, foreigh cuirency transkation 'ecalculations
and enqurnes of management to respond to any potential nsks o matenal
misstatement to the Group financial statements

The charts to the right ibastrate the coverage ootaned frotn the work performed
Ly our aud t teams

Group Adjusted profit before tax
AG. 28

Tull ceope entit oz

1275 124t
Oy proced nes

bdr el
Speclic soupe TG enty

Group Revenue

410 38
Full toope entitay

P00 )

Specafic stopre fnl ies
TR (19 )

Frocodures on

017, 23 ) rarkeling ¢ opaniees,

Other procadures

Group Total assets

63% 157 %)

Full scope components

15% 11734)
Specdic scope
components

22026
Clher procedures

Changes from the prior year

The v bor of lull <cope entiies bas mereasea to 1128317 13) and the o bor
of peclic scope entiies has reduced 1o 23 (2017 255 Thewe changes
predomunantly refle L recent dogumsitions and restructunng underlaken by
the Group whiel Pas resulted na roduc ion of he size and risk profle of
certain enbities previously 0 scope



Involvement with component teams

I alishing ot oserall pptoa boto e Gronps st e detenmined the lyre
cf ealc than needed to be nndertaken al each of the componet beus a this
s atsnl & gagemnert rearn, of By con parent ahioes Som other BY glabal
netvic s ope abng anee oue e structions OF the 10 ull seope Co npoent-
o en g e byl opera e s e Parend Comparyy Sus aodded dier thy

botre Gonp wndt team Dbt e 25 sorc e $Cooe comnanerdy & oon pone ts,
were ulited checth by the Jroop aocht tean For the 13 ot 1l o ope o wd 00
other cnecht S0 Lon poaenl= wbese this v o h was PRrEatmeon oy Corponeg
cortlors e delatnned ihe apgeor e leeel oornolente o enobde e

te deternw e thot o off ent 2t cadence oo been obilared as a Lasis B

otd opinors s e Greup as a whele Vonere elec e the e e te er o

s hie por o begbern ashocornpaone Dol aorking parers

The Geoggs altht tear ot ued W follees & prograane o nlannec st indal has
bocn de ygned 1o onowre thal “he Senrer Staldlory Auditor o Dls aeleg ce sl
the maonty of fulban lspeo e scocefocatone at least cnoe every thiree veare
Doy 2078 vt v cre undertabon by B0 prmary an ot Icaemn 1o the comipe nent
toasr v USe ana Mex oo il Gonicaty ik st China Fhes = st nsaleerd
Mg witk oo o comperent Cart to discues and dvect bor auant
RIARRSEN
b t7 e ey audt e v ers e lucing D00 00 g mon prott recognitar -l
nwordory valudsors boading mectings wit A sl managemort unade fa e fad o
tetns er Obbaning updates o lscal ey
af bl Thes primiaes Wearr i tevaciod
AP ONHTE DTG Ve 905 5800 Ol Jieraueht cnon o key eorhing paces and
were esnonsl e o the _cope and dinseron of te audl proces: This foget o
withy e acddrion d prosecancs perlormedd ot Gious level, gave u- dporepnale
eYIaIeree OF o opricn an e Gro L firanclad statoments

e b ot DNGerSILTen g U e sigmilren T ad EInsgs 0o resp onse

il oy abiors ncliang e pens o

QOur application of materiality

Ve ol the convepd o moatenalibe in nlannma and porlomeis 4 toe i
mevaliat g the offect o fedend fion e taterment s o i tl ot and @y
forming aur audit o mion

Mateniality

The magobuscie oF 20 One S0 L i staterent thal, mai sy or w ihe
GGG, 1 0ud s 0nally he expedted (o nfluene e the econanul de eons
of the wsers of the fn if shaternents Malenshty oo des g s o
caetirmimng the nafiae aid extent of voe wat proveaure

Ve determmed matenuity for the Group to be 812 0 malio 2017 810 0 nithe
Ahuche 5 of Adunted prodt before tax e 2018 In Y017 matenalty 2as ot

a5 5 o probt etore 1) adusted for corfam ton-tecurng tems Ve hobove
tal Adjusted profit betore tax © the modt relevant proormance meastrs 10 the
stakehiolder - of o ertit s and 1resctore huoe determ ned moates Sty banodd
anthenus b

We netennmed matonalty for the Parent Cormpaoy to bo ™ 18 mdlon
T Yy P rlotn v ek P2 P17 270 ol eoaly sharchokdors e de

coularl, casth the com por ent tcams ¢ hele
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Performance matenality

Thee apgre i ey il vl ty 48 the e o caeanid or Bolaroe Jevs D0 s
A et o it o b G et el w8 dencd e prolabatye sl 1he

G CU e O g fed e oot rect st derne e ccear moedor U

Gl fase Chowr ik Lsoesamon®s ogethon sth oo aibGes s w0t olhile
Group s evglall cor ol ewcremert e wlgrment was b panonran. &

Mt etal oy vos 7A0 2017 T Lol e sdann g miatenalty ramel, $9 a5
2017 VT L) e lene sl aformans e omatenality at fas e entage due -
e fac b hiah 1ol b o funs saces e nss taten e - nrecen] years boas been
tredosel ot oontiol @ e e e pemae s Bl inee 10 ne sig e el

'
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he Goonprar awdole a oo aooesza st ot tr o scom ma tetoment at thae
compo ent othe curen car thee tange OF O TOrmean 2 manenal iy Ake L utoa
toreos SN ST FU N AN H

EN NI PR

ornte o VY0 S

Reporting threshold
A onered Doico wbioo clecitied i f e nerds e Jonisiek e a0
DETU ey k!

Ve agreed wite thoe Audt Conen e thal v e veanld o ot o thom all

e ottectond aoat siferan e in estess o TO G (2017 50U e 1 el e
dhfterend o Dolos that trroshald thiat 11 on view & araated ieporig on
Cuiaitative Qronngs

Ve epdtuale Ly U onedted msstdatemenity aganst coth if e guantitatne
Miganre ot inaternabt, docUssed abues andd in ight ot ainer releve |
cpdedltalie cons kieral cne i lorming oo G rmon

Other information

The athor infomation compnees e reonigbon e luces i the a nual repot
S0 out On PGS 1o 7Y otr o nan the Ainsncial statoments and oo aadior’s
report theveon TrC dieeclons & respons e for the ot e mfonnadion

Our cramiiy o he ineticdl staten ente does not oo er the other nvorm ation
A excepl tete excenit othst wise exphic tHy stale o s repart ve de not
exprress arty forrm of assuranc 2 ronc lusioo thereon

Iy ceenmec oy vally cunr auchit of the B cral s teterne nts, our re sprisal s ity ks
torcad T other mronnaton andh ooy <o conader whiether the other
parer trat Onvie o<l nvaons slert A the Laee el tatorne nils o o
knoabstdge obratedin o audd o otle naees appears o Lo eratenally e ded
1w de ity e b rndteral e ote stehc e o appsaren! matenal mestalomen
e are ragured o delenrane yhothor here s amatenabme taternent y the
Iriars wl Loatermenl or o rmatenial s Ll ol e orber nlonatan i,
Liancd ore the viork vee borse perfont oo we condbade hal theves a maler al
o tatemea” ot the other nformiztion | v e are toaured 1o renort that dact

Ao v ootbimioy to repicrt i thees regard
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of IMI plc

(continued)

PrB s cordesd, v also lave nolt ng 16 reporh i regard T oo responsibil ty 4
suecihicall, address the followang tems nhe other infonmation wod 10 repott as
uneotreced 1 oarenal esstaterments of the b ar 1 lore uon v here we «ondude
thiat tho=e teins reel the ollosmg contitio o

+ Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 143
— the statement gven by “he diectors that they consiclan the Annsl
Report andd tinand 1al statemanis 13ken as a whola s far balanced o
undersrancable and prowdes the informaton necessary o shareholdens o
dutoss the Graggy s perfummance  busmess maodol and s a0y s materally
e ancaster bt oo knowlerdge obtaned m the auchit o

+

Audit Commitiee reporting set out on pages 60 to 63
- the sechorn decoibng the vork of the Auc Corer ttee dogy riot
apgropnalely adcdess matlers corimucated Ly us o 'he Audt Comimilés o

Directors’ statement ot compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code set out on page 55

— the parts o' e dvector” stateet et reauned Lnoder the Lotng Rules refatng
1o the Lompany s camiphance «ith the UK Corporate Governance Codoe
contar ng provisions specfied o review by the aaditon roadcordance vath
Listhig Rule 9 8 10RE2 do not propetly disclose a deprattute trom a relevant
provison o the UK Curporate Governane e Codde

Cpinions on cther matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

v ow opion the part of he Drectors Rerruneration Bepott lo be acdited
haas heen properly prepared i accordarice wih the Coneparies At 2006

11 our opunion, based on the work undeytaken in the couse of the aucht

» tho rformaton gruen o the Strateqie Report and the Diren tors,. Roper
for tae financial year for which 'he financlal »atements are proparcd
= consistent with the Boancal statements, and

» the Strategie Report and the Direclors’ Report have bea prepared in
accordance with applicable legal reguarements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group anc the Parent
Company and its envionment obta~ed n the course of the audit, we have not
dentified maternal misstalements i the Strategre Report or the Drectors” Repart

We have nothing to report i -espect of the follovang matters i refation 1o
whicr the Comparues Act 2006 reques us to report to you i in ow opinton

s qdeguate accuuntng records have not been kept by the Parent Gompany,
or relurns adequate for our aodit have 1ol Deen received rom braneioes noet
vitled by us, or

» the Paient Company tnancial statements and the pat of the Drector s
Rerunoiation Repott 1o be awditeod are not in agreetond valh the acoouing
records and retunns, o

o certan disclosures of direc tors' ramuneration specified by law are not macle,
or

* we riave not recerved all tre information and explanabions we require for
ouy audl

Responsibilities of directors

As expla ned mate fully n the directors’ rasponsbiitos statement set out on
page 143, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financdl
statements and for beiny satwfied thal they gve a true and fan view, and for
suich Internal contred as the directors determing 1S necessary to enable the
proparation of tinancial statements that are fiee from materal T isstatement,
whether due to fraud or error

I prepanng the inancial statemernts, the dirsctors are responsible for assessing
the Group and Parent Company's abibty to continue as a gong concen,
disclosng, 4s dpplicatle matters refated 1o going concern and using the gong
congern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to hguidate the
Gravg: o the Parent Company or 10 Cease operations. or Nave no realistic
altemative b 1o do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

T obyet ves are 1o oblar teasonalle o195 nanc e 2bout whether the tinang il
slalenien s 2s a whole aré free fromomateral o sslalement whether due

G raud or error and 10 ssue an aud tor s report taal ncludes oar onimon
Reasonable assurance s o high level of aesurance, bol s not a guaraniee 1hat
an dur t conducted 0 o cordance wath [SAs UK will abvays detect A matenal
moaatalemen' phen 1 exicts Minstalemonts can anse from fraud o error and
dare considered materal T ondracualy or mthe aggreqate ey could reaso-ably
Le expected to nylueoce thie sconorng dedisions o7 users taken on the bace of
these financial s atements

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of
detecting wregularities, including fraud

The objectives, of our audit mrespec to haud, are taaentify ano assoes the
nses of matorial nisstatomoent of the i anoal statements due e haud, to obian
safficient appropaiate audit evidence regarding the assessed rsks of imater al
msstatemers due to fraud hrough designing and implernanting apenopnate
resnonces and to respond appropndtely 1o fraus or sbepectad fraoad reatticd
dunng the audt Howewer the peoear, responsibility for the prevenion and
deterton o frauct rest with hot ) those ¢ arged wath govomanea of the

entity and T atagement

Our approach was as follows

» Ve oldamed an undaistanding of tne legal andegulatory iamneworis that
are applic anle 1o he Group and determine | th t the most sgnfbcant we
lramewotk~ whic by are daectly 1elevan to sped b, asserlions i the finncal
statements aie those that relate to the reparling framewaork [IFRS FRS 101
the Companies Act 2006 end UK Corporate Governance Godey I addimon
we conckided thal there are cartam sigmifieant faws and regelalions which
may have an effect on (e determination of the amount and disc losure n
the tinancial staterments pang the Listing Rules of the JK Listing Authonty
and 1hase laws and requlalions relatng to health and safety and
ermployee matter,

We understood how IMI pl 1s compiying withy those frameworks Ly maler ¢
enguines of management, internal audit, those responsitle for legal and
compliance proceaures and the company secrelary We carroborated our
ercjuines through our review of board minutes, papers provided 'o the Audit
Commitiea ard correspondence receved from reguiatory bodies

We assessed the susteptibity of the Group s hnancial statements to matenal
nusstatement, ncluding How raud mignt occur by meeting with management
from wvanous parts of the businas< 1o understand where it consideraed there
was suscenthiity to fraud We also considered porformance targets and ther
luence on efforts made by management to manane earmings or nfluence
the percephon. of andysts We considered the programmes and cantrols
ihat the Group has estabhshed to address rske dentified, o that otherwise
prevent, deter and detect fraud and how senior management monitors

thos e programs and controls Whore tho nok was con adared to he hugher,
we nerformed audit procedures to adaress ench dentified fraud nsk. These
procedures ircluded testing manual journals and wore desgned to provide
red-onable assurance that the financial sfatements warc froe from fraud

of orror

Based on this urderstanding we designed our audit procedures 1o identify
nen-compliance with such laws and regulations, Our procedures involved
journal entiy testing wath a focus on manual consolidation journals and
journals ndicating large or unusual tiansactions based on our undorstanding
of the businees enquines of legal counsel, Group management, Intermal audt,
divisional managerment and full and specific scope management, and focused
testing, as roferred to In tne key audit matters section above.

Alurther descnption of our responsieites for the auart of the fimancial
statements is [ncated on the Financial Report ng Council’s websde at
hittprs Awws tre.org. uke audtorsresponsplnies

Ttus description forms part of ow auditor s report
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Trwean r Cpnent L onssien T oA th e ao vbehial Teport o thie At Jotenatte,

Use of our report

Th copaat wreen ke Gl l TG e rOrdty < cniceadnr g Facnt,,
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Simon O'Neill (Senior statutory auditor)

foe andd or Dehddf of Errnet &Y ung LLP S atuing v A wditer
Birrnioghan

28 Fobrarn 2018
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1 The mantendancs aod rregoty, of e IMEpde v etsite 0 he responabid be of the directors the s otk caned cul By the anditors does ot nrokee consider itinn
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Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Ncte £m .A_ED,
Fixed assets
nvestments GHo 1732 Ts2
Cunent asson
Dehtors ) 418.1 2829
Delorre tax assels o7 2.2 ] P
Crash at bank and m ha 0.3 348
A6 | 2694
Creditors: ameounts falling due within one year X
Other areditor- o} {4.3) ! "3
Net current assets T 416.3 280 1
Total assets less current habilities _ 589.5 4583
Net assets 5895 | 158 4
Capital and reserves
Called up shaee Capnlal o1y} 81.8 ! 818
Shate premmne accoui 133 12 -
Capitdl redemplion reserce 174.4 | ‘44
Proft and - - ace nont 320.0 894
Equity shareholders’ funds 589.5 | LER 3

Approved Ly the Bovd of Directore on 28 February 2019 and signaed on ity nehalf nv

Lord Smuth of Kelvin

Chainman



Company statement of changes
for the year ended 31 December 2018

in equity

1583

Srare Share  Redemptior Setared Paranl
capital P “BLErvE EdI1HYS equity
mﬂ £rr £m =m £m

AL ey 2017 818 RRCN] 1T44 Tz odu
Retarmntl predt for the yoa 171 T
Uit l pracd ononedinars b RIS {17103 51
Shore 1gsned i the veal - = (S5
Shiare-Li g edd pryreents o B,
Shiare s b

QHIPAG P S e -0 arne -1 20 [
At 51 December 20017 413 T 1711 189 1 108 3
Retained profit for the year 237.5 237.5
Dividends paid on erdinary shares* {107.9) (107.9)
Shares issued In the year - 0.6 0.6
Share-based payments 7.0 7.0
Shares acguired for

employee share scheme trust {6.0) (6.0}
At 21 Decomber 2018 81.8 133 174.4 320.0 589.5

Dietade of 46 wury ancempho, ee bl share scherieomevenrents e contamed o Sect 8 ool he Ge oo inane - tateron®s and delals of deodendy poard

A proposed i the yodr A e shipan n nate G4

Albar i rcam e g carmgs bl al Both 31 Dece er 2tz and 51 Doccmner 2017 are conocred to be d o abateole reser oo
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Company notes to the financial statements

C1. Significant accounting policies

The fallowvirg e countng policies B been apphed onsstently n deqhng #h
iterns considered marenal inrelation 1o the it ancial stalements, except v ore
athensy e notad below

Basis of accounting
Tre lnaneial slarermen & L erg prepaced i da-otaanee with Frenoal Beporlinmg
Star dard 101 Reddue e Dioctosre Framesork (FRS 10710

e Compsdny has Nt presenied o senarate pr it ao loss accn nt a= pereitled
by Sectiont 08 of the Sompa e Ad 2006

Tto Comprany Fus taken adh antage Or the olloaing di-clos b cxer phors unoe
FRS 101

b b regaren enle o paragraphbs 45 ) andd 16-52 VTIFRS 2 Share-besod
Payrient

b theregurerrent of IFRS T Frwancat Inesum &4y

o) thererpaements of parurapns G1.00 of IFRS 173 Far Vabir Yeasaranor

o the regdremicnt b paragraph 36 oHAS 1 2ee _oltation of Fnandial Statemente.

1 prescnl Comprrative Ftonmation v oespect of paragraph “Slalive cf 1AS 1,
e} the rerumerrents of paragraphs e 195(1) and 134-150 of 1A 1
f the reqguirerments of IAS 7 Statament of Cask Flove.

g the requren ents of paragraphs 30 and 31 0 IAS 8 Accountr g Policies
Chianges 1 Acconniing Estinates and Enors’

by thie tequirertents of paragraph 17 ofHAS 24 'Related Party Disckosures andd

1 the requiremients n 1AS 24 'Relaled Parly Disclosures Lo divclose related
party transachions ertered Nl between tvo o more members of the Groug
rovided trat arvy subsich ary whicn s parly 1o he transaction s owholy, owne
Ly stirh a member Relaled barty transactions waith the Gompany - key
maniagement petsonnel are disclosed in the Remunerat on Reporl on pages
68 1o 79 and n Section 5 2 on paye 134 at the Group Inancial slaements,

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Tre preparation of inancial statements rcguites managemer 't to make
judgements, estmates and assumnpliors that atfoct the amounts reportadd o
assets and hahilitios a8 at the balance sheet date ano the amounts reported for
ncome and expensas dung the yoar, However, the natiee of ostmation means
that actual outcomes coudd differ iom those estin ates

Foreign currences

The Campany = funchional currend y and presentalion curreicy i ~leting
Transactions nloreigh Cunencies ane recordod usmg the rale of excliange
rul ¢ at the date of transaction

Monetary assets and hab ites denommated n forgign currencies have been
translated o stering at the rates of exchange ruling al the balance sheet date
and the gans or losses on translation are noluded N the nrofit and less ar count,

Investments

Ivestments b suboldianes are actounted for & Cost less dny provision for
wnparment, The Company’s cost ! nves'mer ds 01 subsidiary undertak ngs is
stated al he aggregdate of (@) the cash corsideration anu either (b)) the nomina
value of the shares issued as consideration when Section 812 of the Cornipdnies
Act 2006 applies or (G} i alt ather cases the market value of the Comparyy &
shares on the date they were issted as consideration

Taxation

The charge for taxauon s based on the proft lor the year and tales o account
taxation deferred because of temporary cifflerences hetween the treatment of
cerfan tems for taxalion and accounting purposes

[ feract lax 1= 1€ ogrised n e cect of Ll temporany, differences, belveen - e
weiment of cerlan deme fur taration ano g counting purposes which rae
dreen ot Nt resersed by the Lalance shee dale, exi epl a5 otter amse tegured
bry IAS 12 e ome Taxes  Relered tax g ineasured al the tax rates hal e

exi o0 led 10 apply & en the terporan, d ecn. es reverse, beood o0 the ax lav s
that have Leen enaciad or substaniively enacted by the balance <heet date A
cleterre ] tax ansel 1s rec ugrised "o the extanl tha itis probdable that flaee taxable
prof walb e avalable ag-anst which the lemporaey difference can be uthced

Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

Tt e Sompdr iy GPErates a numoat of e ty ar d enaty-relatea comper aaten
honetits as set out 111 Section 4 11 10 the Groupy irancial Staternents The far
vl of the enployoe seng s tecaraed in 2xehnoe fon the griant of the orions
i recharged in ol o the pnncpa emoloying «ompany and ac: ordingly. fhere -
no net charge rorardled nthe Company's tna- ol <tatements The rocharged
amount 15 roe oonised A a debtot fallrey due for payment wthin one yeat

Tr e totdl amount recharged over the vestg penod @ aeterme el by re erence
{0 the fan value of (he optbons granted excluding 0 ripact of drty (00t
Ve g« oncations tfor example profanilny and sakes growth agets: Nor-

Mt ket vosting conchtioss are mcluded n assua plions about the nua ber of

ot tione thal se expected Lo Der ome exeraisdable The far value of the opbions of
the date of grant s cletennned based on the Bl th-Schules option-pricng model

Al cach balanc e sheet date, tha Coraany revi-es ity ostimate of the number
ot oprtione that are expected tovost Hrecognises the mpact of the revsion of
origieal estmdtes, f any in the amount 1echarged to subsidary undertakngs

For nevdy 1~ ued shaes the pracasds rocoree 1 00t o7 any diged thy attpbutable
fransac o costs are adied 16 share captal (nomnal saltie) and share premiom
welsen the options are exers e ed

Treasury shares

The congideration paid by tt e Gompany o e acguisition of reas iy shares
15 ¢ hatyged cuectly 1o retaned ean ngs n tee year of purchase Congiderston
recovad for the sale of such shares 15 also recogised in ecguity witn any
dfferonce botween the proceeds front sdle and the onginal Cost taken to share
premium i teasury shares are subsequently cancebed the nommial value of
the cancelled shares ;s anstorred ront share Captal 1o the capital redemption
reserve Na gam or loss s recognised on the purchase, sale or cancellation ot
freasury shares

Dividends

Divedends . npait at the halance sheat date are only recogrised as a bty «t
that date to the extent that they are authonsed and are no longer at the drscretion
of it & Combany Unpaid drvidends 1hat e not imeel thase cnlena are discloser m
the noles 1o the tnancial statements

C2. Remuneration of directors

Toe detalted I formation coneening directors” emoluments, shareholdings 4nd
optiong are shown in the audied section of the Remuneralion Report on pages
68 lo 79, Section 5,2 and Section 21 3 of the Group finanoial slaterments,

C3. Staff numbers and costs

The nunber of people employed by the Company, mchiding divectors, durng
the yew was 26 (2017 26} all of whorn were employed 1 admunst ative rolos,
The costs associated with them wore horre by a subsidiary undertaking

The Company parlicipates in the IMIUK Funds, which are defined benefit
schemres n which the assels are held moependently The lolal net defined
benell costs of these Funds are borne by a subsidary undertaking and therefore
n accordance with I1AS 18 no net defired benefit costs are recognised in the
Company™s findacizl statements Section 4 171 1ot e Group finand 1t staternenty
proviges further delads regarding the defined benelit schemes




G4. Dividends
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155

2018 | 2017

£m | £m

berier e il dbe edones s aid - 20 Spprer op il ordde oy o 1200 3] 68.3 ST S
Coareplvear ntonm drodde o paa - T Top o qualibyng srding - e 00T T Rp 39.6 R
Agoeegate amour bo cheidsnds pard 0 chd tinane ol year 107.9 15

Dodent peadbm e ye v of T107 i er e ond o3 Bl shae 12077 58 Uy

Adler e bl o e the oo smg e oo 2ore peoss s oo b e direc e T dboidends e o baoe

Correntyoar foal dicador b= Za 0 v gl ong erotnary e 2010 25 2

prs e A and hosc ar pae

2018 ‘

P Y LTI [T

2017
- £&m ! £
70.4 SR

D odeneds propu oo amier e halane s et dase g, ke o e meal e et paa Toe
anfe riel It e e e e gt o sl e et late

Ch. Fixed assels - invostments

Aores LI et bt amor of Luakf gy bigre contithcd 1 doideeds

Subsichary undertakings

208 2017
&m | £m
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 cost and net book value 173.2 1732
Dotals o drad oy inwortabirny o G 3T Doenrnbeer 2005 are shoat o parnes 15710 1o
C6 Debtors
2018 2017
£m | rm
Falling due for payment after more than one year
Amoants oveed by subeicary ordertakanege, 313,9 B 1705
Falling due for payment within one year,
Arnoteds owerd Boouby fdor s ordestakangs 17074:2 e
418.1 Ze2a
C7 Deferred tax
|
2018 2017
. £m £m
The deferred tax included in the balance sheet s as follows- '
|
Finployes ceneslbs dng shidre o] pramie . g.? 2T
Deterrer] b s e e ocdead 1 the by Lo o heid 2.2 2
Reconciliation of movement in deferred tax asset.
At danary Tiie 2.7 11
Lictenedd b ceedhtm toe prod ol koo ag - ount [0.4) 14
Dedcrirood T recit m ooy @.1) 3
At 31 December 2018 2.2 o

Coategpr to dnconate of Ul carporiticn oo weero suby ity voae oo e U e red e berate fo 19

The deteare d tsxbsabances fre e e b ale e mcd onthe tale oy pl able sron b el oo e enprn bl oo whuc b
ti f

rovny 1 Al SO T el b 17

Ml 17

o 1 ApHL AE

2o, 1)
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Company notes to the financial statements
(continued)

C8. Other creditors falling due within one year

2018 2007
£m £m
Arrounts cyeed o nubn chan tndertaky go 28 } 32 ,
Othar payabios 15" 11
43 a3
C9. Share capital
2018 2017
£m £m
T
Issued and fully paid
286 IM (2017 286 2y otdirary shares of 28 4 Ty aach 81.8 818

C10. Contingencies
Contihagetit labal tos ralatng 1o godrantees i the normal © otrse of busness and olher Aems arr cunted to 892 7 (2017 8100 5y
There 5 2rght of set-oft aathtbree of the Company = oankers relating to the Balans os of tho Comprny ared a omtaes o7 it w0 olly -owned U< sobsichanos |

Whete the Company entor- into inane Al guarantee oatrad bs to guarantes 1he ndebitedness of other companies vathin ds Group, the Con pany considars those
10 Fe nsurance anangaments, ano a0 couw s on therm ds sich In s respecl e Sompary 1eats the guatantgs rentiact ax a contngent habubty uncif s ime
as it becoimeas peobable that the Company will be required 10 maka a payiment under the guaranlee
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Subsidiary undertakings

Al ot of the Groape s bsklary un tertakngs and registere spore pal offlc £ ov at 31 Decorber 2008 - ncd ded Detow Bxornd wehers ned atea e whece,
Capital monsiste o ardinary Sthares only Tac onnep 0 Gunitty et b Gac e sLPsREEY gRerdtss anr b as o registerad pronepal ol - e countiv 0 e on oralion

Ak s eftectie o tgrastin b cnddenaakais botod 1 1000 e el st i ated anch e fiekd 1 pach Cas e s g stbg iy antderiadare oxcer Ul PA Grogs
Lted AL Den cobdarid Verealtungs GSmbsH and (P L Lkede A traha - L vbwduen are bebdosrelyr ¢ AL I

The Soup s miterests 1 othe paatner b ops the W Scottish Limited Partrership anc o 102077 Soottshiaantond Pucorche v bich oie fulle cone oldated ntn
these Graagr w oGty The G bos taken achear tage of the esomaotion confared oy reaulation ol e Poetnershues A cour 1) Booulatone 2008 i bos
thetefore not ar penncd $he oo Guntu oTthe o guealhng pariners oot sl arcaunls Separale e ooy for e partno Sbnpe e not iggoacd fo be ano Foae

vat heen nlea 3 Sormnpan e Holse

Croarlos oo e Mornedancs BY S, el anets L s, Sobtoill Peokoaay Broing: ain s siness Parle g g e o Modlanods B3, K2,
FOX Pension Tne-tees Linitert Uriten <1 gdom
ot Cotates Lin b eed,

WALSI Traster Zimded

I Dot hlard Linnren

Pz Freoance Lamded

B lud Cuontes s B cr L nan,
AL Setmars Lrratec

IMI Geeup, Zimnred

A yria b Liorated

I et Dunitedd

IRAL ™ e gas e et ot Linoded,
I "o sens Tows | oated

IMi | I

IME=rec <0 n Engmeenng o mited

IME =rorersty T ew'mens Limited

M Refiner- Limise d,

IME Retrer oot Savings Teust L 1uieo,
IMt Swede Fnance Limred,

IMEY - cn Limited

Lreguaie e 211 Limuted,

Trufie Group Limited

Toflo Internzticnal Limited

Thudlo Investments CLrited

WAL Tritic Al Engineeting Bolding GribH Brugk tranae <3 C6319 Alpen Genna y
IMI Ceutse hilsnd 1 GimoH & Co KG

IMI Centst hland Ver sallungs Cobib

IMI Secmiany Holding Lrene 18 Co KG

Nargren GribH

IMT At e g St Soudt Delasare Sueet, Liktle one GOm0, Cnded Stete
I Flod Control Holdings Ine
Nergren Ine

[MAE Adastrales 120 L 34 Benath Corporate Avenne. Hovealls WVICG 3078 Anndeadia

[EAL _alesiche Agetrala fHy L1d

Ty Eit e Seeles Ty L ten

IMI = Olding lalv SR Via Stenoh 65 20 149 Rilano ot -

Ortin S|

Teuflo Hona S R4

B Marnutachnng Gomaoany 251500 8 Governots He g Unnersity Paris, L0781 Uned States
Birria Propoite s e

Hewnew r Genba Wirg By heatr e Weg 20 D097 Ervatle Gornr ane

IMIHyediont . Fngie excnney Dene s blanicd Gt

IMI Aera-Lrymarmirk ByEs B ool nr 2 B 2620 S helle, Belogenan

IMIErydrenn g senng NV

IMI Cornpsanents Linterd, W et Rosars Bomingharn BO 7JE Urnib efiineedons

Trtley Banine Linnred

AL Finane 2 SA Fovte to Gra o 19 Lakg Grevad Bunees Park 9267 Eyoins Seateerland
AL Fiycaronie Engge escting [ b qtnin] SA

Wy ronse Doegpecenng A S, Ve lerhe b oop B L TR0 Harles Tucnear®

Notgren ACS

M Hpchrone Enegr wenng BY Ra taenwog @0, Alpber e e Bgn I 2908 AR Nacth erlaneds
IBAL e tgrlarade Hoddn ga
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Subsidiary undertakings

(continued)

Ml Scotland Lirnvted 15 Attoll Crescent =oh buarge ERE 8FA Uneted Kingdor
The IMI Scottich Lmigedd Partnorsnm
Lakeurcls Fiteritse Ve ates Somipaeiy 1 Store s Place S0 St-phens Growrr Dublin 2 keland
Lahesirz Treasary Untiensted Comaaniy
MNorgren Co wimited, Baldrg 3 No 1883, Duhu Road, Minhany Jiinct Shangha, Chir
Nargre Manolactr vig Co L .
i
Notgren Mancfas g De Wese o Sa TE Gy, AV Do 12 Mantania 1200 Pargque Ihodusthal Queratars, Santiago o Quetetare. Quemtars
Norgrea SA do CV SR 7020 Mosi
Valvee Hofding G b Batlianiweeg b 52355 Duren Germdny
Z & J Technologes GrmbH
!
AoIG ALEOGIes e 1995 Tlhvera Rd, Sta A Concod CA 945206 Urited StAte.
AFA Gonttols L1 G 87 Gurporation Trunt Ceritre 1204 Orange Street wWihnnglor DF 192801 Urnated States
Hopp & Reuther Valkes G- Carl-Reuther 5u 1, 68305 Marnhenn, Genmaryy

Brookvale Internat onal nouranee Limited Clarendoen Hotse Chooh Strect, Hanutor HEA1TY Bermuda

Burhod! GmbH Geln.alder Stras-e 256, 3255 Bad Oeyobnusen Germany
CUTAG Fabrtiisafrasse (U 840 8nnsch Swtzerfand

CCi Amenc 3 do Sul Comutin de Erapamantos industies Lidr Roa llepova 280 Cp 85 96:97 Suo Paulo 01332000 Brazil
|

CCl A Pacificy Pe i " 28 ite nabonsl Busness, Park ACER Bulding Toaer A, #34-01 Singapore 61,9925 Smgapare
CClCrerh Ropubl, 510 K LeaSt 804 3, Shpan e, 62,00 Czooh Republe
CCl Flow Contal (Shanghen Co L Room 1% Unt 13, 159 T an Zhou Road Cao He dng Deneloprent Zone,

[ Shanghal 200233, Crina
CCl Interniat onal Limred Lt A% Brooksiie Busness Park Greengale Micdleton Mancs ester, M4 133 Uniled Kegdom
CCllaly SR Vie L eopardt o, 20123 Milan Haly
GGl Limited 14 Dangdong 2-ro Munsah-aup, Pane-si, Gy conga-do, 10816 Republo of Korea
CClI Vahe Technalogy AB J Industigatan 13, Box 603, 661 29 Sallle, Sweden
GOl Walve Technology GrbH I Lernbion kgas.e 6371, 1280 Wien, Alustng
Control Component India Pyt Limited Ground, 151 & 2nd Floor Tower 4 SJR park Flot # 13 14815 EPIF Zone Phase 1, W tefold

Road, Bangulore 560066 India

Control Components Inc } 22591 Avernda Empresa, Rarcho Sunta Margaiia CA 92688, Urited States
FAS MediL SA "Route de Bossonrens 2, 1607, Palezieux, Switzerland
Flused Aoterriation Systoms GmbH CStubtgarter Strafe 120, 70736 f elliach, Germany
Hetion Systenttechnilk GmbH untere Talsliasee 65 71263 Well der Stadt Germany
IMI Aero-Dynarmick BV | Havenstraat 9, 3661 V&, Nyherle Metnerlands
IMI GGl South Atrca Phy) | id ! 18 Van Rensburg North Avenue [xt 66, Witha 'k, 1035, South Africa
IMI Consulling (Shangha; Co Limited Units 0 06 9 Floon, No 500 Frshan Road, Pudong New Area, Shangho, 200122, Chna
IMI Critical Engineerng (Shanghan) Somgany Limited ‘ B3-2, No 303, xirke Road, Qngpu District, Shanghai, 201707 China
M1 Critical FZE  Ofe No, F7J081308 FZI0A1310, FZUUA1307A, Jebel Al Tres Zone Dubal,

| United Arab Fovrates
IMI Energs & VWS Utveckling AB y Annedalsvagen 9, 22764, Luna, Sweden
IMI Engineerng Sdn, 2nd I Level 22 Axiata Tower No. 9 Jalan Stesen Senval 5 Kuala Lumpur Sentral

50470 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

IMT France SARL I 52 Bovlevard de Senastopol 75003 Pans France
INI Hicdronik Mubendishi Iimlenainme Setemiben Lid St i Atasair Bulvan Ata Carstno 50-63, Alasehr, istanbul Turkey
IMI Holdings LLC I 101 Broadway Street Wost Sune 204 Osseo, MN 55369, Unitod States
IMI Hydronic Engineerng AB ; Anrelund, SE-524 80, wung Sweden
Ml Hydrornie Ergineenng AS Giynilveien ¢, Sk, N-1400, Norway
IME Hydronie Engineerng China : Room 360, Xin Mao Bullding No 2 Ta Zhong Nan Road, Pilot Free Trace Zone Shanghat,

206131 China
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Subsidiary undertakings

(continued)

Norgrer Kloohn ing
Norgrer Lo ten
Norgren Leraten
Newrgre= Lim tecd
Nengien Licka
Norgre: Ny

Norgrer Tte Lerita
Notgrer SAS
Norgren Srl

Norgron Swodot AR
Norgre Tawvan Co Limited
Preumathne ine
Romosa SR

SAIC SO Valve Co Lk 1445

Shangha CCI Puwe Control Eaapment Co Lid

STISRKI

1A Segutater oo

TH Jansen Armatiren GmbH

THJ Holamg GmH

P horrpson Vakas Lamiled

TRD Manufactunng Compam, Iro
Trutlo Bora S A

Vaucon Company,

2 & J Hgh Temporature Eguimiment Shanghait Co Jid

Zmimermann & Jansen ihe

* heated as external nvesiments

Subsidhary audit exemptions

A0 Banbinry Cros= Drive Las vegas NV 8288144 Cnied St -es
L F Benson Tower ~4 Hung To Road Kwun Tong Kowloon Hang g
154 Voste, Dive Auckland 1060, New Zeuland
Blerhenn Way, Fradloy Park Lichf el Statforoshire WSI13 BSY, crited kangeom
A Erg Abeto de Zagolts £90-B Sao Paule 8P, G467 5-085 2
F wiahavensstraal 84, B 1651 Lok, Belgum
6 T Street Singaprne H38403 S0 gapore
e ds Lanuault 77080 Collegien France
Via tneste Th, e ate, 20871 Milah Haly
Frax 141001, ventigatan 4, 5-200 24 Mamo Saodon
JF No G40 Sec 1 Miralheng N Bo |, Grashan Dist, Tasynan Citys 333 Taraan
11425 231 Ave Novth Plymoutt MN 55447 Urnitad States
Vide Tula 37 L9123 sede ¢ staniniento srada o, 0308, Coagllan, Sacditng Baly
Blos k B, 123 Cho grming Xmishan Boad, Shongiing County Shangfus 2021577 Chin
2243 2F Ne 11 o ane 165, Tengy ue Road Srangd Distict Shangrian 200000, Chir a
Via der Cargeagy 15 24040 1 evate (BG) Naly
Cotlmka Ulv 213, Bresce, SI-8250 Sloverd
Ctto-kaner St 6 6386 Sankt Ingbet Gerrnarn,
CPlasiger Sir 34, 55543 Bad Kreu7iach, Sevmany
* ¢ Balena Close, Greekmoor Poale, Dorset, BH1/ ZEE, Jnited Kingriem
L0891 North 2ned Steet Machesney Faik 1L 61115, United Statos
Je avenue “h Parc Industnal des Hauts Saerls, 4040 Hersial, Belgum
} 9 ndustnal Pak Road Modway MA 020503 Uniled States,
819 Yirchun Road Minhang District, Shanghae 261109, Chiea
1 4525 Kernedy Coinmierce Drive Houston TX 77036, drited S.ates

IMI s has rssued guaranteas ovar the kubiies over the folldwry ©omna mes 2t 31 Decembor 2018 unden Section 4790 of Goenpanes Act 2006 and hese
enliies are exermpt from the req iremients of tre Actielating o the aud Lobindadual acconrts by virtee 0f Section 41 9A ot the Act

Company hame

Holtord Estates Limaed

IMI Deulschiland Limited

IMEEaro Finance Liratod

IMI Fluicd Controls (Financa; Limited
M Garmany Linited

IMI Marston Linnted

IMI Refiner s Linterd

} Company humber Company name Company number
. 01181406 M1 St otiand Linited ‘ 563?8%24

! 078435561 IM} Swvreden Finance Limied Q7272731

f Q79281408 ML Visior Limited 04421170

t 08528502 Truflo Group Limiea 104430846

; (78435576 Truflo International Linited 100184822

C V0155987 Truflo hvestiments Limnited 04430027

1 00148305
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Geographic distribution of employees
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Five year summary

Adjusted revenue Em Adjusted profit before tax* £m Adsted Group revenue by gecgraphy 2018

Emerge g UK

Mot 5
_ a2
] &
- [ i’_ ] Re-t of the
k- - 2 World
- e
2 g q
Yestern B orapw
36~
) o i w _E o :__ :Er . ;-g__ - @ Nert Armnetic d
] 2 R g8 R g i R R & ey
230
Crvan adpsted od s
Incame statement
2014 2015 2018 2017 2018
£m £m £m £m £m
Sratuton, revenue 1642 1.567 165 1,751 1,807
Adjusted revenue 1,686 1,00 1,649 LA J;gﬂ,
Adjusted cporatng profit 205 5 23649 224 2 2332 o 7‘265.5
Adjusted profl before 1ax e 218 7 USRS 7041 251.2
Special pension evenls (0 91 28 108 6.8
Respructuning costs [1:3%)] 125.1) R 134.6) {12.4)
Acquired ritangible amorlisation and mparment B0 4) 32 2) 125 %) o) 27.1)
Other acquis.tiun iterms (1 &8 B - @ 3.7}
Gan/loss) on disposal of subsicharies 34z 8.4) - (2.3} [+X]
F\nan(naitrmstrumgr\}s excluding econoric hedge contract gens losses (2 8} 26 (12 24 &(Azﬂ
Profit before tax from continuing operatwons 2437 182 7 165 3 1Boe 7?12_9\
Adjusted EEITOA 371 263 273 288 320
Group sales by destination
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
£m £m m £m £m
UK 98 10 75 Ta 90
Western Europe” 641 563 630 653 681
North A eric a 318 334 344 336 451
Emerging Markets 544 508 520 585H 608
Rest of World 82 65 80 86 77
Adjusted Revenue 1686 1.657 1,649 1751 1,907
Reversal of net econamie hetlge conlract losses/igans) 53 10 & - -
Staiutory Revenue 1,882 1 587 1657 1751 1,807

*Defined as Germany, Frarce Holland, ftaly Span Denmark Groece Belgium, Republie of helsnd Purtugal Luxemboug Sweden Finland, Avstiia Cyprus
Syatzerland and Neraay,
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e - »otd 2015 20i6 2017 2018
Aduiabes haske egm 0 por sae O [N 59 By SR 73.2p
Statutory basic sarmge per < bares e onhing g ¢4 2p 44 T -8 3p f36p 62.5p
Oreln 2, diendend por shuare Sohp SIRIE oE 99 A 40.6p
Balance sheet
o014 2017 2016 2017 2018
m om m £m £m
Segm etal et o, 249 Q24 T 102 1.220
Clier et pon coeratng e iles exe b idmg bos o ings ogros o) G5 AR i 155 (149)
Mt df bt Ay 12371 R 12673, {405)
MNet a ot 3y ARy R ed), 666
Statrstics
2014 2015 2018 201, 2018
Segraontdh Lpr g T rofit as w percentge of segn vatal reven e 17587 151 1380 138 14.0%
Segraental ¢ pern g rolil as = percentage o sega et nel assels S48 204 EARIE AT 21.8%
Ef e tre L rate onadlas sed prolit bedore tax FE ZE 0 2100 214 - 21.0%
Met s els pee - n s fex loding treasary o EBT share s 2°8 Ip 217 8p 259 1p 210D 245.8p
Net debt 4w a pe contage of - hare alders funds RN Ay 2t 4B 57 4377 60.7%
Nt detl Ados en EBITLA ne ng 10 09 1.3
Adstad EBITDA |r terpst 23 15 16 20 25
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Shareholder and general information

Announcement of trading resulis
The trading *s=ulfz for he Group lor he first hat*
OF 2019 wall b anne uncec on 26 July 2079

The trading ~culls tor the tull year erding
31 Decernuer 2008 vall b at ounced n
Februnry 2020

iforum manadger ent datoments waff be
5o N May and Novomber 2019

Dividend payments
17 May Aoy

it vl

Intenm Septerr e 2019

Share prices and caprtal gains tax

1w\ Closng e af the Company s ordiniury snares
o the condon Stock Excoange o 31 Rereriber
2018 vras 844 O (2010 1,333 00 The miarket

v ke of the Company < oromdry sbares an

31 March 1882, a5 o aloulated for Capntal cans

toe poarpones wias B3 ap e share

T Compatty s SEAG numbier 15 51443

Enquiries about shareholdings

For enguines concerning sharcholders personal
holkdings, please contact the Company » Regstrar
Equinitt icontact detals appear 1o the nght)

Piease remeiruer to lelt Equini if you miove heuse
change nank deails of 1f there s any olher change
16 yo e acsoun™ Indormation

Managing your shares on-line

Shaleholder s can T.anage ther holdings on-lng

by 1egistermg with Shareview, the nteinet based

plationm provided by Equindgi Registration s a

shaightlorward process and aliows shareroigders o

¢ help us @ reduce print paper and postaye costs
and the assoviated environmantal imypact of
thrse

s Gt your AGM el clertronically

* recowe an emait alert wAhen mpartant shareholder
documents are avalatile on-hne such as Annual
Reports and Notces of General Meetings,

» access detdlis ol your ndwidual sharenolding
quickly and securely,
s sat up a dividend mandaie on-ine, and

» change yout registered postal address or your
dividend mandate detads

To tind out more Nformation about the senices
offered by Shareview and 1o register, please wsit
w shareview.co uk

Corporate website

The IMEpile et sile provicdes a seallb ob usetal
wrfonnaton fue sharetoliler- ad should be yolr
brat prwt of =4l tur geceral auenes relaling 1o the
ot Lany and sor shares As el as proading
Lhare prce dats and inandial histon he =ie
a150 prov des bae kgreund nfenmation about

the Comany

Shareholders e al e onraged Voo sion e o

ecer e newe, Al by emal i he hwesior secto
of the webhsie
news relee
Tt s G sher o] akders by prent Yo
Hies € OFparate web” e at wiway imiple ¢ o

hese e uce all o the finang 1l
fiern Honghnend ey ar bat are
N A

Annual General Meeting 2019
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Individual Savings Account {ISA}

ML+ stdinany shares can be held oy an ISA

For miiotmation about the 1ISA operated by our
Regie rar, Sganih, please call the Eguinit 1S4
helpling on 0315 300 0430 Lines are open from
8 30am to 3 30om, Monday to Friday excludng
public holdays n England anc Walse

Share dealing service

Managed by Equini the Company sregistrar, ihe
IME pl. Sharc deating sorvicg provides sharehok ers
wth a simple way of buying and selling IMI ordinary
shares Teleprone 0345 B0S 7037 Full witter
detalls can be obtaned rom Equini (cortact
detals appear to 1he ght)

Share fraud

Shate fraus ncludes scams whore rvestors are
caliea out of the blue and offered shares that ofter
tun out to be worthless of non-existent, or an
nflated pnee for shares thoy own These calls come
from fraudsters oparating N boder rooms that are
mostly based alwoad Further mformation on how
10 spot ghare haud o repott 4 sCam can he found
0N our corparate welsite

American Depesitory Receipts

IRAL Ll hass an Avrer Can Deprosiary Recegt (ADR
parusygramime that trades ary the Ouyer-The-Colprer
matkel i be CSA using 1he symbo! IMIAY

ADR enmunes Cheold be aned ed 1o Gk
Sharesolder Ser a e, PO Bos 13077 Pravider ge,
Rl 0Yg40-307 7, USA Toll-ree number il e

HISA 15 1-877-CITILADR (87 7-238-4257) ard from
outerdle the USAE 1-781-575-2550 You ¢ an ale
gl ciiarik dstiarets fder - otknig ¢om

Headquarters and registered office
Lakesde

Solihull Parkeaeay

Brmmgham Busmess Purk
Birnninghara

B3T T¥Z

Teleptore 144 121797 5700

AL e 1 egitercd i England N 11276

Registrars

Equiat
Aspem House
Spancar Road
Lancing

WWest Sue sex
BNG9 DA

Telgphione 0371 384 2916 r from ovarsens

144 121 415 7047

Lnes are open 8 30am tc 5 30pm Maonusy o |riday
(oxe buch ngy potAie hol days i Tngland ane Wales)

Stockbrokers

JPMorgun Carepove
Bank of America Merrll Lyoch

Auditor
Frast & Young t LP

Cautionary statement

This Annual Report may contan torward-looking
staternents that may ¢ may rot prove accarate Fo
example, statements regarding exoectad rovenue
agrowth and eperating margms, maiket trends and
ot produrt pipekine are forward-lockng statements
It 15 believed that the expectations reflectsd n these
statarments arg reasonablia bhut they may be affected
by a nuniber of ks and uncertamties that aro
miforent in any forward-looking statement which
could cause actual results o affor matenially from
those currently antiipated  Any forward-looking
statement 15 made in gooa fath and gased on
nrormation ava lable to IMI plc as of the date of
the preparation of this Annual Report, All written

or eral forward-looking statements atinbutabla to
IMI ple are qualtied by this caction IMIple dog=
net indertake any oblivation to update or revice
any forward-locking stalement to reflect any change
0 circumstant s or n Ml ple's expectadtions
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